e e

SPELTHORNE

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Please reply to:

Contact: Karen Wyeth

Service: Committee Services

Direct Line: 01784 446341

E-mail: k.wyeth@spelthorne.gov.uk
Date: 26 August 2022

Notice of meeting

Environment and Sustainability Committee

Date: Tuesday, 6 September 2022
Time: 7.00 pm

Place:  Council Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames TW18
1XB

To the members of the Environment and Sustainability Committee

Councillors:

M. Beecher (Chairman) S. Buttar V.J. Leighton

R.J. Noble (Vice-Chairman) R. Chandler S.C. Mooney

J. Button T. Fidler L. E. Nichols

|.J. Beardsmore N.J. Gething O. Rybinski

A. Brar K.M. Grant J.R. Sexton

Substitute Members: Councillors M.M. Attewell, J.R. Boughtflower, J.T.F. Doran,

R.D. Dunn, M. Gibson, H.Harvey, I|T.E. Harvey,
N. Islam, T. Lagden and D. Saliagopoulos

Councillors are reminded that the Gifts and Hospitality Declaration book will be available

outside the meeting room for you to record any gifts or hospitality offered to you since the last
Committee meeting.

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB

www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499



http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk

Agenda
Page nos.
Apologies and Substitutes
To receive any apologies for absence and notification of substitutions.
Minutes 5-10

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Environmental and
Sustainability Committee meeting held on 05 July 2022.

Disclosures of Interest

To receive any disclosures of interest from councillors in accordance
with the Council’s Code of Conduct for members.

Questions from members of the Public

The Chair, or his nominee, to answer any questions raised by
members of the public in accordance with Standing Order 40.

At the time of publication of this agenda no questions were received.
Ward Issues

To consider any issues raised by ward councillors in accordance with
Standing Order 34.2

At the time of publication of this agenda no ward issues were received.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 11-64
The Committee is asked to consider a report from the Planning

Development Manager and the Principal Planning Officer that seeks

agreement of the Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 and

publication on the Council’s website.

Updates from Task and Finish and/or Working Groups 65 - 66

To receive written or verbal updates from the following Task and
Finish/Working Groups:

The Local Plan Task Group — written update from Ann Biggs, Strategic
Planning Officer

CIL Update — written update from Joanna Ghazaleh, Infrastructure
Delivery Co-ordinator



10.

11.

12.

Climate change Strategy and Action Plan

The Committee are asked to consider a report from the Climate
Change Officer that seeks approval and adoption of the Climate
Change Strategy.

Local Walking & Cycling Infrastructure Plan (LWCIP) Phase 1 & 2
The Committee are asked to consider a report from the Group Head
Commissioning and Transformation that asks them to note Phase 1 of
the Local Walking & cycling Infrastructure Plan and to agree to moving
to Phase 2 to further define schemes for walking and cycling within the
borough of Spelthorne.

Climate Change Working Group Update

To receive a verbal update on the work of the Climate Change Working
Group

Recovery Action Plan

To receive a verbal update from the Group Head Commissioning and
Transformation on the Recovery Action Plan for this Committee.

Forward Plan

A copy of the Environmental & Sustainability Committee Forward Plan
is attached.

67 - 98

99 - 294

295 - 298



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

Minutes of the Environment and Sustainability Committee
5 July 2022

Present:

Councillor M. Beecher (Chairman)
Councillor R.J. Noble (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

J. Button K.M. Grant L. E. Nichols
|.J. Beardsmore V.J. Leighton O. Rybinski
T. Fidler S.C. Mooney

Substitutions: Councillors D. Saliagopoulos

Apologies: Councillors R. Chandler, N.J. Gething and J.R. Sexton

45/22 Minutes

The minutes of the Environmental and Sustainability Committee meetings
held on 8 March 2022, and the Extraordinary meetings held on 26 April and
10 May 2022 were approved as correct records of the proceedings.

46/22 Disclosures of Interest

There were none.

47/22 Questions from members of the Public

There were no questions from the public.

48/22 Ward Issues

There were no ward issues for this meeting.

49/22 Ultra-low Emissions Zone for London

Page 5



Environment and Sustainability Committee, 5 July 2022 - continued

The Committee considered a report presented by the Principal Pollution
Officer.

The Principal Pollution Officer advised the Committee that only cars
registered before January 2006 and all diesel vehicles would be liable to pay
the low emissions charge when entering the Ultra-low Emissions Zone.

The Committee were advised that the following additional information had
been added to the report since the agenda had been published following a
meeting with Surrey County Council who are a key stakeholder as the
Transport Authority:

‘The enforcement strategy should include mobile enforcement cameras to
ensure that a measure is in place to combat avoidance of fixed enforcement
cameras. This would help to reduce the risk of non-complaint vehicles routing
around the fixed camera locations onto minor roads. There should be a
mechanism by which neighbouring authorities to the zone can report
perceived changes in traffic behaviour. To track changes in traffic behaviour
TfL could undertake pre ULEZ traffic counts, such as tube counts which would
help to provide baseline and post implementation counts, to quantify the
impacts of the extended zone.

Signage should be located well in advance of the ULEZ border. Signage from
the south for the existing LEZ begins as far south at Guildford. There would
be an expectation for a commitment to a similar warning distance, so that
drivers who are not familiar with the strategic road network approaching
London do not find themselves in a position where they need to exit the
A316/M3 at Sunbury Cross. Consideration should be given to measures to
ensure that the extended ULEZ is accurately mapped by satellite navigation
devices, which would help to reduce turn around journeys and re-routing to
the exempt M25’.

The Committee expressed their concerns about this the expansion of the
Ultra-Low Emission Zone would impact on the residents within the Borough,
especially within the more deprived areas and in light of the current increase
in cost of living.

Concerns were also expressed about the impact that any expansion of the
zone may have on small businesses’ costs if they had to travel across the
Spelthorne border to deliver or pick up goods. If was felt that there might be
an increase in parking in and around train and bus stations as people make
use of public transport to avoid driving in the new extended zone. This would
have an adverse effect on local residents and may even make the air quality
in some areas worse due to increased traffic.

How many vehicles that would be affected by the charge was unknown and

the Committee asked if these figures could be provided to get a better
understanding of how many would be subject to the low emission charge.

Page 6



Environment and Sustainability Committee, 5 July 2022 - continued

The Committee asked the Principal Pollution Control Officer to write to the
Department of Transport to lobby them for Spelthorne to be included in rail
Zone 6 with the Oyster Card.

The Committee felt that the draft response was not robust enough and
additional information was needed to strongly outline the Council’s concerns
for its residents.

The Committee asked that a statement outlining the Council’'s concerns
should be issued along with any statement submitted to Transport for London.

The Committee asked that the revised response be circulated to the
Environment and Sustainability Committee Members.

The Committee resolved to:
1. note the contents of the report and its appendices,

2. approve the submission of Spelthorne Borough Council’s response to
Transport for London’s consultation on the expansion of the London
Ultra-low Emission Zone,

3. approve options 2 and 3 as outlined in the report, which are for the
submission of Spelthorne’s response to the Transport for London Ultra-
low Emission Zone consultation team and the lobbying options
outlined; and

4. permission be granted to the Deputy Chief Executive in consultation
with the Chair of the Environment and Sustainability Committee, to

make minor amendments to Spelthorne Borough Council’s response to
the consultation if the need arises.

50/22 Grant Funding Arrangements for Purchase of Electric Taxis

The Committee considered a report from the Principal Pollution Control
Officer, that sought approval of an amended project scheme.

The Committee asked that the Equality and Diversity (point 8.2) of the report
be amended from:

‘Vehicles may be adapted to accommodate the requirements of specially
abled passengers’ to ‘ Vehicles may be specially adapted to accommodation
the requirement of disabled passengers’.

Claire advised the Committee that there had been a positive reaction to the
scheme from local taxi drivers.

The Committee resolved to:

Page 7



Environment and Sustainability Committee, 5 July 2022 - continued

1. grant approval for an amended project scheme to provide a
contribution towards the purchase of Hackney Carriages and private
hire vehicles as referred to in the report,

2. delegate authority to the Group Head for Commissioning and
Transformation to complete negotiations with the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) with a view to the
amended Council project being approved,

3. delegate authority to approve an amended grant agreement with
DEFRA to the Monitoring Officer and Group Head of Commissioning
and Transformation in consultation with the Chair of the Environment
and Sustainability Committee; and

4. authorise the Group Head of Corporate Governance to enter into
appropriate agreements with bid partners and third parties required to
deliver the amended project.

51/22  Electric Vehicle Charging Update Report

The Group Head of Commissioning & Transformation gave the Committee a
verbal update on Surrey County Council’s proposed electric vehicle charging
points infrastructure within Spelthorne Borough.

The Committee queried a proposed consultation and advertising of the
proposed points by Surrey County Council. The Group Head of
Commissioning & Transformation advised the Committee that she would
contact Surrey County Council and report back to the Committee with the
details.

The Committee resolved to note the update.

52/22 Recovery Action Plan

The Group Head of Commissioning and Transformation gave a verbal update
on the recovery action plan.

The Committee resolved to note the update.

53/22 Updates from Task and Finish and/or Working Groups

The Committee received a written update on the Strategic CIL Task Group
(CIL).

The Committee queried who were able to access CIL papers. Councillor
Fidler who is a member of CIL advised that they were currently only available
to members of the Task Group but that he would raise this at the next CIL
meeting.

Page 8



Environment and Sustainability Committee, 5 July 2022 - continued

The Strategic Planning Manager gave a verbal update on the Local Plan Task
Group. No meeting of the Task Group had taken place but the Committee
were updated on the consultation that was currently being undertaken. The
Committee were advised that leaflets had been delivered to all households
within Spelthorne advising them of the public consultation and how to take
part. Information was also included in the Council’s Bulletin that was being
delivered to households throughout the Borough. The Strategic Planning
Team had attended the market in Staines High Street to engage with the
public in respect of the consultation as well as having a presence at the
Staines-upon-Thames day and the forthcoming Sunbury Regatta.

The Committee resolved to note the update

54/22 Forward Plan

The Committee considered the Forward Plan for the business of the
Committee and asked that the following 2 items be added to it:

An update on the Electric Vehicle Tax Project
Rivers and Waterways

The Committee resolved to note the Forward Plan.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda Item 6

Environment and Sustainability CommitteeA

SPELTHORNE
6 September 2022 BOROUGH COUNCIL
Title Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022
Purpose of the report To make a decision
Report Author Esmé Spinks, Planning Development Manager

Hannah Bridges, Principal Planning Officer

Ward(s) Affected All Wards

Exempt No

Exemption Reason No

Corporate Priority Housing
Recommendations Committee is asked to:

1. Agree the Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

2. Publish the Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 on the
Council’'s website

Reason for The completion of the plan is a requirement because only
Recommendation 69% of the housing needs have been delivered over the last
three years. The plan identifies actions to address under-
delivery against the housing requirement in the area. The
plan looks at the reasons for under delivery and the steps to
be taken to drive up housing delivery in the area.

Key issues

1.1  The Housing Delivery Test (HDT) has been introduced by the Government as
a monitoring tool to demonstrate whether local areas are building enough
homes to meet their housing need. The HDT, which was published in
February 2022 updates the previous results published in 2019, 2020 and
2021. The test compares the number of new homes delivered over the
previous three years with the authority's housing requirement. In the case of
Spelthorne, the housing requirement is the minimum annual local housing
need figure (618 dwellings per annum as of February 2021).

Version: 1, Last saved:05/10/2021
Page 11




The calculation for Spelthorne is given as:

1073/1554 x 100 = 69%.

The HDT was introduced in a phased approach over three years. The
HDT will have the following consequences:

e Where housing delivery over the previous three years has been
less than 95% of the housing requirement, LPAs should prepare an
action plan setting out the causes of under delivery and the
intended actions to increase delivery;

e Where delivery has been less than 85% of the housing
requirement, a 20% buffer should be applied to the supply of
deliverable sites for the purposes of housing delivery
assessment;

e Where delivery has been less than 75% of the housing
requirement, the NPPFs presumption in favour of sustainable
development will apply. The three year transitional period has now
ended therefore the HDT consequences will be standardized
moving forward.

As a consequence of the HDT being 69%, the local authority falls into the
category where the following apply:

e an action plan should be prepared,

e a 20% housing buffer figure is applied to the housing requirements,
and

e a presumption in favour of development within the borough applies as
the housing delivery over the last three years is less than 75%.

There are no known consequences if Spelthorne fails to produce an action
plan when required to. However, the proposed action plan demonstrates that
Spelthorne Council is taking positive steps and is serious about housing
delivery.

The housing test results for the last four years are set out in the following
table:

Measurement | Total Homes Total Homes HDT score (%) Consequence

Year Required Delivered
2022 1,073 1,554 69% Presumption
2021 1,574 785 50% Presumption
2020 1,509 904 60% Action Plan
20% Euffer
2019 1,394 876 63% Action Plan
20% Euffer

Page 12



15

Measurement | Total Homes Total Homes HDT score (%) Consequence
Year Required Delivered

In summary, the housing delivery test result for Spelthorne was 63% in 2019,
60% in 2020 and 50% in 2021. This demonstrates that the housing delivery
compared with housing needs increased in the last year. An analysis of the
2021 position in all Surrey authorities is contained in Table 11 of the main
report. Other local authorities with the same consequences are Elmbridge
(70%), Epsom and Ewell (35%) and Tandridge (38%).

The HDT Action Plan is the Council’s response to the challenge set out in the
Government’s National Planning Policy Framework to boost significantly the
supply of homes and has five goals:

e To examine the possible causes of the ‘under delivery’ of new
homes in the Borough.

e To explain what the Council has been doing so far to boost
housing delivery.

e To gather evidence on sites with planning permission (and sites
under construction for housing development) to understand what
barriers are preventing homes being built.

e To build relationships with developers, landowners and agents
responsible for building homes on sites that have planning
permission, allowing the Council to adopt the role of an enabler of
much needed residential development ensuring housing
permissions are built out as quickly as possible.

To set out what actions the Council can take to increase the rate and
number of homes built in Spelthorne.

2 Options analysis and proposal

2.1

2.2

The first section of the report examines the action plan context. These include
Spelthorne’s corporate documents which play a role in housing delivery. It
should be noted that this action plan does not play any role in deciding the
future of the current Green Belt or proposed housing allocations. These have
been dealt with completely separately as part of the of the emerging new local
plan and Staines Development Framework.

The next section is an assessment of the ‘under delivery’ of new homes in the
Borough including a review of the potential reasons behind the housing supply
deficit. This includes the local and national issues which influence housing
delivery, i.e., affordability issues, proximity to London, Covid 19 impacts,
difficulties once development has commenced). A range of data and sources
have been used to inform this analysis. As part of this process, the Council
has engaged with stakeholders to improve its understanding of the issues

Page 13



2.3

2.4

2.5

effecting housing delivery. The analysis of the issues has been used to inform
what actions the Council need to take to improve its housing delivery.

Critically, the final section of the action plan includes a number of measures to
improve decision making and also to support wider opportunities. These
include, amongst many:

working with site promoters and other stakeholders to deliver Local Plan
allocations,

continuing to improve planning performance on speed and quality of decision
making,

refining the Planning DM computer software and procedures to enhance agile
|/ paperless working in DM and to

constantly reviewing the discharge of planning conditions (after planning
permission has been granted) to speed up the process.

The Action Plan identifies future actions to boost housing delivery, including
the need to maintain progress on the development of the emerging Local
Plan. The Council’s assets offer a positive opportunity to boost housing
delivery further moving forward however barriers to development will need to
be reduced.

Once adopted, the Local Plan will provide more certainty as to the Council’s
housing land supply and will help to deliver housing to meet the Borough'’s
development needs.

3 Financial implications

3.1

There is a need to progress with the Local Plan to an Examination in a timely
fashion to avoid further delays in meeting the borough’s housing needs and
potentially costly appeals.

4 Other considerations

4.1

4.2

Local Plan

The Council is currently developing its Draft Local Plan and Staines
Development Framework which once adopted will guide development in the
Borough to 2037. Ensuring timely progress on the Local Plan will help the
Council to boost its housing delivery, address the issues raised in the HDTAP
and give the Council more decision-making power.

The Council should therefore be aware of the interlinking nature of the HDTAP
and the Local Plan, as without timely progress on the Local Plan and adoption
at the earliest opportunity, housing delivery is at risk of failing to meet needs
and the Council will continue to be subject to the most severe sanctions of the
HDT.

5 Equality and Diversity

5.1

This does not have any direct equality and diversity impacts although the LPA
will continue to require all housing schemes to have regard to equality and
diversity issues.

6 Sustainability/Climate Change Implications

Page 14



6.1 The LPA will continue to require housing schemes to comply with current
policy guidance on sustainability/climate change issues.

7 Timetable for implementation

7.1The agreed plan should be made available to the public via the website as soon
as possible.

7.2The agreed plan will be reported to the Planning Committee for information as soon
as possible

Background papers: There are none.
Appendices:

Appendix A Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022
Appendix B Housing Delivery Test Action Plan Summary 2022

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



e e

SPELTHORNE

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Spelthorne Borough Council

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan

2022

August 2022

Page 17



Contents

1 T 1o T 15 Tox 1 o] o S 1
2 The Action Plan CONEXL........coooii i 1
e ACHION PlaN . 8
4 T 10 = o1 1o o LSS 14
Y 0] 011 T | o 22
Y o] 01T T [ 2O 24
APPENAIX 3. e 43
Y o] 01T T [ 46
Tables
Table 1 Spelthorne’s corporate dOCUMENTS............uveiiiiiiiiii e 2
Table 2 Planning DM Performance (April 2020 — March 2021) ........ccoooeviiiiiiiieeee, 5
Table 3 Spelthorne’s assessment against Government targets ...........ccccoceeeiiiiiiiiiiiieen e, 6
Table 4 KNOWIe Green ESLAteS ........ccvviiiiiii i e e e e e e e e e e eaaaea e e aae s 9
Table 5 Minimum housing units to be developed by the Council/Knowle Green Estates in
7= V] =2 16
Table 6 Smaller sites identified to develop by the Council/Knowle Green Estates ................ 16
Table 7 Spelthorne — Housing Delivery Test 2023 — Projected ...........ooooeeviieieieiieeeeeeeeeeeen 18
Table 8 Improving DeCiSion MaKiNg ........cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 18
Table 9 Supporting Wider Housing OppOrtUNItIES ........cccoiviiiiiiiiiii e 20
Table 10 Spelthorne — Housing Delivery Test: 2021 Measurement (published January 2022)
.............................................................................................................................................. 26
Table 11 Surrey Local Authorities — Housing Delivery Test 2021..........ccccceeeiiieiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeenen, 28
Table 12 Local Housing Need & DelVEIY.......cccooeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeee e 30
Table 13 Average House Prices in Spelthorne by type of dwelling..............ooooeeiii. 31
Table 14 Draft Housing Trajectory Data 2021-2037 ..........oovviiiieeiieeeeeeeeiiiie e 33
Table 15 Number of dwellings completed, under construction and with outstanding planning
PErmMisSion at 31 MArCh 2022....... ... ittt be bbb ebaebbnbeebnenenneee 36
Table 16 Approved and Implemented Residential Development...........ccccceeeiieeiiiiiiiiiieeene e, 37
Table 17 Housing completions (net) by bedroom April 2009-March 2022 ............cccccceeeneeeee. 38
Table 18 Percentage of new dwellings on completed sites between 2009 and 2022 at
IffEreNt AENSITY FANGES. ....uuiiiiiiiiiiiiitittt bbb 39
Table 19 Number of affordable homes provided per year since 2009 ............cccovveeiiiiiineeennn. 40
Table 20 Affordable dwellings granted planning permission 2021-2022............cccoeviiiieeeeennn. 40
Table 21 Prior approval applications granted April 2021-March 2022 ............cccovvvvviiiiieeeeennn. 41
Table 22 Housing completions (net) by sector April 2009-March 2022 ............ccooiiiiieeenn. 46
Figures
Figure 1 Draft Housing Trajectory 2021-2037 ........ccoiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 34

Page 18


file:///T:/TeamPlanningDC/HDTAP/HDTAP%202022/HDTAP_2022%20Draft.docx%23_Toc109302663

1. Introduction
Why Housing Delivery is important

1.1 There is wide publicity over the national housing crisis which we are
experiencing in England. The lack of supply and pressure for new homes is
felt most acutely in the South East of England. The Government is focused
on increasing the supply of new homes across the country. In the 2017
Budget, the Government announced that it would enable the housing
market to deliver 300,000 homes a year on average by the mid-2020s. This
objective to increase the number of new homes is reflected in the revised
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2021 and the introduction of
the Housing Delivery Test.

1.2 The Housing Delivery Test result for Spelthorne Borough Council was
published by the Secretary of State in January 2022. Spelthorne Borough
Council scored 69%. This compares with a figure of 50% for 2021, 60% for
2020 and 63% in 2019. The figure has, therefore increased by 38% since
2021 and 10% since 2019 As a result, and in response to this, the Council
has produced a fourth Housing Delivery Action Plan to positively respond to
the challenge of increasing its housing delivery. The Action Plan analyses
the reasons for the under-delivery of new homes and sets out actions to
improve housing delivery within the Borough.

1.3 The planning policy context to housing delivery contained in national and
local plan policy is contained as Information Document 1 in Appendix 1.

1.4 An analysis of the housing delivery in Spelthorne is set out in Information
Document 2 in Appendix 2. This includes the housing delivery test
calculation for Spelthorne, housing land supply, need, delivery and
trajectory and also planning performance.

2. The Action Plan Context

Aims of this Action Plan

2.1 This Action Plan is the Council’s response to the challenge set out in the
Government’s National Planning Policy Framework to boost significantly
the supply of homes and has five goals:

e To examine the possible causes of the ‘under delivery’ of new
homes in the Borough.

e To explain what the Council has been doing so far to boost
housing delivery.

e To gather evidence on sites with planning permission (and sites
under construction for housing development) to understand what
barriers are preventing homes being built on these sites.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2021
Page 19



e To build relationships with developers, landowners and agents
responsible for building homes on sites that have planning
permission, allowing the Council to adopt the role of an enabler of
much needed residential development ensuring housing
permissions are built out as quickly as possible.

e To set out what actions the Council can take to increase the rate
and number of homes built in Spelthorne.

2.2 Building houses is often a complex process. Often there are other
factors beyond the council’s control which explain why sites for housing
do not come forward for development. It requires a broader approach to
be taken to increase the delivery of new homes and the use of other
tools available which are beyond the traditional remit of the Local

Planning Authority.

2.3 The Housing Delivery Test Action Plan sets out key priorities and
actions that the Council are undertaking to improve housing supply and
delivery. The plan in itself is not a decision-making document but seeks
to identify opportunities to improve housing provision.

2.4 Table 1 sets out the Council’s corporate documents which all play a role

in the delivery of housing.

Table 1 Spelthorne’s corporate documents

Corporate Document

Spelthorne Core Strategy and
Policies DPD Document, February
2009

Overlap with Action Plan

Housing Requirement Figure — 166
dwellings per annum superseded by
housing need of 618 (+20% buffer)
dwellings per annum (2022).

Emerging Local Plan

A replacement Local Plan is currently
being prepared. The Regulation 19
Local Plan consultation is scheduled to
run from 15 June to 5 September
2022.

Corporate Plan 2021 - 2023

Identifies five priorities:

Community
Affordable Housing
Recovery
Environment
Service Delivery

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2021

Page 20




Corporate Document

The Capital Strategy, 2021 - 2026

Overlap with Action Plan

Sets out the Council’s need for

capital financing, why and what the

money will be spent on.

Identifies three priorities:

e Delivering affordable housing

e Achieving the regeneration of our
town centres

e Ensuring a sustainable future in
recognition of declaring a climate
emergency

Housing Strategy 2020 - 2025

Strategic priorities 2020-2025:
e Priority 1: Enabling the delivery of
more affordable homes
e Priority 2: Promoting independence
and wellbeing
e Priority 3: Prevent homelessness
and rough sleeping

Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy 2020 - 2025

This identifies five strategic priorities:

e Priority 1: End the use of private
sector emergency accommaodation

e Priority 2: Reduce the length of stay
in temporary accommodation

e Priority 3: Nobody sleeps rough in
Spelthorne

e Priority 4: Increase use of the
private rented sector for
homelessness prevention and relief

e Priority 5: Invest in staff training
and development in order to
improve the customer journey
within the Housing Options service

e Priority 6: Improve partnership
working to prevent and relieve
homelessness

Economic Development Strategy
2017 - 2022

The Spelthorne Economic Strategy was
adopted on 22/02/2017. The Economic
Development Engagement Group
endorsed the annual refresh of this
strategy on 24/04/2019. It sets out the
actions the Council will be taking over
the next 4 years to further secure the
sustainable growth of the local
economy.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2021

Page 21




Assessment of under-delivery

2.5 Within this section, an assessment of the ‘under delivery’ of new homes in the
Borough is considered which includes the local and national issues which
influence housing delivery. A range of data and sources have been used to
inform this analysis. As part of this process, the Council has engaged with
stakeholders to improve its understanding of the issues effecting housing delivery.
The analysis of the issues has been used to inform what actions the Council need
to take to improve its housing delivery.

Implementation of Planning Permissions

2.6 Once planning permissions have been granted, local planning authorities have
limited influence over deliverability. The timescales for implementing a planning
permission are generally not considered to be a significant issue within the
Borough. Under planning legislation, permission is required to start within three
years from the date of the decision notice. Implementation generally occurs
within the permission period. The NPPF advises at para. 76 that:

“To help ensure that proposals for housing development are implemented in a
timely manner, local planning authorities should consider imposing a planning
condition providing that development must begin within a timescale shorter than
the relevant default period, where this would expedite the development without
threatening its deliverability or viability. For major development involving the
provision of housing, local planning authorities should also assess why any earlier
grant of planning permission for a similar development on the same site did not
start’.

2.7 However, there are some instances, where developers undertake the first stages
of implementing a planning permission by carrying out the demolition of buildings
on site and then delay the construction of the development. This happened, for
example, at the former Centrica site in Staines-Upon-Thames. Nevertheless, a
two year time period for all residential permissions was introduced on 2 January
2020. It is too early to say whether or not this has had a positive impact on
housebuilding. This is because there will need to be a two year plus period
before any real change is evident and there has only been one year. In addition,
housebuilding activity has been significantly adversely affected by COVID-19.

2.8 Planning Officers have continued to build relationships with developers,
landowners and agents and carry on a dialogue after planning permission is
granted. The Council has previously written to agents on sites delivering 5+ net
dwellings in the pipeline of sites with planning permission.

2.9 Officers have also contacted landowners of sites identified in the Strategic Land

Availability Assessment to confirm the anticipated delivery timeframes of sites in
the pipeline.

Planning Decision Making Performance

2.10 The performance of decision making on planning applications is not considered
to be a barrier to delivering new homes. Planning applications are being

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2021
Page 22



2.11

processed within the statutory timeframes. The performance for the Local
Planning Authorities (LPAs) are measured on their performance based on the %
of planning applications they determine within 8 or 13 weeks (or within an
extension of time agreed with the applicant). For several years the targets have
been asfollows:

Majors — 60% within 13 weeks

Minors — 65% within 8 weeks

Others — 80% within 8 weeks

Major development is defined as:

More than 10 residential units, dwellings on a site with an area of 0.5 hectares or
more, 1,000 sq. m or more of new commercial floor space or sites with an area of
more than 1 hectare.

Minor development is defined as:

Up to 9 residential units, up to 999 sq. m of new floor space, changes of use

Others — mainly householder schemes

In the last financial year (April 2021 — March 2022) — Spelthorne met all three
performance measures as shown in Table 2.

Table 2 Planning DM Performance (April 2021 — March 2022)

Majors Minors Others
[ 0
% on Té(t)r0 Zt TgrO gt
On Target | Govt. On rg Govt. On g Govt.
Total . Total (i.e. Total (i.e.
Target (i.e. | Target Target Target Target Target
65% 80%)
60%)
25 24 96% 60% 178 164 92% 65% 612 600 98% 80%
5

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2021

Page 23




2.12 The Government has recently also been assessing LPAs in terms of planning
performance on the following criteria:

e The speed of determining applications for major development

e The quality of decisions made by the authority on applications for major
development;

e The speed of determining applications for non-major development;

e The quality of decisions made by the authority on applications for non-
major development.

2.13 With just a few minor exceptions, non-major equates to a combination of the
“‘minor” and “other” categories referred to above.

2.14 The quality measurement is the number of appeals allowed as a percentage of
the total number of applications received in the category. The threshold for
guality on both categories is 10% and the lower the figure, the better the
performance. The threshold for speed is 60% (majors) and 70% (non-majors)
and the higher the figure, the better the performance.

2.15 On those sites where planning permission was refused, the appeal
performance is good. The Council’'s assessment against the Government’s
targets is set out in table 3:

Table 3 Spelthorne’s assessment against Government targets

Measure and Threshold and
type of assessment period Spelthorne’s Performance
Application
Speed of 60% 97%**
major (October 2020 to September (October 2020 to March
Development 2022) 2022)
Quality of 10% 4,659+
major

Development (April 2020 to March 2022) | April 2020 to March 2022)
*

Speed of non- 70% 96%**
major (October 2020 to September (October 2020 to
Development 2022) March 2022)
Quality _of _ 10% 0.920/5+*
non-major (April 2020 to March 2022) '

i *
Development April 2020 to March 2022)
*

* Final figures not available until end December 2022.
** High figure equates to a better performance
*** | ower figure equates to a better performance

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022
Page 24



2.16 These statistics demonstrate the soundness of decision making by
Planning Development Management (PDM) and that unsound decisions
are not being made which would lead to unnecessary delays and costs to
the delivery of new homes. However, close monitoring of the quality
assessment for major applications is continuous due to the relatively small
number of major applications received and the risk that the LPA could be
the subject of Designation by Central Government. If this occurs,
applicants may apply directly to the Planning Inspectorate for permission.
An annual performance report was presented to the Environment and
Sustainability Committee on 8 March 2022. In February this year,
Uttlesford District Council was designated under special measures.

2.17 In the 1990s, the Council used to provide traditional council housing.
However in 1996, it was decided to transfer the council housing stock to
what was then Spelthorne Housing Association and is now part of A2
Dominion. The main reason for the transfer of properties at the time was
the need to bring the properties up to an acceptable state of repair, which
the Council could not afford at the time. Since then, the Council has not
had a direct role in developing new homes; this has been carried out by A2
Dominion and other Registered Providers, as well as private developers.
Fluctuation in the delivery of new housing has been dictated by the
economy and the availability of grant funding to subsidise affordable
housing. More information is provided later on this document about the
Councils 100% Council owned company Knowle Green Estates Ltd and its
more recent role in housing delivery.

2.18 The Council’'s Housing Strategy 2020 - 2025 contains three strategic
priorities which contribute to achieving “residents having somewhere to call
home, which is suitable and affordable, is fundamental to having a good
quality of life and contributes directly to sustainable and cohesive
communities.”

2.19 In common with many other local authorities in the South East, Spelthorne
has a growing demand for genuinely affordable housing and is facing a
number of key challenges. These include:

Increasing numbers on the Housing Register

Lack of availability of existing affordable housing

High rates of statutory homelessness

High use of emergency and temporary housing for homeless households
Increasing affordability issues

Lack of new-build affordable housing

The effect of our proximity to London

Heathrow expansion (which is currently subject to review)

Key worker accommodation

Impact of COVID-19 and the wider economic impacts especially in relation to
housebuilding

2.20 Further details on the key challenges are contained in Information
Document 3 at Appendix 3.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022
Page 25



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

35

3.6

Action Plan

This section sets out the actions that the Council has already taken to increase
housing delivery and the future actions required to continue this work. The
Council is fully committed to working proactively to deliver the homes that
Spelthorne needs, including a range of housing types and affordable housing.
The need for an up-to-date Local Plan is a corporate priority and will assist in
boosting the borough’s housing supply as well as responding to housing
needs whilst balancing the objectives in the local plan, including Green Belt
and environmental protection. It is acknowledged that the delivery of new
homes has a wider remit than just the Planning Service and requires actions to
be undertaken by other Council services including the Housing Service and
the Asset and Property Management Service.

What the Council has already done

The New Local Plan

The Pre-submission Spelthorne Local Plan 2022 — 2037 (Regulation 19)
consultation is taking place from 15 June to 5 September 2022. The Local
Plan seeks to meet the Borough’s development needs through a combination
of intensifying development of brownfield land, growth within Staines—upon—
Thames and releasing a small amount of Green Belt (0.7%) to provide family
housing.

It is estimated that the five year housing land supply in the Borough is 3,126
units. Of the sites identified in the Strategic Land Availability Assessment
(SLAA) 2020, approximately 1,600 are expected to come forward in Staines-
upon-Thames within the next 5 years, subject to planning permission being
granted. More widely, publicly owned sites account for 1,700 units over the
next 15 years (owned by Spelthorne Borough Council and Surrey County
Council).

A formal call for sites was issued in March 2021 whereby landowners and
local stakeholders were invited to submit potential sites for development over
the next 15 years. This identified a notable quantity of sites for possible
allocation in the emerging Local Plan. Officers have assessed all potential
development sites as part of the Local Plan process. An open informal call for
sites remains on the Council’s website.

Digital Engagement

The key change to consultation techniques is reaching out to our communities
through digital engagement. Although traditional methods are still being used
the majority of engagement is now done via online communication which has
proven more effective and engaging in promoting planning policy
consultations and opportunities to discuss major planning applications.

The Council uses its social media platforms to provide information and
notifications regarding planning consultations and schemes. The ‘Inovem’
platform has been used to consult the public on various planning
consultations, including the Preferred Options consultation where

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 26



approximately 2000 representations were received.

Council/Knowle Green Estates housing schemes

3.7 The Housing Strategy sets out an action plan on the delivery and

3.8

3.9

3.10

monitoring of the strategy. These include enabling the delivery of more
affordable homes, promoting independence and wellbeing to enable
people to remain in their homes and preventing homelessness and rough
sleeping

The Council’s Capital Strategy states that it will help to deliver two key
goals contained in the Corporate Plan:

e To deliver much-needed housing in order to help reduce homelessness
locally, increase affordable provision and help meet the overall need for
additional homes

e To regenerate our town centres so that we can contribute to the
economic development of the Borough.

The Council formed its housing company, Knowle Green Estates (KGE), in
2016 to help to achieve these two key goals when Harper House in Ashford
was acquired for emergency accommodation. KGE identified a need to
promote the Council’s own affordable housing schemes, and KGE is the
vehicle used to deliver them to residents. There are a number of projects in the
pipeline which will deliver some 20% of the Borough’s assessed 5-year land
supply requirement in the Local Plan (approx. 600 units to be delivered by the
Council out of a required 3,126, subject to planning permission being granted).
KGE has bolstered the Council’s control over and aided its ability to directly
boost the delivery of housing. Given the significant impact that Council-led
schemes have had on housing delivery in the past few years, it is paramount
that Spelthorne Borough Council continues to be proactive in this field and
utilises its assets moving forward to deliver much needed housing for the
community.

KGE performs several functions on behalf of Spelthorne Borough Council,
as outlined in the table below.

Table 4 Knowle Green Estates

Owned by Developed by Managed by

Investments Council n/a Councill
Municipal Council Council Councill
Residential KGE Council KGE

3.11 To date, Spelthorne Borough Council has delivered the following:

Churchill Hall, Churchill Way, Sunbury on Thames

Planning Application no 16/02045/FUL

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 27



3.12

Three new rented dwellings
Approved 08/02/17
Occupied 28/09/18

Former Bugle PH, 73 Upper Halliford Road, Shepperton
Planning Application no 17/01028/FUL

6 no. 2 bed and 2 no. 1 bed flats

Approved 23/08/17

Occupied February 2019

Benwell House, Green Street, Sunbury on Thames
Planning Application nos. 17/01847/PDO, 18/00123/FUL and 18/00529/FUL

Conversion and extensions to provide a total of 57 units including 12 affordable
units

22 x one bed, 35 x 2 bed

Approved 2018

Work commenced 14/06/19

Occupied : April 2021 (fully occupied)

September 2021)

West Wing, Spelthorne Borough Council, Knowle Green Staines-upon-Thames
Planning ref. 18/01267/PDO Conversion to provide 25 affordable rented residential
units

Approved 17/10/18

Occupied: December- 2021 - February 2022 (fully occupied).

More detail on future schemes and future actions are set out in section 4 below
Improved Decision Making

The Planning DM service has undertaken a number of initiatives to
improve decision making and boost the timely delivery of housing. These
include:

Offering more pre-application discussions to ensure issues are

addressed early.

The Planning DM Officers regularly undertake pre-application advice. In 2021
a total of 363 planning enquiries were dealt with. Early advice can help identify
whether in principle a proposal is likely to be acceptable, the key planning
issues and policies that need to be considered, where the applicant may need
further specialist advice to help prepare the application and what changes may
be needed to any draft proposals. Such advice can save an applicant time in
preparing the application and also the time taken by the Council to make a
decision on it. In the case of proposals with little prospect of approval early
advice can avoid further abortive work. It improved pre-application service has
a strong emphasis on front loading to reduce the time spent on decision
making and use of planning conditions. This means a quicker turnaround can
be achieved which subsequently can lead to the faster implementation of
planning permissions for housing delivery. There have been some pre-
application enquiries which did not materialise as applications because the site

10

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 28



was deemed to be unsuitable for housing. Some examples of development
which were the subject of pre-application advice and which were amended and
approved relatively quickly are (19/01070/FUL), Ex Serviceman’s Club,
Staines-Upon-Thames for 14 flats (19/01237/FUL),the former Centrica site,
Staines-Upon-Thames, for 467 flats (19/00290/FUL) plus an additional 22 flats
(19/01051/FUL), 22/00591/FUL, the Renshaw development for 391 flats
(22/00591/FUL) and the Sunbury Cross Ex-Services Association Club,
Sunbury for 47 flats (21/01801/FUL).

Use of Planning Performance Agreements

The Council has introduced a new service offering planning performance
agreements (PPAs) for major development proposals, which often involve a
large quantum of housing units. This is one of the factors that might otherwise
put them off putting in an application in the borough. However, it gives
absolutely no guarantee that the application will be recommended for approval.
The Planning DM service has received a positive take up on PPAs for larger
schemes, for example, Shepperton Studios. A PPA covers pre-application
advice through to the planning decision being made. It sets out timescales
within which meetings will take place and a report will be presented to the
Planning Committee which gives the developer certainty around timeframes for
a decision. They have enabled the DM planning officers to make use of expert
advisors to assist on complex issues in the consideration of the planning.

Revised Website

The planning pages of the website are constantly under review. This will help
residents, applicants and third parties obtain up to date information about all
aspects of the Planning Service.

Consultations on Emerging Planning Proposals

In March 2022, the Consultations on Emerging Planning Proposals guidance

was agreed by the Policy and Resources Committee. This advises developers to
undertake early engagement with the Community (including ward councillors) on
the larger development proposals before submitting their applications to the Local
Planning Authority. This follows guidance in the NPPF which advises that ‘early
engagement has significant potential to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of
the planning application system for all parties. Good quality preapplication
discussion enables better coordination between public and private resources and
improved outcomes for the community’. The advice in this process has been taken
on board by some applicants. This process is being monitored to assess its
impact.

Increased presentations to Councillors on major planning applications
Presentations to members on larger complex schemes, usually at the pre-
application stage, have taken place a number of times over recent years.
These enable Councillors to view the proposals at an early stage before they
are made public, to ask questions and clarify issues and raise concerns, which
need to be addressed. To avoid risk of pre-determination, Councillors do not
give an opinion at the meetings. In addition, Planning DM officers have made
presentations to Councillors on some complex planning applications this year
including the Renshaw Industrial Estate and the Debenhams site. These
presentations took place after the Planning Committee agenda had been made
public and before the Committee meeting. This gave the Councillors an

11

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 29



opportunity to receive a full explanation of proposals and a summary of the
planning position, to ask questions and to seek clarification on issues but not to
reach a decision.

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was implemented on 01 April 2015.
Contributions are used to fund both local and strategic infrastructure to support
development in the Borough. The management of the CIL process is the
responsibility of the Council’s Infrastructure Delivery Co-ordinator. The Council
has recruited a part time CIL administrator to resource the collection process,
allowing the Infrastructure Delivery Co-ordinator to focus on the governance of
spending the levy and coordinating spending alongside the implementation of
the Council’s new Local Plan. In 2019 the Council purchased new dedicated
CIL software (Exacom) which has improved the monitoring of CIL and s106
agreements. Moving forward it will be important for the Council to ensure that
adequate infrastructure is in place to support the delivery of housing. The draft
Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) has and assesses the existing infrastructure
provision, the current shortfall and identifies the existing and future needs and
demands for the borough to support new development and a growing
population.

Considering compulsory purchase powers to unlock suitable housing sites

The Council has the option to utilise Compulsory Purchase Powers to help unlock
potential development sites. In Staines town centre the Council has worked with
developers to help unlock areas of land to enable larger schemes. Developers
have now acquired 15 London Road (adjacent to the 17-15 Berkeley Homes site)
and planning permission has now been granted to incorporate this small site into
the Berkeleys scheme. This is currently under construction. Other developers are
actively seeking to acquire 116-120 High Street (adjacent to the Charter Square
development), following the Council’'s engagement but the Council have the
opportunity in future to assist with similar scenarios in future.

Using Brownfield Registers to grant permission in principle to previously
developed land

Spelthorne published its Part 1 Brownfield Register in December 2018. This
identifies all brownfield sites appropriate for residential development. In due
course the register will be extended to include relevant sites that have been
submitted through Spelthorne’s Strategic Land Availability Assessment (SLAA)
or appropriate sites which meet the criteria. We will also consider whether any
of the sites will be moved to Part 2 of the Brownfield Register which will
effectively grant permission in principle. This will need further consideration
and would be the subject of a prior consultation process.

Encouraging the development of small sites and higher site densities

The Council’'s adopted Core Strategy seeks to encourage high density housing
in certain locations under policy HO5. Within Staines Town Centre,
development should generally be above 75dph where it is demonstrated that
the development complies with the design policy EN1, particularly in terms of its
compatibility with the character of the area and is in a location that is accessible
by non-car-based modes of travel. With Staines-Upon-Thames, developments
have already been approved at over 300 dph (phases 1A and 1B- former
Majestic House Site, now known as London Square) and also 15-51 London

12

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 30


https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/SLAA

Road (Berkeleys scheme), the latter being under construction.

Engaging with key stakeholders

The planning and enforcement officers have held regular seminars with local
resident associations and also planning agents who submit planning
applications on a regular basis in Spelthorne. These provide an opportunity to
provide advice on the issues facing the borough and of our policies and
procedures and to listen to their concerns. One of the concerns related to our
procedures on the discharge of planning conditions. We have worked hard to
improve the total process. A further concern related to the length of time taken
to discharge of contaminated land conditions. Planning Officers have been
engaging with Environmental Health Officers on this matter to improve
performance in this area. The improved efficiency of discharging planning
conditions can boost the completion of schemes and in turn boost housing
delivery.

Councillor Training on Planning Issues

Planning officers provide regular training seminars to all councillors. A full
programme is delivered to councillors following the elections and regular
updates are given throughout their term as councillor. Planning training is also
given to new councillors elected part way through the four year term. In
addition, external specialists also provide guidance on particular topics. The
training has covered the following areas:

Planning in the Borough context and the role of the Planning Committee.
Probity and decision making in planning

Design in the planning process

Affordable housing

High density/tall buildings

Planning enforcement and appeals

How to approach the determination of planning applications and pitfalls
Green Belt (two sessions)

Flooding

Permitted Development (two sessions)

Use Classes Order (two sessions)

Minerals

County planning

Transportation

New local plan and decision making

Planning Officer Training

Planning and Enforcement Officers undertake regular training on a range of
planning issues and other matters where relevant in order to keep abreast of
developments. This is, and will, continue to be an on-going and necessary
requirement of their posts and for some officers, their membership of the
Royal Town Planning Institute.

Simplifying conditions discharge phased on approved sites, and standardised
conditions reviewed
A review of all planning conditions has been undertaken by senior planning

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 13

Page 31



4.1

4.2

4.3

officers. This has resulted in the streamlining of conditions to ensure that
they meet up to date guidance on the use of conditions and to safeguard
against their use where other non-planning legislation would be more
appropriately employed. . Conditions are constantly being reviewed and
updated where appropriate to improve the planning process.

Ensuring evidence on a particular site is informed by an understanding of
viability

The Council’s Local Plan requires all proposals of 15 dwellings or more and all
sites in excess of 0.5 hectares include to provide 50% affordable housing.
The NPPF 2021, refers to 10 dwellings as the minimum starting point for
affordable dwellings rather than the 2009 local plan policy of 15 dwellings.
Therefore given that the guidance in the NPPF is up to date and Spelthorne
has an unmet need for affordable housing in the Strategic Housing Market
Assessment (SHMA) 2019, the 10 dwellings figure rather than 15 dwellings is
now used as the starting point for decision making. Where developments fall
short of this requirement, an independent viability would be submitted and
assessed on an open book basis. This is a complex area where specialist
advice is required and planning officers and councillors have undergone
training on this.

Technology
Over the past year, the Planning DM section has accelerated its use of

technology in the processing of planning applications. This includes:

No paper files, all processing is via the Idox Unform IT system

The use of Enterprise for the “in-tray” process of processing the cases
All decision notices are automatically emailed to the applicant

All correspondence is now sent electronically except where an email
address is not available

The use of technology has greatly assisted in processing applications more
quickly and keeping the applicants, councillors and third parties better
informed.

Future Actions

The Council will continue to positively look for further opportunities to increase
its housing delivery and will work closely with the relevant Council services and
external organisations to achieve this.

Local Plan Progress

As part of the new Local Plan the Council will seek to boost housing supply and
delivery. The new Local Plan will review and update existing policies acting as
a barrier to delivery to help development come forward such as densities,
design and parking.

The Strategic Land Availability Assessment (SLAA) is a key piece of evidence
for the new Local Plan and will be updated annually to ensure that the position
on land supply is up to date. The Council is in the process of updating the

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 32

14



SLAA for 2022. In line with Planning Practice Guidance, officers are proactively
identifying sites, including publicly owned land and brownfield land, for
development to ensure that potential supply is exhausted. The Council has an
open-ended call for sites on its website whereby landowners or site promoters
can submit potential development sites for consideration in the next iteration of
the SLAAL

4.4  The SLAA will inform the policies on housing in the new Local Plan and acts
as the starting point in determining which sites will be allocated. Moving
forward the Council will work with stakeholders to ensure that suitable and
available sites come forward at particular points in the plan period.

4.5  The current review of the Council’s Local Plan has identified a need to
create around 618 housing units each year over the next 15 years. The
Draft Local Plan (Regulation 19) has identified the following spatial strategy
to meet development needs, comprising the following:

e Maximising densities in suitable locations
e Releasing a small amount of Green Belt (0.7%)

e Producing the Staines Development Framework to guide development in the
town centre.

4.6 Itis estimated that the five year housing land supply in the Borough is
3,126 units. Of the sites identified in the Strategic Land Availability
Assessment (SLAA) 2020, approximately 1,600 are expected to come
forward in Staines-upon-Thames within the next 5 years. More widely,
publicly owned sites account for 1,700 units over the next 15 years (owned
by Spelthorne Borough Council and Surrey County Council and Surrey
County Council).

4.7 The Local Plan strategy emphasises the need to make an efficient use of
land in Staines-upon-Thames as the Borough’s main town as this is likely to
be a key residential opportunity area. A Development Framework is currently
being developed as part of the new Local Plan which will focus in detail on
where and how this new development can best be accommodated, in order to
ensure we achieve a sustainable solution for the town.

4.8 The Council’s landholdings within the town centre (including our recent
strategic acquisitions) provide a clear opportunity to bring forward at least
1,500 units in the next 15 years, subject to planning permission. In the next
five years, the level of investment that the Council aims to make is likely to be
in the region of £300m. As the landowner, Spelthorne Council is confident that
this level of residential development can be delivered whilst retaining
sufficient car parking to sustain the town centre (though some sites may well
be reconfigured to make more efficient use of the Spelthorne Council’s land).

1 https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/SLAA

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 15

Page 33


https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/SLAA

4.9 The SLAA has identified that, within the town centre, the Council is
able to develop the following housing units as a minimum (within the
immediate confines of the town centre):

Table 5 Minimum housing units to be developed by the Council/Knowle
Green Estates in Staines

Site Development No. of Units Timescale
Type

Thameside House Flatted 120 Years1-5
Oast House,
Kingston Road Flatted 180 Years1-5
William
Hill/\VVodafone, 91 Flatted 14 Years1-5
High Street
Riverside car park
(subject to re- Flatted 35 Years 6 - 10
provision)
Elmsleigh Centre and
adjoining land Flatted 850 Years 6 - 15
Communications
House Flatted 110 Years 6 - 15

The exact numbers of dwellings shown in the above sites are, of course,
subject to planning permission being obtained.

4.10 The Council, as landowner is proposing to submit planning applications
for a number of smaller residential developments which are summarised
below:

Table 6 Smaller sites identified to develop by the Council/Knowle Green
Estates

Submission of

Development

Planning
USIPe Application
White House, Kingston Flats (affordable 12 Following Local
Road, Staines -
rented) Plan adoption
White Hou_se, Kingston Homeless 33 Planning
Road, Staines , approved.
accommodation
Completed
October 2021

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 16

Page 34



Benwell House,
Green Street, Flats (affordable 39 First phase
Sunbury, Phase 2 rented) approved and
occupied. Second
phase the subject of
a planning
application
(19/01211/FUL)
which was refused
by the Planning
Committee on
13/10/21. Future
options to be

considered
Ashford Multi-Storey Flats (affordable 55 Planning application
Car Park - :
rented) anticipated in due
course
Ashford Hospital Car Flats (affordable 127 Planning application
Park (known as
rented and key approved.

Victory Place) worker)

1Subject to Council strategy

4.11 Table 10 in Appendix 2 shows, in the final column, the consequences
resulting from the Housing Delivery Test for the current year. The
consequence is shown to be a housing delivery test below the required 75%,
leading to Spelthorne being required to produce an Action Plan. We will also
have to apply a 20% buffer to our housing supply and consequently there will
be a presumption in favour of sustainable development. This means that
planning permission should be granted unless the harm caused by the
application significantly outweigh the benefits. The term tilted balance is used
to define this passage of policy because when engaged, the tilted balance
should change the ‘balancing exercise’ which the decision-taker (the planning
officer, inspector or secretary of state) makes when deciding whether or not
to grant planning permission; from a neutral balance where if the harms
outweigh the benefits planning permission is usually withheld, to a tilted
balance where the harms should significantly and demonstrably outweigh the

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 17

Page 35



benefits for permission to be withheld. Similarly on planning appeals,
inspectors will give due regard to the presence of the presumption in favour

of sustainable development.

This means that on balance, a greater number of appeals may be allowed.
This highlights the importance of not only boosting housing delivery but of
having an up-to-date Local Plan to ensure that needs can be met through the

identified supply.

4.12 The table below shows a projection of the number of homes required and the
anticipated number of homes delivered by 2023. The information set out
provides a conservative estimate of delivery based on average completions
over the previous three years. This does not take into account the measures
proposed by the Council to boost housing delivery, such as the Local Plan or
Development Management controls. Anticipated completions are therefore
expected to be higher than the very cautious estimate below.

Table 7 Spelthorne — Housing Delivery Test 2023 — Projected

HDT
Test Consequence

%

No of home Total No of homes Total
) homes ; homes
required : delivered :
required delivered
2020- | 2021- | 2022- 2020- | 2021- | 2022-
2021 | 2022 | 2023 2021 | 2022 | 2023

403 | 611 | 618 1632 508

205| 358 | 1071

Action Plan +
20% Buffer +
65% | Presumption

Table 8 Improving Decision Making

Action

Service

Date

To review the standard planning Planning Development ,
. Ongoing
conditions. Management
To continue to review the discharge .
: o Planning Development :
of planning conditions to speed up Ongoing
Management
the process.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 36

18




To continue to liaise with applicants
following planning permission to
speed up procedures, especially
the discharge of planning
conditions, to enable an early start
on site as possible.

Planning Development
Management

Ongoing

To review the time condition now
imposed on all new residential
planning permissions requiring
development to commence within a
two year rather that three year time
period within a shorter timescale
than the relevant default period,
where this would expedite the
development without threatening its
deliverability or viability.

Planning Development
Management

Ongoing

To continue to improve planning
performance on speed of decision
making.

Planning Development
Management

Ongoing

To continue to improve planning
performance on quality of decision
making.

Planning Development
Management

Ongoing

To continue to improve the way of
working between Planning
Development and Environmental
Health in respect of planning
conditions.

Planning Development
Management

Ongoing

To continue to provide ongoing
Member training particularly in
relation to housing delivery.

Planning Development
Management

Ongoing

To continue to provide on-going
planning officer training.

Planning Development
Management

Ongoing

To further refine the programme
of ldox measures to enhance
agile / paperless working in DM.

Planning Development
Management

Ongoing

To further refine the programme of
Enterprise measures for DM staff to
manage workloads and
performance, improve the use of
resources and efficiency /
performance.

Planning Development
Management

Ongoing

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 37

19



To continue to develop and offer a .

\ T ) Planning Development :
proactive pre-application service to Management Ongoing
support the delivery of sustainable 9
development.

Table 9 Supporting Wider Housing Opportunities
Action Service Date
To continue dialogue with
developers and
landowners to build out Strategic Planning On-going
rates and obtain
information on barriers to
deliver housing.
To work with site
promoters and other Strategic Planning On-going

stakeholders to deliver
the Local Plan and
allocations.

To continue to seek to
achieve the maximum
amount of Affordable
Housing.

Planning (Strategic and On-going
Planning Development
Management)

The Council will continue
to facilitate the delivery of
affordable housing by Assets On-going
developing Council

owned sites Knowle
Green Estates.

On-going. Exacom

CIL and S106 software will assist
agreements — To Strategic Planning in processing
continue to improve information.

processes and improve
monitoring.

Next Steps

4.13 The future actions identified will be implemented and monitored over the next
year by Planning DM, Strategic Planning, Assets and Housing Strategy. The
Housing Delivery Test results will be issued for each authority on a rolling

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022
Page 38



annual basis. If Spelthorne does not meet the test in future years, Housing
Delivery Test Action Plans will continue to be produced by Planning
Development Management.

4.14 This Action Plan will be reported to the Planning Committee for information.

4.15 The Council welcomes any suggestions to improve the delivery of housing in
Spelthorne

4.16 Itis proposed that this plan will be made publicly available on the Council’s
website.

Esmé Spinks
Planning Development
Manager

Hannah Bridges
Principal Planning Officer

Spelthorne Borough Council

August 2022

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022
Page 39



Appendix 1
Information Document 1

1. Planning Policy Context

National Policy

1.1 In August 2020, the Government published a White Paper— titled “Planning for the
Future” — which set out proposals for changes to the planning system. The paper
proposed fundamental changes to a greater level of detail provided at the plan-
making stage. However, this has now been replaced by the Levelling Up and
Regeneration White Paper followed by the Bill which was introduced to Parliament
on 11 May 2022. Its stated purpose is to “drive local growth, empowering local
leaders to regenerate their areas, and ensuring everyone can share in the United
Kingdom ’ s success” . The issue over housing delivery and any possible
changes to the current methodology of housing provision for local planning
authorities (currently calculated at 618 dwellings per year) has been the subject of
much debate in the planning press. At the time of writing, the question of whether
and when there will be any changes remains unclear and therefore, the Local
Planning Authority is required to work within the existing legislation.

1.2 The Government reinforced its objective to significantly boost the supply of new
homes and making the local authority more accountable for delivery in their area
by publishing the following:

e A revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) February
2021 (An updated statement from the Department for Levelling
Up and Regeneration is expected shortly);

e The Housing Delivery Test Measurement Rule Book, July 2018;

¢ Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) on Housing Supply and Delivery July
2019; and

e The Housing Delivery Test: 2021 Measurement and its
Technical note (January 2022).

1.3 The methodology for calculating the Housing Delivery Test is set out in the
Housing Delivery Test Measurement Rule Book. It measures the number of net
homes delivered against the number of homes required over a rolling three year
period.

1.4 The Government is, therefore, committed to the improved delivery of more new
homes nationally through their economic and housing growth agendas. To this end
they have introduced a number of measures and reforms to the planning system
intended to deliver more housing, improve housing affordability and remove
barriers to development. Local planning authorities (LPAs) are challenged to be
more proactive in increasing the speed and quantity of housing supply to meet the
identified housing needs of their local area.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 22

Page 40



Local Plan Policy

1.5 The current Local Plan for Spelthorne comprises the following documents:

Core Strategy & Policies DPD (adopted 2009)
Allocations DPD (adopted 2009)

Six policies from the 2001 Local Plan remain in force and still form part
of the Development Plan for Spelthorne

South East Plan policy NRM11: Thames Basin Heaths

1.6 The Pre-submission Spelthorne Local Plan 2022 - 2037 (Regulation 19) has been
prepared and is subject to public consultation from 15 June — 2 September 2022.
The Local Plan sets out the Council’s vision and objectives for the Borough and
includes all development policies and allocations. The Council aim to submit the
Local Plan to the Planning Inspectorate in Autumn 2022. The programme for
preparing the local plan documents is available online?.

1.7 The new Local Plan must allocate sufficient land in appropriate locations for the
Council to demonstrate how it will positively meet its development needs and
secure land for infrastructure to support anticipated levels of growth.

2 https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/19897/Local-Development-Scheme

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

23

Page 41


https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/article/19897/Local-Development-Scheme

Appendix 2
Information Document 2

2. Housing Delivery Analysis

2.1 The Housing Delivery Test (HDT) has been introduced by the Government as a
monitoring tool to demonstrate whether local areas are building enough homes
to meet their housing need. The HDT, which was published in January 2022
updates the previous result published in January 2021. This compares the
number of new homes delivered over the previous three years with the
authority's housing requirement. In the case of Spelthorne, the housing
requirement is the minimum annual local housing need figure (618 dwellings
per annum as of April 20223). The calculation is given as:

Total net homes delivered over three year period
HDT (%) =

Total number of homes required over three year petiod

2.2 The HDT will be used to determine the buffer to apply in housing supply
assessments and whether the presumption in favour of sustainable
development should apply. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
and National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) introduced the ‘Housing
Delivery Test’ (HDT) in a phased approach over three years. Once fully
implemented the HDT will have the following consequences:

e Where housing delivery over the previous three years has been less
than 95% of the housing requirement, LPAs should prepare an action
plan setting out the causes of under delivery and the intended actions to
increase delivery;

e Where delivery has been less than 85% of the housing requirement, a
20% buffer should be applied to the supply of deliverable sites for the
purposes of housing delivery assessment;

e Where delivery has been less than 75% of the housing requirement, the
NPPFs presumption in favour of sustainable development will apply.
The three year transitional period has now ended therefore the HDT
consequences will be standardized moving forward.

3 The ‘number of homes required’ within the HDT calculation for 2019-20 is lower than the Local Housing Need figure to account for
the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic. The requirement is therefore 552.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 24

Page 42



2.3 The presumption in favour of sustainable development will now apply if
the test result is less than 75% from November 2020.

2.4 Inthe 2021 HDT measurement, published in 2022, there were 49 councils below
75% and consequently now face the ‘presumption in favour of sustainable
development’. The 2021 housing delivery test figure for Spelthorne is 69%,
meaning it now faces this consequence. This calculation is based on the data set
out in Table 10.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 25

Page 43



1 obed

Table 10 Spelthorne — Housing Delivery Test: 2021 Measurement (published January 2022)

Total Total
No of home required homes No of homes delivered homes Consequence
required delivered
2018-2019 | 2019-2020 | 2020-2021 2018-2019 | 2019-2020 | 2020-2021
599 552 403 1,554 337 228 508 1073 69% | Presumptionin

favour of
development

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

26




2.5 As a consequence, Spelthorne is required to produce an Action Plan within a
period of 6 months of publication of the Housing Delivery Test measurement.

2.6 Spelthorne Borough Council (SBC) is responding to this challenge and has the
ambition, recognised across its key strategic documents, to increase and
accelerate the delivery of new housing across the district. The allocation of
land to accommodate a minimum of 9,270 new homes (618 dwellings per
annum) is being made through the emerging Local Plan, scheduled for
Adoption in Summer 2023. The Council has again challenged the standard
method figure, largely due to the constraints present in the Borough. The
Council will continue to plan for the Local Housing Need figure to comply with
the current national planning policy and guidance. The Regulation 19 Local
Plan identifies sufficient homes to meet housing needs over the 15-year plan
period.

2.7 The NPPF advises that an Action Plan is:

“A document produced by the local planning authority to reflect challenges and
identify actions to address under-delivery against the housing requirement in
the area. The document’s purpose is to detail the reasons for under-delivery
and the steps the authority intends to take in mitigation and drive up delivery in
the area. A good action plan will identify ways to reduce the risk of further
under-delivery and set out the case for measures to maintain or improve levels
of delivery”.

2.8 The table on the following page sets out the position for all Surrey boroughs
and districts. It can be seen that at present seven out of the eleven authorities
are required to produce a housing delivery action plan. The possible
consequences are based on the following:

95% = Action Plan
85% = Action Plan + 20% buffer
75% = Action Plan + 20% buffer + presumption in favour of development

27

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022
Page 45



ot abed

Table 11 Surrey Local Authorities — Housing Delivery Test 2021

Total

Current Consequence

Total HDT 2021 HDT Measurement
Local No of homes Homes No. of homes
Authorit Required required delivered Homes Test
y 9 9 Delivered %
2018- | 2019- | 2020- 2018- | 2019- | 2020-
2019 | 2020 |2021 2019 | 2020 | 2021

Elmbridge 623 | 573 421 | 1618 427 | 396 310 1133 70% Presumption + 20% Buffer +
Action Plan

Epsom and 577 | 529 384 | 1490 165 185 169 519 35% Presumption + 20% Buffer +

Ewell Action Plan

Guildford 563 | 515 375 | 1452 543 | 622 923 2087 144% None

Mole Valley 447 | 411 302 | 1159 374 | 162 274 810 70% Presumption + 20% Buffer +
Action Plan

Reigate and 465 | 544 429 | 1438 528 | 492 792 1811 126% None

Banstead

Runnymede 512 | 468 341 | 1321 665 | 381 392 1438 109% None

Spelthorne 599 | 552 403 | 1554 337 228 508 1073 69% Presumption + 20% buffer +
Action Plan

Surrey Heath 336 | 304 218 | 859 406 | 376 352 1134 132% None

Tandridge 649 | 593 430 | 1672 249 | 268 117 634 38% Presumption + 20% Buffer +
Action Plan

Waverley 590 | 540 393 | 1523 375 605 672 1652 109% None

Woking 338 | 308 225 | 872 231 | 305 147 683 78% 20% Buffer + Action Plan

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

28



2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Where there is a presumption in favour of development, the “tilted
balance” applies where the balance is skewed in favour of sustainable
development and granting planning permission except where the benefits
are ‘significantly and demonstrably’ outweighed by the adverse impacts or
where specific policies in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
indicate otherwise. The “tilted balance” also applies where there is the
absence of relevant up to date development plan policies or where the
local authority does not have a five year housing land supply which is
presently the case for Spelthorne.

The tilted balance therefore increases the prospect of planning permission
being granted because it ‘tilts’ the balance in favour of approving an
application.

Spelthorne’s Current Housing Land Supply Position

The Council’s housing target based on our local housing need is currently
618 dwellings per annum as of April 2022 and this comprises the basis
for calculating the five-year supply of deliverable sites. In using the local
housing need figure of 618 as the starting point for the calculation of a
five year supply, it must be borne in mind that this does not represent a
target as it is based on unconstrained need. The Council is planning to
meet the local housing need figure of 618 homes per annum through its
emerging Local Plan. The Strategic Land Availability Assessment is
updated annually to consider all suitable, available and achievable land in
the Borough to help meet development needs.

The sites identified in the SLAA as being deliverable within the first five
years have been used as the basis for a revised 5-year housing land
supply figure. Whilst this has shown that notionally we have identified
sufficient sites to demonstrate that we have a five year supply of housing
sites we now have to apply an additional 20% buffer rather than the
previously used 5%. This is because Government guidance (NPPF para
73) requires the application of a 20% buffer “where there has been
significant under delivery of housing over the previous three years”. We
now must have regard to the Local Housing Need figure plus buffer of 742
(618 + 20% buffer) dwellings per annum and, on this basis, the Council
has not been able to deliver a sufficient number of dwellings in recent
years. It therefore has no choice now but to apply the additional buffer for
the five year period from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2027. The effect of this
increased requirement is that the identified sites only represent some 4.43
years supply and accordingly the Council cannot, at present, demonstrate
a five year supply of deliverable housing sites.

As a result, current decisions on planning applications for housing
development need to be based on the “tilted balance” approach as set out
in paragraph 11 of the NPPF (2019) as referred to above.

The need for housing has increased significantly since the adoption of the
Core Strategy in 2009. The Council produced a Strategic Housing Market
Assessment (SHMA) in 2015 identifying its housing need within the
Housing Market Area that it shares with Runnymede. This identified a

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 47

29



need for 552-757 dwellings per annum. The Government subsequently
issued its ‘Planning for the Right Homes in the Right Places’ consultation
in 2017 which set out the housing need for each local planning authority
using the standard method. The Government finalised its guidance on the
standard method for calculating housing need in February 2019. As the
housing target in its Core Strategy 2009 is more than five years old, the
five-year housing land supply should be measured against the area’s local
housing need calculated using the Government’s standard method. Local
Housing Need is currently 618 dwellings per annum in Spelthorne. Table
12 sets out the Borough’s net housing completions against its housing
requirement.

Table 12 Local Housing Need & Delivery

Local
Housing Source
Need (Min.)

Shortfall to
Min. OAN

Completions

(net)

Core
2014 - 15 265 166 Strategy +99
2009
Core
2015-16 308 166 Strategy +142
2009
2016 - 17 347 552 SHMA -205
2015
SHMA
2017 - 18 250 552 2015 -302
LHN
2018 - 19 289 590 2018 -301
2019 - 20 228 599 LHN 2019 | -378
2020 - 21 ‘ 639 606 LHN 2020 | +33
2021 - 22 205 611 LHN 2021 | -406
Five Year Supply Position
Need 2021/22 - 2025/26 = (5 x 618) = 3090
Buffer at 20% = (3090 x 1.2) = 3708
Annual need including 20% buffer = 742
Projected 5 year supply = 3286
Housing supply (3094 / 708) = 4.43 years of supply or
89%

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 30

Page 48



Spelthorne's Housing Performance

2.15 A large proportion of the existing housing stock was built between 1920 and
1970. A very high proportion is owner-occupied and comprises mainly
detached, semi-detached and terraced housing. The 2011 Census indicates
that approximately 12% of the stock is social housing managed by
Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) with a similar amount of private rented
accommodation. Some 3.5% of the stock is vacant. The Housing completions
(net) by sector April 2009-March 2022 is set out in Appendix 4 Table 21.

2.16 House prices have continued to fluctuate. Table 13 illustrates changes in
annual average (median) house prices over the last ten years according to
latest available data. Data on house prices is derived from actual sale prices
which can show significant variation over time, particularly when the total
volume of sales is small. The information should therefore be seen only as a
guide to relative movement in house prices by type.

2.17 All affordable housing for rent is managed by RSLs and for each scheme

granted planning permission the Council initially has 100% nomination rights for

first lets with 75% thereafter. One important contextual indicator relating to the
achievement of affordable housing policies is the size and composition of the
Housing Register. Since 2009 the Council has operated a Choice Based

Lettings scheme which significantly extends the opportunities for families on the

Housing Register.

Table 13 Average House Prices in Spelthorne by type of dwelling

Type of Dwelling

Detached Sl Terraced Flat/Maisonette
detached

March 2013 £413,453 £288,940 £235,190 £167,183
March 2014 £452,436 £316,491 £257,380 £182,821
March 2015 £516,173 £361,784 £293,173 £208,525
March 2016 £592,566 £414,053 £333,480 £234,909
March 2017 £621,268 £430,119 £346,341 £249,377
March 2018 £626,016 £436,594 £350,260 £248,872
March 2019 £623,430 £366,785 £346,192 £242,583
March 2020 £622,124 £436,085 £348,964 £238,159
March 2021 £650,856 £454,713 £366,415 £241,539
March 2022 £720,721 £498,707 £394,531 £258,075
20/(‘;1‘3;“;%%2 74% £73% £68% 54%

Source: http://landregistry.data.gov.uk/app/ukhpi/explore

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 49

31


http://landregistry.data.gov.uk/app/ukhpi/explore

2.18

2.19

Projecting future provision

The housing trajectory (Table 14 and Figure 1) shows housing completions for
the last seven years and anticipated delivery for the next 15 years to 2037. It
combines information on past completions, existing planning permissions and
identified housing sites from the Strategic Land Availability Assessment 2020 to
illustrate projected housing supply going forward into the new Local Plan
period.

Net completions for the previous seven years (including the reporting year) are
recorded and broken down into four categories — conversions, change of use,
small sites with fewer than 5 dwellings (net) and large sites of 5 or more
dwellings (net). Data on housing completions by bedroom are set out in Table
16. Data for projected completions in future years is recorded on the same
basis in Table 14.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 50

32



TG obed

Table 14 Draft Housing Trajectory Data 2021-2037

2014/15( 2015/16| 2016/17 2017/18| 2018/19| 2019/20| 2020/21| 2021/22| 2022/23( 2023/24| 2024/25| 2025/26| 2026/27] 2027/28( 2028/29| 2029/30| 2030/31| 2031/32| 2032/33| 2033/34 2034/35| 2035/36| 2036/37

Projected annual completions (net) all sources

Projected conversions completions (based 5] 11 10 9 9 1 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11
on commitments at 1 April and Trend based
after )
Projected change of use completions (based 58 73 63 49 49 41 59 59 59 59 59 40 40 40 40 40
on commitments at 1 April and trend based
after)

ANNUAL REQUIREMENT taking account of
past and projected completions

611 580 575 574 574 568 547 518 474 418 344 354 369 366 360 336

SUMMARY OF SUPPLY

SLAA TOTALS (Sites >4) 349 308 330 308 370 675 697 764 761 757 202 206 290 288 295

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 33



2S obed

2700

2500

2300

2100

1900

1700

1500

1300

1100

Number of Dwellings

900

700

500

300

100

-100

Figure 1 Draft Housing Trajectory 2021-2037

2013/14

— Actual conversions (net)

m Actual change of use (net)

mmm Actual completions small sites <5 dwellings (less conversions) (net)

mmm Actual completions large sites >4 dwellings(net)

—1Projected conversions completions (based on commitments at 1 April and Trend based after )

== Projected change of use completions (based on commitments at 1 April and trend based after)

mE Projected small sites <5 (completions based on commitments at 1 April and trend based onwards) (less conversions)
Em Projected large sites >4 (completions based on commitments at 1 April and identified sites from SLAA 2020

e DCLG STANDARD METHOD LOCAL HOUSING REQUIREMENT (1 JAN 2020)

e ANNUAL REQUIREMENT taking account of past and projected completions

2014/15

(e0]
=
~
~
—
o
N

2015/16
2016/17
2018/19
2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
2025/26
2026/27
2027/28
2028/29
2029/30
2030/31
2031/32

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

2032/33

2033/34

2034/35

2035/36

2036/37

34



2.20 Anticipated completions for the year 2021/21 are based on the assumption that
60% of the 538 units under construction at the start of the year in Table 15 will be
completed during the year. The remaining 40% would be completed over the next
two years with 30% in year 2 and 10% in year 3. This is to allow time for dwellings
on large sites to be completed and to ensure that regard is had to past performance
so that the likely number of completions in the current year is not overestimated.

2.21 For the period from 2022/23 to 2036/37 the estimated net annual completions are
based on the following components:

e Dwellings under construction
e Dwellings with planning permission (unimplemented)

e Estimates for dwellings provided by conversions, change of use and
from small sites (fewer than 5 units net)

e Sites of 5 or more dwellings identified in the SLAA 2021.

2.22 Given the past trends in the Borough’s implementation rates of planning
permissions it has been assumed that most remaining unimplemented
permissions will be completed over the next five year period from 2021. However,
a small non-implementation factor of 5% has been applied on a precautionary
basis to allow for permissions which expire.

2.23 The third component of the trajectory is based on estimates and is made up of
four elements. The first, dwellings provided by conversion of existing residential
properties into smaller units, is calculated from the average annual net provision
over seven years. The second element derives from the change of use from non-
residential property to residential, such as a shop to a dwelling. Again, the
estimate is based on the annual average net provision over a seven year period.
Traditionally this was always a small component of the overall total. However, the
significant increase in large office to residential conversions as a consequence of
the Government’s relaxation of planning controls has significantly increased this
source of supply which is now estimated separately. It is not known how long this
trend will continue, so whilst the trajectory takes account of known schemes, the
longer term estimate for this source of dwelling supply remains cautious having
regard to current levels of provision.

2.24 The fourth element relates to new build dwellings on sites delivering fewer than
five dwellings (net). This is the threshold for sites considered to be too small to be
reliably identified in the SLAA. Currently there is no evidence from completions
data to suggest that this source of new housing is likely to decline over the plan
period and the estimate of 38 units per annum is taken from the SLAA. This is
based on the average annual net completions figure for the last nine years and is
included in the trajectory in years 5-10 and 10-15.

2.25 The final component of supply is that provided by the SLAA 2021. Every site of 5
or more dwellings listed in the study is assessed on a likely implementation date
based on the criteria of whether a site is developable and deliverable over the
next fifteen years broken down into three five year periods.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022
Page 53



2.26 The data is illustrated in graphical form in Figure 2 showing by means of the
columns, the actual and forecast completion rates. The trajectory illustrates the
effect of taking into account the latest objectively assessed housing need figures
published in the Government’s proposed methodology. The horizontal black line
therefore shows the requirement of 611 per annum#*. It shows that, given the
current level of completions forecast for the plan period, the overall number of
dwellings for the remainder of the plan period based on 611 will not be achieved.
The red line shows the effect of completions each year on the overall plan
requirement taking account of the dwellings completed each year to provide a
residual figure. The need to review the Local Plan remains paramount.

2.27 The Council is planning to meet the Local Housing Need derived from the
standard method for calculating housing need in its emerging Local plan. Whilst
the Council is currently unable to meet its housing needs in the urban area alone,
the release of a small amount of Green Belt through the Local Plan will help the
Council to meet its development needs in full. The Local Plan strategy includes a
0.7% release of Green Belt alongside making an efficient use of brownfield land
and maximising densities in sustainable locations. The number of dwellings
completed, under construction and with outstanding planning permission at 31
March 2022 is shown in Table 15.

Table 15 Number of dwellings completed, under construction and with
outstanding planning permission at 31 March 2022

Conversion/ Small Large Total
Change of sites (less sites dwellings
Use than (0.4haor - all sites
0.4ha) greater)
Gross Completions (2021-2022) 23 4 183 210
Losses (2021-2022) 2 3 0 5

Net Completions 21 1 183 205
Units under construction 92 28 295 345
Units not started on sites under

construction 0 0 0 0
Units with outstanding planning 304

permissions (net) 64 899 1287
Units pending Section 106

agreement (net)* 0 0 165 165
Total units outstanding 416 92 1289 1797

(Source: In house monitoring)

*This figure includes all sites pending S106 agreements which have not been concluded or
formally withdrawn.

4 Requirement with 2021 as the baseline, with trajectory as at 31 March 2021.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022
Page 54



Table 16 Approved and Implemented Residential Development

Year Schemes Units Starts this Total under
approved in approved in year construction
year year

2021-2022

2020-2021

2019-2020
2018-2019
2017-2018
2016-2017
2015-2016

2.28 Table 16 shows the rate of approved residential schemes in Spelthorne since
2015-16. This highlights the Council’s rate of approval and also shows the
number of units started each year by developers. Starts each year are
generally much lower than the number of approvals, indicating that whilst the
Council is positively responding to the challenge of boosting its role in housing
delivery internally, external factors which are beyond the control of the Council
will influence the decision to implement a scheme.

5 Building Control capacity issues have delayed the provision of commencement and completion data — to be
updated once available but likely to be higher than the figure recorded.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 37

Page 55



Table 17 Housing completions (net) by bedroom April 2009-March 2022

Year lbed | 2bed | 3bed | 4bed | Total | 1bed | 2bed | 3bed | 4bed | Total | 1bed | 2bed | 3bed | 4bed | Total R‘;';'t‘:l‘g
2009-2010 77 166 26 27 296 2 36 43 4 85 75 130 | -17 23 211 211
2010-2011 70 112 19 11 212 3 21 43 6 73 67 91 | -24 5 139 350
2011-2012 53 91 90 28 262 3 43 52 5 | 103 50 48 38 23 159 509
2012-2013 66 98 38 20 222 2 42 2 52 64 92 -4 18 170 679
2013-2014 66 98 19 15 198 2 2 7 64 96 18 13 191 | 870
2014-2015 79 172 48 34 333 42 8 8 10 68 37 164 40 24 265 | 1,135
2015-2016 89 166 71 29 355 2 31 8 47 87 160 40 21 308 | 1,443
2016-2017 98 189 50 37 374 6 11 8 2 27 92 178 42 35 347 | 1,790
2017-2018 108 111 36 32 287 8 12 6 11 37 | 100 99 30 21 250 | 2,040
o 2018-2019 164 92 33 21 310 3 21 | 161 88 25 15 289 | 2,329
QD 2019-2020 122 98 20 8 248 1 6 11 2 20 121 92 9 6 228 2,557
‘% 2020-2021 294 327 30 5 656 0 7 4 17 | 204 32 23 1 639 | 3,196
g 2021-2022 92 114 4 0 210 0 5 0 5 |92 114 1 0 205 | 3401

2009-2022 (i) 1,378 484 219

(i) Period covered by the Spelthorne Core Strategy and Policies DPD.
(i) Losses of residential units (through redevelopment, conversion and to other uses) are accounted for in the year in which a development is commenced on the site.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 38



Density

2.29 From 2009 to 2021 the average density for all completed schemes was 57
dwellings per hectare. Table 17 shows that there has been a notable increase
towards higher density development over the past two years.

Table 18 Percentage of new dwellings on completed sites between 2009
and 2022 at different density ranges.

% of dwellings

Number of
slies el dAe\r/gi?f of di?foerrneellte geedngitty
cqmpleted on completed ranges
in year completed e
sites <35 3575 >75
2009-2010 40 235 63 3% | 67% | 30%
2010-2011 38 272 64 7% | 52% | 41%
2011-2012 33 260 39 7% | 89% | 4%
2012-2013 38 146 44 18% | 42% | 40%
2013-2014 27 242 55 6% | 44% | 50%
2014-2015 42 307 65 18% | 11% | 71%
2015-2016 28 176 76 6% | 42% | 52%
2016-2017 46 440 51 19% | 55% | 26%
2017-2018 44 296 50 29% | 27% | 44%
2018-2019 48 459 66 57% 8% | 35%
2019-2020 35 230 71 7% | 23% | 70%
2020-2021 58 513 134 9% 8% | 83%
2021-2022 12 137 190 2% 5% | 93%
Total 942 3,713 247

Source: In house monitoring

Affordable housing

2.30 The overall provision of affordable housing has declined in recent years,
however more recently the number of units has risen (Table 18). 211 units are
currently under construction. There is an increasing trend for developers to seek
to reduce on-site provision of affordable housing on the grounds of viability and /
or to promote off-site provision or an in-lieu financial contribution. A number of
larger schemes have recently been granted planning permission with
significantly lower proportions of on-site provision than Policy HO3 seeks to
achieve. In addition, the conversion of offices to residential under the “prior
approval” regime has prevented the negotiation of affordable housing in a
significant number of schemes.

2.31 Some £4.03m has been received between 2014/15 and 2019/20 in contributions
in lieu of on-site affordable provision. The effectiveness of financial

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 39

Page 57



contributions in lieu of on-site provision will need to be closely monitored in the
future to ensure that opportunities to increase the supply of affordable housing
are maximised. There are a number of Council projects in the pipeline which will
be partly funded from S106 money and these are referred to under the Action
Plan Context and Action Plan below.

Table 19 Number of affordable homes provided per year since 2009

Affordable
dwellings

completed
(gross)

Affordable
dwellings
lost in
year

Affordable
dwellings
completed

Shared Other/not

Ownership specified

Source: In house monitoring

2009-10
2010-11 96 44 52 84
2011-12 144 59 85 101
2012-13 63 20 43 51
2013-14 44 0 44 44
2014-15 16 43 -27 8
2015-16 138 14 124 82
2016-17 46 0 46 46
2017-18 9 0

2018-19 6 0

2019-20 0 0

2020-21 177 0 177 22
2021-22 104 0 104 0

o -
o N o BN

54% 429

O O O 0O 0O o0 0oojo/o o o o o

46% 0

Table 20 Affordable dwellings granted planning permission 2021-2022

Number of Total Affordable Affordable
sites Dwellings dwellings dwellings as
(gross) granted pp % of all
dwellings
granted pp
All schemes 58 443 22 5%
Schemes above 15
unit threshold as o
defined in Policy ! 316 22 %
HO36
Source: In house monitoring
6 As per national planning guidance (NPPF 2021) this is now applied to schemes of 10 units or more.
40

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 58



2.32 The conversion of offices to residential under the “prior approval” regime has

prevented the negotiation of affordable housing in a significant number of
schemes. In the year to 31 March 2022, six applications for prior approval were
granted, involving the loss of office floorspace with the provision of 176
dwellings, but with no affordable housing (Table 20).

Table 21 Prior approval applications granted April 2021-March 2022

Application

No

Address

Date
Approved

Number of
dwellings

Commenced

21/00009/PDO

51-53 Church
Street,
Ashford

26/04/21

Unimplemented

21/01220/PDO

Magna
House, 18-32
London Road

19/09/21

26

Unimplemented

21/01199/PDO

Elizabeth
House, 56-60
London Road

09/09/21

20

Unimplemented

21/01151/PDO

Birch House,
Fairfield
Avenue

02/09/21

25

Unimplemented

21/01259/PDO

Atrium, 31/37
Church Road

24/09/21

20

Unimplemented

21/01274/PDO

1 London
Road, Staines

23/09/21

77

Unimplemented

The Brownfield Land Reqister

2.33 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires councils to

encourage the effective use of land by reusing land that has been previously
developed (brownfield land), provided that it is not of high environmental value.
All sites included on the register have been provisionally assessed as meeting

the NPPF definition of previously developed land.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 59

41




2.34 To be included, sites must also meet the following:

1. atleast 0.25 hectares in size or capable of supporting at least five
dwellings;

2. "suitable" for residential development;
3. theland is "available" for residential development; and

4. residential development of the land is "achievable".

2.35 Spelthorne published its Part 1 Brownfield Register in December 2018 and
updates this annually. The Register provides up-to-date and consistent
information on sites that are considered to be appropriate for residential
development as long as they meet the criteria set out in Town and Country
Planning (Brownfield Land Registry) Regulations 2017. Registers are in two
parts, Part 1 comprises all brownfield sites appropriate for residential
development and Part 2 those sites granted permission in principle. The Part 1
Brownfield Land Register includes sites that have planning permission, or are
allocations in the adopted Local Plan. In due course the register will be
extended to include relevant sites that have been submitted through
Spelthorne’s Strategic Land Availability Assessment (SLAA) or appropriate sites
which meet the criteria.

2.36 The Brownfield Land Register does not affect the status of sites that already
have planning permission or are allocated in the adopted Local Plan for
development. The inclusion of other sites on the register does not give them
any formal status, or grant permission in principle, or in any sense infer that
planning permission will be granted for development. The Brownfield Land
Register will be subject to periodic review and through ongoing refinement
further sites will be added whilst others may be removed.

The New Local Plan

2.37 The current review of the Council’s Local Plan has identified a need to create
around 618 housing units each year over the next 15 years. The Pre-
submission Spelthorne Local Plan 2022 — 2037 has been consulted on from 15
June — 5 September 2022. The Local Plan strategy looks to meet housing
needs in full through a combination of intensifying development of Brownfield
land, growth within Staines—upon-Thames and removing a limited amount of
Green Belt but with additional safeguards to take account of the public’s views
on loss of Green Belt.

2.38 The Staines Development Framework has also been consulted on alongside the
Local Plan. This will provide a structure to shape and transform the town centre.
The Development Framework is an important element of the new Local Plan as
it will set out the opportunities for Staines to deliver new homes, commercial
activity and vital infrastructure.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 42

Page 60


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/403/regulation/4/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/403/regulation/4/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/403/regulation/4/made
https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/SLAA

Appendix 3
Information Document 3

2 Key challenges

The key challenges set out in the following section have been identified as areas
for the Council to overcome and to positively address any current barriers to
housing delivery. In addressing these challenges, the Council will seek to
maintain its high standards and will not compromise on the quality of housing
delivered. In addressing these challenges, the Council will have regard to its
corporate priorities and will seek betterment for the community.

COVID-19: the global pandemic and the associated lockdowns, particularly
lockdown 1 which took place between March and July 2020, have had a
significant impact on the national economy. Whilst the government advised that
construction could continue (subject to social distancing being applied) a number
of key strategic development sites within the borough stopped work. There has
also been an absence of major and minor applications submitted since March
2020 and this will undoubtedly result in a lag in applications, permissions and
eventual implementations.

Increasing numbers on the Housing Register: Over the past three years, the
number of applicants on the Council’s Housing Register has grown by 79%.

Lack of availability of existing affordable housing: In 2017/18 there were eleven
applicants for every social housing vacancy.

High rates of statutory homelessness: There is an average of 116 households
for whom we have a duty to provide accommodation per year, with one in five
households approaching us due to the termination of a private sector tenancy.

High use of emergency and temporary housing for homeless households:

The average occupancy of temporary accommodation at the end of each
quarter in the four years to 2017/18 was 111 households. See Appendix 3
Table H4. For example, the average cost to the Council to accommodate one
homeless household in emergency housing is approximately £6,500 per annum

Increasing affordability issues: ratio of the median house price to the median
wage in the area evidences a year-on-year rise over the past four years, with
Spelthorne outpacing the ratios for both the South East and England.

Lack of new-build affordable housing: The net increase of provision over the
past five years has been 296 units — an average of 59 per year.

The Capital Strategy also identifies the following issues affecting the housing
market in Spelthorne.

The effect of our proximity to London

As well as the evident demand for affordable housing from local residents,
there is also considerable pressure from London. The cost of housing in
London is even higher than in Spelthorne, and London boroughs are actively
placing homeless households from their boroughs into Spelthorne, as well as
‘block booking’ emergency accommodation facilities within Spelthorne for their

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022 43

Page 61



homeless people, placing further demand on the already strained private
sector.

Heathrow expansion

Notwithstanding the recent COVID-19 situation and the impact on the aviation
sector, another key issue that will have a significant impact on our community
is the possible expansion of Heathrow. There is currently uncertainty as to
whether the airport will be expanded and the possible form this will take given
the legal challenges and judgments associated with the Airports National
Policy Statement (ANPS). If construction does start it is likely to go on for a
minimum of nine years. This will introduce further pressure as people working
on the Heathrow expansion seek to be housed close to their workplace.

Key worker accommodation

Whilst housing affordability is a significant issue in general, it acutely affects
key workers, who help to run the essential local services such as schools,
hospitals, doctor’s surgeries and fire stations. According to Government
statistics released in 2011, the latest records available, the medium income for
employees within Spelthorne is £31,457, which is in line with the Surrey
average. However, the starting salaries for essential local workers is much
less. We know anecdotally that key worker staff are moving further and further
away from Spelthorne into Hampshire and Berkshire and commuting to work.
This means that when they look for their next promotion they are more likely to
look in those areas; this is another factor leading to loss of workforce. Whilst
some key workers are being recruited from London, one of the main factors
which will keep them in Spelthorne is availability of affordable housing. The
Council is seeking to tackle this through our housing company Knowle Green
Estates Ltd and look at opportunities within allocated sites for the new Local
Plan.

Subsidies

As affordable housing is provided at up to 80% of the market rate, subsidies
are essential to make it viable. A private developer who pays market rate for
land, finance, supplies and labour has to sell their properties at market rate to
make a profit. When Spelthorne Council is acting as the developer, even if
there is no profit, it is still difficult to deliver truly affordable housing. Housing
for rent can pay for itself over a period of time because of the rental income
which it generates. However, the Council needs to be in a position to forward
fund such developments and the cost of finance for the acquisition,
development and construction stages is prohibitive for councils unless they
receive Government subsidy. This is similar to the way Housing Associations
operate — having a market rate product to sell and rent, the surplus of which
subsidies the affordable elements of their business. The bottom line is that,
even with the Government grant funding available through Homes England,
affordable housing developments need significant capital investment and cash
flow to deliver.

Engagement with Stakeholders

The Pre-submission Spelthorne Local Plan 2022 — 2037 has taken place
from June to September 2022. A large range of stakeholders have been
engaged as part of the consultation process including landowners,
developers, utility providers and statutory consultees. The Council has held

44

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022
Page 62



a number of consultation events to raise awareness of the Local Plan
consultation and boost engagement.

The Council is aiming to submit the Local Plan for examination in late 2022
with adoption anticipated for mid-2023.

Evidence base documents are also under production alongside the Local
Plan and the Strategic Planning team will continue to engage with all
stakeholders throughout the production of the Local Plan, including regular
contact with landowners and their agents, to ensure the sites that will be
allocated will be delivered when anticipated.

Rail access to Heathrow

To date, the government is advancing two new major rail schemes (Western
Rail to Heathrow and Southern Rail to Heathrow) to significantly transform rail
access to and from Heathrow. The government plans to partly involve the
private sector in its financing, delivery and maintenance. It aims to improve
access to Heathrow from the south, reduce rail journey times, ease road and
passenger congestion, create additional connections, generate economic
growth and new jobs and provide an alternative form of transport for
passengers, especially people who travel to the airport by car.

Alternatively, the Council has submitted a £375m light rail scheme to
Heathrow to the Department of Transport (DfT) as part of its call for ideas on
third party funded projects. The light rail has also been identified as an
Innovation Partner with Heathrow although this work is currently paused due
to the recent COVID-19 pandemic.

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022

Page 63

45



Table 22 Housing completions (net) by sector April 2009-March 2022

Appendix 4

) 0 0 0
Year (Apr-Mar) | Private | RSL | Public | Total | Private | RSL | Public | Total | Private | RSL | Public | Total R‘}r(‘)'t‘;rl‘g
2009-2010 197 99 0 296 29 56 0 85 168 43 0 211 211
2010-2011 116 96 0 212 29 44 0 73 87 52 0 139 350
2011-2012 118 144 0 262 43 60 0 103 75 84 0 159 509
2012-2013 159 63 0 222 32 20 0 52 127 43 0 170 679
2013-2014 154 44 0 198 7 0 0 7 147 44 0 191 870
2014-2015 317 16 0 333 25 43 0 68 292 27 0 265 1,135
2015-2016 217 138 0 355 33 14 0 47 184 124 0 308 1,443
2016-2017 328 46 0 374 27 0 0 27 301 46 0 347 1,790
g'? 2017-2018 278 9 0 287 37 0 0 37 241 9 0 250 2,040
Q 2018-2019 304 6 0 310 21 0 0 21 283 6 0 289 2,329
@ 2019-2020 248 0 0 248 20 0 0 20 228 0 0 228 2,554
X 2020-2021 479 177 0 656 17 0 0 17 462 177 0 639 3,196
2021-2022 106 104 0 210 5 0 0 5 205 0 0 205 3,401
2009-2022(i) 3,021 0 325 0 601 0

(i) Period covered by the Spelthorne Core Strategy and Policies DPD.
(i) Losses of residential units (through redevelopment, conversion and to other uses) are accounted for in the year in which a development is commenced on the site.

46



Agenda Item 7

CIL Task Group

The Spelthorne Joint Committee met on 18 July to consider the Strategic CIL bids for the Sunbury
Health Centre and the Spelthorne Playing Pitches. The Playing Pitch bid was supported and approved
by all, however there were some concerns regarding the Sunbury Health Centre, specifically around
the cost of the sustainable transport options (EV charging points and bike racks). Although Members
agreed the centre requires improvement and investment, it was concluded that further information
was required on the sustainable transport items before a final decision could be made.

On 16 August the CIL Task Group met with the NHS to seek clarification on these points. It was
decided the EV charging points would be removed from the bid, and potentially return as a separate
bid further down the line with more information. The bid will be presented to the Joint Committee
with the bike racks included, however they can be removed at that stage should all Members not be
satisfied. It was agreed this is the best way to proceed in order to have some agreement and
progress on the upgrades to the centre itself. An extraordinary Joint Committee has been scheduled
for 19 September where the Sunbury bid will be discussed.

Local Plan and Staines Development Task Groups

These groups have not met since the last E&S Committee meeting so this is more of an update on
the Local Plan and Strategic Planning issues.

The Local Plan and Staines Development Framework consultation events finished with Sunbury
Regatta on Saturday 13 August. The consultation on both documents was due to end on Monday 5
September but as advised to all Members and to the public through our usual channels this has now
been extended to 19 September for the Local Plan only. This was because some further evidence
documents were published since the start of the consultation. Whilst ideally the consultation would
have started without the need for further updates, this is not unusual and was essential in order to
meet our timescales for submission, especially as we have been trying to make up for lost time
whilst the strategy was agreed. The SDF consultation finished on 5 September as planned and
officers are now reviewing the comments before a Staines Development Task Group is convened to
discuss final changes to the SDF to take account of feedback we have received.

Spelthorne responded to EImbridge Council’s own Regulation 19 consultation and a copy of the
response was shared with all Members. This set out that we object to Elmbridge’s plan as it does not
aim to meet their housing need in full. That approach risks a neighbouring authority such as
Spelthorne being called upon to meet their unmet need, a position that we would fight robustly. We
have made it clear that no further Green Belt release would be acceptable beyond that proposed in
our own Local Plan to meet our own housing need and that we are not able to meet need from
outside the Borough.

Local Plan Consultation Responses

As of 24 August, there were 143 responses to the Local Plan consultation. 124 have been made
against policies and 19 against sites. Respondents are asked to comment on each policy or site
individually so this is the total comments made. An individual person or organisation may have
made more than one response. The Green Belt policy has received 30 responses and the Open
Space and Recreation has received 37.

Page 65



There have been 17 responses to the Staines Development Framework consultation.

As mentioned above the end date for the Local Plan Consultation was extended to 19 September
2022 and as with all Local Plan consultations we would expect to receive over half of the responses
in the last week of consultation and half of those on the last day, so we expect the final response
rate to be much higher.

Ann Biggs LLB (Hons) MA MRTPI

Strategic Planning Manager

Page 66



Agenda Item 8

Environment and Sustainability CommitteeA_

SPELTHORNE
Gth September 2022 BOROUGH COUNCIL
Title Climate Change Strategy
Purpose of the report To make a decision
Report Author Jilly Mowbray Climate Change Officer
Ward(s) Affected All Wards
Exempt No
Exemption Reason n/a
Corporate Priority Recovery
Environment
Recommendations To approve and adopt the Climate Change Strategy
Reason for After declaring a Climate Emergency in Oct 2020, a Climate
Recommendation Change Strategy is required to provide actions for the
council to tackle climate change and reduce its emissions

1. Summary of the report

1.1  Spelthorne Borough Council has declared a Climate Emergency but has not
developed a Climate Change Strategy. Therefore, it is important that one is
established as soon as possible.

Key issues

2.1  This Climate Change Strategy recommends actions for the council to take, to
reduce its carbon emissions and aim to be Net Zero by 2030 for Scope 1 and
2 emissions.

2.2  Carbon emissions are calculated as carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e), which
is a term used to combine the seven most threatening gases that have the
highest global warming potential. This includes carbon dioxide, methane,
nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, sulphur hexafluoride and
nitrogen trifluoride.

2.3  Net Zero means balancing the amount of carbon emissions with the
equivalent emissions, which are hard to reduce, that are either offset or
sequestered through rewilding and tree planting or carbon capture and
storage.

2.4  Scope 1 emissions are direct emissions from owned or controlled sources
such as the council’s fleet. Scope 2 emissions are indirect emissions from the
generation of purchased electricity, heating and cooling that are consumed.

Page 67




2.5

2.6

2.7
2.8

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4
3.5

3.6
3.7

3.8

4.1

6.1

7.1

Although Scope 3 (all other emissions) emissions are not considered for this
Net Zero target, they will be addressed by actions in the strategy.

126 councils have already stated they aim to be Net Zero by 2030 for Scope 1
and 2 emissions. Following Surrey County Council’'s Greener Futures Delivery
nearly all district and borough councils in Surrey, apart from one aim to be Net
Zero by 2030.

There are 71 actions in the strategy divided into 9 sections:- Buildings and
Operations, Transport Finance, Sustainable Development, Economy, Waste,
Communities, Biodiversity and Adaptation. Actions range from small to large
scale.

The Strategy and actions will be monitored and reviewed after 6 months.
Some actions have already been taken or are already underway.
Options analysis and proposal

Option 1 —The Climate Change Strategy is adopted by the Council and the
required actions are undertaken to achieve the associated goals.

Detail the pros and cons of the options available and which one is being
proposed. Include the risk assessment.

It is recommended that the Council aims to be Net Zero by 2030 for its own
emissions, however, this does not mean actions will not be taken to reduce
emissions within the wider borough as well.

This is the recommended option.

Option 2 - Do nothing, this would require no further action or resource but
would result in the Council not reducing carbon emissions to a substantial
level and undermining the climate emergency declaration.

This is not recommended.

Option 3 - Create an alternative Climate Change Strategy, however, this will
take time to develop and create further pushing back action.

This is not recommended.
Financial implications

There will be costs to these actions and currently, monetary figures cannot be
stated for all the actions at this stage. However, different funding opportunities
have been identified for many of the actions and future funding opportunities
will be sought out.

Risk considerations

There are many risks of not taking effective action, including increasing the
risks of exposure to extreme heat, flooding and drought.

Legal considerations
Legal will need to be consulted on contracts or associated actions
Other considerations

Spelthorne Borough Council has declared a Climate Emergency and this
strategy will demonstrate to residents and businesses the council is
committed to tackling climate change.

Page 68



7.2  Climate Emergency UK has gained a lot of press coverage after rating UK
councils Climate Change Strategies or Action Plans and detailed which
councils had no strategy. they will be reviewing strategies and the actions
taken in the autumn, so it is important to have one in place.

Equality and Diversity

8.1 Itisimportant we plan to adapt and try the reduce the risks of climate to all
Spelthorne residents especially vulnerable residents who will be
disproportionately affected by the effects of Climate Change, especially
extreme heat and flooding. The Climate Change Strategy aims to do this

Sustainability/Climate Change Implications

9.1  There are direct implications as the Climate Change Strategy aims and
provides actions that will directly reduce the Council’'s carbon emissions.

10. Timetable for implementation

10.1 To be submitted to the Environment and Sustainability Committee on the 6™
of September 2022 and if adopted to be implemented immediately.

11. Contact
11.1 Jilly Mowbray [.mowbray@spelthorne.gov.uk

Background papers:, There are none.

Appendices:
List as Appendix:- Climate Change Strategy

Page 69


mailto:j.mowbray@spelthorne.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



T/ obed

Spelthorne Borough Council — Climate Change Strategy

The climate crisis is the biggest challenge humanity has faced in generations, we need to mitigate any further damage to the planet and adapt to the
changes in our climate that are already with us, as the recent heatwaves have shown.

Greenhouse Gases (GHG) cause the air temperature to increase by trapping certain wavelengths of radiation in the atmosphere contributing to global
heating. Carbon dioxide (CO?) is the dominant GHG and since the period of the industrial revolution, humans have increased atmospheric CO? on an
exponential scale, most of which is attributable to fossil fuels. Climate change caused by GHGs is currently and will continue to cause further biological,
societal, and economical disasters, therefore the reduction of these emissions globally is crucial to sustaining life on this planet.

The Inter-governmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) report - Impacts, Adaptation and Vulnerability* recognises the scale of the challenge to address the
climate crisis means rapid and far-reaching changes that are needed in all aspects of society, however, it demonstrates that taking action will lead to a more
sustainable and equitable society. The action required to make these changes may be difficult, however, we should focus not on what we can no longer do
but on what will be gained by residents and the borough by taking action.

Risks of the climate crisis to Spelthorne
The dangers of climate change are well known; however, it is worth reiterating the risks to Spelthorne:-

e Drought —July 2022 was the driest on record in the South-East?

e Heat —temperatures recently hit 40.2 at Heathrow on the hottest day on record?

e Wildfires — major incident declared by Surrey Fire and Rescue Service as wildfires took hold in July 2022

e Flooding — due to the rising level of the Thames due to sea level rises* as well as less frequent but heavier downpours

e Water security — it has been estimated that the South-East will require an extra 110 million litres of water per day over the next 35 years® which
could affect Spelthorne’s reservoirs

e Food security — drought will have a detrimental knock-on effect on our food supply

1 https://www.ipcc.ch/report/ar6/wg2/

2 https://www.metoffice.gov.uk/about-us/press-office/news/weather-and-climate/2022/driest-july-in-england-since-1935

3 https://www.metoffice.gov.uk/binaries/content/assets/metofficegovuk/pdf/weather/learn-about/uk-past-events/interesting/2022/2022_03 july heatwave.pdf
4 https://www.open.edu/openlearn/nature-environment/environmental-studies/sea-level-rise-london-uk

5 https://wrse.uk.engagementhg.com/our-regional-plan



https://www.ipcc.ch/report/ar6/wg2/
https://www.metoffice.gov.uk/about-us/press-office/news/weather-and-climate/2022/driest-july-in-england-since-1935
https://www.metoffice.gov.uk/binaries/content/assets/metofficegovuk/pdf/weather/learn-about/uk-past-events/interesting/2022/2022_03_july_heatwave.pdf
https://www.open.edu/openlearn/nature-environment/environmental-studies/sea-level-rise-london-uk
https://wrse.uk.engagementhq.com/our-regional-plan

¢/ abed

Benefits of taking action

Not only do we the Council have a duty to take action to protect Spelthorne and the wider ecosystem for future generations to ensure Spelthorne is a
liveable thriving borough, but there are many benefits to acting including decreasing fuel poverty, reducing energy bills, improving air quality and green
spaces in the borough for residents and creating green jobs. Additionally, by adapting and planning for the risks of climate change we can reduce
Spelthorne’s exposure to the costs of these risks, for example, flood damage to buildings, infrastructure and services.

According to the Climate Change Committee’s recent report “Local Authorities and the Sixth Carbon Budget”, local authorities are directly responsible for
between 2- 5% of a local area’s emissions but influence over 33% of a local area’s emissions and have many levers that can be used to deliver and influence
wider local action to reduce emissions and prepare local areas for a changing climate. ® Therefore, Spelthorne Borough Council has an important role in
reducing the emissions of the whole of Spelthorne.

Spelthorne Borough Council declared a Climate Emergency on the 14th of October 2020, publicly prioritising its commitment to tackling the climate crisis.
This strategy carries on from this declaration and from the work that has already been accomplished, examples of which are listed below:-

e Installation of solar PV arrays across Council owned buildings including, the Main Operations Depot, Knowle Green West Wing Development,
Laleham Nursery, Staines & Fordbridge Community Centres

e Ultra Low Energy Passivhaus Leisure Centre in Staines is being built

e Council’s fleet now has 2 EV (electric vehicle) pool cars, 2 EV vans and 2 EV mopeds

e EV charging points installed at main operations buildings including Knowle Green, White House Depot and Laleham Nursery.

e 8 EV charge points installed at 2 Multi-storey car parks in Staines-upon-Thames

e LED lighting upgrades carried out throughout Council offices

5 https://www.theccc.org.uk/publication/local -authorities-and-the-sixth-carbon-budget/



https://www.theccc.org.uk/publication/local-authorities-and-the-sixth-carbon-budget/

¢/ obed

Spelthorne Borough Council’s baseline emissions

It is important to note that emissions are calculated as carbon dioxide equivalent (CO,e), which is a term used to combine the seven most threatening gases
that have the highest global warming potential. This includes carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, sulphur
hexafluoride and nitrogen trifluoride.

Spelthorne Borough Council’s baseline emissions for 2019/2020 for Scope 1 and 2 emissions were 1,194 tCO,e, the breakdown of these emissions can be
seen in Tables 1 and 2.

Emissions Source Scope Tonnes CO,e % Split
Council Vehicles 1 228 52.5%
Natural Gas 1 627 19%
Oil 1 5 0.5%
Electricity 2 334 28%
Total 1194 100%

Table 1 Carbon emissions by source for Spelthorne Borough Council’s operations in 2019/20



y) abed

Spelthorne Borough Council's Scope 1 and 2
emissions 2019/2020

m Council Vehicles = Natural Gas = Qil Electricity
Table 2 Overview of Spelthorne Borough Council's Scope 1 and 2 emissions 2019/2020

Net Zero target

A Net Zero target refers to reaching net zero carbon emissions by a nominated year but differs from zero carbon, which requires no carbon to be emitted at
all. Net Zero refers to balancing the amount of emitted greenhouse gases with the equivalent emissions that are either offset or sequestered through
rewilding and tree planting or carbon capture and storage. The Council will have a greater focus on reducing carbon emissions as much as possible and only
using offsetting and sequestering techniques for those hard to reduce emissions.

Spelthorne Borough Council plans to be Net Zero for Scope 1 and 2 emissions by 2030. This is in line with Surrey County Council’s Greener Futures Delivery
Plan.

It is estimated that there could be up to 283 tCO,e from hard to reduce sources that will be unavoidable by 2030 that will need to be offset, the Council will
look to offset through a large renewable scheme, protection and improvement of the borough’s carbon sinks and tree planting schemes.



G/ abed

Scope 1 & 2 CO,e Trajectory

1,400

1,200

1,000

Tonnes of CO,e

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

EGas EOil mVehicle mElectricity

Table 3 Spelthorne Borough Council Emissions Trajectory 2019 - 2030

It is important to establish Science Based Targets, meaning that targets align with Earth’s limits and societal sustainability goals as well as being measurable,
actionable, and time-bound objectives. It is important to note that as the Council's emissions reporting becomes more accurate, emissions may rise to
reflect true emissions.

The Council intends to reduce our emissions to 40% of our baseline year by 2025 to 717 tCOze, saving 477 tCO.e equivalent to removing 280 cars from the
road. In 2025 we will review our emissions and targets and aim to reduce emissions further to be Net Zero by 2030.

We will also monitor and report our progress against our targets while collaborating with Surrey County Council on reporting and actions. While the Net
Zero target is for our Scope 1 & 2 emissions, we will be working to monitor and reduce our Scope 3 emissions as well.



9/ abed

How Spelthorne Borough Council will reduce emissions

How the Council is going to reduce emissions is set out below by actions that need to be undertaken. While the Council wants to reduce our emissions, we
also realise the important need to plan for the changing climate, therefore adaptation is also covered in this plan, recent heatwaves have shown some of
those changes are already here.

While we are aiming to get to Net Zero by 2030 for Scope 1 & 2 we realise the large impact of our Scope 3 emissions, which by their nature are much hard
to track and reduce. Therefore, we will also be taking several actions to reduce our Scope 3 emission and create a more robust reporting system.

The Action Plan has been divided into nine sections that need to be tackled: -

Buildings and Operations
Transport

Finance

Sustainable Development
Economy

Waste

Communities
Biodiversity

Adaptation

It is an ambitious plan, that will require the buy in of all staff, which will be reviewed every 6 months, but the risk of the climate crisis is such that it requires
bold action.



oil heating from
nursery site

energy spend

Key Action Key Task Desired Outcome Target Owner Funding (if Linked Progress
required) strategy
Reduce the Council’s Delivering the Climate Deliver Carbon 25% of Climate Change £10 per staff Greener First training
emissions from Change Strategy and training | Literacy to staff to staff Team (CCT)/Officer | member to Futures Plan | session booked for
buildings and staff to ‘think green’ increase awareness trained by come from action point | 28 Sept for 24
operations of climate end of training (52), members of staff
(transport change/emergency. 2023 budget Corporate
considered in Staff will become Priority
separate section) certificated and Environment
create 2 pledges to Plan
reduce carbon
emissions in the
o workplace
o)) Ensure a robust reporting To be able to better Q4 2023 CCO/sO/ICT Working with
((% and monitoring progress for | monitor and Project Manager of
4 all SBC emissions understand SBC Carbon Economics
-~ emissions including and Data at SCCon
Scope 3 and reduce reporting process
these
Carry out energy audits on Utilise the energy By 2025 CCT PSLCSF, Corporate Audits carried out
main Council operations audits carried out on however, Priority by APSE — projects
buildings and assets to Council buildings to there is the Recovery to be planned to
identify and reduce energy inform future potential to Plan, carry out suggested
use projects to increase mitigate or work
energy efficiency slow down the
measures across rate of
Council buildings increase in the
including removing Council’s




aJ AAp 1

Incorporate energy Identify projects that | Ongoing Assets/Facilities/ Corporate
efficiency measures and arein line for CCT Recovery
renewables into conversions, | maintenance and and
refurbishments, and explore opportunities Environment
maintenance of Council to include carbon plan
buildings and housing intervention
developments measures and
adaptation retrofits
simultaneously eg
cooling, rainwater
harvesting, and water
efficiency with
consideration of
associated air quality
impacts
Carry out an energy and Understand the 2023 ICT/CCT Green
carbon audit of all Corporate | hidden emissions of Initiatives
IT functions ICT and develop a Fund (GIF) for
plan to reduce these possible
consultant
work if
required
Deliver lighting upgrades and | Reduce energy use in | Ongoing SO/Facilities Loft insulation

improvements to heating,
ventilation and air
conditioning, all remaining
lighting in Council buildings
to be replaced with LEDs
where appropriate

Council buildings,
could also reduce the
Council’s energy
expenditure

recently upgraded

in KG




ol ABp 1

7. Meter water usage across Reduction of water 2025 Facilities Water
Council buildings and install usage across SBC Efficiency
water saving devices and operations will the Policy
consider behaviour change possibility of
methods reducing water bills
also
8. Complete remaining EPC Allow assessment of | 2026 Assets/Facilities Corporate
surveys for all Council sites in | sites and determine if Priority
the commercial portfolio and | any insulation work is Environment
assess against the required to reduce Plan and
requirements of the energy use Recovery
Minimum Energy Efficiency Plan
Standards
9. Produce as much energy All opportunities for | 2028 Initially CCT Public Sector Greener Solar PV now on all
locally through renewable renewables in Decarbonisati | Futures 3 main operational
resources Spelthorne explored on Fund Delivery Plan | buildings
and developed where action point
feasible including (41)
solar and geothermal
10. | Consider approaches to Reduce Scope 3 2026 Assets/CCT Public Sector
decarbonising buildings emissions Low Carbon
owned by Spelthorne but Skills Fund
leased to others
11. | Although Spelthorne does Work with Knowle 2027 Housing/CCO/ Social Housing

not own any council housing,
the Council will work with
Knowle Green Estate and
suppliers to promote
retrofit, insulation, energy

Green Estates and
social housing
providers to reduce
emissions from social
housing through
energy efficiency

Knowle Green
Estates

Decarbonisati
on Fund




efficiency and adaptation
measures

measures and reduce
residents’ bills, whilst
recognising the need
for appropriate
mechanical
ventilation to
maintain indoor air
guality in some
circumstances

Nno ABp |
OooPta

12. | Council decision-making All reports/projects 2022 Corporate Completed
report template to contain across the Council Priority
Sustainability/Climate consider the climate Environment
Change Impact section to change implications Plan
ensure that every new of a future
proposal is aligned with our | report/project and
Climate Emergency work to reduce
commitment impact, this may

require training to
understand the full
impacts

13. | Create new climate change 2021 Group Head First-year Corporate Completed
officer role Transformation salary from Priority

Green Environment
Initiatives Plan
Fund

14. | Deliver climate change Work with Hubbub to | By end of Ccco GIF Corporate Design being
communications to residents | create 2022 Priority finalised with

communications Environment | Hubbub

regarding climate
change, to raise

Plan




awareness and help
educate residents
about the issues

T0O "B 1

15. | Create a dedicated digital Demonstrate that By Q3 of CCO/SO/Comms
space to share knowledge, SBC is tackling 2023 team/ICT
information and tools on the | climate changeis a
climate and ecological key issue for SBC and
emergency allow easy access to
resources for staff
and residents
16. | Develop a green event Allow SBC to 2023 Procurement/CCO
checklist for event influence suppliers to
companies and suppliers to reduce emissions and
report their carbon footprint | to choose suppliers
for Spelthorne events who are actively
tackling their
emissions. It will also
feed into SBC Scope 3
emissions reporting
17. | Raise awareness and work to | Reduce the energy Ongoing All staff
ensure all staff reduce usage and emissions
unnecessary emissions from unnecessary
sources such as
leaving equipment on
standby
18. | Develop a policy of serving Reduce emissions 2024 CCT/Committees/ National
only plant-based catering from meat and dairy Secretariat Food
with a priority on local, food, which are Strategy

seasonal sourcing at events
on corporate sites.

significant
contributors of GHG




emissions and
deforestation, and
raise awareness
within the Council
and borough of plant
based diets

20 AP 1

including, staff homeworking
to reduce travel and

travel and
highlighting to staff

Environment
Plan,

Key Action Key Task Desired Outcome Target Owner Funding (if Linked Progress
required) strategy
Reduce emissions 19. | Transition the Council fleet Dramatically reduce 2029 Neighbours Top up from Corporate 2 EV pool cars, 2 EV
from transport to electric. The Council is the Council’s Services/CCT GIF Priority vans, 2 EV mopeds
within Spelthorne committed to converting emissions as Environment | are already in fleet
50% of the Council fleet to transport makes up Plan and
electric or hydrogen by 2028 | to 53% of total Recovery
as stated in SBC Climate Council emissions Plan,
JD Emergency Greener
D Futures
p Delivery Plan
8 action point
(39)
20. | Track Council vehicle Understand Early 2024 | Principal Pollution Modelling may | Corporate
mileage to better emissions and air Control Manager/ require budget | Priority
understand the Council’s pollution hot spots Neighbourhood - GIF Environment
carbon and air pollutant and work to reduce Services/CCT Plan, Air
emissions emissions Quality
Management
Area
21. | Promote sustainable Reducing emissions End of CCT/Projects Corporate Hybrid working in
transport with staff from unnecessary 2022 Priority place as well salary

sacrifice schemes
for EVs and bicycles




co ARp 1
co 9vtd

exploring schemes offering more sustainable Greener
Council employees and other | choices Futures
alternatives to flying such as Delivery Plan
Climate Perks action point
(50,51)

22. | Improve EV infrastructure, Develop an EV Strategy - | CCT ORCS and LEVI | Greener On-street EV trial
providing more EV charging charging strategy to Q2 2023 funding for Futures with SCC
points and stations, increase the amount chargepoint, Delivery Plan
dedicated parking bays and chargers in the EST can action point
information to improve borough to promote provide free (39), Health
access throughout Borough and aid the transition help with and
to encourage the uptake of to EVs strategy Wellbeing
electric vehicles Strategy

23. | Deliver EV taxi programme Decrease emissions 2024 Principal Pollution Pilot scheme Greener
to encourage taxi companies | from short journeys Control funding from Futures
and drivers to invest in especially around Officer/Licencing/ | DEFRAviaa Delivery Plan
electric fleets schools where taxis SO joint project action point

are frequent with the (20)
Surrey Air
Alliance

24. | Support residents and Promoting the use of | 2025 CCT Corporate

businesses to adopt clean active transport over Priority

vehicles and car-sharing

shorter distances to
reduce car usage in
shorter journeys and
support via relevant
organisations an
increase in public
transport

Environment
Plan




+0 ABP |

25. | Implement the Local Cycling | Increasing 2024 GHCT Surrey Corporate
and Walking Infrastructure opportunities for Infrastructure | Priority
Plan exercise through Fund/GIF Environment
walking and cycling Plan,
and improving air Corporate
quality by reducing Priority
car dependency, Recovery
promoting walking Plan, Health
and cycling as and
alternatives to car Wellbeing
use and improving Strategy
walking and cycling
infrastructure within
the Borough
including developing
opportunities for bike
maintenance and
servicing
26. | Promoting sustainable Providing active Ongoing CCT Corporate Surrey CC's Safer
travel, including actively travel options for Priority Travel Team are
supporting improvements to | residents to access Environment | active in this area
public transport access to Heathrow, a large Plan with a dedicated
Heathrow and sustainable employer, reducing officer who works
travel to school private car emissions on this via the
to airport Surrey Air Alliance
27. | Continue to lobby at a Decrease the large Ongoing MAT/SCC Corporate SBC is active on
national and regional level national and regional Priority HSPG Environment

for the changes that are
needed and on the big
strategic infrastructure

impact of air travel
emissions and

Environment
Plan

Group




decisions such as Heathrow
Airport’s third runway and
changes to the regulation
and operation of UK airspace

associated pollution
in the borough

co AaBp |

Key Action Key Task Desired Outcome Target Owner Funding (if Linked Progress
required) strategy
Reduce the impact of | 28. | Influence and work with Work with and 2027 CCT/Finance/Surre Corporate
the Council’s finance Surrey County Council to influence Surrey y CC Priority
and investments on have a portfolio of County Council to Environment
the planet by having responsible pension divestment from Plan,
responsible investments fossil fuels and Greener
investments climate destructive Futures
0 industries and invest Delivery Plan
D in environmentally action point
g friendly income (49), Health
0 streams and
2 Wellbeing
Strategy
29. | Develop an ESG policy for Divert investment Policy in Finance/CCT
Council investments from fossil fuels and place by
climate destructive end of
industries towards 2022
sustainable applied by
investments 2027
30. | Investigate renewable Have a portfolio of Ongoing CCT GIF for Greener
energy opportunities and opportunities for feasible Futures
investments including the renewable energy studies, PSDS Delivery Plan
potential for solar and wind development ready action point
to go (42)




a0 AR 1

change and develop
integrated guidance on
planning

intervention in future

31. | Sustainable procurement of | Organisational 2025 CCT/Procurement Corporate
goods and services - development and Priority
understand the Council’s training for key lead Recovery
supply chains, contractors officers in Plan Greener
and service commissioning and Futures
providers/stakeholders and procurement, Delivery Plan
specify (when tendering) including training on action point
sustainable practices and low carbon (48)
products within them procurement and
including being responsive to | sustainable policy
climate risks in procurement
32. | Work and partner with other | Maximise any Ongoing CCcT Continue meeting
local authorities, regional funding with SCC CC
bodies and public sector opportunities/project officers to discuss
JD institutions to attract s to reduce emissions different funding
D investment and grant in Spelthorne and options
p funding, using this to share adapt to climate
g knowledge and maximise change
opportunities
Key Action Key Task Desired Outcome Target Owner Funding (if Linked Progress
required) strategy
Creating sustainable | 33. | Adopt the highest possible Encourage more 2024 Building Greener Building Control
development in environmental standards sustainable Control/Planning/ Futures are aware of any
Spelthorne within development developments in Ccco Delivery Plan | updates to building
planning, including standards | Spelthorne and action point | standards
for adaptation to climate reduce the need for (38) regulations and

ensure standards
are rigorously
applied




34,

Develop the first ‘wet and
dry’ Passivhaus accredited
leisure facility in the UK

Deliver a state-of-
the-art facility that
will use 70% less
energy than the
current leisure centre

Q2 2024

Assets/Leisure

Construction has
started on site

10 ZAp 1

35.

Develop a Green
Infrastructure strategy to
support the Local Plan

Directly deliver and
encourage the
implementation of
green infrastructure
for climate risks of
flooding, heat and
water stress.
Including green roofs
and walls,
Sustainable Drainage
schemes (SuDS) and
rainwater harvesting.
Green roofs and walls
could provide carbon
sink opportunities
and reduce ambient
particulate
concentrations

2024

Senior Strategic
Planning
Officer/CCT

Health and
Wellbeing
Strategy,
Corporate
Priority
Environment
Plan

Some consultant
work being carried
out by APSE

36.

Ensure there is a net
increase in biodiversity on all
developments

Have a list of areas
within Spelthorne
where large-scale
and/or off-site
Biodiversity Net Gain
(expected to come

Q12023

Biodiversity
officer/Planning

BNG funding

Environment
al Bill




Q0 AR 1

into force in winter
2023) can take place

and grant funding to develop
sustainable future-proofed
businesses

businesses to
become more
sustainable and
reduce their risk of

37. | Promoting residential Creation of 20- 2028 Planning Greener
development that is minute Futures
sustainably located with neighbourhoods, Delivery Plan
access to existing services where daily services action point
and transport hubs can be accessed (17), Local

within a 20-minute Plan - SP1,
walk SP2 and SP3
and EC3

38. | Implement cool roofs across | Cool roofs will reduce | 2025 CCT/Assets
the Council’s housing and the building
corporate estate where temperature during
appropriate, considering increasingly hotter

JD options for white and green | weather and uses

D roofs less energy for

p cooling

0

0
Key Action Key Task Desired Outcome Target Owner Funding (if Linked Progress

required) strategy
Create a sustainable | 39. | Create a green business Reduce emissions 2023 CCT/Economic Levelling up Corporate
economy within forum for Spelthorne from businesses in Development fund Priority
Spelthorne businesses providing support | Spelthorne and Recovery
through workshops, advice provide support for Plan




o ARp 1

exposure from

climate risks
40. | Encourage major businesses | Demonstrate 2024 CCT/ED Greener
in Spelthorne to be leaders Council’s Futures
in reducing emissions and commitment to Delivery Plan
tackling climate change, and | tackling climate action point
to showcase good practice change while working (32)
with major
businesses to reduce
emissions in the
borough
41. | Continue to promote Allow SMEs funding Ongoing CCT/ED LoCASE Greener
0 LoCASE, which offers grants | to access energy Futures
D to small and medium efficiency measures Delivery Plan
g enterprises (SMEs) for which may have action point
0 energy efficiency measures otherwise not have (10)
D been possible to
reduce emissions
42. | Conduct research with local Provide opportunities | 2024 CCT/ED Corporate
businesses to better for local companies Priority
understand motivations and | to pilot and adopt Environment
barriers to reducing low-carbon solutions Plan
emissions
Key Action Key Task Desired Outcome Target Owner Funding (if Linked Progress
required) strategy
Reduce the waste 43. | Carry out campaigns, An increase in the Ongoing Neighbourhood Greener Awaiting the
produced in the projects, and prototypes to rate of Spelthorne services/CCT Futures outcome of the
Spelthorne and increase recycling rates for recycling rate figures Delivery Plan | National Waste
emissions from target materials, resident to be provided once action point | Strategy from
groups, and locations the National Waste (64), Joint




ne AaBp g

waste — especially Strategy has been Municipal central
food waste published Waste Government
Management
Strategy
44. | Improve recycling in flats An increase in the 2025 Neighbourhood Corporate
and multi occupancies, number of services Priority
especially around food waste | households within Environment
and general contamination the district actively Plan
recycling everything
they can and
improving access to
food waste
collections for more
residential customers
JD 45. | Reduce food waste from Reduction of food 2023 Independent Corporate
D Council operations such as waste from Council Living/CCT Priority
p events and community operations reducing Communities
g centre methane emissions Plan
46. | Support schemes to reduce Surplus food 2024 CCT/Neighbourhoo | GIF Corporate
food waste within the redistributed via d Priority
community and local schemes such as Services/Communit Communities
businesses and redistribute community fridges, y Wellbeing Plan
surplus food reducing methane
emissions and
securing food
reliance
Key Action Key Task Desired Outcome Target Owner Funding (if Linked Progress
required) strategy




Help develop
sustainable
communities in
Spelthorne — where
social,
environmental, and
financial resources
meet current needs
while ensuring that
adequate resources
are available for
future generations

T ABP 1

v
D
D
D
D
s

47. | Continue to promote and Reduce fuel poverty Ongoing CCT LAD3/ Health and Ongoing work with
provide support for residents | in Spelthorne, Sustainable Wellbeing Action Surrey and
to access energy making homes more Warmth/ Strategy, Happy Energy
efficiency/fuel poverty grant | energy efficient and ECO4 Flex Greener
schemes decrease carbon Futures

emissions from Delivery Plan
heating action point
(5)

48. | Enforce minimum energy Improving the energy | 2023 Environmental Corporate
efficiency standards for the efficiency of housing Health Priority
private rented sector in Spelthorne Affordable

reducing the need for Housing Plan
excess energy

49. | Continue to expand the Increasing 2025 GHCT/CCT Greener
walking and cycling networks | opportunities for Futures
across the district and exercise through Delivery Plan
promote active travel and walking and cycling action point
promote 20-minute and improving air (17)
neighbours quality by reducing

car dependency,
promoting walking
and cycling as
alternatives to car
use and improving
walking and cycling
infrastructure within
the Borough

50. | Engage with the charity and | Continue to work Ongoing CCT/Pollution Greener
voluntary sector to align with organisations Control Futures

efforts on tackling the

such as Talking Tree

Delivery Plan




tackled together,
protecting and
restoring healthy
ecosystems which
can help mitigate

that contribute to tackling
the ecological emergency,
nature-based solutions, and
habitat restoration, restoring
and protecting nature,
managing our land to

management
practices in open
spaces for example
increase wildflower
planting and
composting and

officer/Parks team

climate emergency and to tackle the climate action point
improving air quality emergency and (23)
Global Action Plan to
promote Clean Air
Day
51. | Work with social housing Encourage social Ongoing CCT/Housing Social Housing | Corporate
providers to accelerate low housing providers to Decarbonisati | Priority
carbon measures for social undertake energy on Fund Affordable
housing efficiency measures — Housing Plan
reducing emissions
52. | Promote access to grant Create opportunities | Ongoing CCT Solar Together | Greener Continue to
funding for renewable for residents to Futures promote Solar
energy installations for install renewable Delivery Plan | Together
residents including Solar energy and reduce action point
;JD Together the demand for fossil (5)
« fuels
Key Action Key Task Desired Outcome Target Owner Funding (if Linked Progress
ﬁ% required) strategy
Protecting 53. | Protect existing habitat and Ensure at least 10% 2023 Biodiversity officer/ Corporate
biodiversity in increase targeted habitatto | of SBC’s open space Neighbourhood Priority
Spelthorne. support biodiversity portfolio is long grass Services Environment
Biodiversity loss recovery in open spaces or similarly “wild” Plan
and climate habitat
change must be 54. | Develop a range of projects Create sustainable 2024 CCO/Biodiversity




o ARp 1
cb9vta

and adapt to climate provide greater biodiversity | reduce the use of
change to encourage wildlife and fertilisers and

insect populations chemicals which have
a large global
warming potential

55. | Promote the inclusion of New developments 2026 Planning/CCT/
trees in the built to incorporate Biodiversity officer
environment to mitigate the | roadside and garden
localised urban heat island tree planting with
effect by providing shade species selected for
and cooling ecosystem their environmental
services and biodiversity
benefits
56. | Compile a list and assess the | Improving the carbon | 2023 CCT/Biodiversity GIF
current carbon sinks within sequestering ability officer
the borough, and develop a of the borough
plan to protect, support and
improve these sinks
57. | Incorporate an appreciation | Review planting 2024 CCO/Biodiversity Corporate
of climate change risks and schemes to reduce officer/Parks team Priority
opportunities within open the use of short-term Environment
space management planning | plants and trees Plan
chosen for

appearances and
promote the use of
plants and trees with
greater climate
adaptation resilience
and biodiversity
benefits, particularly




for bees, moths,
butterflies and other

=0 ABp

pollinators
Promote and develop Provide quick-win 2023 Biodiversity officer
greening resources for incentives for
residents to encourage residents to plant
greater biodiversity and biodiversity-friendly
‘green the grey’ in private species, such as
spaces distributing seeds
and bulbs
Work with partners such as Develop Ongoing CCO/Biodiversity GIF Priority SBC recently re-
Colne Valley Trust to deliver | opportunities to officer Environment | joined Colne Valley
biodiversity and climate create carbon sink Plan Partnership
change projects initiatives within the

Borough, including
landscaping,
retaining and
expanding existing
woodland, and more
tree planting

Work with local community Encourage the Ongoing Biodiversity officer Priority
organisations to develop and | creation of “Friends Environment
promote opportunities for of...” groups Plan

residents to learn about the | engagement and
borough’s biodiversity more | awareness of
widely biodiversity in the
borough




oo AaBp g

61. | Conserving urban open Promote grassland 2023 CCT/Biodiversity Priority
spaces and green habitat diversity and officer Environment
infrastructure which are a support the Plan
contributor to managing connectivity of
surface water run-off, pollinator habitats
holding floodwaters, and while protecting soil,
reducing soil erosion a large carbon sink,

from erosion

62. | Embed natural capital and Encourage new 2026 Planning/CCT/ Greener
land use opportunities developments to Biodiversity officer Futures
designed to sequester have a positive Delivery Plan
increased carbon emissions climate and action point
into all appropriate biodiversity impact (68), Local
infrastructure and Plan E1
development schemes,
countryside estate
management plans and land
management policies

63. | Return Sweeps Ditchto a Reduce the energy 2027 SO/Biodiversity
gravity fed stream use and emissions Officer/

from running the
Sweeps Ditch pump
24/7
64. | Provide a home for wildlife Increase of 2023 Biodiversity officer

around Council assets,
through wildlife friendly
planting and the provision of
items such as bat and bird
boxes and insect hotels

biodiversity around
Council assets,
demonstrating the
Council’s
commitment to
improving




ac ABp 1

biodiversity in the
area and leading by
example

Key Action Key Task Desired Outcome Target Owner Funding (if Linked Progress
required) strategy
Adaptation — plan 65. | Continue to work with Protect Spelthorne Ongoing - | GHCT Capital Corporate
for the changes in partners on the River from future flooding | work to be commitment Priority
the climate including Thames Scheme Working completed currently of Environment
flooding, drought, with the Environment in 2029 £1.3m Plan, Risk
and hotter Agency and other partners Register
temperatures to deliver the River Thames
(Flood Relief) Scheme and
other flood mitigation
initiatives
JD 66. | Work with Surrey County Prepare for risks from | 2023 Ccco Greener CCO on SCC
D Council to develop a Climate | climate change Futures working group
p Change Adaptation and including heatwaves, Delivery Plan | feeding into
g Resilience Plan droughts, flooding, action point | Adaptation plan
supply chain (66)
disruption, invasive
species
67. | Work with social care, Ensure that buildings | 2025 CCT/Family Corporate
education and children’s are suitable for rising Support Team Priority
services providers on future | temperatures and Communities
impacts on vulnerable adults | are protected during Plan
and children heatwaves
68. | Communicate climate risks Help residents Ongoing CCT/Comms Risk Register

including flood, heat, fire,
and drought to residents and

understand the risks
of climate change,
what they can do to




explain the actions they can
take

reduce the risks and
how to protect
themselves

10 ARP 1

69. | Maintain and build on food Surplus food 2024 CCT/ Corporate
resilience and networks redistributed via Neighbourhood Priority
developed in response to schemes such as Services/ Communities
Covid-19, to ensure effective | community fridges, Community Plan
redistribution of food when reducing methane Wellbeing
needed emissions and

securing food
reliance

70. | Deliver where feasible, Increase grey-water 2028 Planning/CCT Local Plan
circular water systems that storage
reuse grey water in new infrastructure
development, and integrated | capacity year on year
water management
strategies (IWMS) in large-
scale developments

71. | Continue to achieve Trial incentives for 2025 Planning/CCT Local Plan E3
sustainable flood mitigations | private driveways to
for surface water flooding be converted to
from new development green space for

ecological gain

72. | Encourage the retrofitting of | Decrease the heat 2027 ccT Corporate

cool roofs by residents and island effect in the Priority

businesses, targeting areas
with strong urban heat
island effects tree and shrub
planting where appropriate

borough and the heat
vulnerability

Environment
Plan




to provide shelter from
extreme weather

g6 abed




Agenda Item 9

Environment and Sustainability CommitteeA

SPELTHORNE

Date of meeting 5 September 2022 BOROUGH COUNCIL

Title

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP)

Purpose of the report

To note Phase 1 LCWIP report
Agree to move to Phase 2

Report Author

Sandy Muirhead Group Head Commissioning and Transformation

Ward(s) Affected

All Wards

Exempt No
Exemption Reason
Corporate Priority Community

Environment

Recommendations

Committee is asked to:

e Note the Phase 1 LCWIP report

e To agree moving to Phase 2 to further define schemes
for cycling and walking within the Borough of
Spelthorne at a cost of £175k

Reason for
Recommendation

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans provide
residents with the opportunity to use safe routes for cycling
and walking with associated climate change and health
benefits. Therefore, it is important for the Council to seek
opportunities for introducing safe routes via best practice
plans.

Summary of the report

1.1  This report seeks to inform members of the outcomes of the Phase 1
feasibility study for the Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP)
(Appendix 1). The work was undertaken to identify potential routes in
Spelthorne for improved cycling and walking facilities.

1.2 LCWIPs are blueprints to increase walking and cycling routes. They have
benefits in terms of modal shift, health, and well-being of residents especially
in helping to reducing the impacts of climate change but also contributing to
health and wellbeing. This report is for noting the results of the feasibility

Page 99




1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

study and agreeing progression to the next phase for which monies were
agreed to be allocated to Phase 2 in May 2021. To note: -

LCWIPs form part of DfT’s current investment strategy for cycling and walking
to help deliver the Government’s aim of doubling cycling by 2025

LCWIPs are a new, strategic approach to identifying cycling and walking
improvements required at the local level

Best practice evidence-led method for local authorities to plan both cycling
and walking infrastructure.

Plans enable a long-term approach to developing local cycling and walking
networks, ideally over a 10-year period

Key outputs from an LCWIP plan are: -

e A prioritised network plan for walking and cycling preferred routes and
core zones for further development

e A prioritised programme of infrastructure improvements for future
investment

e To make the case for future funding for walking and cycling
infrastructure

The report in Appendix 1 delivers the above with suggested routes identified
for focus in Phase 2.

Key issues

A report went to Cabinet in May 2021
https://democracy.spelthorne.gov.uk/documents/s34408/LCWIPreportv3%202
9042021%20Cabinet.pdf and it was agreed to undertake the LCWIP, paying
£20k towards a Phase 1 feasibility study, results of which are in Appendix 1,
and £175k towards Phase 2. It was agreed a potential second phase would
be funded from Spelthorne’s Surrey Infrastructure Feasibility Study Fund.

The work on Phase 1 was undertaken by consultants specialising in this field
and details of the methodology used are given in the report (Appendix 1). The
work involved on the ground assessments, consultation with residents and
key groups e.g., cycling. Both key groups and Councillors were invited to
workshops to discuss potential routes and in Ashford Councillors met the
team undertaking the work. Strategic planning and other officers have been
involved in the development of the work and relevant officers across the
Council consulted and kept informed.

The LCWIP ties into some wider issues including the Wider Staines Transport
Package and leisure proposals for the River Thames scheme which includes
walking and cycling routes so providing health and well-being benefits as well
as reducing car use which helps with emission reductions.

Page 100


https://democracy.spelthorne.gov.uk/documents/s34408/LWCIPreportv3%2029042021%20Cabinet.pdf
https://democracy.spelthorne.gov.uk/documents/s34408/LWCIPreportv3%2029042021%20Cabinet.pdf

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1
3.2

3.3
3.4
3.5

3.6

3.7

A summary of key findings on cycling is found from Pages 100 to 113 and for
walking from pages 133 to 143 of the report. As a result of the study 5 cycle
routes and 3 walking routes were identified for further development as
covered in Chapter 9. The routes selected were prioritised by quantifying a
total score based on stakeholder input, potential usage, design, and access.

The study has alluded to the Local Plan and River Thames scheme in its
analysis but also the climate change and health and well-being strategies with
priorities to reducing emissions in an air quality management area. However,
consideration still needs to be given as to whether the schemes suggested
are likely to provide the most benefit to the Borough.

If schemes are developed under a Phase 2 programme this can be of benefit
so that should opportunities arise for funding the projects proposed, they are
in a state ready to submit. This can be of value given many Government
scheme applications have short deadlines.

It should be noted the costs provided in the report or cycling and walking
improvements are only indicative of future costs.

Options analysis and proposal
Option one

To consider the attached Phase 1 feasibility report and consider the routes
proposed to move to a more detailed analysis (Phase 2) including
assessment of scheme costs as proposed in section 9 of the report (Appendix
1). This will enable the Council to investigate those options which will help
deliver the broad aspirations in the Council Corporate Plan and would align
with policies with in the emerging Local Plan, the recently adopted Health and
Wellbeing Strategy and the proposed Climate Change Strategy (which is
being considered elsewhere on this agenda).

This is the preferred option
Option two

The committee could decide that having read the phase one LCWIP report
(attached) that they do not wish to progress and commit any further monies
for phase 2. Not to move forward to the next stage restricts the Borough'’s
ability to address climate change and provide safer routes to encourage
cycling and walking with associated health and wellbeing benefits. This would
be at odds with all the strategies referred to above. If this option is agreed
then the Council would need to consider how it wishes to spend the allocated
money (E175k) from the Spelthorne Surrey Infrastructure Fund (e.g. on
different infrastructure project(s).

This is not recommended.
Option three

The committee could decide that whilst they agree with the principles set out
in the phase one report, that they wish to amend or re-prioritise those
project’s which have been highlighted to move forwards to the next stage.
This would delay the rollout of phase 2 by a significant period of time.
Spelthorne has been prioritised by SCC in terms of its LCWIP work as a result

Page 101



3.8

4.2

4.3

4.4

of the opportunities that arise from the widening of the Lower Thames. Any
delays would put this at risk.

This is not recommended,

Financial implications

The first phase feasibility study for the LCWIP was funded from the Green
Initiatives Fund. The original Cabinet report in May 2021 proposed the
second phase of £175k was funded from the Spelthorne’s Surrey
Infrastructure Feasibility Fund.

The Council has committed to the Surrey Infrastructure Feasibility Fund
system and ring fenced £210Kk. It is a one-off sum, not a rolling commitment.
With the find to be topped up by SCC and EM3 The fund has a gearing ratio
of 1:0.86. For every £1 which Spelthorne Borough Council invest in the fund
the Council will receive £1.86 for scheme development due to investment
from Surrey County Council and Enterprise M3 LEP (EM3). In total this should
equate to £390k of funds.

Phase 2 may identify schemes requiring investment, which could cost overall
a minimum £7-8M, ranging up to a maximum of £20M over the 10-year life of
the plan. There is an expectation that Spelthorne would need to contribute
capital match funding in the order of £2m to 5m. This assumes that
Spelthorne contribute 25%, the County contribute 25% and the remaining
50% comes from central government grants. The 50/50 split between central
and local government is standard on all capital development projects
However, the Council needs to be aware that if we look for funding from the
Levelling Up Fund there is a risk that the funding from Central Government
could be as low as 25%, and we and Surrey would be expected to fund the
remainder. In that case, the worst-case scenario if we were to commit fully to
a programme costing £20m. would be £7.5m. It is worth bearing in mind
however that the LWCIP will be deliberately designed so that it can be
‘chunked’ up into smaller elements so that Councils can prioritise their spend
if they cannot commit to the whole plan

So, the actual amounts will depend on the scale and number of schemes
identified by the feasibility study and until the initial work is complete the
overall potential cost can only be indicative. Moving to Phase 2 will assist in
defining costs of individual schemes and therefore likely future costs to the
Council.

Risk considerations

The key risks relate to not moving forward with Phase 2 as it would prevent us
from addressing climate change and providing health benefits to Borough
residents by providing safe alternative routes to using the car. There are
potential longer term risks related to capital spend for projects on the ground
but until costs are known in detail this risk cannot be fully assessed.

Legal considerations

There will be a need for agreements and contracts in due course if we move
forward to Phase 2 and subsequent projects.

Other considerations

Page 102



7.1

10.
10.1

11.
111

Within Phase 2 there will further consultation with Councillors and residents.
Any walking and cycling opportunities would provide benefits to all residents
through providing a safer environment for all residents to walk or cycle.
Funding of schemes also needs to be monitored to ensure their development
is not to the detriment of ongoing maintenance of the highway and also that
highways funds are available to maintain any new routes.

Equality and Diversity

Schemes developed under the LWCIP programme would have to undertake
an equality and diversity impact assessment to ensure they are not
discriminatory.

Sustainability/Climate Change Implications

The proposal by encouraging walking and cycling reduces the use of cars
thus improving air quality and walking and cycling helps improve health, both
physical and mental.

Timetable for implementation

Detailed timetable to be agreed with Surrey County Council if agreed to move
forward on Phase 2.

Contact
Sandy Muirhead Group Head Commissioning and Transformation.

Background papers: There are none.

Appendices:
Appendix 1 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan Phase 1

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



D), ATKINS

SNC ’LAVALIN Member of the SNC-Lavalin Group

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking
Infrastructure Plan

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL & SPELTHORNE BOROUGH COUNCIL
11 March 2022

SURREY SPELTHORNE

COUNTY COUNC|L. BOROUGH COUNCIL




90T abed

Atkins Job Number: 5206264

Document Reference: Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Printing | A4 Double Sided

Revision | Purpose Description Originated | Checked Reviewed Authorised | Date

01 For client review AR/GC BC/TK BC SJ 21/12/21
02 Updated per client comments AR/GC BC BC SJ 21/01/22
03 Updated cost estimates and prioritisation AR/GC BC BC SJ 04/02/22
04 Updated Introduction and Conclusions sections AR/GC BC BC BC 11/03/22
05




/0T abed

Contents

1. EXECULIVE SUMIMIAIY oottt 05
2. INErOAUCTION i 13
3. Previous STUdIES ... 21
4. Evidence Base / Background Data ... 37
5. Stakeholder ENGagement ... 73
6. Design Interventions: Place-Based Approach.......ciiniiinsseennns 77
7. CYCLE NETWOIK oottt 85
8. WaLKiNG NEEWOIK....c.ciiiiieieisiees e 115
9. Route Prioritisation, Costings and Funding Opportunities........cccccvvvnvnnninnnn, 145
10. CONCLUSIONS ittt 157
11, APPENTICES vttt 161
Disclaimer

This document and its contents have been prepared and are intended solely for Surrey County
Council and Spelthorne Borough Council information and use in relation to Spelthorne Local Cycling
and Walking Infrastructure Plan.

Atkins assumes no responsibility to any other party in respect of or arising out of or in connection
with this document and/or its contents.
Copyright

The copyright of this document is vested in Atkins. This document may not be reproduced in whole
or in part without their express written permission.






1. Executive Summary




OTT obed

Executive Summary

Atkins has been commissioned by Surrey
County Council (SCC) and Spelthorne Borough
Council (SBC) to develop a Local Cycling

and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) for
the Borough.

An LCWIP is a key transport planning document
that has been defined by the Department for
Transport (DfT), which aims to support recent
uptakes in the active travel modes of walking
and cycling by delivering improved facilities for
existing active users whilst also encouraging a
mode shift for new users.

The SBC LCWIP has considered the full extent
of the Borough of Spelthorne, with an emphasis
on links between key trip attractors and
destinations that will encourage a greater mode
share for the active travel modes of walking
and cycling.

The key outputs for an LCWIP are network
plans for key walking and cycle corridors and

a prioritised programme of infrastructure
improvements at concept design stage. Once
funding opportunities are secured, the proposed
improvements can progress to preliminary and
detail design phases for implementation.

Additionally, key active travel principles

have been included to inform appropriate
consideration and future-proofing of future
schemes and developments within the Borough.

The primary objective for the LCWIP is to
increase the number of people walking and
cycling in the Borough. This includes aims to:

» Make cycling a safe, attractive and
convenient mode of transport for people of
all ages, and confidence.

» Expand the existing cycle network and
establish an extensive, continuous travel
network for the Borough.

» Make walking a safe, attractive and
convenient mode of transport for people of
all ages and abilities / disabilities.

» Increase inter mobility with improved
connectivity in the areas around transport
and major employment hubs such as
railway stations and high streets, as well as
other key destinations.

» Make Spelthorne an area where people
can have an excellent quality of life,
supporting the population, social and
economical aspirations.

Further, as discussed later in the report,
Spelthorne is one of a number of LCWIPs being
developed in Surrey, some borough wide and
some town wide. It is paramount that there is
effective coordination between them so that a
continuous network of cycle routes (as well as
walking routes) is developed across Surrey.

Methodology

In order to meet the objectives of the LCWIP,
the project was divided into key tasks identified
below and presented within Figure 1.

Further information on each activity is

presented within Section 1: Introduction (see
page 20) and the structure of the report has
been developed to align with these activities.

» Review of previous studies, strategies
and guidance

» Background data analysis
»  Draft active travel network development

»  Stakeholder engagement to refine the draft
proposed network

»  Preliminary corridor assessments
undertaken using a multi-criteria
assessment framework (MCAF)

»  Site visits and formal assessments using
standardised tools - Walking Route Audit
Tool (WRAT) and Route Selection Tool (RST)

» Concept design development

»  Further stakeholder engagement to review
the concept designs

» Programme prioritisation and
cost estimating

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



TTT obed

Review of policies and
previous studies

Background data
analysis

Development of
draft active travel
networks and
stage 1 stakeholder
workshops

Active travel
network refinement
and prioritisation of

‘Phase 1' routes

Route audits using
WRAT and RST

Development
of proposed
intervention
measures and
stage 2 stakeholder
workshops

Programme
prioritisation and
outline costs

LCWIP Report

Figure 1. LCWIP process overview

Refinement of
proposed interventions

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Vision and Design Approach

The overarching vision behind the LCWIP
development is one which supports strong and
sustainable growth for Spelthorne. This is also
balanced with the need to enhance the public
realm where people can benefit from a high
quality of life.

The concept designs seek to increase the
number of people walking and cycling for short
journeys or part of a longer journey, which will
lead to a reduction in short car journeys. This

is important to promote health and well-being,
reduce congestion and pollution, provide
inclusive travel options, improve the economic
vitality of the Borough whilst also balancing the
needs of the historic environment.

Good design is vital to the successful delivery
of facilities for both people walking and cycling.
It is recognised that poor design can undermine
the efforts of those who seek to encourage
walking and cycling and may weaken the
intended benefits of a scheme.

The LCWIP design strategy aims to address
these issues with the development of
deliverable and attractive borough-wide walking
and cycling infrastructure that prioritises
people walking and cycling. To support that,

a work package that incorporates design best
practice through nine key elements has been
developed, as follows:

»  Safety

» Directness

» Comfort

» Coherence

» Attractiveness

»  Adaptability

» Gradient

» Context Sensitive

» Inclusive Design

Stakeholder Consultation

Stakeholder engagement was a key element

of this study as it ensured that the views

and knowledge of local people were taken

into account. During the project two sets of
workshops were held with representatives from
SCC and SBC, local cycling and walking groups,
local businesses and other local stakeholder
groups as well as elected members.

The first set of workshops presented the
existing issues and the identification of walking
and cycle routes. The second set of workshops
reviewed the proposed infrastructure
interventions.

There were also interim meetings with SCC and
SBC project team.



ZTT obed

Walking and Cycle Routes Selection

Working with SCC and SBC, key findings

from the review of previous studies and data
analysis, and stakeholder engagement sessions
were used to inform the walking and cycling
route selection process.

The assessment framework involved two
stages. Firstly, a ‘long-Llist’ assessment using
both qualitative and quantitative criteria to
reduce the number of options down to 19 cycle
routes and 12 Core Walking Zones (CWZs) and
respective walking routes (Figure 2).

Following, a further assessment to evaluate
these options in more detail (including
stakeholder consultation, audits, site visits
and further engagement with SCC and SBC
officers), the second stage involved developing
a ‘short list' of options. These routes, named
Phase 1 routes, were selected for the
development of infrastructure improvements:

» Cycle routes: five routes were selected for the
development of infrastructure improvements
(Figure 3 and Figure 4).

» Walking routes: three CWZs were selected for
the development of infrastructure improvements
(Figure 3 and Figure 5).

Routes not selected for the first set of
interventions (Phase 1) are to be developed at a
later stage.

As the project developed, it became more
evident that there are interdependencies
between the walking and cycle routes.
These interdependencies are reflected in the

route prioritisation, costing and intervention
approach.

Proposed Improvements

The design proposals for both walking and
cycle routes reflect the aims of SCC and SBC.

In Spelthorne, there are several examples of
physical severance. A lack of, or inadequate
routes, can cause residents and visitors to rely
on private transport, thus over stretching the
already congested road network. ‘Fragmented’
retail areas could be better linked to foster
economic and social vitality and cohesion in the
area, supporting places where people would
like to spend time.

Atkins' design strategy addressed these issues
with the development of a local cycling and
walking infrastructure plan that is innovative,
future proofed, and deliverable, creating

a network that truly prioritises pedestrian

and cyclist movement and at the same

time integrates with other adjacent areas

and schemes.

To support that, Atkins have developed a

work package that incorporates design best
practice through nine key elements discussed
previously, providing short and long term
solutions that can be applied to further designs
across Spelthorne and Surrey overall.

Route Prioritisation

The pedestrian and cycle routes were
prioritised by quantifying a total score based on
stakeholder input, potential usage, design and
access. These categories intended to reflect
the views of local stakeholders, in addition to
the potential usage of each route, the feasibility
of the proposed schemes, the potential of the
improvements to encourage new walking and
cycling and to what degree the selected routes
will foster pedestrian and cycle access to and
from the key destinations as set in the scope of
work.

The categories were subsequently weighted.
The weightings were intended to give a slightly
higher input to the design factors, as proposed
interventions with a greater anticipated impact
over the existing condition could support a more
substantial uplift in walking and cycling.

Integrate network proposals across other
LCWIPs and key developments

There are numerous interdependencies across
Surrey and potentially other counties.

LCWIPs in neighbouring boroughs, such as
Elmbridge and Runnymede, were taken into
consideration during the development of the
Spelthorne LCWIP. This method has provided an
opportunity for a joined-up approach amongst
the three study areas. The sub-regional
collaboration should ensure that walking and
cycling networks are coherent and continuous
across administrative boundaries.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



cTT obed

Other LCWIPs are or will be under development
in the near future! and a continuous synergy
amongst all LCWIPs should be expected.
Proposals from each should be reviewed
together as an integrated package of strategies
and interventions. This will allow potential
synergies and interdependencies to be
identified, potential competing needs to be
resolved, and design proposals to be refined to
ensure a cohesive overarching strategy.

Likewise, it is paramount that the proposed
cycle and walking routes and major
development is the area are connected. The
River Thames Scheme(RTS) is an example.

The RTS provides an opportunity to create
green spaces and enhance walking and cycling
facilities along the River Thames, and the
potential for longer distance utility trips linking
with and Spelthorne and Runnymede as well as
Elmbridge.

Costing

Outline costs were estimated for the proposed
design measures. These estimates are
reflective of the early concept design stage
and are intended to provide an indicative,
rough order-of-magnitude, cost. The figures
also reflect the diversity of route intervention
proposals, which varied significantly in terms
of size and complexity. Costs vary from 2.5
million to 11.9 million for the cycle routes and
from 3.1 million to 4.6 million for the CWZ/
walking routes.

1 Mole Vale, Waverley and Surrey Heath. Reigate and Banstead
has just been completed.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

The costs for each route and mode (walking
and cycling) were evaluated separately. This
method provided a stand alone cost for each
route and allows the proposals to be considered
independently. However, if viewed as a
network-wide package of improvements, there
is an opportunity for considerable savings.

Next Steps and Funding Opportunities

The LCWIP report should be used to support
the case for further stages of design,
assessment and stakeholder engagement and
to secure funding to progress improvements
for the corridors identified. As an LCWIP is
intended to facilitate a long-term approach to
developing active travel proposals over a period
of approximately 10 years, all of the corridors
identified within the active travel network maps
are recommended for further consideration

at an appropriate time in the life of the LCWIP
implementation. The LCWIP outputs will be
integrated into local planning and transport
policies, strategies and delivery plans, as per
the DfT guidance.

The next stage of the LCWIP implementation
will be to advance the design concepts for
the first phase of active travel corridors to a
feasibility level of design and assessment.
During this process, and subsequent design
phases, public engagement will continue to
be a key element of developing high-quality
and attractive routes for local users. The
progression of these schemes, either as a work
package or individual schemes, will likely be
subject to external factors such as funding

applications or potential inter-dependencies
with other proposals within the local area.

The LCWIP should be reviewed and updated
periodically, particularly in response to
significant changes in local circumstances, such
as the publication of new policies or strategies.
However, engagement with SCC and SBC has
been undertaken during the development of the
LCWIP to provide alignment and future-proofing
with regards to key transport and local policies.
Additional active travel opportunities may also
be identified and incorporated into the LCWIP

in response to major new development sites,
and as walking and cycling networks mature
and expand.

Once funding opportunities are secured,

the proposed improvements can progress

to preliminary and detail design phases

for implementation. There are a number

of potential sources of funding available to
deliver improvements identified in a LCWIP?
including Integrated Transport and Maintenance
Block Funding, government grants, developer
funding as well as surplus parking income and
Local Economic Partnership (LEP) and / or
internal funding.

2 Although not all the listed opportunities may be applicable to
this LCWIP.



Walking and Cycle Routes

Figures 2 to 5 illustrate the walking and cycling network aspirational list
and the selected routes for Phase 1 design interventions.

ﬁ Heatrow Core Walking Zones ﬁ | Hayesand Heatrow I core Walking Zones
Winsder — Fhiasey Winsdor w— Walking Corridors
' | Phase2 — Cycle Corridors
E . Phi =77 Staines Development
.| Fhase3 tee o Framework
Walking Corridors [ pistrict/Borough boundary
‘— Phase 1 X
« Phase 2
Cycle Corridors.
w— Phase 1
w— Phase 2
=== Phase3
©="7 Staines Development
*===" Framework

yTT abed

0 1
L E— Contains OS data © Crown copyright 3021 [ S

Figure 2. Cycling and walking network aspirational list Figure 3. Phase 1 cycling and walking network

Contains OS data © Crown copyright 2011

10 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



ﬁ J / Hayes and Heatrow — Cycle Comidors

Harlington Alrport | r==" Staines Development
Winsdor ; | == Framework

[ District/Berough boundary |

GTT abed

o 1 2 km
[ E—

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 4. Phase 1 cycle network

]
[ —

Figure 5. Phase 1 walking network

| w—Walking Corridors

B core Walking Zones

77" Staimes Development
*===" Framework

[ District/Borough boundary

Contains OS data © Crown copyright 101

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

11






2. Introduction

Approach
Design Vision

10 Good Reasons to Invest in Active Travel
Report Structure




gTT abed

Approach

Atkins has been commissioned by Surrey
County Council (SCC) to develop a Local
Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan
(LCWIP) for Spelthorne Borough Council
(SBC). The geographic scope is the entirety
of the Borough, as shown in Figure 6.

The study approach follows Department for
Transport (DfT) guidance for an LCWIP, the
core outputs of which are:

» Network plans for walking and cycling
which identify the preferred routes for
further development.

» Prioritised programme for improvements for
future investment.

» LCWIP report that sets out the underlying
analysis carried out and provides a narrative
which supports the identified improvements
and network.!

The proposed measures identified in the
LCWIP are also intended to complement
existing plans and networks for active
travel, as well as align with adopted policy.

1 Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure plan,
Technical Guidance for Local Authorities, DfT
(2017).

14

The LCWIP aims to support the following
key objectives:

» Increase the number of people walking
and cycling in the Borough and support
modal shift, particularly for short
utilitarian journeys.

» Make walking and cycling safe, attractive
and convenient modes of transport
for people of all ages, abilities and
confidence levels.

» Expand the existing cycle network and
not only establish a comprehensive active
travel network in Spelthorne but also in
adjacent areas.

» Enhance accessibility by walking and
cycling to key destinations for all users.

Methodology

In order to meet the objectives of the
LCWIP, the project was divided into the
following main tasks.

1. Previous Studies Review: Atkins reviewed
previous studies related to walking and
cycling in Spelthorne as well as design
proposals for key schemes as detailed in
the scope of work.

Slough Beaconsfield Co Const Ealing, Southall
Hayes and Harlington
Winctsor Cos Const
—
\"”1_,-—-— Haathrow
‘\\ Airport
N Brentford and lsleworth

Feltham and Hestan

Elmibridge

0 1 2 km

Figure 6. Study area

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



6TT obed

Data Analysis: Atkins also analysed a number
of spatial and behaviour datasets such as key
destinations, pedestrian and cyclist activity
and local networks, traffic and collision data,
key barriers and severance, online public
comments, and Census data.

Development of Draft Networks: Draft
network maps for key cycling routes and core
walking zones were developed based on the
findings from the review of previous studies
and data analysis. These draft maps were
subsequently refined through engagement
with both internal (SCC and SBC officers) and
external stakeholder groups, as well as local
elected officials. Early engagement in the
preparation of this LCWIP has ensured that
local knowledge was incorporated into the
development of proposals.

Network Refinement and Prioritisation:
Following the refinement of the active travel
network maps, a multi-criteria assessment
framework (MCAF) was undertaken to identify
and prioritise the top five scoring corridors for
cycling and top three scoring walking zones.
These were identified as the ‘Phase 1' elements
of the active travel networks for advancement
through the remainder of the LCWIP process.
The MCAF considered each of the individual
corridors against a number of metrics, such as:
active travel demand, the potential to deliver a
high-quality and inclusive route, safety issues
that could be addressed, and connections to
other active travel routes.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Audits and Site Visits: Following the
identification of the Phase 1 cycle corridors

and walking zones, site visits were undertaken
to audit the existing condition and identify
opportunities for improvements. The audits
utilised the DfT audit tools for an LCWIP, known
as the Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT) and
Route Selection Tool (RST). These tools are
used to audit routes against key metrics for
active travel measures such as directness,
comfort, and safety.

Draft Proposed Interventions: The route

audits noted above were subsequently used to
inform the development of concept proposals
for each of the Phase 1 corridors and areas.
This process also benefited from the early
stakeholder engagement undertaken in Task 3
and the issues identified within the initial data
analysis.

A second round of stakeholder engagement
was undertaken to review the draft concept
proposals. This provided an opportunity

for stakeholders to feed into the concept
development process by providing feedback on
the types of interventions being proposed, key
additional opportunities for improvements, as
well as issues to consider during the further
development of the proposals in the next phase
(feasibility).

Concept Refinement, Costings, and
Prioritisation Programme: The feedback from
the stakeholder engagement process was
subsequently reviewed to identify opportunities
to improve upon the draft concept proposals
and also ensure that all feedback was captured

for taking forward into the feasibility phase.
After refining the concept proposals, the final
activities within the LCWIP study included
additional WRAT and RST assessments to
review the potential quality of the routes
following the proposed interventions. High level
cost and programme estimates reflective of the
early concept design stage were also prepared.
LCWIP Report: Outputs of the above tasks were
compiled to form this LCWIP report.

Sustrans and Peer Review

Sustrans has contributed to the development

of the LCWIP, acting as a ‘critical friend" and
peer reviewer of activities. These activities were
undertaken at key project milestones including
the following:

»

»

»

»

Review of the approach and

methodology, particularly with regards to
stakeholder engagement.

Review of the initial proposed cycle network
and walking zones including a check and review
against guidance.

Audit of a corridor to benchmark and quality
assure against Atkins own quality assurance
process, refer to Appendix 6 at the end of

this report.

Review of the first draft LCWIP report including
recommendations commensurate with LTN
1/20 guidance.

15



02T obed

Next Steps

The LCWIP report should be used to support
the case for further stages of design,
assessment and stakeholder engagement

and secure funding to progress improvements
for the corridors identified. As an LCWIP is
intended to facilitate a long-term approach to
developing active travel proposals over a period
of approximately 10 years, all of the corridors
identified within the active travel network maps
are recommended for further consideration

at an appropriate time in the life of the LCWIP
implementation. The LCWIP outputs will be
integrated into local planning and transport
policies, strategies and delivery plans, as per
the DfT guidance.

The next stage of the LCWIP implementation
will be to advance the design concepts for the
‘Phase 1’ active travel corridors to a feasibility
level of design and assessment. During this
process, and subsequent design phases,
stakeholder engagement will continue to

be a key element of developing high-quality
and attractive routes for local users. The
progression of these schemes, either as a work
package or individual schemes, will likely be
subject to external factors such as funding
applications or potential inter-dependencies
with other proposals within the local area.

16

The LCWIP should be reviewed and updated
periodically (approximately every four to five
years), particularly in response to significant
changes in local circumstances, such as the
publication of new policies or strategies.

However, engagement with SCC and SBC has
been undertaken during the development of the
LCWIP to provide alignment and future-proofing
with regards to key transport and local policies.
Additional active travel opportunities may also
be identified and incorporated into the LCWIP in
response to major new development sites, and
as walking and cycling networks mature and
expand.

Report Structure

The report is structured into 11 sections:

» Executive Summary: This section presents
a summary of the study focusing on the key
outputs: selected walking and cycle routes and
proposed interventions.

» Introduction: In this section, project
aims, methodology and design approach
are presented.

» Previous Studies: In this section, key studies
previously developed for the area are presented,
including walking and cycling strategies.

» Evidence Base / Background Data: Information
used to support the choice of potential walking
and cycle routes are introduced, such as key
destinations, census data, collision data, and
propensity to cycle tool (PCT) forecast flows.

» Stakeholder Engagement: Meetings with
stakeholders took place on six occasions:
three times during the selection of routes and
a further three times to receive their feedback
for the proposed design interventions. This
section summarises the meetings, with minutes
presented in Appendices section.

» Design Interventions: Place-Based Approach:
this initial section presents both cycling and
walking infrastructure interventions across
Spelthorne. The images are organised according
to CWZ

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



T¢T abed

» Cycle Network: In this section, the optioneering
process used for the selection of cycling routes
is presented, followed by a description of the
selected routes highlighting their infrastructure
constraints and opportunities. In this section
the design approach and guiding principles
for cycling are also presented, accompanied
by images of best practice examples, prior
to an overview of concept designs for five
cycle corridors.

» Walking Network: As with the previous
section, the optioneering process used for
the selection of walking routes is presented,
followed by a description of the selected routes
highlighting their infrastructure constraints
and opportunities. In this section the design
approach and guiding principles for walking
are also presented, accompanied by images of
best practice examples, prior to an overview of
concept designs for five walking corridors.

» Route Prioritisation and Costings: Based on
a multi criteria process and feedback from
stakeholders, this section presents a prioritised
programme of infrastructure improvements
and costs for each route.

» Conclusions: This section considers the findings
from the LCWIP and the next steps.

» Appendices: In this last section, complementary
data is presented such as walking and cycle
audits and stakeholder engagement responses.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Design Vision

The overarching vision and objective of the
LCWIP is to facilitate modal shift and increase
the number of people choosing to walk and
cycle for short journeys or as part of a longer
journey (e.g., combined with public transport),
particularly for utilitarian trips. The LCWIP
proposals also seek to support a variety of
other objectives of SCC and SBC, such as:

» Strong and sustainable growth

» Reducing short car journeys

» Promoting health and well-being

» Reducing congestion and pollution

» Providing inclusive travel options

» Achieving climate change targets

» Improving the economic vitality of the Borough

Within the Borough there are several examples
of physical severance created by infrastructure
such as railway lines and heavily trafficked
roads. Inadequate routes, or a lack of them, can
bring residents and visitors to rely on private
transport, thus leading to increased volumes

of short car trips and congestion within town
centres and other areas of high demand.

Additionally, local high street areas can benefit
from a regeneration process which provides
spaces where people enjoy spending time,
which can subsequently lead to economic and
social vitality for the area.

Good design is vital to the successful delivery
of facilities to encourage modal shift. The
design strategy aims to address these issues
with the development of deliverable and
attractive borough-wide walking and cycling
infrastructure that prioritises people walking
and cycling.

To support the vision, the design approach
incorporates best practice guidance and aims
to address the five key design principles of
effective walking and cycling infrastructure as
per LTN 1/20%

» Coherent

» Direct

» Safe

» Comfortable
» Attractive

The design approach went beyond LTN
recommendations and added key design
principles in terms of adaptability, gradient,
context sensitive and inclusivity.

Ultimately, the design strategy looks to provide
short as well as long term solutions that

could be applied to further designs across the
Borough.

1 Department for Transport, Cycle Infrastructure Design (LTN
1/20).

17



2cT obed

10 Good Reasons to Invest in Active Travel

There has been a growing demand for active
travel not just in Spelthorne but throughout
the country. It is the ambition of central
government to capitalise on this and make
walking and cycling the natural choice for
shorter journeys or as part of longer journeys.

Surrey County Council has devised ‘Ten

Good Reasons to Invest in Active Travel' as
stated in the Woking LCWIP, nevertheless
relevant to Spelthorne LCWIP with key topics
summarised below.

1. Quick, convenient and popular ways to
get about

Approximately 50% of SBC residents commute
less than 2km to work every day, a distance
which can easily be walked, take a car.
Additionally, approximately 30% of commuters'
distance travelled to work is between 2km

and 5km which can easily be cycled. For short
distances such as these, walking and cycling
can take a similar amount of time door to door
as a journey by car.

2. Value for money ways to tackle the
climate emergency

To take action on the Climate Emergency,
Surrey County Council is working to achieve
our ‘Greener Future' vision of a zero carbon
and resilient county by 2050. 46% of carbon

1 Census (2011) (Table QS416EW)

18

generated within Surrey by residents and
businesses is transport related. This is roughly
twice what it is for most other areas of the UK.

Walking and cycling have very low impacts on
our climate and are an important alternative to
other more polluting modes such as the private
car. Whilst not all journeys a typical person
makes can be walked or cycled, many more
could be than are at present.

The cost of walking and cycling schemes is
relatively very modest, with typical schemes
being a fraction of the cost of road widening
or construction?. Nationally, the average
benefit-to-cost ratio of walking and cycling
projects is 13:1 —i.e. for every £1 spent, £13 of
benefits are returned to the economy?.

3. Investing in walking and cycling can tackle
road congestion by (a) making the best use of
finite road space, and (b) by making shorter
journeys that do not require a motor vehicle
more attractive.

a. InLondon, new cycle lanes have helped
some streets carry up to 5% more people
at the busiest times* - replicating this in

2 Sustrans, Active travel and economic performance.

3 Transport for London, Walking and cycling: the economic
benefits.

4 Transport for London, Walking and cycling, the economic
benefits.

Spelthorne would help more people to
travel during peak times.

b. As well as making connections to
town centres, this plan shows how
improvements can also make it easier
to walk and cycle to Spelthorne many
local centres, which can help reduce
traffic on the road as more can be done
locally rather than requiring a longer
distance trip.

4. Improve air quality

Motor vehicles are one of the leading sources of
nitrogen oxide and particulate matter pollution.
In recognition of its effect on public health and
the environment, the Government's aim is to
reduce emissions of nitrogen oxides 73% by
2030 (from 2005 baseline)®.

Walking and cycling have no or negligible

air quality impacts: switching more trips to
walking and cycling would make Spelthorne a
more pleasant place to be out and about and
protect local natural assets and is an important
strategy for reducing tailpipe emissions.

5. A boost for high street jobs, shops

and services

Investing in walking or cycling to and around a
local high street has been shown to make these

5 Department for Environment, Food& Rural Affairs (2019) Clean
Air Strategy.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



c¢T obed

centres more attractive, vibrant and social
places to spend time, which helps high streets
secure a niche based upon social activity and
visit experience within which to compete with
out-of-town retail and online shops®’. People
walking and cycling make more trips to local
shops and spend more money there than
users of most other modes of transport®. The
Borough's many local neighbourhood centres
can also benefit from increased footfall through
these investments in cycling and walking.

6. Ensures nobody is left behind

Walking and cycling are affordable ways to
travel independently, and options for nearly
everybody including those unable to drive.
This Local Cycling & Walking Infrastructure
Plan proposes to improve walking and cycling
facilities so that they are suitable for use
with mobility aids, including adapted bicycles
and scooters and wheelchairs, creating a
facility that is comfortable and convenient
for everyone.

7. Important for longer journeys as well as
short journeys

Staines is the busiest station in Spelthorne
followed by Ashford and Shepperton.
Approximately 2.7 million passengers use
Staines Station, the busiest station within

6 Living Streets (2018) The pedestrian pound.

7 Transport for London Walking and cycling: the economic
benefits.

8 F. Raje and A. Saffrey for Department for Transport (2016) The
value of cycling.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

the borough®. The station also acts as an
important interchange between Runnymede
and Windsor and buses' services connecting to
Heathrow Airport and Thorpe Park resort. Good
accessibility to the stations was one of the
crucial aims of the LCWIP. More information on
stations, refer to Section 5 evidence Base.

8. Saves households money

Whilst most households will want to keep a
car for those journeys that need one, switching
some journeys to walking and cycling can save
households money on the per-mile and per-trip
costs of car travel. Additionally, over the 40,000
borough households only the 15% have no

car, meaning that 85% (having two or more
cars'®), and may be able to save money on the
ownership costs of one or more of these cars

if adequate walking and cycling infrastructure
means more household members are walking
and cycling more often.

9. Great for mental and physical health

The Government increasingly want to focus
healthcare investment into the prevention of
poor health, rather than curing people once
they have become unwell. Over 4 in 10 women
and 1in 3 men are not active enough for good
health, costing the NHS £8.17 per person
annually*?. Public Health England consider the

9 Office for Rail and Road, Estimates of station usage (Table
1410)

10 Census (2011)

11 Department of Health & Social Care (2018) Prevention is
better than cure.

12 Public Health England (2018) Cycling and walking for
individual and population health benefits.

promotion of walking and cycling as everyday
activities to be one of the best ways to combat
rising levels of physical inactivity, reducing

risk factors for cardiovascular and respiratory
diseases, some cancers and Type Il diabetes, as
well as having positive effects on sleep quality,
mental health and the risk of dementia®®,
People who are physically active take 27%
fewer sick days each year than their colleagues,
and those who walk to work are found to have
greater job satisfaction and overall feeling of
well-being®.

10. Reduce casualties on our roads

In the five years to 2020 there were 60

serious accidents involving a person cycling

(in a total of 277 collisions) and 5 fatalities
involving a person walking (in a total of 190
collisions). The majority of these incidents
have occurred on routes where this plan is
proposing improvements be made, which will
include safety improvements where these are
needed. The majority of these incidents have
occurred on routes where this plan is proposing
improvements be made, which will include
safety improvements where these are needed.
More information on collisions, refer to Section
5 evidence Base.

13 Public Health England (2018) Cycling and walking for
individual and population health benefits.

14 Transport for London Walking and cycling: the economic
benefits.

19



m
&
-]
=
1o
g




S 3 Previous Studies

Introduction

Previous Studies and Policy Context
Relevant Schemes




9¢T abed

Introduction

The Spelthorne LCWIP is supported and
informed by existing and emerging policies,
previous and on-going studies, and existing
scheme proposals. It is expected that many of
the proposals included in this study will build
upon their findings and recommendations.

To that end, this section reviews previous work
relevant to the LCWIP, in so far as they inform
the:

»

»

»

»

22

Policy context of the LCWIP.

Understanding and identification of key trip
attractors and destinations.

Identification of preferred walking and cycling
routes, existing issues, deficiencies and
opportunities.

Development of a programme of
infrastructure improvements.

Previous Studies & Policy Context

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure
Plans Technical Guideline (2017)

The Department for Transport published the
LCWIP Technical Guidance to assist local

authorities in the preparation of the local plans.

The DfT published guidance which broadly
outlines the core elements and tasks that
should be considered when developing an
LCWIP. The methodology is intended to

be flexible and adaptable to a given local
authority's context, geographic scope, and
resources. The study approach used for the
Spelthorne LCWIP reflects the DfT guidance.

Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy
(2017)

The Department for Transport published

the Cycling and Walking Investment

Strategy (CWIS) in 2017, which sets out the
Government's ambition to make walking and
cycling the natural choices for shorter journeys
or as part of a longer journey. The intent is

for walking and cycling to be a normal part

of everyday life, and the natural choices for
shorter journeys such as going to school,
college or work, travelling to the station and for
simple enjoyment.

The CWIS sets out the following targets to
achieve by 2025:

» To double cycling to 1.6 billion cycle stages
in 2025.

» Toincrease walking stages to 300 stages per
person per year.

» Toincrease the percentage of children that
usually walk to school to 55% in 2025.

LCWIPs form a vital part of the Government'’s
strategy to increase the number of trips made
on foot or by cycle by identifying cycling and
walking improvements required at the local
level using an evidence based approach. The
development of the Spelthorne LCWIP will
support the achievement of the CWIS objectives
and targets locally.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/2T abed

DfT’'s Gear Change & Cycle Infrastructure
Design (LTN 1/20) (2020)

In 2020, the DfT published Gear Change

and its updated Cycle Infrastructure Design
(Local Transport Note 1/20). Both publications
advance DfT's ambitions for a step-change in
the provision of cycle infrastructure, a modal
shift to cycling nationally, and establishing
cycling as a form of mass transit. This supports
issues related to public health, well-being, the
economy and local business, climate change,
the environment and air quality, and congestion.

Gear Change outlines 4 key themes to achieve
as step-change in cycling:

» Better streets for cycling and people.

» Cycling at the heart of decision making.

» Empowering and encouraging Local Authorities.

» Enabling people to cycle and protecting them
when they do.

M

LTN 1/20 provides a refresh of national cycle
infrastructure design guidance (previously

LTN 2/08), reflective of latest best practice.

It is intended to support the delivery of the
high-quality infrastructure necessary to achieve
the ambitions of the CWIS and Gear Change.
Inclusive cycling is an underlying theme, so that
people of all ages and abilities are considered
and empowered to take up cycling.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

As with the CWIS, development of the
Spelthorne LCWIP is central to achieving the
ambitions of Gear Change locally. LTN 1/20
will be integrated into the LCWIP process,
establishing the design aspirations of schemes
identified as part of the LCWIP.

peenen)
Gear
Change

A bold vision
for cycling
and walking

Cycle
Infrastructure

Design

Local Transport Note 1/20
July 2020

Surrey Transport Plan (LTP3 and
emerging LTP4)

The Surrey Transport Plan (STP) is the county’s
third Local Transport Plan (LTP). It presents a
clear vision to inform transport policy to help
people to meet their transport and travel needs
effectively, reliably, safely and sustainably
within Surrey, in order to promote economic
vibrancy, protect and enhance the environment
and improve the quality of life. This has helped
define the objectives of the STP, as follows:

» Effective transport: To facilitate end-to-end
journeys for residents, business, and visitors by
maintaining the road network, delivering public
transport services and, where appropriate,
providing enhancements.

» Reliable transport: To improve the journey time
reliability of travel in Surrey.

» Safe transport: To improve road safety and the
security of the travelling public in Surrey.

» Sustainable transport: To provide an integrated
transport system that protects the environment,
keeps people healthy and provides for lower
carbon transport choices.

The key themes of the STP are broadly aligned
with the objectives of the LCWIP to increase
the uptake of walking and cycling across the
Borough. The Surrey Transport Plan includes
the Cycle Strategy, detailed below, which is of
key relevance to the Spelthorne LCWIP.

23



g¢T abed

Surrey's emerging fourth Local Transport Plan
(LTP4) is currently being developed (as of May
2021). It is anticipated that the emerging LTP4
will further advance strategies to support and
encourage walking and cycling, particularly in
the context of the climate emergency declared
by SCC in July 2019 and setting a pathway
towards net-zero carbon emissions by 2050.

Key policy areas emerging in LTP4 that are
particularly pertinent to the LCWIP include:

» Planning for place: supporting ‘20-minute
neighbourhoods’ which are planned so that
people can meet the majority of their needs
locally, within a 20-minute walk or cycle ride

» Active travel and personal mobility: improving
conditions for walking and cycling and aiming to
develop facilities to LTN 1/20 guidance

24

Surrey Cycle Strategy (2014-2026)

The Surrey Cycling Strategy is part of the
Surrey Transport Plan (LTP3), and sets out
SCC's aim and approach for cycling in Surrey
for the period to 2026. The aim of the strategy
is ‘more people in Surrey cycling, more

safely.’ Additionally, the strategy recognises
the multitude of benefits from encouraging
people to cycle more. Such benefits include
improved health, resulting economic benefits
from reduced absenteeism and reduced
congestion, and improved air quality from fewer
motor vehicles.

A key action of the strategy was the
development of local cycling plans for each of
Surrey's 11 districts and boroughs to identify
and deliver cycling improvements, reflecting
local priorities and circumstances. The
Spelthorne LCWIP will be an opportunity to
build upon the previous local plan and support
delivery of the cycle network.

Another core objective relevant to the LCWIP
is to ‘improve infrastructure to make cycling a
safe, attractive and convenient mode of transport
for people of all ages and levels of confidence.
The Strategy presents principles by which
cycling infrastructure should be designed and
delivered, as follows:

» Inclusivity

» Safety and security

» Comfortable and well maintained
» Continuous

» Go where people want to go

The above are consistent with the aims of the
LCWIP and with the recent LTN 1/20 guidance.
The core design principles will be considered
as part of the network development and
identification of infrastructure improvements as
part of the Spelthorne LCWIP.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



62T obed

Surrey’s Climate Change Strategy (2020)

Surrey's Climate Change Strategy sets out
SCC's commitment to tackle climate change
and support the UK's target of achieving net
zero carbon emissions by 2050. It provides

a joint framework for collaborative action on
climate change across Surrey's local authorities
and other partners.

The strategy sets a target of a 60% emissions
reduction in the transport sector by 2035,

and identifies the following ambition for the
transport sector: “Deliver and promote an
integrated, accessible, affordable and reliable
public and active (walking or cycling) transport
system across the County, thereby reducing
journeys and improving local air quality

for improved health and well-being of our
residents.”

The LCWIP is well-aligned with the Climate
Change Strategy. Delivery of the LCWIP will
provide high quality infrastructure to support
and encourage modal shift to active travel
options, and hence support achieving the
Climate Strategy targets and ambitions.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Right of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP)
(2014)

The Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) is
a part of the Surrey Transport Plan (LTP3). It is
intended to identify the changes to be made in
respect of the management and improvements
to the local rights of way network, in order to
meet the Government’s aim of better provision
for walkers, people cycling, equestrians and
people with mobility difficulties.

Within the ROWIP five objectives are identified:

» Toimprove accessibility to services, facilities and
the wider countryside along rights of way.

» Toimprove connectivity of rights of way and to
reduce severance.

» Toimprove the quality of the public right of
way network.

» Toincrease recreational enjoyment.

» To secure coordinated implementation of the
ROWIP with the available resources.

The ROWIP will help to facilitate improvements
that can contribute to improved public health
and well-being, help to reduce emissions,

and reduce congestion. Improvements to the
rights of way network are integrated with other
Surrey plans and strategies, including the cycle
strategy.

There are 3,444km of rights of way across
Surrey, nearly of which 43.5km is in Spelthorne.
This off-road network is a key component of
the broader active travel network, and provides
opportunities to improve network connectivity

and more direct links for pedestrians and
people cycling.

The LCWIP will promote the core objectives of
the ROWIP, particularly improving accessibility
and connectivity and reducing severance.
Development of the LCWIP will support more
attractive walking and cycling routes to connect
leisure, residential and employment areas.

25



0¢T obed

Surrey Future

Surrey Community Vision 2030

Vision for Surrey 2030 is presenting a picture
of what life in Surrey is like and the challenges
within the county. This informs the outcomes
set out within the vision by identifying the key
issues around Surrey.

Aspiration of Surrey Community Vision 2030

is that by 2030 Surrey to be a uniquely special
place where everyone has a great start of

life, people live healthy and fulfilling lives, are
enabled to achieved their full potential and
contribute to their community, and no one is
left behind. It focuses to built a strong, vibrant
and successful economy for the country and

to make Surrey a great place to live, work and
learn, where it will capitalize on its location and
natural assets, and communities feel supported
and people will help each other.

Surrey Community Vision, in broader aspect,
ambitious for its people and place.

For its people, vision 2030 ensures:

» Children & young people are safe and feel safe
and confident.

» Everyone gets befit from education, skill, and
employment opportunities to succeed in life.

» Everyone lives healthy, active, and fulfilling lives
and makes good choices about their well-being.

» Everyone gets the health and social care support
and information that people need at the right
time and place.

» Appropriate housing for everyone.

26

For its place, vision 2030 aspires to,

» Provide a clean, safe, and green communities,
where people and organizations embrace their
environmental responsibilities,

» Create easier, more predictable, and safer
journey across the country,

» Thrive business in Surrey,

» Built well connected communities, with effective
infrastructure to grow sustainably.

Surrey community vision 2030 does promotes
making people’s active and living healthy
lives, modal shift towards cycle and walking
will help, as well as it will help to built green
communities. LCWIP aim and objectives can
help in this aspect to fulfil the goals of Surrey
community vision 2030.

Surrey 2050 Place Ambition (2019)

Surrey as a place has a central role to play
in the regional and national economy and is
already making a significant contribution to
wealth creation, enterprise, jobs, business,
homes, physical infrastructure, and skills.
Fierce ambition of SCC for the vitality of our
places and communities is at the heart of what
defines our approach to “good growth”. Its
vision is for a county of well-functioning and
connected places, with healthy communities
and a high quality of life.

Good growths for Surrey:

» |s proportionate and sustainable, focusing on the
places where people both live and work.

» Supports overall improvements to the health
and well-being of our residents.

» |s supported by the necessary infrastructure
investment - including green infrastructure.

» Delivers high quality design in our buildings and
public realm.

» Increases resilience and flexibility in the
local economy.

» Builds resilience to the impacts of climate
change and flooding.

» |Is planned and delivered at a local level while
recognising that this will.

» Inevitably extend at times across
administrative boundaries.

Surrey Infrastructure Study (SIS) presents

a technical evidence base of Surrey's
infrastructure needs to 2031. As such, it
reflects the stage Local plan preparation had

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



TET obed

reached at that date and relies on various data
sets, assumptions, and modelling work with
associated limitations. It presents an overview
of growth patterns and the infrastructure
projects needed to support such growth, their
costs, how much funding has already been
secured or is expected toward their delivery
and the funding gap for the period up to 2031.
It focused upon education, health & social
care, community, green infrastructure, utility,
transport, flood defences and emergency
services. The entire study is based on the
following parameters,

» Housing growth

» Employments sites

» Population forecasts

» Infrastructure Analysis
» Cost Analysis

» Funding Assumptions

Surrey is currently having 152miles of
motorway, 3600 miles of Public highway & 84
railway stations. Surrey’'s motorways carry 80
percent more traffic than the average for the
South East region and the A roads 66 percent
more traffic than the national average.

Surrey has almost 3,448 kilometres (2,143
miles) of footpaths, bridleways, and byways.
SCC has produced a Right of Way Improvement
Plan and Cycling Strategy as part of the
county’s Transport Plan. High levels of bike
ownership in Surrey indicate significant
suppressed demand for cycling. However,
there are a number of issues and challenges,
including but not limited to:

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

SURREY

65,356
106,123
2000
Fu £5,512,790,000
Furding £1,216,620,000
£1,826,600,000
£2,469,570,000°

55%

WJECT

Empetrd Fundirg

Figure 7. Summary of infrastructure project costs and funding gaps

(2016-2031)

5.7 SPELTHORNE s
.0.

3,916 3796

=) i

to2031

INFRASTRUCTURE HIGHLIGHTS

= Haatheow Alrport is lecated immediately to
o the Borough with aignificant influsnce o the arva

and a curnent proposal for fture axpansion with & = o

ehird runmay

. o pest
ihe Strategic Rosd Metwark through Spaitharne.

s a4 risk from flooding. with Staines snd Shepperton | (2%

being the worst atfectod aress.

# Capacity prasdures on exiting vy paar facilities,
primavy schools and pecondary schools.

u Capacity prossures on existing primecy heakthcars
faoiities.

15 £123,530,000
£5.300.000
EE8,280,000
£49,250,000
B0%

Y041 Sumey isasiruchre Shudy

Figure 8. Summary of infrastructure project costs and funding gaps (2016-2031) in Spelthorne




Z<T obed

» The need to equip different road users with the
skills to share the road safely

» The challenge of achieving cycle infrastructure
segregation on narrow, congested roads

A series of walking and cycling improvements
from the provision of new cycle routes to the
widening of footways are required across all
local authorities within Surrey in town centres
and at busy junctions, not only to enhance
connections for pedestrians and cyclists but to
also improve access to public transport. The
Sustainable Movement Corridor in the Guildford
urban area is the most ambitious bus transit,
walking and cycling scheme currently planned
in the county. It will provide priority pathway for
pedestrians, cyclists and buses, largely along
existing roads in the town.

Major transportation projects planned for
Spelthorne are as follows,

» Staines Bridge Corridor Capacity Project
» Church Road, Ashford, public
realm improvements
» Spelthorne Cycleways (authority wide)
» Clockhouse Lane, Ashford, footbridge

All the cycling and walking schemes considered
for improvement in future are focusing on
improvement of footway and improvement of
accessibility. These improvements of existing
network and proposed projects are aiming to
increase the number of users and to provide
them a safe and accessible network. LCWIP will
help to fulfil these aims as objectives of both of
them are aligned perfectly.

28

Surrey Infrastructure Study (2017)

Surrey Infrastructure Study (SIS) presents

a technical evidence base of Surrey’s
infrastructure needs to 2031. It presents

an overview of growth patterns and the
infrastructure projects needed to support such
growth, broadly encompassing education,
health and social care, community, green
infrastructure, utility, transport, flood defences
and emergency services.

Within the context of active travel and the
LCWIP, the SIS notes that high levels of
cycle ownership in Surrey indicate significant
suppressed demand for cycling. However,
there are a number of issues and challenges,
including but not limited to:

» The need to equip different road users with the
skills to share the road safely

» The challenge of achieving cycle infrastructure
segregation on narrow, congested roads

A series of walking and cycling improvements
from the provision of new cycle routes to the
widening of footways are required across all
local authorities within Surrey in town centres
and at busy junctions, not only to enhance
connections for pedestrians and people cycling
but to also improve access to public transport.

Development of the LCWIP will help to address
this need. Improving access to public transport,
particularly rail station, will be a key factor in
identifying proposed walking and cycle routes.

Surrey Rail Strategy 2021

A New Rail Strategy for Surrey was
commissioned by Surrey County Council

in April 2020. This new strategy sets out
how rail can contribute to a greener future,
growing a sustainable economy, empowering
communities, and tackling health inequality.

Five strategic aims which the rail network can
assist in delivering over the next 30 years:

» Achieving transport decarbonisation

» Responding to change in the rail sector

» Encouraging good growth and a
sustainable economy

» Increasing access for all

» Developing an attractive, high-quality
rail network

These strategic aims, combined with an
assessment of feasibility and acceptability,
have been used to identify a core set of
interventions which Surrey County Council

can support through developing the case,
influencing stakeholders, directly supporting
schemes and monitoring delivery. The Strategy
has identified a need for a renewed focus on
improving stations to benefit local communities
and utilise their potential for supporting
sustainable local economic growth.

Decarbonising the transport network is

the key priority for Surrey County Council;
over 40% of carbon emissions in Surrey are
from surface transport, significantly higher
than the UK average of 22%. Surrey County
Council is working with Network Rail to make

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



ceT obed

the case for electrification of the remaining
network. However, this alone will not achieve
decarbonisation; it is key that rail's share of
local trips increases, and that it helps reduce
emissions further by working with its partners
in delivering the network and connectivity
improvements, and delivers improvements

in accessibility by walking, cycling, and

public transport.

Surrey County Council (SCC) has a set of
strategic priorities for the next five years
which we have used to guide the rail
strategy development.

» Growing a sustainable economy so everyone
can benefit

» Enabling a greener future

» Tackling health inequality

M

M

» Empowering communities

The New Rail Strategy for Surrey will sit
alongside other key documents related to
transport and economic strategy in Surrey.

»

Local Transport Plan 4 (LTP 4), will set out how

to achieve a future-ready transport system

that allows Surrey to lead the UK in achieving a
low-carbon; economically prosperous; healthy
and inclusive county, with excellent quality of life
for all residents; whilst seeking to enhance the
built and natural environments.

Surrey Infrastructure Plan (SIP), will evaluate

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

e
i

the ability of infrastructure to meet the
objectives of Surrey County Council; and develop
a robust tool which assesses ability of individual
projects, and packages of projects, to meet
these objectives.

Surrey's Economic Future, sets out SCC
priorities to build on these economic strengths,
supporting a resilient, productive, and high-value
economy that contributes to growth within the
county and the UK.

Figure 9. New Rail Strategy for Surrgy

To achieve the strategic aims, Surrey County
Council is taking the following measures for
each of the aims and they are as follow,

» Achieving transport decarbonisation

- Encourage modal shift

— Decarbonising rail

— Decarbonising access to stations
» Responding to change in the rail sector
» Encouraging good growth and a

sustainable economy

Connectivity to external drivers of growth
Enable and influence economic growth
Connecting new and existing populations to
jobs and opportunities
Integration into other networks
» Increasing access for all

— Ensure stations and trains are accessible
toall

- A ticketing structure that works for all

— Enable access to the network by
diverse modes

» Developing an attractive, high-quality
rail network

- Areliable network

- A high capacity networks

— Improved journey times and frequencies
where required

Though the rail strategy is not directly focusing
about the cycle and walking infrastructure,

but to achieve transport decarbonisation and
increase access, walking and cycling in the
county will take a major role.

29



T obed

Spelthorne Local Plan: Core Strategy
(2009)

Spelthorne local plan (SLP) is part of the Local
Development Framework (LDF) and sets out the

Council's core strategy and detailed policies.
It is a spatial plan which sets out the needs

in the Borough and the needs have been
identified from public consultation, the
Council's research, and other plans and
programmes of the Council and organisations
with responsibilities in Spelthorne. SLP sets
out a vision, identifies objectives which need
to be met in order to achieve the vision and
spatial strategy and sets out policies to deliver
those objectives.

In general, vision of SLP is focusing on
sustainability. To meet the visions, 21 no of
objectives are set out, among which are aligned
with aims of LCWIP are listed below,

» To protect and improve the quality of the
environment, including improving the landscape,
promoting biodiversity, and safeguarding the
Borough's cultural heritage.

» To ensure the Borough develops in a way that
minimises harmful CO2 emissions contributing
to climate change and that caters for potential
future climate change.

» To secure an improvement in the Borough's
air quality.

» Toensure necessary infrastructure and services
are provided.

» To ensure new development is designed to
a high standard appropriate to its setting

30

and contributes to an improvement in the
appearance of the environment.

» To ensure development contributes to
sustainable transport choices and reduces the
need to travel.

» To encourage development of a sustainable
transport system that supports the spatial
strategy and provides for the needs of all
sections of the community in an environmentally
acceptable way and further improve Staines’
role as a public transport interchange.

Seven strategic policies have been considered
for tackling all the current issues across
the borough.

» General location of development,

» Housing provision,

» Economy and employment provision,

» Town centres and retail development,

» Community needs,

» Maintaining and improving the environment,
» Climate change and transport.

In relation to transport, the strategy covers two
related aspects,

» Reducing the need of travel by car. To achieve
this, accessibility for alternate modes to
be developed.

» Promoting non-car base travel.

Under Climate change and transport strategy,
SLP focuses on renewable energy, sustainable
construction, sustainable travel, parking
provision and non-car access. The Council
will require the provision of sufficient, safe,
weatherproof, convenient, and secure cycle

parking within developments to assist in
promoting cycle use. Apart from that, open
space and sport and recreation facilities have
an important part to play in the wellbeing
and quality of life of people. These facilities
include pedestrian and cycle routes. The
policies are seeking to maintain, improve and
where appropriate expand networks of green
space and pedestrian and cycle routes with

a recreational role. The council will require
the provision of sufficient, safe, weatherproof,
convenient, and secure cycle parking within
developments to assist in promoting cycle use.

As the LCWIP is aiming to improve the cycle
and walking network, it will help Spelthorne to
reach the aim and objectives related to cycle
and walking infrastructure.

Emerging Update to Spelthorne Local
Plan (2020 - 2035)

The Council is currently working on an
emerging Local Plan which contains the overall
vision and framework for future development

in the area, addressing needs and opportunities
in relation to housing, the economy, community
facilities and infrastructure - as well as
providing a basis for conserving and enhancing
the natural and historic environment, mitigating
and adapting to climate change, and achieving
well designed places. The emerging Local Plan
will set out how the local area will develop over
at least the next 15 years and once adopted,
will replace the 2009 Development Plan. It is
anticipated that the consultation on Publication

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



GeT obed

Local Plan (Regulation 19) will take place in
mid-2021. The consultation will take place after
the Local Plan Task Group have evaluated the
results of the Preferred Options consultation,
finalised the Local Plan strategy and have made
recommendations to the Council's Cabinet.
Following this final consultation, the Local Plan
will be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate
for an Examination in public when those who
have requested to can attend and discuss their
concerns with the Inspector.

There were some key challenges for the
emerging plans and those are as follows,

» Ensure we can allocate sufficient land to meet
our housing need sustainably, including the
provision of affordable homes and the needs of
specific communities

» Maintain and intensify employment land,
anticipating growth in the Borough, including
additional growth from an expanded Heathrow
Airport

» Plan for the necessary infrastructure, such as
schools, roads and healthcare, to support our
future population

» Protect our valuable open spaces, recreation and
leisure facilities and biodiversity sites, including
the River Thames and waterbodies

» Preserve the Green Belt where it is performing
well against the purposes it was designated for

» Enhance the character of our towns and villages,
including the vitality of our shopping areas

» Manage further risk of flooding and prevent or
mitigate harm from environmental impacts such
as poor air quality and noise pollution

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

» Ensure our Borough has the right amount
of social, cultural and community facilities,
including opportunities to support the arts.

Different studies and assessments are
performed to overcome the challenges and to
support the new local plan, few of them are
discussed below,

» The Sustainability Appraisal (SA), which is an
integral element to the development of the new
Local Plan. Its purpose is to promote sustainable
development through the incorporation of social,
environmental, and economic considerations
into plan preparation.

» The Strategic Highway Assessment (SHA)
Report (Part 2), it provides the results and
analysis of the forecasts, together with an
overview of the key findings from the modelling.

» Site selection methodology, it demonstrates the
Council's approach to identifying suitable sites
for development to meet the identified needs set
out in the Local Plan.

» The Strategic Land Availability Assessment
(SLAA), it identifies specific sites that will help
meet housing and/or employment requirements
within Spelthorne and the wider Housing Market
Area and Functional Economic Area.

» The Strategic Housing Market Assessment
(SHMA), this sets out the extent of the housing
market area in Spelthorne and Runnymede and
the number and type of homes needed to meet
housing demand in that combined area over the
period 2013 to 2033 based on population and
economic projections.

» The ‘Draft Statement of Five-Year Housing
Supply’ identifies a supply of deliverable sites
sufficient to provide five years' worth of housing
against Spelthorne’s housing requirement.

» Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation
Assessment, assesses the current and future
need for Gypsy, Traveller and Travelling
Showpeople accommodation in the Borough of
Spelthorne to support the new Local Plan.

» The Green Belt Assessment was produced by
consultants ARUP and assesses how areas of
Green Belt land in the Borough are performing
against Green Belt purposes as set out in the
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

» Employment land needs assessment, the
study assesses the future demand and need
for different types of employment land in the
Borough up to 2035.

Among all of these assessment reports/studies,

one of the objectives of Sustainability Appraisal

(SA) report is to promote sustainable modes of

travel, improve accessibility to public transport

and reduce road congestion. To achieve that,
report suggests providing opportunities for
integrated transport and to promote travel to
work/school by foot, cycle, or public transport.

31



o¢T abed

Relevant Schemes

River Thames Scheme

The River Thames Scheme (RTS), led by the
Environment Agency (EA), aims to reduce flood
risk to communities in Surrey and South West
London. The scheme involves the construction
of a new river channel mainly within Spelthorne
and Runnymede boroughs. While the scheme
overall red line boundary primarily in
Spelthorne and Runnymede areas, the RTS is
also within the north west corner portion of
Elmbridge at Desborough Island.

The RTS provides an opportunity to create
green spaces and enhance walking and cycling
facilities along the River Thames, providing
leisure routes and the potential for longer
distance utility trips linking with and Spelthorne
and Runnymede as well as Elmbridge.

The RTS is currently in the early stages

of development, with the development

of proposals and concept designs for

walking, cycling, and recreation facilities
being conducted in parallel to the LCWIP.
Collaboration between four studies (RTS,
Runnymede, Spelthorne and Elmbridge
LCWIPs) will ensure that appropriate
connections between the RTS and the broader,
borough-wide LCWIPs are considered and
appropriately captured in the walking and
cycling proposed networks, discussed in more
detail in page 42 (Neighbouring Borough
LCWIPs and Cycle Programmes).

32

A Ho Brentfrd Elmbridge,
and Runnymede and
Isleworth
Spelthorne LCWIPs
Feltham
and LCWIP overview
Heston Richmond g o List
Park pirational Lis
Core Walking Zones
Twickenham Il Phase 1
5 Phase 2
! Phase 3
. ‘ s Walking Corridors
f — = Phase 1
. Phase 2
Y o // Cycle Corridors
G f = = Phase 1
b _’ / —— Phase 2
b Phase 3
A and " mn Weybridge Town Centre
{;I i E Surbiton Regeneration and
o "‘ 4 ]’ Transport Plan
\ {? —_ £ -\ ] {1 Staines Masterplan
e P / ] River Thames Scheme
Surrey j‘\ e, ; / Red line boundary
Heath 24 i
Epsom - Borough/District
and Boundary
g sl Ewell
4 {
e
Woking | o
\ p
Guildford TR, Valley
0 25 Sim \
. w Contains 05 data © Crown copyright

2021

Figure 10. River Thames Scheme project area red line boundary (as it October 2021) in the context of Spelthorne,

Runnymede and Elmbridge LCWIPs,

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/€T abed

Heathrow LCWIP

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans
(LCWIP) were developed by the Department

for Transport (DfT) to enable local authorities
to develop cycling and walking networks over,
typically, a 10-year period and provide more of a
strategic approach to developing networks. This
study aims to adopt an adapted approach to the
DfT's LCWIP to suit the unique requirements

of the Heathrow Expansion Project. The LCWIP
study develops the routes that were originally
proposed in the 2019 Airport Expansion
Consultation, looking at the route potential,
identifying possible alternative routes, and
identifying potential improvements to bring

the network up to a standard which will help
normalise cycling and overcome barriers to
cycling which the current network imposes.

The Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT) is used

to help strategically plan cycle networks
though this tool does not take the large-scale
changes to the road network and employment
clusters associated with Heathrow Expansion
into consideration when providing analysis.
Therefore, a combination of measures has
been taken to understand how to maximise
mode shift towards cycling in the future.
These includes:

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

»

»

»

»

PCT analysis

Sustrans Heathrow Cycling Vision document
GIS analysis of colleague home and work
location data

Proposed local infrastructure cycle
improvements in the area

Cycle Level of Service assessments

Hub and Spole network have been developed
on the basis of LCWIP cycle route which
were developed using series of analysis,
which includes:

» Propensity to cycle data

» Colleague home and work locations

» Sustrans Heathrow Cycling Vision work
undertaken in 2016

0

EEL LT

=y

Legend

Hub Network

----- Altemative Hub Route
_ | = Spoke Routes
S A Allemative Spoke Alignments or

Extensions

[ Heamrow Bouncary

wood. ARUP ATKINS

M
GRIMSHAW JACOBS we M
aonus

Heathrow

n 0l v
& HEITEW ARpans Lireed

[
-u-r-nlrp.w Prows: )

Hub and Spoke Network
and potential alignments/extensions

1t

! o daaie (1T | Active TravelBaseling mxd

Figure 11. Hub & Spoke network

33



g¢T abed

This network aims to have the maximum impact
of mode shift towards cycling by targeting
areas with high densities of colleague home
postcode location. It also aims to provide high
quality cycle routes (Spokes) to the perimeter
of Heathrow (the Hub) linking employment
locations around the airport with high quality
cycle infrastructure.

PCT analysis is undertaken in the area
surrounding Heathrow to gain an understanding
of where there is a high propensity to cycle
within the vicinity of Heathrow, along with

high densities of colleague home locations,
providing a broad indication of where Heathrow
colleagues may be most inclined to cycle

to work.

Figure 12. PCT analysis surrounding Heathrow

34

Each route identified was then assessed using
the Route Selection Tool (RST) which is a

tool developed for the LCWIP process. The
RST is used to assess and compare existing
and potential routes for inclusion in the cycle
network. The RST uses the following criteria
to assess how a route meets the core design
outcomes for cycling, with scores ranging from
5 (the highest) to O (the lowest),

» Directness
» Gradient

» Safety

» Connectivity
» Comfort

Figure 13. All cycle routes to be assessed

The proposed cycle infrastructure
improvements were prioritised to develop
aspects such as time scales, costs, and
consideration of the delivery of schemes. This
is to analyse what would provide the value in
terms of the Heathrow Expansion programme.

As the existing cycling conditions surrounding
Heathrow are mixed with some higher-quality
cycle routes but mainly low-quality unsafe
cycle routes and there is also a lack of clarity
and wayfinding along these routes, a protected
cycle infrastructure is important for the safety
of cyclists, and to ensure cyclists are willing to
cycle on these routes. There is a large amount
of the network which has no cycle provision,
and a very limited amount of the network
having segregated cycle infrastructure.

Heathrow LCWIP ot
Extsting: Cyche Motwork
By Infeastretiing Type— 2090

\- ¥ 2K 2%
4 Lk . Yy

[Tt ;”' /&

ey

Figure 14. Existing Cycle Infrastructure

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



6T obed

All routes are identified which require
improvements recommended with the aim

to improve the RST scores on each route.
Infrastructure design recommendations have
been identified along the network with the
aim to create a cycle network which is safe
and convenient for all colleagues. Figure 15
illustrates the proposed interventions to the
cycle network and will provide 100km of new
or upgraded routes. Segregated and shared use
cycle lanes dominate the network to ensure
safety from HGVS and the high volumes and
speed of traffic.

The next step after identifying cycle network
improvements and infrastructure design is

a prioritisation process to understand which
schemes are important to take place over the
long, medium and short term. In route analysis,
the document provides a detailed overview

of the existing conditions and the potential
proposals along all the routes analysed through

Heathrow LEWIP
LEW Prapaved intenepr

wwtom

Figure 15. Proposed interventions cycle infrastructure

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

the LCWIP process in a series of route maps
and broken down into individual sections and
route alternatives, e.g., South East Spoke -
Fulham (including alternative route), Hatton
Cross — Hounslow, Earhart Way etc.

The outcome of the LCWIP process has created
a network of proposed cycle infrastructure
which will help Heathrow to achieve the desired
mode shift towards cycling within the Heathrow
Expansion Project. This network has been
prioritised to reflect Heathrow's requirements
to increase non-car colleague travel, as well

TIL Cubetway Style Route
Heathrow LCWIP § S
End State Network —
Committed + All schemes

— Shaced Use
————  Off Carriageway Routs

Segregated Cycle Lare

Contea-fow Cycle Lane

Figure 16. Proposed End State Network

as practical considerations for implementation,
and provide more clarity on where to focus
routes. Different priorities have been assessed
to ensure the process is flexible and adaptable
should priorities change.

The proposed network has been developed
from the initial Hub and Spoke network, which
was included in the 2019 Airport Expansion
Consultation, and since developed with
reference to stakeholder feedback and the
LCWIP framework.

Upgradid Crodsing Facilithés Roquired
J  Potential for Filtered Permeabiiny
Junetinm Aeconfiguration requined

Heatheow Expansion Boundary

Committad Local Authority Cycle Schames

35



ot T obed

Neighbouring Borough LCWIPs and
Cycle Programmes A

To consider broader cycle network connectivity
across political boundaries, existing and
on-going schemes should also be considered
during development of the LCWIP.

The Spelthorne LCWIP is part of Surrey's
broader LCWIP programme across the county,
and is being developed concurrently with
LCWIPs for neighbouring Runnymede and
Elmbridge. This will provide an opportunity
for a joined-up approach amongst the 3 study
areas.

Spelthorne

Runnymede

Elmbridge

Reigate

North of Spelthorne, Hounslow has recently
implemented a Local Implementation

Plan programme including cycle network
improvements. Connectivity with this network,
particularly though Feltham and Ashford,
should be considered.

Tandridge

Farnham

0 10 20 km n On-going or completed LCWIPs
eee——— 000 [ Surrey Boroughs

Figure 17. Concurrent or completed LCWIPs across Surrey

36 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



5 4. Evidence Base

al

Introduction
Relevant Data
Summary of Key Findings




2T obed

Introduction

To develop an evidence base for the Spelthorne
LCWIP, Atkins compiled and reviewed a range
of existing spatial data. This data helped to
provide an understanding of existing and
potential demand, issues, and barriers for active
travel. Where appropriate, the data was mapped
to overlay different pieces of information. The
analysis included the following data sets:

» Key destinations

» Potential development areas

» Existing walking and cycling infrastructure,
including the Public Rights of Way network

» Public transport networks

» Demographics, such as resident and workplace
population, and car ownership

» Indices on multiple deprivation

» Barriers and constraints, including topography
» Pedestrian and cyclist collision data

» Public suggestions for active travel provisions
» Propensity to Cycle Tool

» Existing Pedestrian and cycle count data

» Stravadata

» Proposed infrastructure developments

This chapter documents and summarises the
data review. This background data informed
the identification of key cycling routes and core
walking zones, which is discussed in Chapters 3
and 4.

38

Hayes and Heatrow
Harlington Airport

———+ Railway Track

[~ District/Borough boundary

1sdor

Ashford North
and Stameell
South

Feltham
and Heston

Ashford East

Runnymede Twitkenhan

Elmbridge

1 2 km
Figure 18. Study area

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



et T obed

Relevant Data

Key Destinations

Key destinations within Spelthorne were
mapped to identify locations or clusters that
attract walking or cycling trips. These included:

» High street areas (containing clusters of shops,
restaurants, and other services)

» Rail stations

» Schools

» Hospitals

» Parks and public open space

Seventeen high streets areas were identified
across the Borough. These are particularly
important from the perspective of active travel,
as they are compact areas, serving a mix of
destination types and trip purposes throughout
the day. These are often short trips, which
could easily be made by walking or cycling.
The local high street and convenient access to
local shops, services, etc is also central to the
‘20-minute neighbourhood’ strategy identified in
the emerging Surrey Transport Plan.

Rail stations are another important destination,
as improved walking and cycling links would
facilitate mode shift via linked-trips with public
transport and longer distance commuting to
London and other regional hubs.

Attention is also drawn to Heathrow Airport,
located to the north of the Borough, which is a
significant regional destination.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

i

Winsdor
faine:
Runnymede
0 1 2 km
I 0]

Figure 19. Key destinations

Hayes and Heatrow
Harlington Airport

atanmwelliloothi

I Stained-South

Key Destinations
Primary Education

Secondary Education
[] Medical care

[ Air Transport

Commercial areas

Railway/Underground Stations
€ London Underground Station

== Railway Station

[} District/Borough boundary

and Heston

Surbury Comimaon

Sunbury East
Twifkenhan

Elmbridge

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2011

39



v T obed

Key Destinations: Potential Development

To support future demand and local growth,
opportunities for future development were also
considered as part of the LCWIP.

Spelthorne Borough Council are currently
working on an Emerging Local Plan
(2020-2035) and have identified preferred
sites for future development. These potential
development sites are highlight in Figure 20.

Given the existing nature of the Borough, there
are relatively few large scale development sites
being proposed. Areas with notable clusters of
potential development include Staines-Upon-
Thames, Ashford and Sunbury.

40

f

Hayes and
Harlington
Winsdor
Starmwvell North
es
“®
)
o=
i
Staines South
Riverside and
Laleharr
Runnymede
0 1 2 km
I

Heatrow
Airport

Ashford Town ‘

Development Sites
(Units)

50- 100

100 - 200

B > 200

[} pistrict/Borough boundary

Laleham and
shepperton

Green;

Figure 20. Future development sites in Spelthorne

Feltham
and Heston
shfora
Ashford Common Sunbry Common
=
*
Sumbury East
Twitkenhan
>
Hallifordjand
Sunbury West
=
Shepperton Town
Elmbridge

Contains OS5 data @ Crown copyright 2021

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



G T obed

Existing Walking and
Cycling Infrastructure

Existing walking and cycling infrastructure
within Spelthorne provides a potential
foundation upon which to improve and expand
the network through the LCWIP. Information
on existing cycling infrastructure is provided
through the online SCC Cycle Facilities Map.

There is a mix facility types and routes
scattered across the Borough, though generally
not providing an interconnected, borough-wide
network. Several existing routes include:

» Staines-Upon-Thames to East Bedfont,
alongside the A30.

» Staines-Upon-Thames to Stanwell, via Public
Rights of Way.

» Sunbury to Walton On Thames, alongside
the A244.

» Signed Advisory routes within built-up
urban areas.

» National Cycle Network (NCN) Route 4 passes
along the Western boundary of the borough,
providing regional connectivity between
Staines-Upon Thames to Chertsey.

» The Thames Path National Trail

Along the routes at key junctions and points
of interest (such as schools and employment
sites) SCC has implemented improvements to
give priority to pedestrians and cyclists over
motorised traffic and ensure their safety.

Existing cycle facilities may have been in place
for a number of years therefore and may not
align with recent LTN 1/20 guidance.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

—— National Cycle Network
Hayes and Heatrow

Harlington Airport

London Cycle Network
Winsdor — Cycle track
= Cycle lane
Signed advisory route
Cycle-friendly
traffic management
— Greenway
Cycle parking
@ Exemption at road closure
@ Junction improvement
g Crossing improvement

® Subway

Feltham O Fery

and Heston Surrey Cohesive Network
===« Surrey Cycleways
Ashford East e * = === Surrey Top Routes

[} pistrict/Borough boundary

Sunbury East

- \ ‘. < [ ] Twitkénham
‘ Lalehamiand P
u. p Sheppenton ; /

Runnymede

G

\I\|>r‘};1‘|f_."._:; Town g (%
g S o)
i S 4 Elmbridge

0 1 2 km
L .
Figure 21. Existing cycling infrastructure

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 202y;
SCC Cycle facilities map data

41



o1 T abed

Public Rights of Way [[T
In addition to the street network, Spelthorne s S o f’_f'f'ii:;f::fh"fwa"
contains nearly 45km Public Rights of Way ey o eene Brideway
(PROW). This network of public footpaths > A SE—
and bridleways provides valuable off-road (4. DstricyBoraigh boundany
opportunities for walking and cycling across i
the Borough, linking to the street and footway ' S A
. i 7 tanwelINosthi * =
networks in urban areas. A T .
In the urban road network, footways are ‘r’ """ - _‘-’ A ,
typically provided. However, footway provision Sl P :
varies depending on the local context, and U
can be narrow, limited to one side of theroad, @~ e e Feitham
discontinuous, or otherwise constrained by 3 5 - 2 Heston
limited public highway width, built environment, SSEImtasAl
tshyord 10en Ashford East
and topography.
. Ashford Common Sunbury Common
4 Staines South
1 Riverside and l'. -
1 Laleham ',. Yo
e ." Sunbury East
Runnymede B o b Twifkénham
Falehamiond. %
4 & :
- i o % r\?
M v E :
X .“:* h:'\. z
E e S'r:(‘,')p:.:"'::‘vr: Town,==7% .
e‘— 3 3 N _‘_‘\‘:;_ Elmbridge
0 1 2 km
|
Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 22. Public rights of way

42 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/1T abed

Topography

The topography of an area has been shown
to affect the choice of cycling and walking
routes. Pedestrians and cyclists can be
deterred from using routes with a steep
gradient or declination, due to the associated
difficulties of using the route. The difficulty is
often experienced more significantly amongst
user groups with disabilities and mobility
impairments.

Located in the Thames Valley, the Borough of
Spelthorne is considered to be relatively flat
and low lying, as indicated by the contour lines
in Figure 23. Areas in the north are slightly
hillier (e.g. Stanwell), but general gradients
would not be expected to pose a significant
deterrent to cycling.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

ﬁ Hayes and
: Harlington
Winsdor

Runnymede
0 1 2 km
I

Figure 23. Topography

StainesSouth

Heatrow
Airport

Contours (m)
3
10
20
—33
™" pistrict/Borough boundary

Feltham
and Heston

Ashford Common Sunbury Common

Twitkenhan

Elmbridge

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

43



81T obed

Railway Network

The Borough is connected to the National Rail
Network and contains six railway stations that
provide local residents with direct services to
London (Figure 24). These railway stations are
key destinations, as they provide sustainable
travel opportunities that can connect with
walking and cycle routes.

[ | g,

.-'I >0 *
| Hayes and': HeathrowTerminals  Heatrow < Heathrow Central == Railway Station
§ Heathrow Terminals 1,2.3
/' Harlington Airport | © London Underground Station

-+ Railway Lines
[ pistrict/Borough boundary

e 54

et e

¥ i o {
e Feltham .
- ",
"
~
Pl ') 5 s
b s ) Ashford Common Sunbury Common
" ©Staines South 3 e y

by I 1
Riverside and 1)

L Latehdm
Runnymede am
[
T
-;.k““
».
"»v.v..
e e ;
s
\X\ =~ 4
0 1 2km S 7 ot
N O
_: \K Contains OS data_ﬂ?._cmwﬁ'éﬂprrlghl 2021

Figure 24. Railway network

44

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



61T obed

Bus Network

Figure 25 illustrates the distribution of bus
stops across the Borough. The bus stop
locations indicate areas of demand for
short walking trips, linking bus passengers
with surrounding residential areas or key
destinations.

The data indicates there is relatively good,
widespread provision of bus stops throughout
Spelthorne. Greater concentrations of bus stops
are particular notable in the urban areas of
Staines-Upon-Thames, Ashford and Sunbury,
where there are also higher population
densities.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

ﬁ . Hayes and Heatrow ® Bus Stops
Winsdor ¥ Haxtingtan Alrport [} pistrict/Borough boundary
m?@
ot -] &= g Bai-,
" StanwelllNorth g‘
= ‘@% 29
Staines
P oo ¢
% Lt “\
® - Feltham
= B %Q) and Heston
=5
\@@ Bg a'ﬁﬁ?for 'T9§‘® AchforHE aits, @ &
= Te e
.. =1 % ® % hfatd Commor mﬁ.uﬂ u--'mr\n
@,@@ @stm.\@ﬂ% 3 & 'Qg\-\sv,‘géjjc,m.%\ (=) r fRarimo
(=) % % =
® ® ® a@ ®e s
® @ ®
L{-‘e’ aemn @ @
% @ @ @ ® :g:.\ siry East -
Runnymede i : 8 P pa @@% & % GErwickeénham
Lal eham and L
Sheppenton @ é@ = = =1 & @ -
& g S ® P
@ @ !‘%r ifardfand a "
@ @' Sn‘a_gl:...-ry‘.'v'es( =] =
e ® &
& q © ® o .
%@@ gw
DE B ‘g ® 9
a Sheppertons zjé@;g@ @
' @ @@’@ A & Eimbridge
(=
0 1 2 km

| I
Figure 25. Bus network

Contains OS data © Crown copyright 2021

45



0GT obed

Population Data

Population data can provide a proxy for
potential demand for walking and cycling trips.
As many trips begin or end at home, higher
population densities can indicate a higher
propensity for walking and cycling trips. Higher
densities can also indicate a more conducive
environment for walking and cycling, such as
closer proximity of origins and destinations and
a more compact built-up area.

As illustrated in Figure 26, the residential
population of Spelthorne is largely concentrated
in the central third of the Borough, in-between
the reservoirs. This includes the built-up areas
of Staines-Upon-Thames, Ashford and Sunbury,
where the highest population densities can

be observed.

46

ﬁ Hayes and
Harlington
Winsdor

"4

Heatrow Population Density
Airport Residents/HE
(ONS 2019)
<50
50-75
I -7
[} pistrict/Borough boundary

¢

Stanwell North "'

Fates ' a\sl‘l.‘c.ol;':l North
and stanwell [
Feltham
' and Heston
r s & _':"‘5. "'-' £ .... ‘..rfl‘-i.r:j;l‘..'cff_rl"._! ¥’
. h n‘. . . e ! htord Comman Siinburycommon
s lines South e : ) '
Riverside and ' ,'.:. ‘: =
L] Laleharm ) | [}
Sunbury East
Runnymede Twitkénham
Laleham and ‘ 1
Shepperton
Green
Halliford and
Sunbury West (
Sheppertof,Town|
Elmbridge
0 1 2 km

Figure 26. Resident population density

Contains OS5 data © Crown copyright 2021

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



TGT obed

Employment

Workplace data can provide another proxy for
potential demand for walking and cycling trips.
Figure 27 highlights the key workplace zones
within the Borough. The larger employment
areas include:

» Brooklands (west edge of the Borough)
» Staines-Upon-Thames

» Ashford Town

» Ashford Common

» Sunbury

» Shepperton Town

Figure 27 also indicates the importance of
connectivity across borough boundaries to
provide linkages to neighbouring employment
and population centres. In particular, Egham
and Feltham, located to the west and east of
the Borough, have relatively high employment
and population densities. Consideration
should also be given to Heathrow Airport,
located north of the Borough, which is a large
employment hub in the region.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow
: Harlington Airport
Winsdor

StanwellNocth

AshfordiTown

Staines South

Riverside and
Laleham

Runnymede
Lglehamiond
shepperton
Green
0 1 2 km
| I

Figure 27. Workplace population density -

Ashford East

Feltham
and Heston

Workplace zones
Residents/He
(Census 2011)

25-50

s

Aih,forrchrnmonﬁ Sunbury Comman

shepperton Town

'

Hallifordiand
Sunbury West

b

Sunbury East
Twifkenham

Elmbridge

Contains 05 data @ Crown copyright 2021

47



ZST obed

Car Availability There is evidence that some households in
these urban areas do not own a car at all,
suggesting a greater reliance on walking,
cycling or public transport.

Car availability is considered to be relatively
high throughout Spelthorne. The areas where
households have limited access to a car or van
are concentrated in the built up urban areas
of Staines-Upon-Thames, Ashford East and
Sunbury (see Figure 28).

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow Car or Van per household
Winsdor ; b Winsdor
/ 115

Hayes and Heatrow Proportion of households
Airport -| with Car or Yan

B <sox

B so-6o%

[ 6o-0x
70- 8o%
80-gok
> 90%

[ oistrict/Borough boundary

raines

Elmbridge

0 1 2km > 0 1 2 km
L EE— [—

Contaims 05 dats © Crawn copyright 20m Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2001
Figure 28. Car/van availability Figure 29. Proportion of car/van per household

48 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



€GT abed

Indices of Multiple Deprivation

The Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) is

a measure of relative deprivation for small
areas/ neighbourhoods in England. It measures
income, employment, health, education, crime,
living environment and barriers to housing and
services. Areas in the first decile represent
the most deprived areas, whereas the 10th
decile represents least deprived areas. The
information was used for the identification of
under served areas and therefore what areas
would benefit the most from walking and cycle
routes improvements.

Figure 30 shows the 2019 IMD. From this figure
is can be seen that there are wide disparities
between high and low areas of deprivation
across the Borough, with three regions
identified within decile 3 and four regions
identified within decile 10.

f

Hayes and Heatrow Decile of Multiple Deprivation
Harlington Airport | (2019)
Winsdor o
I 3 (most deprived)

Stanelbivih) i o —

Staines

Feltham

tainessoLthl

Sunbury East

Runnymede SR /O 8 e
Laleham and
Shepperton _.‘”
Green 4

. Halliford and
'Su'Fvblsn')' West.
| .
|
ll'l/
i s
w5

Elmbridge

0 1 2 km
|

Figure 30. Index of multiple deprivation

Contains OS5 data © Crown copyright 2021

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

49



GT obed

Commuting Patterns

The Census data provides information on

the main commuter inflows and outflows to/
from Spelthorne, which is shown in Figure

31. The neighbouring boroughs of Hounslow,
Runnymede, Hillingdon (Heathrow Airport), and
Richmond upon Thames are among the top four
for inflows and/or outflows.

This indicates the importance of inter-borough
connectivity and inter-borough travel when
developing the cycle network. It also suggests
that a portion of these commuter trips are also
likely a cycleable distance and would have
potential for modal shift.

This also indicates the importance of providing
high-quality walking and cycling links to
railway stations in Spelthorne to facilitate and
encourage linked active travel/public transport
trips.

50

Hounslow
Runnymede
Richmond upon Thames

Elmbridge

Commuter

Inflows Hillingdon

Windsor and Maidenhead
Surrey Heath

woking

Slough

Ealing

Spelthorne

Hounslow

travel to work totals

21,122

Inflow

S0, 2389

Outflow

=9,11 7

Net change

Hillingdon
Runnymede

Richmond upon Thames

Commuter
Outflows

Elmbridge
Westminster,City of London
Slough

Kingston upon Thames
Windsor and Maidenhead

Ealing

Figure 31. Travel to work commuter patterns for Spelthorne Borough (source: https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/)

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



GGT abed

Barriers and Constraints

Severance is a significant barrier to mobility

in Spelthorne, particularly for active travel
modes. Issues are highlighted in Figure 32 and
described below:

» Multiple railway lines traverse the Borough,
which sever the local road network and funnel
traffic for all modes to a limited number of
crossing points.

» Several dual carriageway roads sever local
street networks and create barriers to active
travel. These include the A30 and A308, which
are barriers to north/south mobility;

» The M3 motorway severs network connectivity
in the southeast of the Borough.

» The River Thames forms the western boundary

of the Borough, limiting regional connectivity
for all modes to the main crossing points of
the Thames. The distance between crossing

opportunities creates a significant barrier for all
mades, particularly the viability of short trips via

walking or cycling.
» Several large reservoirs and wetland habitats

are located throughout the Borough. These sites

provide valuable wildlife habitat and essential

clean drinking water for the region, but they also

create severance issues for all modes of travel.
» Motor vehicle speed can be a barrier to active

travel, where walking or cycling alongside

or crossing high speed traffic can create

an unpleasant, uncomfortable, or unsafe

environment.

e b= L N ——
"o e . 1 Ly e < 7
~ Hayesand Heatrow 2 o == =t Railway Lines

| e— Motorway

A Road [ Dual Carriageway
Local Road

______

~ Elmbridge

Contains OS data copyright 2021

Figure 32. Severance in Spelthorne

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

51



9GT abed

Collision Data

As part of the LCWIP, a high-level review of
recent collision data (2015-2019) involving

pedestrians and people cycling was undertaken.

This provided an understanding of where
collisions are occurring and routes which could
benefit from safety improvements as part of an
LCWIP scheme.

Pedestrian Collisions

Figure 33 presents a ‘heatmap‘ illustrating
the location and relative concentration of
pedestrian collisions within the Borough.
Collisions were concentrated in the towns of
Staines-Upon Thames, Ashford and Sunbury.
This is likely due to the higher population
density and clustering of key destinations in
these areas of the Borough (as summarised

in previous sections), and hence greater
propensity for walking and cycling activity and
higher traffic in these areas. Relative ‘hotspots’
include:

» Church Road, Ashford (B378
» Staines Road West, Sunbury (A308)
» High Street, Staines

Fatal 5 1
Serious 46 9.2

Slight 139 27.8

Total 190 38

Table 1. Pedestrian collisions, by severity

52

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow Pedestrian collisions
Harlington Airport (2015- 2019)
Winsdor g o
A Serious
A Sslight
[ istrict/Borough boundary
A
1 ehliN ‘ ‘
Staines
Feltham
and Heston
& pa 1
Ashford Town Adhfo A
T, -‘ ‘ -
A A A
i‘h 2 2 2t
Ashford Common Sunbugy Common
S'..J.-‘F"."(.\Il.'nl“ A fIC‘ C‘I"; A -
A
'y /s 'y
A 3\ A Ay
Riverside and
et it .
A A % Sunbury East
Runnymede A Twitkénham
A 2
A
A A - =
A a A A
A A
A
& A
A A‘
S.h.eu;\c.-tu.-acw.--
Elmbridge
0 1 2 km '
| I

Figure 33. Pedestrian collisions

Contains OS5 data © Crown copyright 2021

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/ST abed

Cyclist Collisions ﬁ
. . . . H d Heat list collisi
The locatlolns gnd severity of_cychst colhsmps H:ff:;ln ety 8‘;‘;‘ ;&;"“5
are shown in Figure 34. As with the pedestrian Winsdor T _ o Fatal
collisions, clustering of the cyclist collisions is ' @ serious
apparent along the main road network. Areas . ' o slight
found to have a higher concentration of cyclist - : [~} pistrict/Borough boundary
collisions are noted below: ’ * :
» B376 in Staines-Upon-Thames : | .

» B378 through Ashford

» A308 between Ashford and Sunbury p
» B375 in the south of the Borough
» A244 through Shepperton oo . Feitham
@ and Heston
. : % o°
Severity Total | Avg/Yr & o oo @ iy @
° %, ° B
Fatal O 0 . ' L @ ® @ Ashford Comman . Sunbury Common
Staines Southdie ’.‘ P @®
Serious 60 12 & o 9 o . 2,
= & Tl ® o S
Slight 217 43.4 R anc & ogo
e G .
Total 27 554 e $ g e Jwikahham
T ° T \
Table 2. Cyclist collisions, by severity N Sheppeton ®_
Green 3 .
* s sz'liff;i.ifi ¢
g
o
®e
%o, °
o
0% o8 2
"1 Shepperton Town @ ‘ :
°
T e i o "IN ® Elmbridge
0 1 2 km :
gy Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 34. Cyclist collisions

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 53



8GT abed

Online Public Comments

Several online platforms have been used
recently to gather input from the public
about their suggestions for active travel
improvements and existing issues. These
include the following platforms:

Commonplace

The online Commonplace website provides
a platform to gather suggestions for active
travel improvements. Originally launched by
SCC in summer 2020, the website gathered
suggestions for active travel improvements
in response to the Covid-19 pandemic,
which could support social distancing and

a encourage mode shift. The website was
subsequently adapted for the Surrey LCWIPs
and re-publicised to gather comments in
support of the Spelthorne LCWIP.

Widen My Path

Similar to the Surrey Covid Transport Map,
‘Widen My Path'’ is a website launched by
Cycle Streets during the Covid-19 pandemic
as a tool to collect suggestions from the
general public throughout the UK for active
travel improvements.

Key Findings from Public Comments

A composite heatmap illustrating the location
and level agreement for both pedestrian and
cycling issues across the available online
comment platforms is illustrated in Figure 35.
This map provides a visual representation of
higher priority areas for walking and cycling
improvements, from the perspective of local
residents.

54

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow "1 pistrict/Borough boundary
Harlington Airport
Winsdor . More popular

Less popular

Stanweell North

Feltham
and Heston

Runnymede ~ Twifkenham

=

Elmbridge

0 1 2 km
L I

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2011

Figure 35. Heatmap of comments related to walking and cycling issues across multiple online public comment platforms

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



6GT obed

Figure 36 provides a detailed breakdown
of the public suggestions for active travel
improvements across Spelthorne.

In total 166 comments were logged in
Commonplace platform with 251 agreements
on the comments. 40% of the comments
referred to cycle facilities, 18% to pedestrian
facilities and 42% to both pedestrian and
cycle facilities. Widen my path platform has
92 comments on the cycle facilities with

279 agreements.

Some of the more common/popular locations
for walking and cycling improvements included:

» Improvements to Staines Bridge (across
the River Thames) and the surrounding
approach roads

» Pedestrian and cycle improvements in the
vicinity of Sunbury Railway Station

» Along the A308 corridor, between Staines-Upon-
Thames and Sunbury

» Sunbury-Upon-Thames

» The Thames Path National Trail, along the
western boundary of the Borough

» Along the A244 through Shepperton

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

i

Winsdor

Staines

[ ]

Runnymede

0 1 2 km
I

Hayes and Heatrow
Harlington Airport

StanwelliNarth

L
Ashferd North
ard Stanwell

.» South
v
®

r L )
)
e Staineouth

‘q .'.-.

Riverside and ®,
Laleheam

Creen;

® [ )
L]
= ¥ Yo% sown ‘.. J\sﬁu__d[:;a
L]

] e O N
® €]

falehamignd.
Shepperton

..'v' 2 Qo:o
8

Commonplace comments
(14/06(2021)
Size of icon based on agreements
@ Cycle facilities
Other issues

@ Pedestrian facilities
@ Pedestrian and
cycle facilities
Widen My Path

(03/06/2021)
Size of icon based on agreements

W Cycle facilities

y Your Funds Surrey Map
(November to April)

[__ ] District/Borough boundary

Feltham

and Heston

. ;
Sunbury Common

._
v

Sunbury East

Hallifordand v
Sunbury West

Tuickenham

- L ]
. o 1

L ]

i s =
5.=-cp,-_\er€c Town
- L L ]

v® Elmbridge

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 36. Comments related to walking and cycling issues across multiple online public comment platforms

55



09T abed

Propensity to Cycle

The Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT) is an
online tool and dataset designed to assist

with strategic planning of cycling networks. It
illustrates an indicative current and potential
future distribution of cycle trips to work and to
school based on different growth scenarios. The
model identifies preferred ‘fast’ and ‘quieter’
cycle routes between origin and destinations
pairs, and assigns trips to these routes. ‘Fast’
routes are based primarily on the shortest
distance (i.e., most direct route), while ‘quieter’
routes also consider motor vehicle traffic
volumes. The hilliness of a route is also a

key factor considered within the model when
estimating potential cycling activity.

The Spelthorne LCWIP PCT analysis was
conducted using data downloaded in May 2021.
The following data categories were utilised for
the analysis:

» Geography: Lower Super Output Area (LSOA)
geography was selected because it provides
greater granularity of origin/destination pairs
within Spelthorne and is appropriate for the
scale of the study area.

» Growth Scenario: ‘Go Dutch’ was selected to
reflect the high aspirations of the LCWIP for a
step-change in levels of cycling in the Borough.
The ‘Go Dutch’ scenario models the increase in
cycling as a function of distance and hilliness,
plus a number of socio-demographic and
geographical characteristics, to reflect what
could happen if the proportion of commuters
that would be expected to cycle if all areas of

56

»

»

»

England and Wales had the same infrastructure
and cycling culture as the Netherlands, where
approximately 28% of trips are made by cycle.
Direct Desire Lines: Direct point-to-point desire
lines in the PCT (desire lines between LSOAS)
were reviewed to identify desire lines with higher
levels of potential demand. The PCT model then
applied these desire lines to the actual network,
and the outputs were analysed as described
below.

Cycling Flows: ‘Fast’ routes were the primary
output as they represent the most direct desire
lines for cycling, which are more likely to attract
new cyclists and support growth in cycling.

The top 25 ‘quieter’ routes (in terms of highest
cycle flows) were also reviewed during network
refinement for potential alternative route options
with minimal detour.

Most Cycled Network Links: The PCT
aggregates all ‘fast’ route trips to provide a total
of cycle flows along each link in the network.
Commuter and school flows, however, are
disaggregated and viewed independently. Cycle
flows were categorised as high, medium, and
low to illustrate the preferred routes (i.e., highest
flows) and identify an initial cycle network with
coverage across Spelthorne. This is the key
output of the PCT utilised from the PCT analysis.

The following sections summarise the analysis
of the journey to work and journey to school
PCT data. However, it is important to note that
commuting and education only account for 28%
of all trips.! Therefore, the available data is only
representative of a small percentage of overall
trips and potential demand for cycling.

1 2019 National Travel Survey, Table NTS0409a. Commuting
accounts for 15% of all trips, education/escort to education
13% of all trips

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



T9T abed

PCT Commuter Mode Share

Based on the 2011 Census, cycle mode share
for commuting was found to be low across the
Borough, typically less than 5% (Figure 37). The
only part of the Borough to register a higher
level of cycle commuting was in Staines South,
which was slightly higher at 5% to 10%. The

Hayes and Heatrow
Harlington Airport

L E—

PCT, however, illustrates the high propensity
for growth in cycling across Spelthorne.

Under the ‘Go Dutch' scenario, much of the employment areas along the corridor.
Borough would have a cycle commuter mode

share of over 20%. The propensity is relatively

higher along the north east boundary of the

Borough where the PCT indicates a potential

Cycle commuter
Maode Share 201

. <

| EFiH
praoe

| District/Borough boundary

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 37. Journey to work cycling mode share based on 2011 Census data

mode share of over 20%. This could be due
to higher population density and proximity to

Hayes and Heatrow Cycle commuter
Harlingtan Airport Mode Share

% Go Dutch scenario
. <

I 5-0x%

10-15%
5-20%
B 20-25%

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 38. Journey to work cycling mode share based on the PCT ‘Go Dutch’ scenario

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

57



29T abed

PCT - Existing Cycle Commuter Trips ﬁ

The 2011 Census data provides an indication

of existing cycle commuter trips being made
across Spelthorne. Figure 39 shows the highest
rates of commuter cycling journeys took place
near the town centre of Staines-Upon Thames.
A popular commuter route was also identified in

Haw_zs and Hi_edirow PCT - Cycle commuter trips
Harlington Airport | Existing (Census 2011)
; i

" | > 25-100
r — > 100
C [71 pistrict/Borough boundary
; =

Winsdor

Stamwell North

the north of the borough, connecting Stanwell g
to Harmondsworth, with over a 100 daily trips. “_l
ot Sl
5 and Heston
DORTS =ty
‘l\\ "'\H/ A Ashiford,East

A 4
shford Common \Sunbury Common

/3\/ St‘aint"s_Scuﬂ' X ' 2t

e
iverside and 1
Lalehdm
B

}ul’y.‘ﬂ'&l
Runnymede — \ B " kenham
Laleham and £ ’ -'
- » g
; irJr.ifora and
Sunbury West »

0 1 2km ‘
—— 0 Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021
Figure 39. PCT daily commuter cycle flows - Existing

58 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



€97 abed

PCT - Cycle Commuter Trips -
Government Targets

This scenario represents a doubling of

the existing cycling levels, in line with the
government's target to double the number of
‘stages’ (legs of a trip using a single mode)
cycled by 2025. Indicative flows are illustrated
by Figure 40 and include the following

key routes:

» Kingston Road (Staines)

» A3044 (between Staines-Upon-Thames
and Harmondsworth)

» B378 (between Stanwell and Ashford)

» A308 (between Ashford and Sunbury)

» B376-NCN Route 4 (between Laleham and
Staines-Upon-Thames)

ﬁ Hay{as and H'eatrow PCT - Cycle commuter trips
Harlington Airport Government Target

<25
. s 25-100

— > 100
. | ___i District/Borough boundary

Winsdor

S Feltham
/\/‘EL and Heston
. \ . /S J Al'r.'ju'd East.
\\h 7 ;15&]%&;:0» \sunbury Commen
Staines soTm 1 "' — fk -
il ] - d
T 4= .
BN |
Riverside and -,
Lu?‘ehum ——
Y
] .'hu.'}-\.'r'v East
Runnymede ¢ L Twitkénham
Lafeham and e ~ ’

SheppertonTewn

Shepperton ,-‘
Green =
Halliford and
j Sunbury West

Elmbridge

0 1 2 km .
I : !
Contains 05 data @ Crown copyright 2021

Figure 40. PCT daily commuter cycle flows - Government Target

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

59



9T obed

PCT - Cycle Commuter Trips - Go Dutch

Estimated daily commuter cycle flows from
the PCT Go Dutch scenario are illustrated in
Figure 41. This map indicates the routes with
the highest relative propensity for cycling in
Spelthorne based on journey to work data.?
Roads across the Borough are seen to have
relatively high flows, within and linking any of
the settlement areas.

Indicative key corridors and linkages with
relatively high flows include:

» Between Staines-Upon Thames and Stanwell
» Between Staines-Upon Thames and Sunbury
» Between Stanwell and Sunbury

» Between Ashford and Sunbury

» Between Sunbury and Shepperton

1 To approximate the number of cycle trips on a link for all trip
purposes, the PCT commuter flows can be multiplied by 6
(based on National Travel Survey data for the share of cycle
trips which are for commuting purposes and doubling the
journey to work flows to account for round trip commuting).

60

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow
Harlington Airport

PCT - Cycle commuter trips
Go Dutch scenatio

<15

Winsdor

25100

— > 100

[~ pistrict/Borough boundary

Feltham
and Heston

o )

‘\' Sunbury Common
o '
-
Sinbury East

l H vmmr‘.’?.md

Laleham

Runnymede i X Twitkenham
Laleham and .-l \ \
Shepperton
Green ‘/\ !
Halliford and
Sunbury YWest
N
Elmbridge
0 1 2 km
| I

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021
Figure 41. PCT daily commuter cycle flows, ‘Go Dutch’ scenario

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



G9oT abed

PCT - Existing Cycle Trips to Schools

Figure 42 highlights education sites across the
Borough and the number of cycling trips that
are currently being made to them. In general,
the number of existing cycle trips is seen to be
low across the Spelthorne. The highest rates of
cycling (>25 trips) can be observed in the three
distinct clusters:

» Between Ashford Town and Staines South
» Sunbury
» Between Upper Halliford and Shepperton Town

/ ]
ﬁ / Hayes Nx\ Heatrow PCT - School Trips

HarIingtonI | Existing cycle trips
(Census 2011)
<25

Winsdor

—25-50

— G0

~ Primary Education
Secondary Education

[} pistrict/Borough boundary |

N
i

Ashford North
and Stanwell |
|

Feltham
and Heston

Ashford East.

SR ‘

- > d Ashfard Commi Sunbury Common ‘\“
- = ¥ " X
B - TR
% Hl\\i'ersldt‘éand ‘ ‘
Laleham \
Runnymede a Twitkenham
' 1 i
b -
Hallifordls
Sunbury West
I
~ i,
AL YD
| o Shepperton Tof{a w‘
a2 ;
| = Elmbridge
l“ . ¢
0 1 2k Y .
m |
—:-'I ' i | ‘____,/
i /s Comalnsﬁdiatamcruwnoopyrlpunn

Figure 42. PCT existing school trips

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

61



99T abed

PCT School Flows - Cambridge Scenario

Estimated daily journey to school cycle

flows from the PCT Cambridge scenario are
illustrated in Figure 43. This scenario models
the rates of children who would cycle to school
if they acquired the same propensity to cycle
as children living in Cambridge. The data shows
higher propensity for cycle trips to school (>50)
are found in the following areas:

» Routes within Staines-Upon-Thames

» Corridor between Stanwell, Ashford,
and Sunbury

» Routes linking Sunbury and Shepperton

» Corridor linking Shepperton with Staines-Upon-
Thames

62

]

Winsdor

Hayes and Heatrow PCT - School Trips
Harlington Airport Cambridge scenario
<25

— 25-50
—_— 550
Primary Education
Secondary Education

[} District/Borough boundary

Feltham./ 7~
and Heston -

Astitrd Town 2 nLE,c Ea:

~ ashford Com m
o Seaine L =
IVEr I o
i

Lalehanyand
Shepperton
Green

Runnymede

and
su. bury West

.iI 1l

sJPnnro Town, I,

Etmbridge

0 1 L2 2km
[ —

Contains O5data © Crown copyFight 20m

Figure 43. PCT School trips in the Cambridge scenario

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/9T abed

PCT Short Trip Opportunities

The PCT data also identifies where short
commuter trips are currently made by car
(based on 2011 Census journey to work data).
Two PCT assessments were conducted, one
for trips less than 2km (Figure 44) and one
for those trips less than 5km (Figure 45).
These figures illustrate commuter trips made
by private car (driver or passenger), which
originate and/or end in Spelthorne.

These figures highlight trips that are within
an easy cycling distance and opportunities
for modal shift, by providing improved cycle
infrastructure.

It is considered that trips up to 5km could be
replaced by cycling and trips less than 2km
could be replaced by walking or cycling. Areas
with a higher number of short commuter

trips made (less than 2km) can be seen in the
following parts of the Borough:

» Between Stanwell and Ashford South
»  Within Sunbury

» Within Shepperton

» Within Staines-Upon-Thames

Analysis of the commuter trips up to 5km,
highlights a similar pattern, but with increasing
numbers of trips across the east-west central
corridor, connecting Staines-Upon-Thames with
Ashford.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

]

Winsdor

Runnymede

0 1

| I

Hayes and
Harlington

Stanwell North

Figure 44. Short car trips (<2.5km)

Heatrow

Airport (<2km)
<15
15-25
> 125

short car commuter trips

! i District/Borough boundary

Feltham
and Heston

Ashford Town Ashford Eqst

SheppertoniTawn

Elmbridge

Contains 05 data

ary East

Twitkenham

© Crown copyright 2021

63



89T abed

PCT Short car trips

Figure 45 highlights the distribution of short car
trips (less than 5km) in Spelthorne. The data
illustrates the potential of creating cycle routes
connecting Staines to Sunbury as one of the
key ‘driving’ corridor in the area. The connection
from Staines towards Laleham /Ashford also
shows great potential.

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow Short car commuter trips
Harlington Airport (<skm)
Winsdor <15
15-25
>25
[} pistrict/Borough boundary
Stanwell North
-
Staines _ishfordNorth
and Stanwell
g¥south
; Feltham
' and Heston
.l e
- AShjordiiggn = .ﬂush,‘qrd (Fa
Y "
» 2 =y Asbford Common Sunbury Common
Stoines Sout
f::%iv?ﬁidf and
&) Laleham
L Sunbiry East
Y Twitkénham
Laleham and I , N
Shepperton i
Green t
Halliford and
Sunbury West
SheppertoriTawn
Elmbridge
0

Figure 45. Short car trips (<5km)

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

64

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



69T abed

PCT - Commuter Walking Trips

Figure 46 highlights the number of existing
commuter trips that are undertaken on foot.
The data shows that most of these trips are
concentrated in urban areas, where the distance
between residential communities and places

of employment are shorter, and the option of
walking as a mode of travel is more appealing
for residents. The highest rates of commuter
walking trips (>40) were noted in Staines-Upon-
Thames.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

]

‘Winsdor
Staines
Runnymede
0 1 2 km
L I

Hayes and Heatrow
Harlington Airport
StanwellNorth
Ashford North
and Stanwell
\ South
Ashford Town Ashford East
Ashford Common
Staines South
Riverside and
Laleham
Laleham and
Shepperton.

Green

—

Shepperton Town

Figure 46. Walking commuter trips

PCT - Commuter Walking Trips
<20

— 20 - 40

— > 40

Feltham
and Heston

Sunbury Commaon

Sunbury East
Twitkenham

Halliford and
Sunbury West

Elmbridge

Contains OS5 data @ Crown copyright 2011

65



0.T obed

Strava Data

Publicly available data for cycle trips recorded
using Strava were also reviewed.! Strava is

a mobile and internet-based application for
tracking various activities (i.e., cycling, running,
etc). The data presented represents cycle trips
recorded by users of Strava's app. Although the
data tends to be skewed more heavily towards
leisure/recreational trips rather than utilitarian
trips, it provides a snapshot of preferred routes
that supplement the commuter cycling trips
provided in the PCT analysis.

Strava is publicly available as an online
heatmap, which illustrates routes that are more
heavily used by people cycling. The Strava data
for Spelthorne is shown in Figure 47.

Routes with higher relative usage include:

» B376 /Laleham Road (Staines)

» Kingston Road (Staines)

» B378/Church Road (Ashford)

» B377/Fordbridge Road (Ashford)
» Green Street (Sunbury)

» Nursery Road (Sunbury)

» B3366/Green Lane (Shepperton)
» B376/High Street (Shepperton)

=

. https://www.strava.com/

66

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow
Harlington Airport

. More popular

Less popular

Winsdor

LY

and Stanwell
South

Feltham
and Heston

\ As e }
‘ ishford Taw ASHfOR EGSE_ s .
R Y ' i
. AshferdCommon Sunbury Comimon
taines,South —

) \

Ritgrside an'n' f
" Lleharm |

——

Runnymede : - \ itkenhan
‘ Lalehamiond "-.
" shepperton = iy
Green i 1
’ //—. ﬁuf.'l_f:l.'d and
Sunbury West
Elmbridge
0 1 2 km
L

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 47. Indicative illustration of routes used cycle trips recorded using Strava.com (source: Strava global heatmap)

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



T.T 9bed

Proposed Infrastructure Developments

A range of targeted infrastructure proposals
have been identified by Surrey County Council
and Spelthorne Borough Council. These new
facilities would provide valuable opportunities
for active travel across the borough and provide
realistic alternatives to short distance vehicle
journeys. Figure 48 highlights the locations of
these proposed walking and cycling schemes.

l

Winsdor

| Hayesand Heatrow i/ staines Development Framework

Harlington Airport

Existing Proposed Schemes
. | e Cycle facilities
et 4= Thames' crossings

Previou Studies
e Surrey Infrastructure

Study (2017)
. Wider Staines Sustainable
Transport Package (STP 4)

Ashford North
and Stanwell |
South | | L

T Searar Feltham
FiFf o2 and Heston

I~y . Ashford Town \ Ashford East

I .

& 5 B e " Ashford Common Sunbury Comon
x ~"Staines South i g

=

o i - — B -
- - ' l. e . v
o Riverside and 1} \ - ‘ ‘
! Laleham \
o s Sunbury East
Runnyme 2 Twitkenham
Hallfordland
: Sunbury West
{ Sheppertan Tawn
o A
L)
0 1 2km '
I '

Contains 05 data @ Crown copyright 201

Figure 48. SCC & SBC previous, ongoing and future studies

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

67



2/ T abed

Cycle for Health Routes ﬁ

The Cycling for Health Scheme was established /. Hayesand Heat | S/ for et Scheme ot
by Spelthorne Borough Council. The initiative Winsdor ' : - -~ Ro:;:;

aims to improve public health by encouraging
local residents to cycle. The Scheme is free to
join and is aimed at adults, offering guided rides

s ROUtE 3

— ROUtE 4

_ - Routes
of various distances throughout the Borough. K e Route 6
In addition to the guided rides, the Borough = Route7
Council produced ‘Self led’ cycle packs, — Route 8
containing eight rides. Figure 49 highlights the e [ District/Borough boundary
alignments of these promoted cycle routes. g andstamac)

H g ‘l::.‘
| Feltham
il Ashford Common Sunbury Common

s
&Halriforand

E ‘ 7 5 Sunbury West
--... g
S V *,,

’S:eppemon Tawn w‘
(ol
‘. Elmbridge
Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

7

0 1 2 km
N ]

Figure 49. Cycle for health scheme routes

68 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



¢/ T obed

Heathrow LCWIP

As mentioned in the Relevant Schemes a
LCWIP study was developed to suit Heathrow
Expansion Project's requirements, to identify
potential improvements to bring the network up
to standard which will help overcome barriers
for cycling and sift the mode share for people
commuting to the airport.

The proposals include cycle facilities to all
neighbouring boroughs around Heathrow and
routes within the airport's premises.

Cycle routes are proposed to link Heathrow
with:

» Stanwell via quiet ways and shared use paths in
the local network

» Ashford via the existing link on Town Lane and
new paths on Stanwell Road

» Staines Upon-Thames via the existing facility
on Stanwell Moor Road and new shared used
paths that will join the existing network in
the town and the proposals for the Staines
Development Framework.

Additionally a new cycle facility is proposed

along the A30 (London Road) which will link

Staines Upon-Thames with Ashford, Heathrow

Airport and Hounslow.

The proposed routes are of high importance in
the network and have high propensity of cycle
commuter trips since a number of Spelthorne's
population is employed in Heathrow.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

l

Hayes and
Harlington

Winsdor
5 tar
0 5
R
ool W
L3 -
4
£
-
2 '
Riverside ar
Laleham
Runnymede
0 1 2 km

Staines South

d

Heatrow
Airport

Heathrow LCWIP

Proposals

— 1WO-Way segregated
cycle track

e One-way cycle track

Cycle track
As existing

e Shared Use Path

s Cycle lane
Quietway

e Mixed Traffic

= = = Routes outside Speltorne

== Staines Development
v===" Framework

I | District/Borough boundary

Feltham
and Heston

hford Towri
Ashford Towr Ashford East

Ashford Common Sunbury Common

Sunbury East

Twitkenhan

Laleharm and
Shepperton.
Green

Shepperton Town

Elmbridge

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 20n

Figure 50. Heathrow's LCWIP proposed network in Spelthorne

69



/T obed

River Thames Scheme ﬁ

As mentioned in the Relevant Schemes, the prdls i Red e Boundary
River Thames Scheme aims to reduce the Winsdor . e Sl s,
flood risk to communities in Surrey and South Sl _ - - Publicrights of way
West London. The scheme extends between Buro Happold study
Runnymede, Spelthorne and Elmbridge, in the (Augist203)

5 P e | - ===« Proposed footway/Cycleway
Shepperton area. :, 7 ) S .' Feiipmme it R «—s Proposed crossing

The construction of the channel provides an AR o 0 ===+ Proposed connection
opportunity to create green spaces and to W Ty . : - laposea inferventicn ite
enhance walking and cycling through new Ele Sike = B Habitat creation areas

facilities along the river.

[} pistrict/Borough boundary

A pre-feasibility study has been undertaken . A e
relating to active travel, biodiversity and natural '

capital enhancements in 6 areas in Surrey,
where two of them were in Spelthorne:

HR Owen Land: located to the south of Chertsey .
Road and the RTS creates a new channel .'
through the north eastern corner of the site to T 4 Riversid and I
connect the lakes, where a new walking and = B E ) b

cycling route is proposed along the channel to Runnymede . \ T naigelhem
link Chertsey Road and existing pedestrian and y 5 e i
cycle facilities on Ferry Lane. _ ; T / i s

At

“Ashford Town Ashford East

Ashford Common Sunbury Common
1

Sheep Walk Manor Farm: located to the north
of Chertsey Road south of the M3, where a
new west-east walking and cycle corridor is
proposed to link Sheep Walk to Shepperton.

Additional aspirational connections are
proposed though the scheme with new links
between Shepperton and Chertsey, Shepperton
and Littleton, improved connectivity to 0 " 5P hn
Desborough Island, and new river crossings. o E— >

ey Elmbridge

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 51. River Thames Scheme proposals

70 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



G/ T obed

Summary of Key Findings

The evidence base review provided a wealth

of data and information related to walking and
cycling in Spelthorne, which were used to help
inform the identification of key cycle routes and
walking areas. Some of the key findings and
take-aways included:

» Settlement patterns in Spelthorne are heavily
concentrated in the north east and a central
east-west band across the Borough, as
illustrated in the population data and locations
of key destinations. The higher density and
proximity of trip attractors leads to a higher
propensity for walking and cycling in these
areas of the borough, as demonstrated by the
PCT data.

» Commuting data highlight the importance of
linkages with neighbouring boroughs, as well
as access to railway stations to facilitate linked
active travel/public transport journeys.

» There are several physical barriers that
sever active travel networks, including large
reservoirs, railway lines, the A roads and the M3.

» The River Thames limits regional connectivity to
the west and south, respectively.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

»

»

»

»

The collisions history is reflective of settlement
patterns, with the highest occurrences of cycle
and pedestrian collisions recorded across the
central east-west corridor of the Borough,
though Shepperton in the south also has a
relatively higher concentration of collisions.

A number of online public engagement tools
were available, which captured existing public
input on active travel issues and suggestions.
Mapping of this data highlights perceived local
priorities amongst the general public.

The PCT indicates a relatively high propensity
for cycling in Spelthorne, both for commuter and
school trips. Propensity is again highest in the
built-up urban areas.

Strava data indicates several longer routes
across the Borough with relatively high existing
usage. This is also reflective of anecdotal
information about high levels of leisure/sport
cycling within and through Spelthorne.

71






& 5. Stakeholder Engagement

Introduction
Stakeholder Workshops
Public Engagement and Other Meetings




g/ T abed

Introduction

Stakeholder engagement is a key element
of this study as it ensures that the views
and knowledge of local people are taken
into account. During the project two sets of
workshops were held, named Phase 1 and
Phase 2 workshops.

Each Phase involved meetings with three
separate audiences: internal stakeholders (such
as representatives from Surrey County Council
and Spelthorne Borough Council), external
stakeholders (such as representatives from
walking and cycle groups, as well as business
groups) and elected members.

The first workshop presented the existing
issues and the identification from walking and
cycle routes. The second workshop reviewed
the proposed infrastructure interventions.

Stakeholders' comments provided important
feedback throughout each stage of the study.
Comments taken on board to refine the core
walking zones, walking and cycling route
selection and the proposed intervention
measures. The minutes of all six workshops
are presented in Appendix 5 at the end of
this report.

Public engagement via interactive websites and
meetings with SCC and SBC also took place as
part of the LCWIP development.

74

Stakeholder Workshops

Phase 1 Stakeholder Workshops

During the first stage of the LCWIP,
stakeholders’ workshops were held in July
2021 where representatives from various
borough's organisations such as SCC and SBC,
cycling and walking groups, business groups
and elected members attended. In total 28
participants (excluding Atkins and SCC / SBC
project teams) attended all three workshops.

The workshop was divided into three main
parts. The first included a presentation of the
project and work so far (data collected), the
second part a presentation of the proposed
cycle network and the third part included a
presentation of the core walking zones and
walking routes. After the presentation of

the cycle and walking networks, there was

an interactive session where participants’
comments were added to the relevant map
(Figure 52). Participants were also asked to
vote for their top five cycle routes and top 5
core walking zones / walking routes and the
outcome was added to the MCAF process (refer
to Walking and Cycle Network sections) in
order to select the routes to be advanced to the
design process.

The proposed cycle and walking networks
were subsequently updated following the
comments received.

1 Internal stakeholders' workshop on 12 July, external workshop
on 20 July and elected members workshop on 23 July 2021.

Phase 2 Stakeholder Workshops

During the second stage of the LCWIP,
stakeholders' workshops were held in late
September / early October 20212 The lists of
invitees were very similar to the ones for the
Phase 1 workshops, although a few names
were added throughout the process. In total 30
participants (excluding Atkins and SCC / SBC
project teams) attended all three workshops.

The workshop was divided into two main
parts. The first included a presentation on the
proposed design interventions for the cycle
routes and the second part a presentation

on the proposed design interventions for the
selected core walking zones and walking
routes. As per the Phase 1 stakeholders
workshops, after the presentation of the cycle
and walking networks, there was an interactive
session where participants comments were
added to the relevant map (Figure 52).

As before, the design interventions for
both the cycle and walking selected routes
were subsequently updated following the
comments received.

2 Internal stakeholders workshop on 30 September, external
workshop and elected members workshop on 5 October 2021.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



6. T obed

Public Engagement and Other Meetings

Public engagement

Early public engagement was carried out via
a number of web base surveys conducted by
SCC including Widen my Path, Your Funds
Surrey, and Commonplace from the Active
Travel map. The interactive sites allowed the
public to leave comments about deficiencies
and improvements towards walking and
cycle routes.

The surveys were opened to the public
following the outbreak of COVID-19 and Atkins
processed the available data up to the second
week of June 2021.

Other meetings and site visits

Throughout the development of the LCWIP,
regular meetings took place with SCC and

SBC project teams to review the cycle and

walking network proposals, as well as the

design interventions.

Also, an additional site visit took place

on 2nd November when Atkins and SCC
project team joined elected members on a
visit to key sites including Church Road and
Sunbury Roundabout.

Next Steps

In the next stages of the LCWIP, stakeholder
engagement will be a crucial part of the study

and full public consultations will be undertaken

before projects are implemented.

i
< i Hoarow Terming § \,
|

ISticky N20/12/2021 16:04:04 [
RAGU7446 Options ~

RAGU744628/07/2021 14:48:10

_Sticky Note
RAGUT446

e \ Wanon-en-Thames
T

Figure 52. Stakeholders comments during stakeholder workshop

At -““"'H_‘-‘l__/""f r\

3

[Slick26/07/2021 13:50:15 [
RAGUT446 Options -
nio funding tor jct

RAGUTA4626/07/2021 14:5

Spelthomne
Cycling Network
Cyrling 1 anglist
~— Primary
Mershar ~ = Secondary
««« Terary
Heathronw LOWTP Propnsals

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

75



www.soallceresiourant.co.nk
o |

ISINE 01784 259 180/251 437

AP ey FrRUITS

T — e
i e = e e e W e — -

"

07546 265568 ASHFORD FRUITS

=T ﬁ-—,—':‘r’

P &
e




S Design Interventions: Place-Based Approach

Introduction




28T obed

Introduction

Proposed concept designs for the improvement
of the cycling and walking network are
presented on the following pages. Initially
they are been presented grouped by areas,

i.e., Ashford, Sunbury and Staines (Figures 53
to 55).

The cycle proposals aim to address gaps in
Spelthorne’s strategic cycling network to
connect settlements, both from periphery to
centre and to each other. The walking proposals
are focused around the commercial areas and
also aim to address deficiencies in the network
maximizing the accessibility of retail and other
key areas to the wider network.

In many areas the cycle and walking
interventions are intertwined. By showing
the interventions by area, it is possible to
have a compressive view of the extent of

the interventions and how both address the
objectives of the LCWIP. However, based on
the DfT LCWIP guidance, detail information
of the proposed improvements are presented
separately for cycling (Section 7) and walking
(Section 8).

78

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



£gT abed

Figure 53. Ashford: Proposed cycle and walking interventions

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

-~

0.

5
€
x
S
S
==
@)

/
/I
o
el
~/

Legend
——————— Core Walking Zone
== Railway Station

@ Zebra crossing —_
=)

Parallel crossing

Signalised pedestrian/
cyclist crossing
cfa

Raised junction

< Side road treatment

Public
realm improvements

e 00tway widening OO0

Footway resurfacing

——

Two-way segregated
cycle track
One-way segregated
cycle track

One-way stepped track

Contraflow cycle lane

Advisory cycle lane
Off-Carriageway path
Mixed traffic

Thames route (NCN 4)

School Street

—\J



8T abed

e
-
-

I.--.u

T
B oo

,,
11801

.
nlimg

4 -
g .

!

~~r

Legend T
------- Core Walking Zone — Two-way segregated i " --"'
Railway Station cycle track ) =‘,‘ -\ o~

Zebra crossing __ One-way segregated \ :_':,E;:: =370
. .

Signalised pedestrian/ Dl evayRicboEd trac

cyclist crossing —— Contraflow cycle lane

Raised junction —— Advisory cycle lane

=z

@ cycle track
e Parallel crossing g

()

)

<

Side road treatment ~ —~~~ Off-Carriageway path

Public - Mixed traffic
realm improvements -~~~ Thames route (NCN 4)
e Footway widening <000 School Street

=== Footway resurfacing

S N
Figure 54. Sunbury: Proposed cycle and walking interventions

80 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



b 1LE -_'f = '.-;'KingstOn Q(i)ad A

-
———

GgT abed

Note
Figures 56 and 57 (next pages) illustrate how School
, Road may look like once the cycle and walking
interventions are implemented.
A Legend
' 5 B / 2\ R s ... Core Walking Zone Two-way segregated
& a | : 9 == Railway Station cycle track
W O 3 @ Zebra crossing One-way segregated
N cycle track
NS @ Parallel crossing
~ x '\»p ) ) : One-way stepped track
N A% @ Signalised pedestrian/
N i cyclist crossing —— Contraflow cycle lane
vl iced iuncti —— Advisory cycle lane
VRN @ Raised junction y oy
= 1\ N\ .
e = U & Sideroad treatment ~ ~—~~ Off-Carriageway path
P 2 \ 3 Public ~ Mixed traffic
0 250 s00m o 7 : / q realm improvements -~~~ Thames route (NCN 4)
[ — Ly - K E J & h\ — FOOtWay Widening o000 School Street

- = TFootway resurfacing
Figure 55. Staines: Proposed cycle and walking interventions

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 81




08T abed

Interventions

1. New one-way cycle tracks of 1.5m width with
a 0.3m buffer.

2. Public realm improvements on the service
roads: Raised carriageway to the footway level,
change of material for a more pedestrian friendly
environment, added buildouts with planting to
indicate the parking spaces.

i 3. New bus cage on the carriageway. The change
of colour is transition from cycle track to cycle
lane to mixed traffic by the bus cage at the bus
stop as we don't have space for segregation.

i 4. Resurfacing of the footways.

5. Removal of central hatching, decreased width
of the traffic lanes and reduction of the speed
limit to 20mph.

Figure 56. School Road existing situation

82

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/8T abed

Interventions

1. New one-way cycle tracks of 1.5m width with
a 0.3m buffer.

2. Public realm improvements on the service
roads: Raised carriageway to the footway level,
change of material for a more pedestrian friendly
environment, added buildouts with planting to
indicate the parking spaces.

3. New bus cage on the carriageway. The change
of colour is transition from cycle track to cycle
lane to mixed traffic by the bus cage at the bus
stop as we don't have space for segregation.

4. Resurfacing of the footways.

5. Removal of central hatching, decreased width
of the traffic lanes and reduction of the speed
limit to 20mph.

2 ':"'"
¥ ’
- f

Figure 57. Proposed interventions for School R;oad

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

83






/. Cycle Network

Introduction

Methodology

Multi-Criteria Assessment Framework
Example Design Tools

Phase 1 Proposed Cycling Improvements
Assessment of Proposals




06T obed

Introduction

Proposed concepts designs for the
improvement of the cycling network for
Spelthorne are presented on the following
pages.

These proposals hope to address gaps in
Spelthorne’s strategic cycling network to
connect settlements, both from periphery to
centre and to each other. While the proposals
are focused around these areas they also
provide examples of the types of improvements
that can be implemented borough-wide as
needs or opportunities arise.

Development of the cycling network had two
key stages:

» Development of the ‘aspirational list’, which
identified key cycle corridors in the Borough. In
total, 19 corridors were identified and selected
as ‘primary’ for further consideration.

» Selection of the ‘short list’, which prioritised four
routes as ‘Phase 1' for further assessment and
concept development as part of the LCWIP.

The remaining areas (categorised as Phase 2
or 3) may be further developed in future, as
part of future workstreams or as other funding
opportunities arise.

86

Methodology

Spelthorne has good growth potential for
cycling. Whilst the borough's topography and
the proximity of the towns to neighbouring
boroughs and key destinations allows daily
commuter trips to be easily be made on a bike,
its cycling infrastructure does not offer enough
protection for new or less confident cyclists.
Consequently, short trips into town centres, rail
stations, leisure assets and neighbouring areas
are overwhelmingly made by private car.

A key barrier to cycling at present is the
inconsistent quality and accessibility of the
cycling network. Shared-use paths lead

to narrow lanes on busy
and fast roads, or suffer

from severance by major '
thoroughfares or railway lines. /.’
Facilities at footway level are i
narrow and offer no priority .

over side roads, resulting
in an inconvenient and
disjointed facility.

In order to identify and

close the gaps, a network

of preferred routes has

been defined drawing on the
analysis from the existing
data. The background
information included mapping
trip origins and destinations,

identifying desire lines for cycle movement and
allocating trips to specific routes, as well as
defining potential demand for cycling across
the borough.

The development of the cycling aspect of the
Spelthorne LCWIP focused on identification

of a Cycling Network Map detailing preferred
routes for further development, as per the DfT's
LCWIP technical guidance.

@ Crigin
Origin Cluster
@ Destination
Destination Cluster
== [esire Line Corridors

. » Access to main Desire Line
Carridors

Figure 58. Clusters of trip origins and destinations and desire lines connecting

them (DfT LCWIP Guidance)

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



T6T obed

Identification of Cycling Routes

In Spelthorne, and more widely in Surrey, there
is a wealth of background information that can
inform cycling patterns and highlight areas in
need of improvement. The aim of this analysis
piece is to meet the goal of significant mode
shift to more sustainable travel, targeting short
trips and utility trips such as school travel

and commuting, as well as access to areas of
leisure that can allow active and sustainable
travel habits to appeal to the residents of the
borough.

The methodology used to identify key links in
the study areas involved the gradual overlaying
of the following information to create a ‘Heat
Map' (see Figure 59) where the intersection

Figure 59. ‘Heat Map’ showing the various data elements
overlaid to show concentration of issues and opportunities

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

of relevant criteria suggests locations where
infrastructure improvements could provide
the greatest level of service, connectivity, and
safety benefits.

The following data were considered for the
identification of preliminary cycling networks:

» Key Trip attractors: rail station, retail centres
and high streets, educational facilities,
workplace areas, parks, and others, along with
their catchment areas (i.e. 20-minute cycle
catchment areas for the rail station, 5 minutes
to schools)

» Key Trip origins: such as denser residential areas
and planned developments

Figure 60. ‘X-Ray Map' highlighting areas to consider as
primary cycle corridors

»

»

»

»

Propensity to Cycle Tool: highlighting areas with
important existing cycle commuter and school
flows, 2011 Census

Origin-Destination data: highlighting the routes,
origins, and destinations of short motor vehicle
commuter trips (<5km) which could reasonably
be replaced by cycling trips

Cycle Collision points for the latest five years of
available data

Index of Multiple Deprivation and areas of

low car-ownership (targeting areas of higher
deprivation and lower car ownership, which
would benefit from cycle route improvements)

» Existing cycle facilities and recently proposed

[ Se—

facilities, including from SCC and RTS

Figure 61. The initial Cycling Network Map resulting from
the X-Ray analysis

87



26T abed

» Strava Data: a crowdsourced heat map of mainly
leisure/sport trips by pedal cycle

» Geolocated public suggestions for active travel
improvements, including Widen My Path, Your
Funds Surrey, and Surrey's Covid-19 Active
Travel Improvements interactive map

Mapping these issues and opportunities in

higher intensity colour indicates a potential

higher demand for utilitarian cycling trips or

where there is higher potential for mode shift or

new users.

88

Aspirational List for cycling

The outcome of the X-Ray approach is an
aspirational cycling network, where the trip
demand and destinations intersect. This full
network has been refined and prioritised,
drawing on further data analysis, desktop
investigations to create this core network of up
to 19 cycle routes and links.

An analysis on the density of the cycle network
was undertaken to locate the areas with

gaps for cyclists (Figure 62). The selected
aspirational corridors were then added and the
network density was increased in the extent of
the borough, linking the key town centres and

Figure 62. Density of the existing cycle network

providing a dense cycle network to the areas
with high population density (Ashford, Sunbury)
and areas with key trip attractors.

Note that in Figure 60 (previous page), A308 is
identified as a key route in the area. However,
the western section, in particular, has high
traffic volumes and limited connectivity to
residential areas. To that end, that section was
replaced by Kingston Road, which has similar
potential but much better connectivity to
residential areas (Figure 61).

Figure 63. Density of the aspirational cycle network

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



€6T obed

The network is distributed across the study
area! (Figure 642):
Renfree Way
Upper Halliford / Cadbury
A308 / Kingston Road
Laleham Park / Thames Side
Wraysbury Rd
Staines / Laleham Road
Stanwell Road
Feltham Hill Road
Ashford / Fordbridge Roads
. Fordbridge Road Sunbury
. Laleham Road
. Thames Street / Halliford Road
. Woodthorpe Road
. Staines Road East
. Thames Path
. Oakington Dr
. Brookside Ave
. Green Street
. Stanwell Moor Road

© 0N o~ LN

e e el = el s e =
© 0O N O Ul N WK P O

1 Staines Upon-Thames area is excluded from the selection of
the Aspirational list of cycle corridors, as it will be addressed
by the Staines Development Framework

2 The map shows the location of the proposed corridors along
with cycle corridors proposed during the early engagement
workshops (workshop #1) by local stakeholders, and alternative
alignments to the proposed ones, which will not be assessed to
be included in the Phase 1 cycle corridors.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

4
Hayes and Heatrow Aspirational list
Harlington Airport Cycle network
idor e Assessed routes
Additional routes
not included in the assessment
|"": Staines Development Framework
| i District/Borough boundary
StanwellNarth

19)

Staines Ashfard North

and Starvwell
South

Feltham
and Heston

o
<
e Lerd Town

», Ashford East.

= . - ¥
N @
Asbiford C n

Sunbury Common
Staines Solth: %

SunBury East .
@ Fevickenhan
Hallifordland /
S:!-ml.ry West ’ ;

Runnymede

Lalehamiand,
Shepperton)

Green

Sheppertoni Town

Elmbridge

=

Figure 64. Aspirational cycle network

89



6T obed

The long-list of cycle corridors has identified 19
different corridors. The key characteristics of
these corridors are outlined in the subsequent
section. For most corridors there is more than
one possible alignment. It is intended that
further assessment work will identify not

just high-performing corridors but also the
highest-performing route within those corridors.

Based on the results of the assessment, the
routes that scored higher were selected to
define a preliminary cycling network in the
borough. The proposed cycling routes include
sections of the existing cycling network.
These sections are an important foundation
of the network and may be upgraded and/

or better connected to new network links.
The preliminary cycle routes are presented
graphically in the previous figure and numbered
according to their description across the
subsequent pages.

It is important to note that, as much as possible,
these route will comprise of segregated cycle
lanes. However, this may not be possible due

to a number of constraints (such as available
space, topography, and gradient) but always
compliant to LTN 1/20.

1. Renfree Way

The cycle corridor is linking Shepperton to
Chertsey to the west via Chertsey Bridge and
to Walton On-Thames to the south via Walton
Bridge. It records high traffic flows, and the
propensity for cycle trips is high due to the
connectivity with urban centres. The existing

90

cycle facility is of poor quality, with narrow
lanes and faded road markings.

The corridor is proposed for improvements via
the River Thames Scheme.

2. Upper Halliford / Cadbury

The north-south corridor is an A road serving
not only Spelthorne, but Elmbridge and
Hounslow. A high quality cycle route along the
corridor would help shift the travel mode share
of the 3 boroughs, by encouraging more people
to travel by bike

3. A308 / Kingston Road

Is the core west-east route in Spelthorne
connecting Staines Up-on Thames to Ashford
area, and Sunbury, serving schools, residential
areas, and industrial areas. The corridor is
highly dominated by vehicular traffic, with

high speeds, but there is opportunity for a high
guality cycle facility, due to the available widths
and the topography of the area.

4. Laleham Park / Thames Side

The corridor is part of NCN4 and records high
cycle flows. This segment of the existing cycle
network is parallel to River Thames on a single
carriageway with poor visibility and no priority
for cyclists. The route is primarily intended

for recreation and leisure trips, but many
commuter destinations can benefit from it.

5. Wraysbury Rd

The corridor is proposed to link Staines Up-On
Thames with the neighbouring borough/
district of Windsor and Maidenhead. The road is

estimated to have high traffic flows as it is an
alternative route to the A30 to the north.

6. Staines / Laleham Road

This corridor passes via residential areas with
moderate population density, connecting the
town centre and the railway station to Laleham.
It is an alternate, less isolated alignment, to the
NCN 4 off carriageway path that passes along
the River Thames. Today, the existing cycle
facilities are substandard and the cycle lanes
are blocked by parked vehicles, mainly closer
to Staines.

7. Stanwell Road

The corridor links Ashford Hospital, Ashford
High Street, Convent Road and the A308
(Staines Road). The road network is congested,
especially at the northern extent of the route.

Along the corridor, a high number of businesses
and other key trip attractors attract daily

igure 65. Thames Side (close to Chertsey Bridg)

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



G6T obed

commuter trips. A new cycle facility will
encourage more to commute by bike, and help
de-congest the road network.

8. Feltham Hill Road

The corridor is an west-east alternative
alignment to the A308 in the Ashford area, via
residential streets.

9. Ashford / Fordbridge Roads

The north-south corridor links Laleham with
Fordbridge, the A308 and Ashford commercial
area. The south section of the route extends
on a road with moderate traffic flows where
the vehicles' speeds were recorded high. The
northern section, extends through a residential
area with high density and high traffic flows.

10. Fordbridge Road Sunbury

The corridor is the extension of the Renfree
Way towards Lower Sunbury. It has the
characteristics of a country road with no
footways and poor connectivity to other
destinations. It is the main link between Lower
Sunbury, and as an extension, Hampton and
Twickenham, with Shepperton, Chertsey, and
Whalton-On-Thames.

11. Laleham Road

It is the main west-east corridor between St
Mary's Reservoir and Sheep Walk Lakes and
links Laleham, Littleton and Shepperton.
12. Thames Street / Halliford Road

The corridor is parallel to the River Thames,
linking Shepperton with Lower Sunbury and

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Hampton. It is a narrow road, with significant
flows, where cycling trips are primarily for
leisure purposes.

13. Woodthorpe Road

Is a parallel alignment to Fordbridge Road in

Ashford, connecting Ashford Railway Station,
and the main commercial area with the A308
and Fordbridge area.

14. Staines Road East

The corridor extends east of Sunbury Cross
roundabout, on an A road, to link the residential
areas and business parks with Kempton Park,
Hampton and Hampton Park.

15. Thames Path

Is the key leisure route in Spelthorne extending
from Staines Upon-Thames and Staines bridge
to Laleham. While the extent of the corridor is
traffic free, there are some short sections along
quiet residential streets. The path is part of the
NCN 4, which is shared with pedestrians and
has some unsurfaced sections (gravel).

16. Oakington Dr

The corridor was proposed during the early
engagement workshops (workshop #1) by

local stakeholders. It is an off-carriageway
west-east corridor, parallel to Thames Street
via a green area, and connects residential areas
and schools.

17. Brookside Ave

The corridor was proposed during the early
engagement workshops (workshop #1) by local

stakeholders as an alternative alignment to the
A308 in the Fordbridge area, as it runs through
quiet residential streets, and off-carriageway
paths by River Ash.

18. Green Street

The key characteristic of this corridor is the
high density of education facilities. It extends
between Sunbury Cross and Lower Sunbury
commercial area. It records high traffic
volumes, especially during school peak hours.

19 Stanwell Moor Road

The corridor passes between the reservoirs in
Stanwell Moor and is proposed to link Staines
Upon-Thames with Heathrow. There is an
existing segregated cycle facility along the road
that can serve commuter trips.

The corridor is part of the Heathrow LCWIP.

Figure 6. iveha'.mes and Th.ames. Pa'th

91



96T abed

Multi-Criteria Assessment Framework

Once the aspirational cycling network has been
identified an assessment using both qualitative
and quantitative criteria to provide an initial
prioritisation of the network proposals and
identify a first phase of corridors to progress to
concept design.

A multi-criteria assessment framework

(MCAF) was developed to identify the Phase

1 (‘short list') cycle corridors, utilising various
data inputs from the evidence base previously
gathered. In combination, the MCAF criteria are
intended to help identify and prioritise corridors
with both a higher relative propensity for cycle
trips and corridors with a greater relative
potential to benefit from improvements (i.e.,
areas ‘in need' or with lower quality existing
cycling environment).

The criteria were categorised in four
main groupings:

» Link Performance - reflects the number of
destinations within 200m of the cycle of the
proposed cycle route, including high streets
and commercial area, parks, hospitals,
railway stations, development sites and the
River Thames Scheme. A higher number of
destinations would indicate a greater propensity
for cycling and therefore a higher score. Another
element of link performance is the number of
cyclist casualties recorded along the link, which

92

»

»

»

would suggest both safety issues and high
cycle usage.

Potential demand - this is based on the
potential demand for school trips, including the
number of education facilities along the route
and the school flows on the Cambridge scenario,
and on the demand for commuter trips based on
the Dutch Scenario of the Propensity to Cycle
Tool forecast for commuter cyclists.

Cycle Network- these criteria characterise
the existing environment, including existing
cycling infrastructure and the routes potential
connections to the wider network, and whether
significant improvements can be achieved.
Deliverability- these criteria aim to capture the
potential for cycling improvements in the area.
Lower scores are given to areas with significant
constraints where significant improvements
may not be feasible or very difficult (e.g., land
constraints, railway lines underpasses etc).
Scoring was based on comments from the
workshops and a cursory review via StreetView
imagery. As the team had not been to all sites,
this category has a lower weighting than the
others. Another element of deliverability is

the likely response from locals on a scheme.
Stakeholders provided much of this input -
via comments and an online poll. Additionally,
comments from Commonplace and Widen my
Path platforms were included as the locals
indicated higher demand for improvements.

The MCAF criteria for the selection of the Phase
1 cycle corridors are listed in Table 3 on the
following pages.

Each criterion was scored on a scale from 1
(low) to 3 (high). Within each category, the
criteria were also given a relative weighting of
1 (low) to 3 (high), allowing some criteria to be
weighted more heavily (e.g., access to schools
weighted more heavily than other ‘access’
criteria).

The MCAF criteria and weightings for each
category are summarised in Table 3 on the
following pages.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/6T abed

Table 3. Cycling network MCAF criteria

Category Criterion

Cycle corridors

Criterion

Category

Cycle corridors

Non-commuter
destinations

Rating Rates

1 =no obvious ones

2 =a small number e.g. a school or small parade

Contributes

Rating Rates

1 = isolated link
2 = limited links to other cycle routes or

served by of shops
corridor [2] 3 = several e.g. a town centre
Number of dwellings.
Link Development 1 = less than 100 housing units
Areas [1] 2 = between 100 - 300 units
performance 3 =over 300 units
Rail Station Number of Stations within 400m of corridor
Access [2] 1 =none; 2 =1 station; 3 = 2+ stations
Pedal cycle Collisions per km
collision rate [2] 1 = less than 3/km; 2 = 3-5/km; 3 = > 5/km
Number of _ P
Schools [2] 1=none; 2=1; 3=2+
flof/fisG%hgzltch PCT School Trips (Cambridge Scenario)
. 1= less than 75; 2= 75-150; 3= over 150
Demand scenario [3]

PCT commuter
flows — Go
Dutch scenario

[3]

Number of daily cyclists

1 = less than 150; 2 = 150-300; 3 = over 300

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

to improved .
. cycle-friendly roads
cycling network _ . . .
12] 3 = strong links, forms important extension/
connection to other routes
Cycle 1 = very limited potential (e.g. narrow carriageway/
network Potential to footways, no verges)
improve existing 2 = moderate potential (e.g. space for a minimum
conditions (to width cycle track from existing wide lanes, centre
a high and hatching, verge etc.)
accessible 3 = strong potential (space for a
standard) [2] recommended-width cycle track from existing wide
lanes, centre hatching, verge etc.)
"1 = could require major junction treatment (e.g.
new signals); significant works outside highway
boundary; or third party works (e.g. changes to a
level crossing)
Ease of 2 = could be provided with moderate junction
implementation treatments; limited works outside highway
[2] boundary; expected interface with complex
environments (e.g. town centres)
3 = could be provided within the existing kerb lines,
Deliverability and with minimal junction treatment
Public

Comments from

Comments and agreements per km

Commonplace 1 =less than 3/km, 2 = 3-5/km, 3 = over 5/km
[2]
Stakeholder Number of votes
feedback [2] 1=less than 2,2 =2-4,3 =4+

93



94 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



66T obed

First phase of cycle corridors

The output of the multi-criteria assessment is
a first phase of four cycle corridors for further
development and assessment!. The top five,
presented in Figure 67, are:

3. A308 / Kingston Road

6. Staines / Laleham Road

7. Stanwell Road

9. Ashford / Fordbridge Roads
18. Green Street

Once the corridors were identified they were
assessed using the DfT's Route Selection Tool
(RST?). The assessment provided a baseline
for existing conditions and helped identified
existing deficiencies for the selected routes.
The routes were audited in August 2021 and
the results are presented in Appendix 2: Route
Selection Tool (RST).

1 Cycle corridors 1. Renfree Way and 11. Laleham Road scored
high in the assessment. However, the routes run through the
River Thames Scheme red line boundary and will be assessed
and improved via funding for the scheme.

2 The RST is a framework for providing a high level assessment
of a cycling route, covering the key parameters of gradient,
comfort, directness, safety, and connectivity.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow
Harlington Airport

Cycle Corridors
m— Phase 1

Winsdor
= Phase 2

Phase 3
=== Staines Development
s===' Framework
[ District/Borough boundary
Feltham
and Heston
Sunbury Common

ish ford Common

SunBury East

Runnymede enham
Hallifordand
Sunbury West
Shepperton Town
\ . Elmbridge
0 1 2 km
I

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 67. Phase 1 & 2 Cycle Corridors

95



00¢ abed

Example Design Tools - Cycling

Design Outcomes

Potential improvements for cycling were
developed following a set of desired core design
outcomes, informed by LTN 1/20. These desired
design outcomes have been identified to make
cycling more attractive and encourage more
users to make journeys within the borough

by cycle.

Directness

Cycle routes which serve key origins and
destinations directly - and preferably not
significantly longer than the route a vehicle
would take.

Comfort

Cycle routes that are comfortable to use with a
surfacing that is smooth and a width that supports
the expected volume of cyclists whilst also
considering other road users.

Gradient

Cycle routes with a gradient that doesn't
discourage cycling but makes it welcoming for
cyclists of all ages and abilities.

Safety

Cycle routes that are in areas which have speeds
and traffic volumes that support and encourage
cycling of people of all ages and abilities.

96

Coherence

Cycle networks should be planned and
implemented to enable users to reach their
desired destinations, should be easy to navigate
and be of a consistent high quality.

Attractiveness

Cycle routes should provide an environment
that is welcoming for users so that cycling can
be an enjoyable activity and contribute to public
realm enhancements.

Context Sensitive Design

Improvements should complement and
enhance the character of urban and rural
environment. The high-level concepts
developed in the LCWIP should be suitable
for the setting, and design guidance should
be adapted to fit the local context and
space constraints.

Adaptability

Cycle infrastructure should be developed to
accommodate all types of users, and potential
growth in demand. The provided facilities
should be accessed and used by as many
people as possible, regardless of age, gender
and disability.

Inclusive Design

Facilities for cycling should provide equal
access for people with disabilities and ensure
that streets meet the requirements for

all users.

Guiding Principles

To facilitate these cycling improvements they
will follow several general principles, which can
be applied throughout the borough. Examples of
design elements that support these principles
are shown on the following pages.

» Cycle facility hierarchy - The type of cycle
facility appropriate for a given street is highly
dependent on its context, including vehicle flows
and speeds, carriageway space, surrounding
development, and general character. However,
as a general principle, selection of an
appropriate cycle facility should consider the
following hierarchy: segregated facilities, quiet
routes, shared-use paths/footways, mixed traffic.
The hierarchy follows the cycle design
principles of segregation from traffic and
low traffic speeds/volumes. Segregated
facilities are typically preferred, creating a
comfortable and attractive facility for users
of all ages and abilities and providing the
greatest potential to encourage mode shift to
cycling. Alternatively, cycle route alignments
or design measures to support low traffic
speeds (£20mph) and flows may provide an
attractive option if the route is direct.

» Access to town centre - Each area in the
borough should have access to a convenient,
attractive, and safe route to cycle to/from the
town centre. Several primary cycling routes seek

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



TOgz abed

»

»

»

to accomplish this, while additional secondary
routes may be developed in future.

Access to schools - Safe cycling routes are
essential to encourage more children to cycle
to school. Several primary cycling routes seek
to accomplish this, while additional secondary
routes may be developed in future.

Lower traffic speeds - High vehicle speeds
reduce comfort and safety for people cycling.
Motor vehicle speeds of 20mph or lower

are preferred to minimise speed differential
with people cycling®. Design elements such

as vertical deflection (e.g. speed cushions,
raised tables/raised junctions) or horizontal
deflection (e.g. kerb build-outs, tight kerb radii,
priority working) may be used, as appropriate,
to support the desired vehicle speeds and
create an environment where the speed limit is
self-regulating. Traffic calming measures should
also be considered for people cycling, such as
providing cycle bypasses at kerb build-outs

to manage potential conflicts with other road
users. However, lower speed limits may have

a negative impact, particularly relating to the
slowing of roads and idling traffic, and therefore
will require careful management.

Reduce motor vehicle flows - Strategies to
reduce motor vehicle flows (e.g. local access
only restrictions, time restrictions, or modal
filters) should be considered on cycle routes
where segregation is not feasible to improve
comfort for people cycling and to create a more
attractive cycle route.

1

Studies shown that 20 mph zones would be beneficial to
encourage cycling particularly by women

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

»

»

»

Review on-street parking - On-street parking
provisions can create potential conflict points
between people cycling and motor vehicles,
particularly where there is a high parking
turnover. Conflicts can arise from either
vehicles entering/leaving a parking space or
opening of vehicle doors, or when parking
obstructs visibility. Reducing parking could free
carriageway space to be reallocated for active
uses, such as improvements for people walking
or cycling. Where parking is retained, providing
parking on raised pads can provide wider, more
flexible footway space and encourage slower
speeds by reducing the carriageway width. To
inform further design development, parking
surveys will be undertaken to estimate the
demand for parking and consider the need for
alternative parking locations.

Junction and crossing improvements -
Improvements should seek to improve priority
for people cycling and visibility at junctions,
enhancing safety and continuity of the cycle
route. At uncontrolled junctions and side road
crossings, improvements should seek to reduce
motor vehicle speeds (e.g., tighten junctions,
reduce bellmouth at side roads, increase vehicle
deflection at roundabouts).

Uphill cycling - Steep gradients are a significant
constraint to cycling in some areas of the
borough. Design should seek to incorporate
provisions that enhance separation from motor
vehicles for people cycling uphill, as the speed
differential between motor vehicles and people
travelling uphill is greater. In constrained areas,
this may include prioritising cycle improvements
for the uphill direction of travel.

»

»

»

»

Wayfinding - Good sightlines and visibility of

destinations and of cycle routes are important

elements that affect how easy a route is

to navigate, how many people cycling use

the route, and perceived personal security.

Wayfinding signage should be used to aid

navigation and encourage use of the designated

routes. Appropriate signage can improve

confidence in using the route and encourage

more cycling trips, particularly for those

unfamiliar with the area. Signage that includes a

distance and estimated travel time can also help

avoid overestimating the time it takes to make

a trip by cycle, encouraging increased cycle

use for short journeys. A consistent wayfinding

system should be applied on cycling routes

throughout the county.

Design Standards - As proposed cycle

improvements are advanced, design stages

should utilise the latest best practice design

guidance and standards available at the time,

such as:

»  Cycle Infrastructure Design (LTN 1/20)

» London Cycle Design Standards (TfL)

»  CD 195 - Designing for Cycle Traffic
(Highways England)

»  Greater Manchester Cycle Design Guidance
and Standards (TfGM)

Protected cycling facilities - These will be best

aligned to national design guidance and help to

reduce collisions involving people cycling.

Compete with motor vehicle journey times.

By considering the alignment of the route and

the nature of the interventions it can help to

promote the mode of travel as an equal to

motorised modes.

97



20z abed

» Target short to medium length (1-5km) routes.

» Aim to address routes/locations with a history
of collisions involving people cycling. These

A =N
Segregated Cycle Lane / Cycle Track
Provides raised, physical separation between
people cycling and motor vehicles, providing a more
comfortable, more attractive, and safer facility for people
cycling of all ages and abilities. A segregated cycle
track can accommodate contra flow cycling on one-way
streets.

Stepped cycle track

Provides raised, physical separation between people
cycling, motor vehicles and pedestrians without the need
of a additional horizontal segregation. It is preferred at
roads with lower speeds and moderate traffic volumes.

98

be reflected in both the route alignment and the
nature of the infrastructure proposed.

» Offer variety of cycle parking

» Design for utility

e

o — - om—
Lightly Segregated Cycle Lane
Provides some physical barrier between people cycling
and motor vehicles to improve comfort for people
cycling. May be applicable where space constraints limit
segregation options. Types of segregation could include
kerbing, bollards, planters, or armadillo humps (as
shown above).

Dutch-style facility (Advisory cycle lanes)
Provides a dedicated and segregated space for people
cycling within the carriageway that seeks to prioritise
people cycling over motor vehicles. As in the advisory
cycle lanes, a buffer zone between the cycle facility
and the parking zone should be provided for protection
from the opening doors. Parking is not permitted along
the cycle lanes and can be enforced with added double
yellow lines along the facility.

» Design for priority at side roads to reduce the
conflict with motorised vehicles

» Consideration of heritage assets and the

sensitive design of proposals.

TR e

Shared Use Path (park / open space)
Provides an off-carriageway facility shared with

people walking. While segregated from motor vehicles,
conflicts between people walking and cycling may arise,
depending on the relative flows of each. If space allows,
light segregation may be considered to encourage
separation of people walking and cycling.

Quiet Mixed Traffic Street
Where traffic flows are light and speeds are low, people
cycling are likely to be able to cycle on-carriageway
without segregation. Traffic calming and traffic
management measures may be required to reduce traffic
flows and/or speeds to provide appropriate conditions for
an inclusive and attractive facility.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



€0¢ abed

Dutch or Segregated Roundabout
Provides a segregated facility and enables priority
to cyclists over vehicular traffic on all arms of

the roundabout

Cycle Wayfinding

Improves the coherence of the cycle network and
provides indicative journey lengths or times, making

it easier for people navigate through the town and
encouraging more trips to be taken by cycle. A consistent
system should be applied county-wide.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Cyclops Junction

Cycle Optimised Protected Signals, provide separate
facilities for pedestrians, cyclists, and motor vehicles.
Cyclists use the junction as a signalised roundabout and
motor vehicles as a typical 4-arm junction.

Parallel Crossing / Tiger Crossing

Provides priority for people walking and cycling at
a crossing location, minimising the delay for people
cycling, improving the directness of the route, and
connecting off-carriageway cycle facilities.

Pedestrian/Cyclist Priority Street

Reduces vehicle dominance of the street and prioritises
people walking and cycling. Elements may include
restricted motor vehicle access, materials/markings to
delineate space for different users, low traffic speeds, or
features of a shared space environment.

Toucan Crossing
Provides a controlled crossing for people cycling and
walking, improving user comfort and safety, reducing
delay at busy streets where there are limited gaps in
traffic, and connecting off-carriageway cycle facilities.

99



0¢ abed

Phase 1 Proposed Cycling Improvements

This chapter proposes potential design measures to enhance the selected
cycle corridors in Phase 1. The proposed measures are high level and
identify design concepts for consideration in the next stage of design.
They seek to address issues and deficiencies identified during the audit
activities, as well as to incorporate proposals from previous studies.

For cycling the interventions intent to improve the cycle environment to
a high standard following the LTN 1/20 technical guidance. All proposed
measures would be subject to varying levels of additional analysis and
future feasibility design®. This would involve designs with greater detail
and in which further observations and measurements would be taken to
continually improve the design. This would also include confirmation of
landownership boundaries as well as surveys as necessary.

Specific measures, such as traffic speed reduction and further parking
restrictions will require further consultation in the next stages of the
design following surveys to estimate the impact of the proposals. It is
worth to mention that representatives of groups of people with disabilities
and mobility issues will be further engaged in the design so the outcomes
of the interventions to cater their needs in the most appropriate way.

The proposed improvements are presented by cycle corridor on the
following pages. While these proposals are focused along the primary
cycle corridors, they also provide examples of the types of improvements
that can be implemented borough-wide as needs or opportunities arise.

It is noted that some of the desirable locations for active travel
improvements are privately owned and are not within SCC's publicly
maintained roads. As such, collaborative working with the respective
owners will be required to explore opportunities to improve conditions for
active travel.

1 This is a concept design. All the proposed interventions are subject to topographic survey, traffic
modelling, parking surveys, utilities’ survey and availability of land.

100

Additionally, consideration will need to be given during subsequent
development phases to review and co-ordinate future opportunities

for integration with other active travel improvements, including those
identified within the long-list network and those which may be progressed
in addition to the LCWIP proposals.

U‘ Hayes and Heatrow — Cycle Corridors
P Harlington Alrport

777 Staines Development
Winsdor |

*==+ Framewark

District/Borough boundary

\‘\_

Feltham
and Heston

Runnymede

Elmbridge

0 1 2 km
L S

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 68. Phase 1 cycle corridors

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



G0g abed

Cycle network typology

The proposed cycle facility typologies across
the cycle route network selected for Phase

1 areillustrated in Figure 69. The proposed
facilities reflect the design principles, local
aspirations for cycling, and anticipated potential
constraints along each route at this initial stage
of option assessment.

Future feasibility design stages may be required
along some routes to review constraints

and cycle facility options in more detail. The
proposed cycle network comprises a mix of
facility typologies, indicative of the varying
facility contexts and constraints across the
borough. It includes, for example sections of
segregated cycle lanes where there is potential
to reallocate space within the public highway
or during future development. In significantly
constrained areas, it includes proposals to
improve cycling with mixed traffic, reducing
traffic speeds?, providing advisory cycle lanes,
restricting motor vehicle access, tightening
side road junctions, providing cycle markings,
or redesigning streets to enhance cycle and
pedestrian priority.

1Additional measures to support the speed Limit change to be pro-
posed in the next stages, such as traffic calming measures, CCTV,
reduction of carriageway width, etc.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow Cycle network proposals
- 221 Harlington Airport (typology of corridors)
Two Way Cycle Track
One Way Cycle Track
Stepped Track

Contra Flow Cycle
m— Advisory Cycle lane
Stanwelliont = Off-Road Path
Mixed Traffic
Reduced Speed Limit

-- Phase 2 & Phase 3 corridors

T “"% Staines Development
*===" Framework

Feltham I District/Borough boundary
and Heston

Ashford Town Astiford East

Sunbury Common

Ashford Common

Runnymede Twitkenhan
Elmbridge
0 1 2 km
| I

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 69. Phase 1 cycle corridors proposed improvements

101



90¢ abed

Route 3: A308/Kingston Road

The A308 is a key east-west connector as it links
a number of areas that otherwise suffer from
severance. Vehicle flows are over 30,000 per day
with speeds at 40mph, resulting in this corridor
creating further severance issues between the
northern and southern parts of Spelthorne.

Proposed Improvements

1. Mixed traffic at the railway bridge. Speed limit
reduction to 20mph. .
Longer term ambitious proposal to widen the bridge
to accommodate new cycle facilities and footways
on both sides of the carriageway.

2. Dutch-style roundabout with signalised
crossings at all arms. Link to Staines Road
West via Ford Close (mixed traffic).

3. Alternative off-carriageway alignment along Figure 71. Route 3: A308/Kingston Road Legend
Thames aqueduct. Proposed Improvements
{ T 5 ; " = Parallel crossing
S Y > Signalised pedestrian/
r \j(’ﬁ\x_ . ! cyclist crossing

Proposed Cycle Facility
Two-way segregated
cycle track
One-way segregated
cycle track

One-way stepped track

Contraflow cycle lane
—-=-= Off-Carriageway path
Mixed traffic

___ Junction with primary
cycle route

Figure 72. Ample carriageway widths at
Kingston Road towards Staines

Figure 73. Poor state of provision at
Fordbridge Road roundabout

i Figure 70. Location Map

102 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



10z abed

4. One-way kerb-segregated cycle tracks in
each direction using residual carriageway
space and central island. Investigate
highway boundary or reduce to single lane in
one direction.

5. Contra flow cycle lane along The Parade

to increase the permeability of the network.
Potential public realm improvements in the
vicinity of shops, with footway widening at
points to encourage activation of the street via
outdoor dining. Additional secure cycle parking
to be added at locations (to be reviewed in the
next stages).

6. Proposals on Sunbury Cross Roundabout for
at-grade crossings (see following section for
detailed proposals).

7. Alternative off-carriageway alignment along
Thames Water aqueduct. Parallel crossings

to be added at the junctions with the road
network. Continuous lighting to be provided.

~Figure 74. Location Map

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

0 250 500 m
L I

Figure 75. Route 3: A308/Kingston Road

Figure 76. Existing agueduct alignment south
of the A308.

Figure 77. The A308 has two travel lanes
from which space could be reallocated for
walking and cycling.

Legend
Proposed Improvements
Parallel crossing

Signalised pedestrian/
cyclist crossing

Proposed Cycle Facility

Two-way segregated
cycle track

One-way segregated
cycle track

One-way stepped track

Contraflow cycle lane
—=== Off-Carriageway path
Mixed traffic

___ Junction with primary
cycle route

103



80¢ abed

Route 3: A308/Kingston Road
Sunbury Cross Roundabout

Sunbury Cross as existing, is a barrier for
pedestrian and cyclist movements due to
deviation from desire lines, antisocial behaviour,
and security concerns.

Proposed Improvements

Legend
Proposed Improvements

Three options are proposed for Sunbury
Cross Roundabout for improved crossings for

pedestrians and CyCliStSZ Signalised pedestrian/cyclist crossing

. . . ) Proposed Cycle Facility
Option 1: At-grade signalised pedestrian/

cyclist crossings at the stop lines to access the
proposed two-way cycle track and footpath
around the roundabout. Inner cycle track to
have kerb segregation from main carriageway ‘

and grade-separated from footway. Figure 79. Sunbury Cross Roundabout - Option 1

- TW0-way segregated cycle track
—— One-way segregated cycle track

Contra flow cycle lane
=== [00tpath

Option 2: At-grade signalised pedestrian/
cyclist crossings at Green Street and Staines
Road West to access the proposed two-way
cycle track and footpath in the centre of the
roundabout that utilises the M3 underpass.
Ramp access up to carriageway level from
subway level with additional lighting, CCTV and
wayfinding information. Additional signalised
pedestrian/cyclist crossings at key locations to
access the proposed path.

— i e A\

Figure 78. Location Map Figure 80. Sunbury Cross Roundabout - Option 2

104 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



60¢ abed

A == ' J . Option 3: Improvements to the existing subway:
.~ Widening, improved lighting, added CCTV,
public realm and drainage improvements.
"At-grade parallel crossing provision at gyratory
to connect The Parade with Sunbury Railway
Station through an intervisible and direct
,alignment using the central subway with
"ramped and step access to carriageway level.
Potential further connections at Sunbury
Station through a longer term ambitious cyclist
and pedestrian bridge towards Green Street.

Legend
Proposed Improvements

K Signalised pedestrian/ ;
7 cyclist crossing Figure 82. Sunbury Railway Station as viewed from the
Proposed Cycle Facility Sunbury Cross central subway

e T\W0-way segregated cycle track

L] 254 tam

—

\ One-way segregated cycle track
. — Contra flow cycle lane
=== Footpath

Mixed Traffic

Figure 81. Sunbury Cross Roundabout - Option 3

Figure 83. View from the northwestern side of the subway under the M3, with the central subway on the left and The Parade at Sunbury, on the right.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 105



0T¢ obed

Route 6: Staines/Laleham Road

Proposed Improvements

1. Cycle by-pass to link the proposed route to
Thames route (NCN 4). Access to the path via a

parallel crossing

2. Dutch treatment cycle lanes, including speed

limit reduction, removal of road centre lines,
removal of parking and inclusion of colour

surfacing for cycling.

3. One-way stepped tracks. Speed limit
reduction to 20mph, removal of on-street
parking. Undertake parking demand surveys.

4. Raised junction and parallel crossing on
Blacksmith Lane to improve safety and link
to Thames route (NCN 4) and one-way cycle

tracks to link to Route 9.

106

Figure 85. Location Map

0 250 500 m
L I

Figure 84. Route 6: Staines/Laleham Road

_— L1
“~§
-
-

Legend

Proposed Improvements

Parallel crossing

Raised junction

Proposed Cycle Facility

One-way segregated cycle track

One-way stepped track -
(4

— Advisory cycle lane

= = Off-Carriageway path

=== Junction with primary cycle route

Thames route (NCN 4)
- 7

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



TT¢ abed

Route 7: Stanwell Road/Church Road and A
Convent Road/School Road

Stanwell Road and Church Road make up

Ashford’s urban core, with Ashford Hospital on

its northern end, and Ashford Railway Station and
retail strip running along Church Road. St James
Senior School also brings an influx of school-age
pedestrians and cyclists. Whilst there is potential

for local activity on foot and by pedal cycle, the ——
generous parking availability and poor pedestrian =~
environment push short trips into private vehicles.

Proposed Improvements

1. Extend the existing two-way cycle track to the
A30 and introduce signalised pedestrian/cyclist
crossings at all arms of the junction.

i ; Figure 86. Location Map

Figure 87. Route 7: Stanwell Road

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Legend
Proposed Improvements

Parallel crossing
Signalised pedestrian/cyclist crossing
Proposed Cycle Facility

e TW0-way segregated cycle track

One-way segregated cycle track
— Advisory cycle lane

Mixed traffic
===Junction with primary cycle route

=

107



ZT¢ abed

2. Dutch treatment cycle lanes, including speed
limit reduction, removal of road centre lines, and
inclusion of colour surfacing for cycling.

Longer term ambitious proposal: stepped track
cycle facilities depending on the available highway
land. (Proposal to be investigated during the
feasibility design stage)

3. Mixed traffic at the railway bridge. Speed limit
reduction to 20mph.

Longer term ambitious proposal 1. Widen the bridge
to accommodate new cycle facilities and footways on
both sides of the carriageway; 2. One-way system and
propose contra flow cycle lane.

4. One-way cycle tracks on Church Road, reallocating
some carriageway space as well as utilising service
roads for pedestrians. Reduce speeds to 20mph to
provide light segregation. Organise parking study to
understand parking demand and capacity around
Ashford, with potential utilisation of multi-story car
parks to free up carriageway space at service roads
for pedestrians (if the study demonstrates that it is
required). Provide parallel crossings at key locations.
Additional secure cycle parking to be added at
locations (to be reviewed in the next stages).

5. One-way cycle tracks at Town Tree Road
with added pedestrian and cyclist priority
parallel crossings.

6. Convent Road--reduce main carriageway to single
lane to include one-way kerb segregated cycle tracks
in each direction.

7. One-way cycle tracks on School Road with added
signalised pedestrian/cyclist crossings at junctions.
Improve parking compliance via parking policies
prohibiting footway parking.

108

Figure 88. Car-dominated environment along Church
Road.

Figure 90. The pedestrian environment is limited by
car-oriented service roads in Ashford's retail core.

Figure 89. Active frontage along Church Road despite
high traffic flows and speeds creating an intimidating
environment for pedestrians and cyclists.

Figure 91. Poor parking compliance along School
Road prevent cyclists from using the provided cycling
infrastructure.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



€T¢ abed

Route 9: Ashford/Fordbridge Roads

Proposed Improvements

1. One-way stepped tracks. Speed limit
reduction to 20mph, removal of on-street
parking. Opportunity to connect with a quiet
route via Fontmell Park to link to St Michael’s
Primary School via a parallel crossing.

2. Dutch style roundabout with signalised
crossings at all arms. Link to Staines Road
West via Ford Close.

3. One-way cycle tracks proposed with verge
removal on both sides of the road.

¥ DN //
i = ":?ﬂf /-

Legend

Proposed Improvements
=8 Parallel crossing
Signalised pedestrian/cyclist crossing

Proposed Cycle Facility

f\f : One-way segregated cycle track
D One-way stepped track
' ; ) 0 250 0 PaN Junction with primary cycle route
— Figure 94. Location Map E— x F I

Figure 93. Route 9: Ashford/Fordbridge Roads

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 109



T obed

Route 18: Green Street /
c Legend

Proposed Improvements
é Parallel crossing

Green Street is a key north-south connector in
Sunbury, as it links a significant number of primary
and secondary schools, leisure facilities and the
River Thames. Green Street also has three key
bus routes that offer connections to Feltham

and Ashford.

This is a well-use pedestrian route but is exposed
to relatively high vehicle speeds (30mph) and
flows, and has few formal crossing locations.

Signalised pedestrian/cyclist crossing
Proposed Cycle Facility
: = T\W0-way segregated cycle track

One-way segregated cycle track

Advisory cycle lane
——Contraflow cycle lane

Mixed traffic
===_Junction with primary cycle route
Proposed Improvements '

1. Two-way cycle track between Sunbury Cross
Roundabout and the railway bridge.

2. Mixed traffic at the railway bridge. Speed limit
reduction to 20mph.

Longer term ambitious proposal to widen the bridge
to accommodate new cycle facilities and footways
on both sides of the carriageway.

r,‘-.\ ; '“H
/ "L BY

0 250 500 m

C L r—
Figure 95. Location Map Figure 96. Route 18: Green Street

110 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



GT¢ abed

3. Together with Option 3 for Sunbury Cross,
this alternative cycling route alignment crosses
the railway line via a longer term ambitious
walking and cycling bridge which connects

into Sunbury Station facilities, across the
roundabout and towards The Parade.

4. Dutch treatment cycle lanes, including speed
limit reduction, removal of road centre lines,
and inclusion of colour surfacing for cycling.
Additional secure cycle parking to be added at
locations (to be reviewed in the next stages).
Longer term ambitious proposal: stepped track
cycle facilities depending on the available
highway land. (Proposal to be investigated
during the feasibility design stage)

5. Contra flow cycle lane on Church Street,
remove on-street parking and add traffic islands
to protect cycle movements. Upgrade zebra
crossing on Thames Street to parallel crossing.

6. Dutch treatment cycle lanes, including
speed limit reduction, removal of road centre
lines, parking removal and inclusion of colour
surfacing for cycling. Signalised pedestrian/
cyclist crossing to link to Railway station.
Longer term ambitious proposal: stepped track
cycle facilities depending on the available
highway land. (Proposal to be investigated
during the feasibility design stage)

7. Potential off-road cycling alignment via
Linear Park connecting Sunbury Cross to Upper
Halliford Railway Station.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Figure 97. Pinch point at railway bridge on Green Street,
with narrow carriageway and narrow footway on a single
side.

-

Figure 98. Existing aqueduct alignment south of the A308.

Figure 99. Potential location for a walking and cycling
bridge at Sunbury station (Longer term ambitious
scheme).

Figure 100. Footway parking on Nursery Road outside
Sunbury Manor School.

111



9T¢ abed

Assessment of Proposals

Following the concept design the proposed
interventions were assessed using the Route
Selection Tool (RST) with the same criteria used
for the assessment of the existing situation of the
corridors.

The RST facilitates a high-level, comprehensive
review of existing conditions for people cycling
along a route based on the key metrics of
directness, gradient, safety, connectivity, and
comfort. Lower scores suggest a poorer quality
route, which may benefit from infrastructure
interventions (i.e., to improve safety or comfort)
or selecting an alternative route alignment (i.e.,
more direct or reduced gradient). The following
assumptions were applied in completing the
RST assessment:

» Routes were divided into subsections that were
under < 1km in length and reflected consistent
characteristics in factors that may impact RST
output (such as existing facility type, width,
traffic speeds or volumes, etc.)

» Where existing traffic speed data was not
available, the existing speed limit was utilised

» Where existing traffic volume data was not
available, professional judgement and best
practice was used to categorise the route within
the RST categories for traffic flows

112

A summary of the results for each corridor
within the first phase of proposals are
presented in the following tables and each
assessment is presented in Appendix 2: Route
Selection Tool (RST).

By undertaking the RST it helps to show
which options provide the greatest benefit
when compared to a do-nothing scenario. This
subsequently identifies which option should
be promoted for further development. This
will also help to prioritise options too (see
“Prioritisation of the Routes” on page 146).

For each route a comparison was made
between the existing situation and the potential
of the improvements.

Every cycle corridor is improved in terms of
comfort, and safety, since the interventions are
proposing protected cycle facilities. Gradient
and connectivity are remain the same as the
alignments are retained.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/T¢ abed

Table 4. RST results

. . e Route 7: Stanwell Road/Church Road and
_ Route 3: A308/Kingston Road Route 6: Staines/Laleham Road Convent Road/School Road

Existing Potential Existing Potential Existing Potential
Directness 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Gradient 5.00 5.00 4.48 4.48 5.00 5.00
Safety 3.34 4.80 1.00 4.73 1.00 5.00
Connectivity 4.34 4.34 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Comfort 0.07 3.50 0.00 2.73 0.00 3.81
Total 17.74 22.64 15.48 21.93 16.00 23.81

R e 4.90 (28%) 6.45 (42%) 7.81 (48%)

(compared to existing)

_ Route 9: Ashford/Fordbridge Roads Route 18: Green Street

Existing Potential Existing Potential
Directness 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Gradient 4,72 472 4.30 4.30
Safety 0.66 5.00 1.00 2.45
Connectivity 4.45 4.45 5.00 5.00
Comfort 0.16 3.00 0.00 2.38
Total 14.99 22.17 15.30 19.13

D] AR 7.18 (48%) 3.83 (25%)

(compared to existing)

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 113



FSSTIMATE BARGAIN
STATIONER™—_+cETING CARDS TOYS BATTERIES DIY AND TO

OLS FOOD TOILETRIES ,l.




8. Walking Network

Introduction

Methodology

Multi-Criteria Assessment Framework
Example Design Tools

Phase 1 Proposed Cycling Improvements
Assessment of Proposals




0¢e abed

Introduction

Proposed improvement concepts for the
walking network for Spelthorne are presented
on the following pages. While the proposals
are focused around the commercial areas and
along the primary walking routes, they also
provide examples of the types of improvements
that can be implemented borough-wide as
needs or opportunities arise.

Development of the walking network had two
key stages:

» Development of the ‘aspirational list', which
identified key focal areas of pedestrian
activity in the Borough. In total, 10 areas were
identified and selected as ‘primary’ areas for
further consideration.

» Selection of the ‘short list', which prioritised
three areas as '‘Phase 1’ for further assessment
and concept development as part of the LCWIP.

The remaining areas (categorised as Phases 2
and 3) may be further developed in future, as
part of future workstreams or as other funding
opportunities arise.

116

Methodology

Spelthorne has good potential for an increase
in the walking mode share as evidence of a

high volume of local trips being undertaken

by motor vehicles and the distribution of the
key destinations in relation with the residential
areas allows the everyday commuter trips to be
undertaken on foot.

A key barrier to walking at present is the
inconsistent quality and accessibility of the
walking network, along with severance on the
road network due to motor vehicle dominance
(dual carriageways, railway network).

A network of preferred routes has been defined
drawing on the analysis from the existing data.
The background information identified the local
amenities that attract a significant number of
pedestrian trips and the existing commuting
patterns in the borough.

The development of the walking network for
the Spelthorne LCWIP focused on identification
of Core Walking Zones (CWZs), as per the DfT's
LCWIP technical guidance (Figure 101).

The CWZs represent nodes of relatively high
pedestrian activity within the borough, typically
consisting of several walking trip generators
that are located close together — such as a

high street, schools, or employment areas /
business parks. CWZs are intended to enhance
the pedestrian environment around these key
trip generators rather than longer, linear routes.
The CWZs play a significant role in promoting
walking to key trip attractors, supporting

the local economy, and achieving the LCWIP
objective of encouraging more short, utilitarian
trips to be made on foot.

Figure 101. Core Walking Zones and Key Walking Routes
(DfT LCWIP Guidance)

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



Tce abed

Identification of Core Walking Zones

For Spelthorne, high streets and areas with
local commercial activity were selected as
the key trip generators. The local high street
areas are key hubs of pedestrian activity, with
clusters of different destinations and serving
multiple journey types (e.g., shopping, dining,
employment, personal business, leisure/
social, etc). The local high street areas tend
to be located in the centre of the town/village
and they are normally easily accessible from

My sl

[ S— s P B

Figure 102. Identification of Local High Street‘x‘r“;g‘s”

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

all sides of the town/village. They usually

are a more compact urban environment and
have a higher population and job density, thus
increasing the propensity for utilitarian walking
trips. Focus on these areas also helps to
support economic vitality and SCC's 20-minute
neighbourhood strategy of LTP4.

The selected local high street areas were
identified using Google Maps' ‘areas of interest’
data layer and mapped using GIS tools (Figure
102). The CWZs were created using 250m

My Heetrew
Alort

s

Figure 103. Identification of access points to thVeLocallthgh

Street Areas and generation of 250m isochrones around
them

isochrones around the high street areas (Figure
103) . This was in keeping with DfT guidance
that a CWZ should be a minimum diameter

of 400m (approximately a 5-minute walk).

The extent of each of the CWZs cover the
commercial area/high street and main access
corridors.

This process identified 12 core walking
zones around local commercial areas
within Spelthorne.

Figure 104. Core walking zones around Local High Street
Areas in Spethorne

117



zee abed

The initial list of core walking zones in
Spethorne, presented in Figure 105, includes:
1. Staines-Up-On-Thames

Kingston Road

Stanwell High Street

Clare Road commercial area
Ashford

Convent Road commercial area
Sunbury Common

Sunbury on Thames

. Shepperton

10. Littleton

11. Stanwell Moor

12. Felthamhill

© ©®NDU A ®N

Hayes and Heatrow High Street/

Local Commercial Area
o SR ~ Harlington Airport | g Core Walking Zones
o ] . around High Streets/

= Local Commercial Areas
e [ | District/Borough boundary
¥ =
I.fl I\ =1
S |
s
Staines _' _': Ashford North
£ and Stanwell |
A
Feltham
and Heston
ﬁames =
E Ashford
s elthamhill

» 2. Kingston _ - ;
b Road iy : nbury Camimo
* South »

- : - S . J.I
AL 1y . Sul?ury/ ‘ ‘
Riverside and ) ommon

il Laleham

Sunbury East

Runnymede
8. Subury On__
Thame- .\ i
Elmbridge
0 1 2 km
|

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 105. Core walking zones around Local High Street Areas in Runnymede

118

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



cee abed

Prioritisation of Core Walking Zones and
Identification of Walking Corridors

Following the identification of the core walking
zones within the borough, an initial qualitative
sifting process identified and prioritised the

10 core walking zones that were included in
the Aspirational List of the walking network,
and the remainder two were secondary core
walking zones.

Additionally, important pedestrian routes that
serve them from a distance of up to around
2km were located, based on the DfT's guidance.
The pedestrian routes will complement the
selected core walking zones and link the local
high street areas to significant destinations.

The background data compiled and summarised
in the previous chapter 4. Evidence Base was
used to create a qualitative ‘heat map’ of
pedestrian issues and opportunities, where the
overlap of relevant criteria suggests locations
with a higher propensity for walking trips and
greater potential benefit from infrastructure
interventions.

The criteria included:

» Key trip attractors, such as railway stations,
education and sport facilities, public spaces
(parks and playing fields), and functional sites
(Hospitals)

» Public transport (bus stops) and the catchment
areas around the railway stations

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

» High population density areas (LSOAs with
>75 residents per hectare), new planned
development sites and workplace zones

» Existing walking network, such as public rights
of way and pedestrianised areas

» Origin-Destination data from PCT which
highlights the routes, origins, and destinations of
short motor vehicle commuter and school trips

(<2km) which could be replaced by walking trips.

» Pedestrian collision data which identified
sections of the road network that are more
dangerous for vulnerable users

» Geolocated public suggestions for active travel
improvements (i.e. Surrey's Covid-19 Active
Travel Improvements interactive map survey
platform - Commonplace)

» Planned walking and cycling schemes within
the borough

» River Thames Scheme 2018 proposals

The outcome of the pedestrian opportunities/
issues heat map was an aspirational walking
network (Figure 106). The higher intensity
colour indicates a potential higher demand
for utilitarian walking trips or pedestrian
improvements.

The selected core walking zones were overlaid
on the heat map, and it was confirmed that the
local high street areas were broadly aligned
with the areas of highest potential benefit
across the Borough (Figure 107).

Based on the data reviewed and evidence base
compiled, potential demand and propensity
for short, utilitarian walking trips is highest

in the central areas of the Borough. The map
presents high demand in Staines Upon-Thames
and Sunbury areas and along Stanwell Road/
Church Road in Ashford. The three towns have
denser population, high workplace density and
a high number of key trip attractors (such as
schools), creating additional commuter trips
to those areas. Collisions also tended to be
clustered in these areas due to the fragmented
walking network.

The connectivity to the River Thames Scheme
which extends on the southern area of the
borough and links Shepperton and Littleton to
Runnymede and Elmbridge, was a key criterion
on the identification of the pedestrian routes.
The River Thames Scheme and the construction
of the new channel provides an opportunity
to create green spaces and enhance walking
and cycling facilities along the river, providing
leisure routes and the potential for longer
distance utility trips linking Elmbridge,
Runnymede, and Spelthorne.

The selected core walking zones in Stanwell
Moor and Felthambhill do not present the levels
of demand the remaining 10 areas present.
For that reason these two core walking zones
were omitted from the Aspirational List, but will
be retained as Secondary core walking zones
(Phase 3).

119



yze obed

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow
. Harlington Airport

Winsdor

Elmbridge

0 1 2 km
[

Figure 106. Background information related to walking trips was overlaid to create a
heatmap for pedestrian opportunities and issues.

The selected walking routes will supplement the list of core walking
zones, presented in Figure 108, and capture the core routes at local level
which funnel the main pedestrian flows between origin and destinations.

The final list of walking corridors was amended following the first round
of early engagement workshops (workshop #1). Some walking corridors

Contains OS data © Crown copyright 2021

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow
Harlington Alrpert

Feltham
and Heston

0 1 2km
Ly, S— Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 107. The selected core walking zones were overlaid on the heatmap and confirmed
that the selected areas (Local High Streets) are of high demand for improvements.

were added in the ‘Aspirational list" as the received feedback from the
local stakeholders suggested higher demand than the one showed on the
heatmap (for example Claire Road in Stanwell Area and Clockhouse Lane
in Ashford Area).

120

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



Gee abed

Aspirational List for walking

A core network of 10 core walking zones and

6 supplementary walking corridors is defined.
The network is distributed across the study
area:

1. Staines-Up-On-Thames core walking zone

2. Kingston Road core walking zone

3. Stanwell High Street core walking zone

4, Clare Road commercial area core walking zone
Clare Road walking corridor

4

5. Ashford core walking zone

Stanwell Road (B378) walking corridor
Convent Road commercial area core
walking zone

Clockhouse Lane walking corridor

¥

ISE

M

~

Sunbury Common core walking zone
Windmill Road (A244) walking corridor

Sunbury on Thames core walking zone

» Green Street walking corridor
Nursery Road walking corridor

M

o

M

9. Shepperton core walking zone
10. Littleton core walking zone

» Stanwell Moor core walking zone (secondary)
» Felthamhill core walking zone (secondary)

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow Core Walking Zones
\ Harlington Airport e h
Winsdor B SEEEEERNFC SN e T R SRR
...... | Phase 3
e w— Walking Corridors
A | District/Borough boundary
i anwell Hig
Street "
Stanyve INarth;
5. Clare Rpad
Sfaines Ashford Morth
and Stanwell

. Staines
on-Thames

2. Kingston
i ﬂ:q

Riverside and
Laleham

Runnymede
0 1 2 km
|

Figure 108. Aspirational list for the walking network

Ashford Town

South

Feltham

“Ashfor] and Heston

AshiGedEast
B.Covent Roag

S sunbury Common

. Subury
BCommon
Sunbury East
Twitkenhan

8. S\uibury On
Tharke

Ashford Common

Yalehamiands
Sheppenton
Green

Hallifordiand
Sunbury West

0. Littleton
9. Shepperton

Sheppeffanpaen

Elmbridge

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

121



9¢e¢ abed

The key characteristics of these selected
core walking zones and walking corridors are
outlined in the subsequent section.

1. Staines-Up-On-Thames core walking zone

The walking zone extends around the
commercial centre of Staines-Up-On-Thames
and includes a number of key destinations
such as the shopping centre and the railway
station. The area is significantly constrained
between the railway lines, the A30/A308
junction and River Thames. The town centre
is pedestrianised and off-street parking is
provided around the commercial centre.

Issues and opportunities for pedestrians and
cyclists in the extent of the core walking zones
will be addressed by the emerging Staines
Development Framework.

Figure 109. River Thames path under the railway bridge in
Staines Up-on-Thames

122

2. Kingston Road core walking zone

The commercial activity on Kingston Road is
extending east of Staines Railway Station. The
high street records high traffic flows, and the
pedestrian flows appear to be high too, due to
the proximity of the area with schools.

3. Stanwell High Street core walking zone

The High Street extends on the northenmost
area of the borough, linking Stanwell Moor
Road and the residential area with the Southern
Perimeter of Heathrow Airport.

The area has high population density due to the
proximity with the airport and many commuter
trips between the area and the airport are
undertaken by car.

Figure 110. Pedestrianised High Street in Staines

4, Clare Road commercial area core
walking zone

The local commercial area extends east of
Staines Reservoirs an north of Ashford Hospital.
The area has high population density and it is
constrained between the A30, the reservoirs,
Heathrow Airport and the industrial area.

During the early engagement workshops
(workshop #1) local stakeholders noted the
importance of a corridor along Clare Road to
link the core walking zone with the schools
north of the commercial area.

5. Ashford core walking zone

Ashford commercial area is the second busiest
in the borough. It extends along Church Road,
a road with high traffic flows, which has been
recorded as a pedestrian collision hotspot. The
core walking zone extends around a variety

of land uses; schools, the railway station, and
residential areas with high population density.

The commercial area connects to Ashford
Hospital via Stanwell Road. Background
information showed that a high number

of commuter trips are undertaken by car,

and Stanwell Road (B378) was selected as a
supplementary walking corridor, to improve the
pedestrian facilities

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/¢c abed

6. Convent Road commercial area core
walking zone

The local commercial area in Convent Road
extends primarily along Convent Road/Feltham
Road junction. However, there are few shops
southern on Convent Road at the junction with
Feltham Hill Road. The core walking zone was
designed around both areas and serves the
residential area, and local schools.

During the early engagement workshops
(workshop #1) local stakeholders noted the
importance of improvements along Clockhouse
Lane as it is the only direct link between
Spelthorne and Bedfront Lakes.

7. Sunbury Common core walking zone

The commercial activity is located on

the service roads around Sunbury Cross
roundabout. The road network in the area is
busy, with high traffic flows and high speeds, as
Sunbury Cross roundabout is an exit to the M3.
This creates a significant barrier in the urban
environment.

The core walking zone seeks to improve the
pedestrian environment on the commercial
areas, the access to the railway station and the
residential streets north of the roundabout.

South of Staines Road W extends an industrial
area, with a hostile pedestrian environment,
where the background information showed
high demand for short commuter trips. For that
reason, Windmill Road (A244) was proposed as
a supplementary walking corridor, linking the
core walking zone to the industrial area and
Upper Halliford Railway Station.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

8. Sunbury on Thames core walking zone

The local commercial activity in Lower Sunbury
extends close to Thames Street on Green
Street and the Avenue alongside Sunbury Park.
The area is primarily residential, with a high
density of education facilities close to Sunbury
Cross.

The education facilities generate high
pedestrian flows, which has resulted in a high
number of collisions on Green Street and
Nursery Road.

Both roads were selected as supplementary
walking corridors to serve the schools, and link
the core walking zone to the railway stations
(Sunbury Railway Station and Upper Halliford
Railway Station).

9. Shepperton core walking zone

The High Street extends between Shepperton
Railway Station and Renfree Way. The
pedestrian environment along the High Street
is of good quality, with wide footways and
frequent crossing facilities.

Shepperton will be directly linked to the River
Thames Scheme via proposed footpaths and
cycleways.

10. Littleton core walking zone

Littleton is a small settlement between Queen
Mary Reservoir, the M3 and Sheep Walk Lakes.
The core walking zone extends around the local
commercial area and residential area.

It is proposed to serve connections to the River
Thames Schemes' Sheep Walk creation site.

Figure 111. Lower Sunbury Commercial Area

Figure 112. Shepperton High Street

123



8¢ abed

Multi-criteria Assessment Framework

Once the aspirational walking network has been
identified an assessment using both qualitative
and quantitative criteria to provide an initial
prioritisation of the network proposals and
identify a first phase of corridors to progress to
concept design.

A multi-criteria assessment framework (MCAF)
was developed to identify the Phase 1 (‘short
list') core waking zones, utilising various data
inputs from the evidence base previously
gathered. In combination, the MCAF criteria
are intended to help identify and prioritise
areas with both a higher relative propensity for
walking trips and areas with a greater relative
potential to benefit from improvements (i.e.,
areas ‘in need' or with lower quality existing
pedestrian environment).

The criteria were categorised in five
main groupings:

» Access - reflects the number of destinations
within a 10-minute walk of the core walking
zone, in addition to the local high street itself,
including schools, parks, hospitals, bus stops,
railway stations, development sites and the
River Thames Scheme. A higher number of
destinations would indicate a greater propensity
for walking trips and therefore a higher score.

» Potential demand - this is based on the resident
and workplace populations within a 10-minute
walk of the core walking zone. A higher

124

»

»

»

population would indicate greater potential
demand and propensity for walking trips and
therefore a higher score.

Existing pedestrian quality — these criteria
characterise the existing environment, including
speed limit, traffic volumes, and number of
collisions involving pedestrians. A ‘poorer’
environment (e.g., higher speed, higher flows,
higher number of collisions) was scored more
highly to prioritise areas that may be ‘car-centric’
and/or have potential severance and safety
issues, which may therefore have a greater
opportunity for or benefit from improvements.
Potential for improvements — these criteria
aim to capture the potential for pedestrian
improvements in the area. Lower scores are
given to areas in relatively good condition, and
which therefore may be a lower priority for
improvements. Lower scores are also given
to areas with significant constraints where
significant improvements may not be feasible
or very difficult (e.g., land constraints, railway
lines underpasses etc). Scoring was based on
comments from the workshops and a cursory
review via StreetView imagery. As the team
had not been to site, this category has a lower
weighting than the others.

Stakeholder input - these criteria reflect the
relative priority of the different core walking
zones based on public online input and LCWIP
stakeholder workshop input (via the workshop

surveys). Higher scores indicate a higher number
of online comments and/or workshop votes.

The MCAF criteria for the selection of the Phase
1 core walking zones are listed in Table 5 on the
following pages.

The assessment of the core walking zones
included a separate assessment of each
walking corridor. The final score of each
criterion for the core walking zones that
include supplementary walking corridors is a
combination of the scores (75% of core walking
zone score and 25% of the average score of the
walking corridors).

Each criterion was scored on a scale from 1
(low) to 3 (high). Within each category, the
criteria were also given a relative weighting of
1 (low) to 3 (high), allowing some criteria to be
weighted more heavily (e.g., access to schools
weighted more heavily than other ‘access’
criteria). The total score for each category was
also given a weighting. The MCAF criteria and
weightings for each category are summarised
in Table 5 on the following pages.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



Table 5. Walking network MCAF criteria

Core Walking Zone (75% of the score)

Walking Corridor (25% of the score)
Rating Rates Rating Rates

Category Criterion

Links to key trip attractors (parks, Hospitals) 3: >5 green spaces and/or >1 Functional Sites; 3: >1 green spaces and/or a Functional site;
o . 2: 4-5 green spaces and/or 1 Functional Site; 2: 1 green space or Functional Site
(Weighting: 2-Medium) 1: <4 green spaces and/or no Functional Sites 1: no green spaces or Functional Sites

6¢¢ abed

Access

(Weighting 25%)

Schools

(Weighting: 3-High)

3: >=5 schools;
2: 3-4 schools;
1: <3 schools

3: 2 schools;
2: 1 school;
1: No school

Bus Stops (# of stops)
(Weighting: 1-Low)

3:>35 bus stops;
2: 25 - 35 bus stops;
1: <25 bus stops

3:>9 bus stops;
2:5 -9 bus stops;
1: <5 bus stops

Links to Rail Stations

3: Yes; 3: Yes;
(Weighting: 2-Medium) 1:No 1:No
River Thames Scheme Proposals 3: Yes - direct link; 3: Yes:
2: Yes using a corridor; .
(Weighting: 2-Medium) 1: No 1:No
Development Sites 3:>200 units; 3:>200 units;
o 2:101-200 units; 2:101-200 units;
(Weighting: 1-Low) 1: <101 units 1: <101 units

Demand

(Weighting 25%)

Total Population
(Weighting: 3)

3: >12000 residents;
2:10000 - 12000 residents;
1: <10000 residents

3: >4000 residents;
2: 3000 - 4000 residents;
1: <3000 residents

Total Workplace Population
(Weighting: 2-Medium)

3: >10000 residents;
2: 5000 - 10000 residents;
1: <5000 residents

3: >200 residents;
2:1000 - 200 residents;
1: <200 residents

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

125



0g¢ abed

Category

Existing pedestrian quality

(Weighting 20%)

Criterion

Posted Speed
(Weighting: 1-Low)

Core Walking Zone (75% of the score)

Rating Rates

3: >40mph;
2: >20mph;
1: =<20mph or off-street

Walking Corridor (25% of the score)

Rating Rates

3: >40mph;
2: >20mph;
1: =<20mph or off-street

Traffic Flows

(Weighting: 1-Low)

3:>12000 veh AADT;
2: 6000 - 12000 veh AADT;
1: <6000 veh AADT

3:>12000 veh AADT;
2: 6000 - 12000 veh AADT;
1: <6000 veh AADT

Collision History
(Weighting: 2-Medium)

3: >10 collisions;
2:5-10 collisions;
1: <5 collisions

3: >5 collisions;
2: 2 - 5 collisions;
1: <2 collisions

Potential improvements

(Weighting 10%)

Potential to improve existing conditions to a
high and accessible standard

(Weighting: 2-Medium)

3: higher potential;
2: medium potential;
1: lower potential

3: higher potential;
2: medium potential;
1: lower potential

Significant constraints or dependencies

(Weighting: 2-Medium)

3: limited constraints;
2: constraints typical for a transport
improvement;
1: significant constraints (e.g. land take, third
party works)

3: limited constraints;
2: constraints typical for a transport
improvement;
1: significant constraints (e.g. land take, third
party works)

Stakeholder support
(Weighting 20%)

Commonplace Input

(Weighting: 3)

3: >10 comments;
2:5-10 comments;
1: <5 comments

3: >10 comments;
2:5-10 comments;
1: <5 comments

Stakeholder support
(Weighting: 3)

3: >10 votes;
2:5-10 votes;
1: <5 votes

3:>10 votes;
2:5-10 votes;
1: <5 votes

126

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



T abed

First phase of core walking zones

The output of the multi-criteria assessment

is a first phase of three core walking zones

for further development and assessment?.

The top three core walking zones with their
supplementary walking corridors, presented in
Figure 113, are:

1. Ashford core walking zone

» Stanwell Road (B378) walking corridor
2. Convent Road commercial area core
walking zone

» Clockhouse Lane walking corridor
3. Sunbury Common core walking zone

» Windmill Road (A244) walking corridor

» Green Street walking corridor

» Nursery Road walking corridor?
Once the corridors were identified they were
assessed using the DfT's Walking Route
Assessment Tool (WRAT?). The assessment
provided a baseline for existing conditions and
helped identified existing deficiencies for the
selected routes. The routes were audited in
August 2021 and the results are presented in
Appendix 2: Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT).

1 Staines Up-On-Thames core walking zones scored high in
the MCAF. However the area will be addressed by Staines
Development Framework and the core walking zone was not in
the Phase 1 for the LCWIP.

2 Green Street and Nursery Road walking corridors were initially
supplementing Sunbury on Thames core walking zone. Due to
the importance of the two walking corridors and their proximity
to Sunbury core walking zone it was decided to prioritise them
and include them in Phase 1.

3 The WRAT is a framework for providing a high level
assessment of a walking route, covering the key parameters of
attractiveness, comfort, directness, safety, and coherence.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow .
Harlington A Core Walking Zones

Winsdor 0 Phasen

. Phase2

Phase 3

Walking Corridors
m Phase 1

Ph
StamvelliNorth ase 2

1% Staines Development
v===' Framework

[ District/Borough boundary

Feltham
and Heston

3 hfard To
oA Ashford Town PO, st

6.Covent Road

3 W Ashford Comman .. Sunbury Common
% ~“Staines South

Riverside and 7. Subury
Laleham Common

Sunbury East

Runnymede Twitkenham

Falehamiand

Hallifordiand
Sunbury West

Elmbridge

0 1 2 km
|

Figure 113. Phase 1 & 2 core walking zones and walking corridors

Contains 05 data @ Crown copyright 2021

127



2se abed

Example Design Tools - Walking

The purpose of this section is to present the
design guidelines followed for the infrastructure
improvements for walking.

Design Outcomes

Potential improvements for walking were
developed following a set of desired core
design outcomes (adapted from LTN 1/20) to
encourage more people to make local journeys
in Spelthorne by foot. These are applicable

not only to the primary walking networks of
the LCWIP, but can be applied on projects
borough-wide as opportunities arise to improve
conditions for walking.

Safety

Specifically targeted infrastructure should
improve safety for people walking, as well as
improve perceptions of safety, particularly
related to interactions with motorised traffic,
and in personal safety to encourage more trips
by foot.

Directness

Walking improvements should seek to
accommodate movements along desire
lines, provide continuous routes, eliminate
unnecessary obstacles, and minimise delay.

128

Comfort

Walking facilities should be fit for purpose, well
constructed, and well maintained. It should
support a comfortable environment for walking
for people of all ages and abilities.

Coherence

Infrastructure should be legible, intuitive,
inclusive, and routes interconnected. It should
be easy to navigate and understandable for
all users.

Attractiveness

Walking infrastructure should enhance the
public realm. It should foster a welcoming
environment for people walking that
encourages more trips on foot and preserve
the historic environment and setting of
listed buildings.

Adaptability

Walking improvements should be developed to
accommodate all types of users, and potential
growth in the numbers of people walking. The
provided facilities should be accessed and used
by as many people as possible, regardless of
age, gender and disability. The design should
keep the diversity and uniqueness of each
individual in mind.

Context Sensitive Design

Improvements should complement and
enhance the character of urban and rural
environment. The high-level concepts
developed in the LCWIP should be suitable
for the setting, and design guidance should
be adapted to fit the local context and space
constraints. Particular attention will be paid
to the treatment of heritage assets and
historical buildings.

Inclusive Design

Walking facilities should provide equal access
for people with disabilities and ensure that
streets meet the requirements for all users.

Gradient

Not as critical as in cycling, but the walking
network should provide routes with gentle
gradients that will make walking trips easier
for people of all ages and abilities. When the
topography of the area is difficult, the provided
facilities should be wide and have features to
encourage people to choose walking and make
them feel welcome.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



cge abed

Guiding Principles

To support the desired design outcomes, the
walking improvements follow several general
principles, which can be applied throughout
Spelthorne Borough. Examples of design
elements that support these principles are
shown on the following pages.

Desire lines - People walking tend to follow the
shortest path to a destination, and are likely to
bypass or not use facilities that require a notable
deviation to the length of their journey. Therefore,
improvements should seek to accommodate and
enhance movements along preferred desire lines
as closely as possible.

Access to town centre - Safe walking routes are
essential to encourage active travel to key trip
attractors: schools and important public areas,
such as green areas, commercial areas, business
parks, public buildings etc.

Footway width - The minimum unobstructed
footway width for people walking should
generally be 2.0m, which facilitates two people

in wheelchairs to pass each other comfortably.
Additional width should be considered in areas
with higher pedestrian activity (Inclusive Mobility /
Manual for Streets).

Lower traffic speeds - High vehicle speeds can
reduce the attractiveness of a route for people
walking and make them feel unsafe. Vehicle
speeds of 20mph or lower are preferred. Design
elements such as vertical deflection (e.g., speed
cushions, raised tables/raised junctions) or
horizontal deflection (e.g., kerb build-outs, tight
kerb radii, priority working) may be used, as

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

appropriate, to support the desired vehicle speeds
and create an environment where the speed limit
is self-regulating. However, lower speed limits may
have a negative impact, particularly relating to the
slowing of roads and idling traffic, and therefore
will require careful management.

Pedestrian crossings - Appropriate crossings
facilities should be provided along pedestrian
desire lines to maintain the continuity of a walking
route, improve safety, and reduce severance. The
type of facility will depend on the context of the
crossing. At a minimum, crossings should have
appropriate tactile paving and dropped kerbs.
Additional provisions for uncontrolled crossings
could include raised tables, or reduced kerb radii
to shorten a crossing and reduce vehicle speed.
At locations requiring greater priority for people
walking (e.g., locations with higher traffic volumes
and/or speeds, or higher pedestrian flows) zebra or
signal-controlled crossings may be appropriate.

Pedestrian priority - Design measures should
seek to enhance pedestrian priority, improving
the continuity, directness, and coherence of the
primary walking network. Design tools such

as side road entry treatments (raised tables,
continuous footways), raised carriageway, or
use of different materials to highlight pedestrian
crossings or delineate space for different users
may be considered.

Wayfinding - Good sight lines and visibility of
destinations and of walking routes are important
elements that affect how easy a route is to
navigate, how many people walking use the route,
and perceived personal security. Wayfinding

signage should be used to aid navigation

and encourage use of the designated routes.
Appropriate signage can improve confidence in
using the route and encourage more walking trips,
particularly for those unfamiliar with the area. A
consistent wayfinding system should be applied on
walking routes throughout the town.

Tactical urbanism - During implementation,
consider temporary, low cost measures as
demonstration projects to test concepts and
experiment with different designs. Temporary
measures can be a valuable tool to illustrate how
the public highway space can be re-imagined and
reallocated to different road users, and help build
public support for improvement schemes. Low
cost, temporary materials such as paint, planters,
or bollards can be used to widen footways, tighten
side road junctions.

Design Standards - As proposed walking
improvements are advanced, design stages should
utilise the latest best practice design guidance and
standards available at the time, such as:
— Streetscape Guidance (Transport for London)
— Manual for Streets / Manual for Streets
2 (Chartered Institution of Highways &
Transportation)?
- Inclusive Mobility (Department for Transport)
— Local Transport Note 1/20 Cycle Infrastructure
Design (Department for Transport)

1 Design standards to be updated following Manual for Streets’
update in late 2021.

129



yce obed

Example Design Tools - Walking
T

Uncontrolled crossing

Added tactile paving and dropped kerbs at the side
roads and at points following the desire lines where the
visibility is good, the speed limits and the traffic flows
are low. Additional refuge island can be provided if the
carriageway width allow it.

i 7y

Raised table (Side Road Entry Treatment)
Encourages motorists to reduce speeds, indicates
pedestrian activity, and encourages more driver attention
and care when turning. Also enhances priority for people
walking and makes the side road crossing easier and
more convenient for people walking by maintaining the

continuity of the route at footway level.

130

Zebra or Parallel crossing

Provide priority for people walking and cycling at a
crossing location, minimising the delay and improving
the directness of the route.

Raised junction

Similarly to the raised table a raised junction encourages
motorists to reduce speeds at a junction. Also provides
crossings to all arms of a junction and facilitates
uncontrolled pedestrian crossings.

Source: Google Street View

Toucan crossing

Provides a controlled crossing for people cycling and
walking, improving user comfort and safety, reducing
delay at busy streets where there are limited gaps in
traffic, and connecting off-carriageway cycle facilities.

Wayfinding system
Improves the coherence of the walking network, making
it easier for people navigate through the town and

encouraging more trips to be taken by foot. A consistent
system should be applied town-wide.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



Gee abed

Example Design Tools - Walking

-
.;'

Lower speed limits Raised loading/Parking pad Review on-street parking

Improves safety for all road users and fosters a more Reallocates carriageway space to the footway, providing Create a more attractive and safer walking environment
comfortable environment for cycling and walking. Should a wider, more comfortable pedestrian environment. The and allow safer and easier informal crossings, improved
be supported by traffic calming measures, as needed, to pads may be used for servicing or parking as needed, visibility and provide wider footways. This will be

make the speed limit self-enforcing. A town-wide policy but allows a more flexible use of space to better informed by parking utilisation surveys during feasibility
could also be considered rather than changes on a street accommodate pedestrians. Source: Google Street View design.

by street basis.

Pedestrian/Cyclist Priority Street One-way system Cicane

Reduces vehicle dominance of the street and prioritises Reallocates space from the carriageway to footways and Traffic calming measure to create pinch points at residential
people walking and cycling. Elements may included parking. Reduces conflicts at junctions. streets to reduce vehicular speeds and improve pedestrian
a shared space environment, raised carriageway and environment. The buildouts for the chicanes can be used as
removal of kerbs to provide a more flexible space for all uncontrolled crossings with reduced crossing distance.

users, materials to delineate space for different users,
and low traffic speeds (e.g. 10mph).

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 131



9gg abed

Example Design Tools - Walking
= P

Public realm improvements
Redesign of a street to create a more vibrant and attractive street environment. Key aspects include footway widening, and resurfaced footways with blocked paving, street trees, and
raising the carriageway to the footway level. Parking spaces can be provided on the footway level using different materials to delineate different users.

Source: Urb-i, Google Street View

132 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/€¢ abed

Phase 1 Proposed Walking Improvements

This chapter proposes potential design measures to enhance the walking
network in the core walking zones in Phase 1. The proposed measures are
high level and identify design concepts for consideration in the next stage
of design. They seek to address issues and deficiencies identified during
the audit activities, as well as to incorporate proposals from previous
studies.

For walking, this includes a range of strategies from relatively minor
interventions (e.g., improved dropped kerbs and tactile paving) to

new crossings, footway widening, public realm improvements and
reconfiguration of the public highway. All proposed measures would
be subject to varying levels of additional analysis and future feasibility
design™.

Specific measures, such as traffic speed reduction and further parking
restrictions will require further consultation in the next stages of the
design following surveys to estimate the impact of the proposals.
Representatives of groups of people with disabilities and mobility issues
will be further engaged in the design so that interventions cater their
needs in the most appropriate way.

The proposed improvements are presented by core walking zone on the
following pages. While these proposals are focused along the primary
walking routes within the core walking zones, they also provide examples
of the types of improvements that can be implemented borough-wide as
needs or opportunities arise.

It is noted that some of the desirable locations for active travel
improvements are privately owned and are not within SCC's publicly
maintained roads. As such, collaborative working with the respective
owners will be required to explore opportunities to improve conditions for
active travel.

1 This is a concept design. All the proposed interventions are subject to topographic survey, traffic
modelling, parking surveys, utilities’ survey and availability of land.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Additionally, consideration will need to be given during subsequent
development phases to review and co-ordinate future opportunities

for integration with other active travel improvements, including those
identified within the long-list network and those which may be progressed
in addition to the LCWIP proposals.

f

Winsdor

Hayes and Heatrow I B core Walking Zones

Harlington Alrport

| s walking Corridars

77 Staines Development
===' Framework

" District/Borough boundary

Feltham
and Heston

. Subury
Common

Runnymede

Elmbridge

0 1 2km
[ S—

Contains 05 data & Crown copyright 2021

Figure 114. Phase 1 core walking zones and walking corridors

133



gee abed

Core Walking Zone 5: Ashford

A ¢ o .
S\ and
/ b1 Harbngton
Brentiond
-~ o
v Iskewnsth
X

Feftrum

and

[y

i
i %
\f o
|
{ Twickitham
~ |
e
O e
Bunmymede Fd
Eimtridge

Figure 116. Location Map
Legend

fffffff Core Walking Zone
Affected walking corridor

@ Zebra crossing

@ Parallel crossing

Signalised pedestrian/
cyclist crossing

Raised junction
<> Side road treatment
Public realm improvements
= Footway widening
Footway resurfacing
= Cycle proposals
° * * Proposed cycle route
=z Railway Station
@ Bus Stop

134

= -

s | 250 500 m

[
_—
Figure 115. Core Walking Zone 5: Ashford

i
/
i
| I
) .
..._ﬁ_\
=/
X
3 A
~> ki -
™
0% i
O S~ X,
et . = :

9
i
it g 50 .

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



6c¢ abed

Key Improvements:

Town Lane: Widen the footway and extend

the existing cycle facilities along the road
up to the A30 to improve the access to
the hospital. Signalised pedestrian/cyclist
crossings at all arms on the A30/Town
Lane/Stanwell Road junction to be added,
with reduced waiting times and extended
green man time to provide access to Core
Walking Zone 5 and Heathrow LCWIP
proposed facilities. Opportunity for single
stage crossings to be reviewed in the
next stages of design following traffic
modelling study.

Stanwell Road: Reduce the speed limit to
20mph. Propose additional traffic calming
measures to physically slow the traffic
down. Raised side road entry treatments
with reduced radii to reduce the speed

of motorised vehicles and decrease
pedestrians' crossing distance. Upgrade
the uncontrolled crossing and the zebra
crossing to parallel crossings. Additional
proposals as in Cycle Route 7.

Church Road - railway bridge: Reduce
speed limit to 20mph. Investigate the
impact of removing the old wall on the
bridge to join the footbridge with the
footway on the railway bridge to improve
the pedestrian environment and personal
safety.

Longer term ambitious proposal: widen

the bridge to accommodate footways on
both sides of the carriageway and new
cycle facilities.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Stanwell Road - railway bridge: Reduce speed
limit to 20mph. Introduce parallel crossing at
the northern end of the road for pedestrians
and cyclists to safely cross the road to join
the footway on the west side. Propose zebra
crossings on the approach to the roundabout
on the southern side.

Longer term ambitious proposals: 1. Widen
the bridge to accommodate footways on both
sides of the carriageway, 2. Propose section
of Stanwell Road as one-way northbound

for opportunity to reallocate space from

the carriageway for new pedestrian and

cycle facilities.

Figure 117. Footbridge on Church Road isolates
pedestrians’ movements and reduces personal safety

@ Longer term ambitious proposal: Propose
one-way system (counter-clockwise) along
Church Road - Stanwell Road - Woodthorpe
Road for opportunity to reallocate space from
the carriageway for new footways on both
sides of the road and opportunity for new cycle
facilities. The new cycle facilities will permit
movements on both directions. Proposal to
be reviewed in the next stages of design
following traffic modelling studly.

Case Sudy:

One-way system to reallocate space for pedestrians in St
Augustines St, Norwich UK. Top 2008, Bottom 2021

Source: Google Street View

135



Ot’¢ obed

Church Road: Reduce the speed limit to
20mph. Propose additional traffic calming
measures to physically slow the traffic
down. Raised side road entry treatments
with reduced radii to reduce the speed

of motorised vehicles and decrease
pedestrians' crossing distance. Upgrade
existing (uncontrolled and pelican)
crossings to parallel crossings. Review
needs for on-street parking and propose
recessed parking on the level of footway
where the available footway width is >4m.
Liaise with Spelthorne Borough Council to
consider whether there is scope to provide
off-street parking at the development

site for visitors with a low cost, if the
parking study demonstrates that spaces in
required. Additional proposals as in Cycle
Route 7.

Church Road service roads: Propose as

pedestrian and cycle priority street. Retain
the one-way direction of the road. Raise
the carriageway to footway level to provide
a continuous pedestrian environment and
lay setts on the surface. Use different
materials to delineate space for different
users and add tactile paving for visually
impaired people. Introduce parking bays
with a fee and time restrictions for visitors,
using buildouts with planting and seating.
Provide parking for blue badge holders.

Station Approach - Station Road: Widen
the footways on the approach to the
railway station. Review the needs of
on-street parking on Station Approach for
opportunity to rotate the parking bays and
propose drop off locations for the station.
Raise the junction on the approach to the
entrance to the railway station. Restrict
parking along Station Road.

Woodthorpe Road: Extend the public realm
@ on Woodthorpe Road to the west. Fill in the
bus stops' lay-bys, introduce buildouts at
locations where parking is not permitted to
control on-street parking and reduce the
crossing distance for pedestrians. Reduce
the speed limit to 20mph. Propose additional
traffic calming measures to physically
slow the traffic down. Raised side road

entry treatments with reduced radii to
reduce the speed of motorised vehicles
and decrease pedestrians' crossing
distance. Propose zebra crossings on the
approach to the railway station and east of
the roundabout.

Case Study:
Public realm improvements on a service road in Cranleigh,

UK that can be used as an example for Church Road.
Source: Google Street View

®

Fordbridge Road: Reduce the speed limit to
20mph. Propose additional traffic calming
measures to physically slow the traffic
down. Raised side road entry treatments
with reduced radii to reduce the speed

of motorised vehicles and decrease
pedestrians’ crossing distance. Additional
proposals as in Cycle Route 9.

Clarendon Road: Reduce the speed limit to
20mph. Indicate parking bays on both sides
of the road with added buildouts that will
allow shorter crossings for pedestrians
and create a chicane to lower traffic
speeds. Raised side road entry treatments
with reduced radii to reduce the speed

of motorised vehicles and decrease
pedestrians' crossing distance. Raise
Dudley Road/Clarendon Road junction to
reduce speeds.

Village Way: Upgrade the pelican crossings
to parallel crossings. Raise the junction to
Clarendon Primary School to reduce traffic
speeds. Make existing parking bays on the
northern side the road as drop-off areas for
students during school peak hours.

Additional proposals throughout the town:

(A) Add wayfinding along the walking routes.

Provide information on key trip attractors,
such as, Ashford Railway Station, Ashford
Hospital, schools, car park etc. Proposed
wayfinding posts to be accessible to all.

e Opportunity for 20mph zone in Ashford to

be reviewed in the next stages of design
following traffic modelling study.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



Ti¢ abed

Core Walking Zone 6: Convent Road

-
A rore
/ andd
Harbgon
/i Brentiond
o ]
. voncior Isteworth
,
B Fetham
ant
P >
L
~ g
N
! Twickapham
BT, |
- 1
T L
& -
Burrymede X

Figure 118. Location Map

Legend
fffffff Core Walking Zone
Affected walking corridor
@ Zebra crossing

@ Parallel crossing

Signalised pedestrian/
cyclist crossing

Raised junction
<> Side road treatment
Public realm improvements

1S

== Footway widening
Footway resurfacing

== Cycle proposals

° * * Proposed cycle route 0 250 500 m
S ]
@ Bus Stop —

Figure 119. Core Walking Zone 6: Convent Road

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 137



2 abed

Key Improvements:

®

©

138

Feltham Road: Add zebra crossings on
the approach to both of the roundabouts.
Longer term ambitious proposal: one-way
southbound to reallocate space from
carriageway to widen the footways.

Feltham Hill Road: Add buildout to propose
single file traffic along the school entrance
and reduce the speed limit. Propose cycle
by-pass at the buildout to allow cyclists'
movements. Add a pedestrian crossing

on the buildout to allow students to

safely cross the road. Widen the footways
where feasible. Reduce the speed limit to
20mph. Propose additional traffic calming
measures to physically slow the traffic
down. Raised side road entry treatments
with reduced radii to reduce the speed

of motorised vehicles and decrease
pedestrians’ crossing distance.

Longer term ambitious proposal: one-way
southbound to reallocate space from
carriageway to widen the footways.

Service roads: Public realm improvements
to improve pedestrian environment. Raise
the carriageway to footway level to provide
a continuous pedestrian environment and
lay setts on the surface. Use different
materials to delineate space for different
users and add tactile paving for visually
impaired people. Introduce parking bays
using buildouts with planting and seating.
Add planting and seating.

Figure 120. School's entrance where the buildout is
proposed

@ Covent Road east service road: Propose

as one-way southbound pedestrian and
cycle priority street. Reduce speed limit

to 20mph. Raise the junctions with the
side roads and reduce the radii to provide
a continuous environment for pedestrians
and physically slow down the traffic. Widen
the central island and close the opening

to the B378 to reduce the traffic on the
service road. Resurface the footways.
Introduce parking bays using buildouts
with added planting, on one side of the
road. Widen the central island and improve
the bus stop facilities. Introduce seating
and sheltered areas in the vicinity of the
shops. Additional proposals as in Cycle
Route 7.

@ Convent Road: Upgrade the crossings
at the signalised junctions to signalised
pedestrian/cyclist crossings. Reduce
waiting times and extend crossing times.
Add a signalised pedestrian/cyclist
crossing at Town Tree Road/ Convent Road
junction. Additional proposals as in Cycle
Route 7.

@ School Road: Reduce speed limit to 20mph.
Resurface the footways to improve access
to the school. Provide a school drop-off
point at the service road. Raised side
road entry treatment at Ashford Ave and
Denman Drive with reduced radii to reduce
the speed of motorised vehicles and
decrease pedestrians’ crossing distance.
Upgrade the pelican crossing to signalised
pedestrian/cyclist. Additional proposals as
in Cycle Route 7.

Figure 121. Covent Road east service road: poor footway
surface quality, wide carriageway, narrow waiting area
at the bus stop, and vehicles exiting on the main road at
several locations increasing the risk of collision.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



ci¢ abed

Park Road - Chalmers Road: Reduce speed
limit to 20mph. Indicate parking bays

on both sides of the road that create a
chicane to lower traffic speeds. Raise the
junctions on the approach of the schools
to provide a continuous environment for
pedestrians and physically slow down the
traffic. Raised side road entry treatments
with reduced radii to reduce the speed

of motorised vehicles and decrease
pedestrians’ crossing distance. Propose

a zebra crossing on Feltham Hill Road to
improve the access to Park Road.

Feltham Road: Reallocate space from
hatched median to widen northern footway
to improve the access to the shops.
Resurface southern footway at the extent
of the road. Upgrade the uncontrolled
crossing to a zebra crossing.

Clockhouse Lane: Reallocate space from
the carriageway to widen the eastern
footway between the shops and Ashford
Recreation Ground. Resurface the western
footway and improve the side road
crossings with raised tables and reduced
radii. Upgrade existing uncontrolled
crossing to a signalised pedestrian/
cyclist crossing and provide an additional
signalised pedestrian/cyclist crossing at
the southern end of the railway bridge.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Improve access to Bedfont Lakes Country

Additional proposals throughout the town:

Park via Clockhouse Lane:

Optionl: New footbridge on the east side
of the existing railway bridge. Option will
require land acquisition.

Option 2: Single file traffic with traffic
signals on the railway bridge to reallocate
space from the carriageway for new
footways. Option will have a significant
impact on the traffic flows.

Option 3: One-way system southbound
to reallocate space from the carriageway
fro new footways (northbound direction
to use Bedfont Road). Traffic modelling
is required to estimate the impact of the
proposal.

Option 4: New railway lines' underpass

east of Clockhouse lanes. Pedestrians will

have access from Feltham Road

Add wayfinding along the walking routes.
Provide information on key trip attractors,
such as, Ashford Railway Station, Bedford
Lakes, Ashford Recreation Ground, schools
etc. Proposed wayfinding posts to be
accessible to all.

Q Opportunity for 20mph zone in Ashford to

be reviewed in the next stages of design
following traffic modelling study.

Figure 122. Clockhouse Lane on the approach to the railway
bridge. No footways are provided on the bridge and the
speed limit increases from 30mph to 40mph on the bridge
moving southbound. The bridge is narrow and due to the
high traffic flows, there is no opportunity for a footway in
the existing widths.

139



¢ obed

Core Walking Zone 7: Sunbury

Brentond

e - T =
' i \ T | - _ -
\ & e A - ®

3 e d ; WE

Figure 123. Location Map Legend R R

——————— Core Walking Zone
Affected walking corridor
i

@ Zebra crossing
@ Parallel crossing

@ Signalised pedestrian/
cyclist crossing

@ Raised junction
<> Side road treatment

Public realm
improvements

— Footway widening

Footway resurfacing
o000 School Street

== Cycle proposals

oo o . I.:::::l. - JII" 5
Proposed cycle route e w0 L o : o
< Railway Station —— I 7 Py
@ Bus Stop Figure 124. Core Walking Zone 7: Addlestone

140 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



Gig abed

Key Improvements:

Vicarage Road: Reduce the speed limit

to 20mph. Indicate parking bays on both
sides of the road that create a chicane to
lower traffic speeds and propose additional
traffic calming measures to physically
slow the traffic down. Raised side road
entry treatments with reduced radii to
reduce the speed of motorised vehicles
and decrease pedestrians’ crossing
distance. Upgrade uncontrolled crossings
to zebra crossings and propose additional
zebra crossings on the approach of Wolsey
Road bus stops and on Heathcroft Ave.
Propose raised junctions at the service
road to reduce traffic speeds and provide a
continuous pedestrian environment.

@ The Parade: Propose as pedestrian and
cycle priority street. Raise the carriageway
to footway level to provide a continuous
pedestrian environment and lay setts on
the surface. Use different materials to
delineate space for different users and add
tactile paving for visually impaired people.
Introduce parking bays with a fee and time
restrictions using buildouts with planting
and seating. Provide parking for blue
badge holders. Retain one-way direction
and introduce a contra flow cycle lane.
Additional proposals as in Cycle Route 3.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Case Study:

Pedestrian and cyclists priority street on Venn Street in
London UK, including public realm improvements, parking
bays and planting. Source: Google Street View

@ Sunbury Cross Roundabout: Propose
at-grade crossings for pedestrian and
cyclists. See cycle proposals at Route
3: A308/Kingston Road - Sunbury
Cross Roundabout

@ Staines Road W: Resurface footways
and propose cycle facilities. Add raised
tables at side roads with crossings for
pedestrians and cyclists. Additional
proposals as in Cycle Route 3.

Windmill Road - Upper Halliford Road:
Reallocate space from the carriageway

to widen the footway on the approach to
Staines Road W. Propose raised side road
entry treatments with reduced radii to
reduce the speed of motorised vehicles and
decrease pedestrians’ crossing distance.
Add signalised pedestrian/cyclist crossings
at the signalised junctions

@ Station Road: Propose as pedestrian and
cycle priority street. Raise the carriageway
to footway level to provide a continuous
pedestrian environment and lay setts on
the surface. Introduce parking bays with

time restrictions for drop-off/pick up only.

&
T

Case Study:

Public realm improvements on the approach to the railway
station, including raised carriageway, parking restrictions
and limited pick up / drop off areas. Eastbourne Railway
Station, Eastbourne UK. Source: Urb-i & Google Street View

141



9t¢ abed

®

142

Longer term ambitious proposal: Propose
new pedestrian and cycle bridge over
the rail lines at Sunbury Railway Station.
Proposed bridge to be accessible to all.

Station Approach: Reduce the speed limit
to 20mph. Propose raised junction to
physically reduce the traffic speed. Widen
the footway on the approach to the railway
station. Propose raised side road entry
treatments with reduced radii to reduce
the speed of motorised vehicles and
decrease pedestrians' crossing distance.

Green Street - rail bridge: Reduce speed
limit to 20mph. Provide parallel crossings
at both ends of the bridge for pedestrians
and cyclists to access the footway on the
west side.

Longer term ambitious proposal: widen

the bridge to accommodate footways on
both sides of the carriageway and new

cycle facilities.

Green Street: Reduce the speed limit to
20mph. Propose additional traffic calming
measures to physically slow the traffic
down. Raised side road entry treatments
with reduced radii to reduce the speed

of motorised vehicles and decrease
pedestrians' crossing distance. Upgrade
the pedestrian crossing at the traffic lights
to signalised pedestrian/cyclist crossing
and the uncontrolled crossing on the
approach to Cedars Recreational Ground
to parallel crossing. Resurface footways at
the extent of the road. Additional proposals
as in Cycle Route 18.

Nursery Road: Reduce the speed limit

to 20mph. Indicate parking bays on both
sides of the road that create a chicane to
lower traffic speeds and propose additional
traffic calming measures to physically
slow the traffic down. Raised side road
entry treatments with reduced radii to
reduce the speed of motorised vehicles and
decrease pedestrians’ crossing distance
with added pedestrian crossings. Upgrade
the pedestrian crossing at the traffic lights
to signalised pedestrian/cyclist crossing,
the uncontrolled crossing on the approach
to the Leisure Centre to parallel crossing,
and propose a signalised pedestrian/cyclist
crossing on the approach to the off-street
path to Upper Halliford Railway Station.
Resurface footways at the extent of the
road. Propose a dedicated pick up/drop off
area on a vacant land on Upper Halliford
Railway Station for the education facilities
on Nursery Road (to be investigated during
the feasibility design stage) Additional
proposals as in Cycle Route 18.

Case Study:
Example of school street in Merton London UK.
Source: Google

@ Longer term ambitious proposal: Propose

sections of Green Street (between The
Ridings and Sutherland Ave) and Nursery
Road (between Nursery Gardens and Green
Street) as school streets during school
drop off/pick up peak hours (7.30-9am and
2.30-4pm) to improve the safety for the
students. Buses and cycle to be permitted.
Traffic will be diverted via The Avenue and
via Sutherland Ave. On Nursery Road the
northern footway will be indicated as drop
off/pick up area.

Additional proposals throughout the area:

Add wayfinding along the walking routes.
Provide information on key trip attractors,
such as, railway stations, Sunbury Retail
Park, schools, crossing points at Sunbury
Cross etc. Proposed wayfinding posts to be
accessible to all.

Opportunity for 20mph zone in Lower

Sunbury to be reviewed in the next stages
of design following traffic modelling study.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/v abed

Assessment of proposals

Following the concept design the proposed
interventions were assessed using the Walking
Route Assessment Tool (WRAT) with the same
criteria used for the assessment of the existing
situation of the walking corridors within the
core walking zones.

The WRAT facilitates a high-level,
comprehensive review of existing conditions for
people walking along a route based on the key
metrics of attractiveness, comfort, directness,
safety and coherence. Lower scores suggest a
poorer quality route, which may benefit from
infrastructure interventions (i.e., to improve
safety or comfort).

The results of each walking route within the core
walking zone are presented in detail in Appendix
3: Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT), for both

the existing situation and the proposals. Table

6 presents the total scores of each category in
the existing situation and Table 7 the score if

the interventions were implemented?, and the
improvement of the score on each category.

By undertaking the WRAT it helps to show
which options provide the greatest benefit
when compared to a do-nothing scenario. This
subsequently identifies which option should be
promoted for further development.

1 No ‘longer term ambitious’ proposals were included in the
WRAT

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Table 6. WRAT results - Existing situation

Attractiveness 65% 49% 52%
Comfort 64% 50% 53%
Directness 70% 64% 68%
Safety 64% 35% 51%
Coherence 36% 24% 42%
Total 63% 49% 55%

Table 7. WRAT results - Proposed interventions

Improvement Improvement Improvement
Score - Score " Score o

from existing from existing from existing
Attractiveness 75% 10% 70% 21% 62% 11%
Comfort 84% 20% 82% 32% 78% 24%
Directness 90% 21% 79% 14% 87% 19%
Safety 81% 17% 43% 9% 54% 2%
Coherence 85% 48% 80% 56% 84% 42%
Total 84% 21% 74% 25% 75% 20%

Coherence of the network seems to have the
greatest improvement with the added priority
features at the junctions for pedestrians.

Safety on the other hand is not as improved since
the traffic flows through the town centres remain
at high levels.

143






9. Route Prioritisation, Costings and Funding Opportunities

Introduction

Prioritisation of Routes
Indicative Cost Estimates

Funding Opportunities




0G¢ abed

Introduction

This section summarises the prioritisation

of the implementation of the selected core
walking zones and cycle routes and indicative
scheme costs for each of the walking and cycle
schemes.

The prioritisation is high-level and indicates the
relative importance of the selected routes and
their package of proposed interventions, based
on the methodology described in the following
section. The purpose of the prioritisation is

to assist SCC and SBC with which routes
should be developed first. At this stage of

the assessment, the route prioritisation is
independent of cost.

146

Prioritisation of the Routes

Prioritisation of the long-list of routes

As mentioned in the previous sections a multi
criteria framework was used to evaluate the
options of the proposed corridors (see page
124 for core walking zones and on page 92
for cycle corridors). The framework identified
the Phase 1 core walking zones and cycle
corridors from the aspirational list of options,
the three core walking zones and the five
cycle corridors that performed better in the
assessment.

The framework is used to determine the
time-scales for delivery of improvements
categorising the core walking zones and the
cycle corridors into:

» Short Term (2 year plan implementation) -
Phase 1

» Medium and Long Term (10 year plan
implementation) - Phase 2

Phase 2 core walking zones and cycle corridors

will be classified into two categories (Medium

Term and Long Term) to suggest an order of the

implementation of the remaining 7 core walking

zones and 13 cycle corridors, that will have the

greater benefit for users.

Secondary core walking zones (that were not
included in the assessment) are categorised as
Phase 3 core walking zones.

For cycling, during the early engagement
workshops (workshop #1) local stakeholders
noted the importance of several links in the
borough, which during the analysis of the
background information do not seem to have
an immediate benefit for the users, have
lower propensity for cycle commuter trips, or
significant constraints for the implementation.
These routes are included in the aspirational
list of the cycle network and categorised as
Phase 3 cycle corridors. These corridors were
not included in the multi criteria assessment.

The time-scales for the implementation for
Phase 3 core walking zones and cycle corridors
are longer (20 year plan).

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



TG¢ abed

Table 8. Prioritisation table for the aspirational list of
core walking zones

Core Walking Zone TFi,rrr:Z:::);l/e
7. Sunbury Common High/Short Term
1. Staines-Up-On-Thames! High/Short Term
5. Ashford High/Short Term

6. Convent Road commercial High/Short Term

area
9. Shepperton Medium/Med. Term
2. Kingston Road Medium/Med. Term
8. Sunbury on Thames Medium/Med. Term
5. Clare Road commercial area Low/Long Term
10. Littleton Low/Long Term
4, Stanwell High Street Low/Long Term
Stanwell Moor Phase 3
Felthamhill Phase 3

1 Staines Up-On Thames scored high in the MCAF, but it was
not included in the Phase 1, since the Staines Development
Framework is addressing the issues in the area, however it is
considered of high priority in the borough

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

ﬁ . Hayes and Heatrow Core Walking Zones
Harlington Airport B High/short Term

0 Medium/Mid. Term

Winsdor

it N 7 LowjLong Term
Phase 3
- 57 o tatnwell High walking Corridors
.~ Stree

. & s High/Short Term
e Medium/Mid. Term

stanwellNogth

5. Clare RRoad 7771 Staines Development Framework

| pistrict/Borough boundary

Staines

Ashfard North
and Starwell

South
Feltham
3 5. Ashford and Heston
1. Staines
p-on-Thames Ashford Towr AT £ st
6.Covent Read . ._,-'"
5 K:anSton Ashford Commaon L _i:f..'nbury ommon
*Ron 4

Riverside and . Subury
Laleham i Common
Sunbury East
Runnymede Twitkenhan
8. Subury On
alehaemiond;
—— hame
Green
Hallifordjand
Sunbury West

“110. Littleton

9. Shepperton

Elmbridge

0 1 2 km
ey — Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 125. Prioritisation for the aspirational list of core walking zones

147



2S¢ abed

Table 9. Prioritisation table for the aspirational list of

Cycle Corridors

Cycle Corridor

3. A308 / Kingston Road

Priority /
Timescale

High/Short Term

18. Green Street

High/Short Term

7. Stanwell Road

High/Short Term

11. Laleham Road!

High/Short Term

9. Ashford / Fordbridge Roads

High/Short Term

1. Renfree Way!

High/Short Term

6. Staines / Laleham Road

Medium/Med. Term

2. Upper Halliford / Cadbury

Medium/Med. Term

8. Feltham Hill Road

Medium/Med. Term

14, Staines Road East

Medium/Med. Term

4. Laleham Park / Thames Side

Medium/Med. Term

12. Thames Street/Halliford Road

Medium/Med. Term

16. Oakington Dr

Medium/Med. Term

13. Woodthorpe Road

Low/Long Term

19 Stanwell Moor Road

Low/Long Term

10. Fordbridge Road Sunbury

Low/Long Term

15. Thames Path

Low/Long Term

17. Brookside Ave

Low/Long Term

5. Wraysbury Rd

Low/Long Term

1 Corridors 11 and 1 scored high in the MCAF, but they were not

included in the Phase 1 corridors as they are part of River Thames
Scheme proposals, however they are considered of high priority in

the borough
148

Hayes and Heatrow Cycle Corridors
Harlington Airport

s High/Short Ti
Winsdor ighsnegt. e

e Medium/Mid. Term

Low/Long Term
- Phase 3
¥~"" Staines Development
====" Framework
,—__" District/Borough boundary

StamwellNorth

Staines ‘!

Ashford Morth
and Stanwell
Sou

Feltham
and Heston

£y - " ;
%, L Agliford Town Ashford Easte = = *
=2 AT -
vishford Compagn’ »
Staines Solth e

Sunbury Common

Riterside and

@99

Runnymede ckenhan
Laleham and
Shepperntan
Green
Halliford and
S bury West
Elmbridge
0 1 2 km

Contains OS data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 126. Prioritisation for the aspirational list of Cycle Corridors

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



£G¢ abed

Assessment of the Phase 1 routes

The core walking zones and cycle routes
included in Phase 1 were assessed using

the criteria summarised below. The further
assessment of the routes will assist SCC
and SBC to understand which walking routes
within the Phase 1 core walking zones!

and which cycling routes have the greater
benefits for users. A further assessment was
undertaken using additional criteria to the
previous prioritisation. Criteria were rated on
a scale from 1 to 3 (low to high) and include
assessment of the proposed interventions.

Scoring Criteria

Demand Criteria

» Residents' demand: Based on Surrey's Covid-19
Active Travel Improvements interactive map
that includes geolocated public suggestions
for active travel improvements were used to
estimate the demand from active users for
improvements.

» Collision data: historic collisions along the
routes referenced per km of the route.

» Potential flows: a score was derived based on

the highest existing pedestrian flows along each
route, as estimated from the Propensity to Cycle

Tool (PCT) data. For cycling an estimation on
the increase of the users for each route was
calculated from PCT data using the Go Dutch
scenario.

1 For the walking network the assessment was undertaken for
each walking link within the core walking zone, as this was

selected during the WRAT assessment. Each link has generally

consistent characteristics (e.g., geometry, land use, etc.) and
the LCWIP proposals have a similar approach along each link.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

» Cycle Network Connectivity [cycling only]:
based on the existing Route Selection Tool
(RST) connectivity metric. Routes with a higher
score have a greater number of links with the
existing cycle network, and would therefore be
expected to have a greater impact on overall
network connectivity.

Quality of Improvements Criteria

The criteria intended to capture the potential
of the improvements to encourage new walking
and cycling trips.

» Quality of design safety: based on the before/
after RST and WRAT scoring. The criterion
reflects the expected change for the RST and
WRAT safety metric. Proposed changes that
result in a more significant increase in the safety
metric would be expected to have a higher net
benefit than a route that scores relatively well in
the current condition.

» Quality of design comfort: based on the before/
after RST and WRAT scoring. The criterion
reflects the expected change for the RST and
WRAT comfort metric. Proposed changes
that result in a more significant increase in
the comfort metric would be expected to have
a higher net benefit than a route that scores
relatively well in the current condition.

» Quality of design: Attractiveness, Directness and
Coherence [walking only]: based on the before/
after WRAT scoring. The three criteria reflect the
expected change for the WRAT Attractiveness,
Directness and Coherence metrics. Proposed
changes that result in a more significant
increase in all the metrics would be expected

to have a higher net benefit than a route that
scores relatively well in the current condition.

Access Criteria

Access criteria are intended to capture whether
the routes help improve pedestrian and cycle
access to several key destinations. Criteria
were generally scored as ‘yes' (3) if at least

one destination is identified, or 'no’ (1), unless
otherwise noted. For the cycle routes additional
destinations within 400m from the route were
assessed and scored with (2).

» Education e.g. school, college, library, etc.

» Transport facilities (railway station or bus stop)

» High Street/Commercial area [walking only]

» Other key destination (Green areas, Leisure
centre, Business parks, etc.) [walking only]

Deliverability Criteria

Intended to reflect the deliverability/feasibility
of the proposed schemes along the routes.

» Ease of implementation: qualitative score
that seeks to capture major constraints that
may make implementation more difficult,
such as potential need for third party land, or
traffic changes

» Dependency of other improvements [walking
only]: as the walking routes were assessed
separately this criterion is intended to assess
the dependency of the proposals on other
workstreams or proposed interventions on
neighbouring links.

149



Ge obed

» Potential to improve existing conditions to a high and accessible standard
[cycling only]: scores the compliance of the proposed interventions to the
LTN 1/20 standards

Other criteria

» Overall quality of the proposed route [walking only]: presents the
total score of the WRAT assessment of the proposed interventions of
the route

» Contributes to improved cycling network [cycling only]: scores the
connectivity of the proposed corridor with other cycle links in the area

Total Score and Factor Weighting

A score for each of the five criteria categories was calculated by
averaging the sub-criteria within the category. To calculate a total score
for each route, the main categories were then weighted as follows:

» Demand - 15%

» Quality of improvements - 25%
» Access - 15%

» Deliverability - 25%

» Other - 20%

The weightings were intended to give a slightly higher input to the design
factors, as proposed interventions with a greater anticipated impact over
the existing condition could support a more substantial uplift in walking
and cycling. Additionally, factors related to stakeholder input, usage, and
access were previously incorporated into the route selection methodology
at the start of the LCWIP process.

150

Assessment Results - Walking

The walking assessment table (Table 10) and the map presents the
relative assessments of the walking routes in each core walking zone and
their associated package of proposed interventions. Full details of the
assessment can be found in Appendix 4: First phase assessments.

ﬁ Hayes and Heatrow
Harlington Airport

Phase 1 Walking Interventions
el Priaritisation
Emaar w— High priority

= Secondary priority

Tetriary priority

| pistrict/Borough boundary

Feltham
and Heston

Ashford

Runnymede Twigkenhan

~ Common

Elmbridge

0 1 2 km
L Ea——

Contains 05 data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 127. Prioritisation for the Phase 1 Walking links

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



GGe abed

Table 10. Prioritisation table for the Phase 1 Walking links

Core
Walking Walking route From To Score
Zone
St James
Ashford
5. Ashford 51 Stanwell Road ) Senior Boys 80.4% 1
Hospital
School
5. Ashford 5.6 et R Stanwell Road Church Road 79.6% 2
Road
hurch R
5. Ashford  5.12 c ur.c oad Church Road Church Road 78.8% 3
Service Road
Staines Road .
7. Sunbury 7.2 The Parade i Vicarage Road  77.1% 4
) Woodthorpe )
5. Ashford 5.4 Station Road Road Station Road 76.7% 5
Clarendon
5. Ashford 511 Village Way Church Road Rrimary 76.7% 9
School
) Felthamhill
5. Ashford 5.3 Church Road Village Way Road 76.3% 7
5. Ashford 5.9 Churlch Road Church Road Church Road 73.8% 8
Service Road
. Railway
7. Sunbury 7.8 Station Road ) Sunbury Cros  70.0% 9
Station
7.Sunbury 7.4 Staln;s/ Road Windmill Road ~ Sunbury Cros  69.6% 10
6. Convent 6.1 Feltham Hill Church Road Park Road 68.8% 11
Road Road
5. Ashford  5.10 College Way Church Road Pike Cres 68.3% 12
7. Sunbury 7.6 Nursery Road ~ Windmill Road Green Street 67.1% 13

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Core
Walking Walking route From To Score
Zone
i Rail
7.Sunbury 7.9 Station Green Street i 658% 14
Approach Station
. Felth Hill
6. Convent 6.2 Town Tree eltham Hi Convent Road  65.4% 15
Road Road Road
6.Convent oo FolthamRoad  ConventRoad  ParkRoad  65.4% 15
Road
Woodthorpe Fordbridge
5. Ashford 55 Claredon Road 65.0% 17
Road Road
7. Sunbury 71 Vicarage Road  Burgoyne Road ~ Sunbury Cros  64.6% 18
) . Staines Road
7. Sunbury 75 Windmill Road W Nursery Road 63.8% 19
7. Sunbury 7.7 Green Street Manor Lane Sunbury Cros  63.8% 19
6 (éon\;ent 6.3  ConventRoad  FelthamRoad  Glenfield Road  62.9% 21
oa
St James
5. Ashford 5.2 Church Road Senior Boys Village Way 59.2% 22
School
6. Convent 6.6 Clockhouse Feltham Road Bedfont Lanes  57.5% 23
Road Lane
6. iom:jent 6.4 FelthamRoad ChurchRoad  ConventRoad 56.3% 24
oa
F i Casterfield
5. Ashford 5.7 ordbridge o\ oh Road asterne 558% 25
Road Road
Casterfield
5. Ashford 5.8 Dudley Road Church Road St 53.3% 26
7.Sunbury 73 ounburyCros- Roundabout 51.7% 27
subways
151



9G¢ abed

Assessment Results - cycling

The cycling assessment table presents the relative assessment of the
cycling routes and their associated package of proposed interventions.
Full details of the assessment can be found within Appendix 4: First
phase assessments.

Table 11. Prioritisation table for the Phase 1 cycle corridors

Cycle corridor Length (km) m

Route 7: Stanwell Road/Church Road and

Convent Road/School Road 3.221 11.25
Route 9: Ashford/Fordbridge Roads 2.609 11.05 2
Route 3: A308/Kingston Road 6.186 9.85 3
Route 6: Staines/Laleham Road 3.021 8.8 4
Route 18: Green Street 2.717 8.6 5

152

Hayes and H_e\atrow Phase 1 Cycling Interventions
Harlington Alrport Prioritisation

insdon —— High priority
m— Secondary priority
Tetriary priority

T Staines Developmem
feest Framework

| District/Borough boundary

Feltham
and Heston

Twigkénhan

Elmbridge

1] 1 2 km
| S

Contains OS data © Crown copyright 2021

Figure 128. Prioritisation for the Phase 1 cycle corridors links

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/ Gz abed

Indicative Cost Estimates

Methodology

Outline costs were estimated for the proposed
design measures. The estimates are reflective
of the early concept stage and intended to
provide an indicative, rough order-of-magnitude
cost only. Costs can vary significantly
depending on local site conditions.

Depending on the type of intervention, costs
were estimated by two methods:

Readily Available Unit Cost Information

Where available, unit cost information for
common types of infrastructure improvements
were obtained from data from DfT?, Wiltshire
Council?, and Greater Manchester? (e.g. type of
crossing, type of cycle facility). Cost estimates
were then calculated based on the approximate
quantity of facilities proposed (e.g., number of
toucan crossings, kilometres of cycle track). For
these costs, it was assumed that the indicative unit
cost available included all aspects of installation,
such as allowances for preliminaries, risk, costs
associated with the need for utility diversions

etc. Where the data source provided a range of
costs, the high cost was used to provide a more
conservative estimate at this early concept stage.

1 Typical costs of cycling interventions, Interim analysis of Cycle
City Ambition schemes, January 2017.

2 Costs of highway works, Wiltshire Council.

3 Greater Manchester Cycling design guidance, March 2014.

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Costing for Bespoke Elements

For scheme elements where unit cost
information was not readily available, more
bespoke estimates were developed. These cost
estimates include allowances for items which
can currently be quantified (at initial concept
design level), unknown or unquantifiable

items, and risk. The estimates included the
following assumptions:

Quantifiable items (the basic costs of a scheme
before allowing for risks. These will include
what would be, at a later design stage, covered
by multiple items in a bill of quantities®.):

» Engineering judgement was used to estimate
material quantities (what would be covered by
multiple items in a standard bill of quantities
developed in detailed design).

Unknown or unquantifiable items:

» Allowance for those items which have not or
cannot be quantified at this stage of design (25%
of quantified costs).

» Allowance for preliminaries and traffic
management (15% of quantified costs).

» Allowance for risk (20% of quantified costs).

» Allowance for statutory undertakers
diversions (15% of quantified costs).

4 An example would be length of Kerbing or area of new
carriageway: Kerbing will be a single rate but in later stages
this would include the kerb, kerb bed and kerb backing and
for carriageway the later stages would separately identify,
formation, capping, sub-base, road base, and surfacing.

Other assumptions:

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

Each option is delivered individually and so no
estimate of the efficiency from a combined
delivery is applied.

Price base year is 2017 and a 12% inflation
increase was added on the sub total cost of

the items.

Does not include costs associated with the need
for third party land acquisition (if required).
Assumes a standard material palette. Higher
specification or a heritage materials palette may
be preferred in some areas, which would be
considered in detailed design and may require
additional cost.

The subtotals include costs for the short
term proposals. Where alternative options

are noted in the initial concepts, only the
indicative cost of the main proposal is included
(they do not include any long term ambitious
proposals, such as full pedestrianisation, or
one-way system).

The subtotals do not include consultation fees.
Does not include additional ‘soft costs', such as
design, traffic modelling, maintenance actions
(e.g., trimming vegetation), lighting review, legal
(e.g., traffic regulation orders), interim/pilot
interventions, etc.

Does not include a provision for contingency
Does not include optimism bias

153



8G¢ abed

Estimated costs were tabulated by core
walking zone and cycle route. Therefore,

each core walking zone/cycle route and each
mode (walking and cycling) were evaluated
separately. This method provided a stand alone
cost for each core walking zone and cycle route
so they may be considered independently.
However, if viewed as a network-wide package
of improvements, there is opportunity for
savings associated with a combined delivery
programme.

The indicative cost estimates for the package of
improvements along each cycle route and core
walking zone are presented in Table 13 and
Table 12, respectively. The unit cost references
are summarised in “Appendix 5: Indicative Cost
Estimates” on page 170

154

Table 12. Indicative high level costs for the cycling improvements

Costs Subtotal

Cycle Corridors

3. A308/Kingston Road

£11,850,000!

6. Staines/Laleham Road £6,905,000
7. Stanwell Road/Church Road and Convent
i
Road/School Road SESRY
9. Ashford/Fordbridge Roads £6,485,000
18. Green Street £2,465,000

1 Proposal includes two-way cycle tracks on Sunbury Cross
roundabout and new toucan crossings. Does not include closing
of the subways (Estimated cost £1-1.5M)

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



6G¢ abed

Table 13. Indicative high level costs for the walking
improvements

Cost Subtotal

Core Walking Zones

5. Ashford £3,135,000
6. Convent Road £4,025,000*
7. Sunbury £4,645,000

1 Proposal does not include Intervention 10: Link to Bedford
Lakes. There are 4 options proposed for the improvement to
the access to the green area:

Option 1: New footbridge along the existing bridge: Estimated cost
£2.5-4M

Option 2: Single file traffic with use of traffic lights: Estimated
cost £750k - £1M

Option 3: One - way system: Estimated cost £1M - 1.5M
Option 4: New railway lines underpass: £2 - 3M

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Funding Opportunities

There are a number of potential sources of
funding available to deliver improvements
identified in a LCWIP.

Integrated Transport and Maintenance Block
funding: This is provided annually to the council
by the government's Department for Transport
(DfT) to enable investment in various transport
and highway projects and programmes.

Government grants: Government frequently
provides opportunities for local authorities to
bid competitively for funding opportunities, with
differing themes and objectives depending on
the focus of the funding such as Emergency
Active Travel Fund and the Active Travel Fund.
Government funding can also be made available
for active travel improvements such as the
cycle rail fund to improve cycle facilities at
railway stations.

Developer funding: Through the Planning
process, the council as Local Planning
Authority will negotiate with developers in
order to mitigate any potential impacts of new
development or accommodate the expected
increased travel demand, especially walking,
cycling and public transport. Developers are
asked to pay for, or contribute towards, the
cost of the additional infrastructure required.
The level of contribution will be related to the
scale of the new development and its impact
on the local area. For transport, these specific
funds can be secured via a legal (Section 106)
agreement or works can be agreed that the
developer fully pays for.

Other sources may include surplus parking
income and Local Economic Partnership
(LEP) funding (Brighton LCWIP) and / or
internal funding.

155






10. Conclusions

Interdependencies
Next Steps




29¢ abed

Interdependencies

Synergy with other LCWIPs

There are numerous interdependencies across
Surrey County Council and potentially other
counties.

The development of Spelthorne LCWIP took into
account other LCWIPs in adjacent areas, such
as the borough wide Elmbridge and Runnymede
LCWIPs, to ensure that the cycle network, in
particular, is continuous and across boundaries.
This has provided an opportunity for a joined-up
approach amongst the three study areas.

Other LCWIPs are or will be under development
in the near futurel and a continuous synergy
amongst all LCWIPs should be expected.
Proposals from each should be reviewed
together as an integrated package of strategies
and interventions. This will allow potential
synergies and interdependencies to be
identified, potential competing needs to be
resolved, and design proposals to be refined to
ensure a cohesive overarching strategy.

1 Mole Vale, Waverley and Surrey Heath. Reigate and Banstead
has just been completed.

158

A Brentord Elmbridge,
and Runnymede and
Isleworth

Spelthorne LCWIPs

LCWIP overview
Aspirational List

Core Walking Zones
Bl Phase 1
7 Phase 2

| Phase 3

Walking Corridors
e Phase 1
Phase 2

Cycle Corridors
e Phase 1
—— Phase 2
Phase 3
""" i Weybridge Town Centre
Regeneration and
Transport Plan
£77] Staines Masterplan
"] River Thames Scheme
Red line boundary
| Borough/District
Boundary

Woking

\
1
Guildford \“""'_'“-\ j‘J Valley

) o etindinls bttt
2021

Figure 129. Spelthorne Borough Council and neighbouring boroughs LCWIPs with the River Thames Scheme red
boundary

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



£9¢ abed

Next Steps

The LCWIP report should be used to support
the case for further stages of design,
assessment and stakeholder engagement

and secure funding to progress improvements
for the corridors identified. As an LCWIP is
intended to facilitate a long-term approach

to developing active travel proposals over a
period of approximately 10 years, all of the
corridors identified within the active travel
network maps are recommended to progress
to concept design at an appropriate time in the
life of the LCWIP implementation. Whilst Phase
1 corridors have been progressed to concept
designs the ultimate aim is to also deliver
Phase 2 corridors too. New opportunities to
further expand the proposed network should
also be considered, including corridors not
identified within the current LCWIP, with the
aim to deliver a high-quality network which
reflects an appropriate mesh density.

Feasibility Design

The next stage of LCWIP implementation will
be to advance the design concepts to feasibility
design. This will allow a more detailed review
of individual routes or interventions, evaluation
of constraints, and refinement of the proposed
design measures. There are several potential
approaches to prioritising work in the next
stage, such as:

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Option 1: Advance Priority Routes in Full

This approach would seek to advance the
routes identified as highest priority, including
the full package of proposed interventions.

Option 2: Prioritise / Advance
Individual Interventions

This approach would break down the

routes into smaller segments or individual
interventions. This would allow a more refined
prioritisation process to target areas of highest
need or the weakest links of the network.
Implementation would therefore be targeted
where it is expected to deliver the most
significant overall improvement and deliver the
highest value for money.

Option 3: Quick Wins

This approach would review individual proposed
interventions and identify potential ‘quick

wins' which could be implemented in the short
term relatively easily. As with Option 2, this
approach could focus on the priority routes or
identify potential quick wins across the entire
LCWIP network.

Beyond concept design

During this process, and subsequent design
phases, stakeholder engagement will continue
to be a key element of developing high-quality
and attractive routes for local users. The

progression of these schemes, either as a work
package or individual schemes, will likely be
subject to external factors such as funding
applications or potential inter-dependencies
with other proposals within the local area.

The LCWIP should be reviewed and updated
periodically, particularly in response to
significant changes in local circumstances, such
as the publication of new policies or strategies.
However, engagement with SCC and SBC has
been undertaken during the development of the
LCWIP to provide alignment and future-proofing
with regards to key transport and local policies.

The LCWIP outputs will be integrated into local
planning and transport policies, strategies

and delivery plans, as per the DfT guidance.
Additional active travel opportunities may also
be identified and incorporated into the LCWIP in
response to major new development sites, and
as walking and cycling networks mature and
expand.

The key outputs for an LCWIP are network
plans for key walking and cycle corridors and

a prioritised programme of infrastructure
improvements at concept design stage. Once
funding opportunities are secured, the proposed
improvements can progress to preliminary and
detail design phases for implementation.

159



9¢ abed

Liveable Neighbourhoods

SCC are currently in the preliminary stages

of identifying suitable neighbourhoods within
the county to trial liveable neighbourhoods
(LNs). LNs will be groups of residential streets,
bordered by main or “distributor” roads, where
“through” motor vehicle traffic is discouraged
or removed. Not only will this help residential
streets build a sense of place, but it will
increase the walkability of streets and improve
cycling conditions on these streets.

The work on LNs will be complementary to
LCWIP work, as it will provide more localised
walking and cycling route connections and
improve the permeability of Surrey's walking
and cycling network, whilst delivering additional
benefits such as a reduction in air and noise
pollution, collision rates, increased community
activity and increased physical activity

of residents.

160

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



11. Appendices

Appendix 1: Multi-Criteria Assessment Framework (MCAF)
Appendix 2: Route Selection Tool (RST)

Appendix 3: Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT)

Appendix 4: First phase assessments

Appendix 5: Indicative Cost Estimates

Appendix 6: Stakeholder meeting minutes

Appendix 7: Sustrans report




99¢ abed

Appendix 1: Multi-Criteria Assessment Framework
CAF

Cotogory
(Criterion. Access. Demand Existing pedestrian quality Potential improvements Stakeholder support
ot o mprove
; st g, | Schoos | BueStop fstos) | Link o Rt Cevspmantsas o || | T rows o and v o oo twor takoholdr [Tt Wolghis  Netwr
oscripton ey | v Tomi k)| i) | (e 1O | (g Ty | (R Tomn k) | i k) | | LT | (O innecw | Pt | ogmancn | oz | (nonsro sen Prioiy ank Access Score Seore Score Score | Prioiy fank
ot 1 1 1 ]

Weighting 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 2 1 1 3 2 2 2 2 25%) 25% 20% 10%] 20% 100%|

Max Score 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 87 100%
3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 2 3 3 2 1 3 2 75 86% |High 1 92% 100%| 93%| 50% 83%) 88%|High 2
2 3 3 3 1 2 3 2 2 2 1 3 3 1 1 60 69% (Med 5 75%) 83% 47% 100% 33%) 66% Med 6
3 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 37 43% |Low 1" A47% 33%| 40%| 50% 33%] 40%|Low 10
2 1 2 1 1 2 2 1 2 1 2 2 3 1 1 a5 52% |Low 9 44% 50%| 60%| 83% 33%) 51%|Low. 8
2 2 2 3 1 3 3 2 2 2 3 2 2 1 3 63 72%  |High 4 67%) 83% 87% 67%) 67%) 75% High 3
2 1 2 1 1 3 3 2 2 3 2 3 3 2 2 58 67% |Med 6 47% 83%| 73%| 100% 67% 71%|High 4
3 2 3 3 1 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 3 74 85% [High 2 75% 100%| 100%| 83% 83%) 89%| High 1
1 2 1 3 1 1 1 1 2 2 1 3 2 3 2 50 57% |Med 7 53% 33%) 47%| 83% 83%) 56%| Med 7
3 2 1 3 3 1 1 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 1 65 75% |High 3 81% 50%| 80%| 100% 50% 69%| Med 5
1 1 2 1 3 1 1 1 2 2 1 3 3 1 1 46 53% |Med 8 53%) 33% 47% 100% 33%) 48%|Low 9
2 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 3 2 1 1 43 49%  [Low 10
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 1 35 40% |Low 12

Table 14. MCAF table for walking aspirational list

162 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/9¢ abed

Cycle Corridors
Criterion. Link performance ‘Schools Demand Cycle Network Deliverability
beseon wemrenm || ememe || o REEET S = vt s ek PR
served by corridor (number of dwellings) 400m of route) (cycle collisions per km) corridor of daily school trips) daily commuters) network s )
Trvey oo | %50 |t
1:isolated link verges) ﬂl‘l\l!xl, significant works outside highway lwnd‘.lry, or
e . i i e " :
) S e e i s e 3 mong e o eporent | P S o b
= :
B
Weighting. 2 1 2 2 2 3 3 2 2 2 2
Max Score 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 78 100%
1. Renfree Way 4.345| 2 1 1 3 3 2 2 2 3 3 2 57 73% 6 1
2. Upper Halliford / Cadbury 4.892| 1 2 2 3 1 2 2 3 2 2 2 55 71% 8 "
3. A308 / Kingston Road 6.2| 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 1 2 70 90% 1 H
4. Laleham Park / Thames Side 2.394| 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 3 1 a7 60% 11 g
5. Wraysbury Rd 0.652| 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 3 39 50% 19 H
6. Staines / Laleham Road 3.022| 2 3 1 2 3 2 3 2 1 2 2 57 73% 6 ¢
7. Stanwell Road 3.135 1 3 2 3 3 2 3 2 1 3 2 61 78% 3 i
8. Feltham Hill Road 1.88 1 2 1 1 3 3 3 3 1 2 1 55 71% 8 i
9. Ashford / Fordbridge Roads 3.298| 3 3 1 2 2 3 3 3 2 1 2 59 76% 5 ¢
10. Fordbridge Road Sunbury 2.457| 1 2 1 3 2 1 1 2 2 3 2 a3 55% 16
11. Laleham Road 4.33| 2 1 2 3 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 61 78% 3 1
12. Thames Street / Halliford Road 5.088| 2 1 1 1 2 3 1 1 1 3 2 as 58%
13. Woodthorpe Road 1.64 1 2 2 2 3 1 2 1 1 3 2 aa 56%
14. Staines Road East 3.005| 2 3 3 2 2 2 3 2 2 1 1 54 69% 10
15. Thames Path 3.786| 3 3 1 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 a3 55% 16
16. Oakington Dr 1.861| 2 1 1 1 3 1 1 1 3 2 3 as 58% 12
17. Brookside Ave 1339 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 1 3 2 3 a3 55% 16
18. Green Street. 2.717| 3 1 2 1 3 3 3 3 2 2 3 66 85% 2 1
19. Stanwell Moor Road 2.867 2 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 3 3 1 aa 56% 14

Table 15. MCAF table for cycling aspirational list

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

163



Appendix 2: Route Selection Tool (RST

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan: Route Selection Tool

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan: Route Selection Tool Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan: Route Selection Tool
ROUTE SUMMARY ROUTE SUMMARY ROUTE SUMMARY
Route Name Route 3: A308/Kingston Road Route Name]| Route 6: Staines/Laleham Road Route Name]| Route 7: Stanwell Road/Church Road and Convent Road/School Road
Overall Length 6.19 Overall Length 3.02 Overall Length
Name of S) Name of A (s) Name of A s)
Date of Assessment Date of Assessment| Date of Assessment]|
Performance Scores Performance Scores Performance Scores
Criterion Criterion Criterion
Directness Directness Directness
Gradient Gradient

Gradient

Route 3: A308/Kingston Road

Route 6: Staines/Laleham Road
Directness
5

Directness
5

Route 7: Stanwell Road/Church Road and Convent Road/School Road
Directness
3

Comfort

Gradient

89¢ abed

Connectivity'

Number of Existing Critical Junctions/Crossings

Number of Potential Critical Junc!ionsICrossi S

Number of Existing Critical Junctions/Crossings Number of Existing Critical Junctions/Crossings
Number of Potential Critical Junctions/Crossings
Table 16. RST summary for Route 3

Number of Potential Critical JunctionsICrossin S

Table 17. RST summary for Route 6 Table 18. RST summary for Route 7

164

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



69¢ abed

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan: Route Selection Tool
ROUTE SUMMARY

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan: Route Selection Tool
ROUTE SUMMARY

Route Name Route 9: Ashford/Fordbridge Roads Route Name Route 18: Green Street
Overall Length 261 Overall Length 272
Name of (s) Name of (s)
Date of Assessment Date of Assessment
Performance Scores

Criterion

Directness
Gradient

Route 9: Ashford/Fordbridge Roads

Directness
5

Connectivity' afety

Number of Existing Critical Junctions/Crossings

Number of Potential Critical Junctions/Crossings

Table 19. RST summary for Route 9

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Performance Scores
Criterion

Directness
Gradient

Route 18: Green Street

Directness
5

'Safety

Number of Existing Critical i rossings
Number of Potential Critical Junctions/Crossings

Table 20. RST summary for Route 18

165



0/¢ abed

Appendix 3: Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT

WRAT - SCORES WRAT - PERCENTILE WRAT - SCORES - PROPOSALS WRAT - PERCENTILE - PROPOSALS Improvement

link road_name Start End length (m) Comfort Safety Total Comfort Safety Coherence Total Comfort Safety Comfort Safety Coherence Total  Attractiver Comfort Directness Safety Coherenct Total

51 Stanwell Road Ashford Hospital St James Senior 896 9 14 9 4 3 39 64% 67% 67 9 18 13 5 5 0 4 4 1 2 1
52 Church Road St James Senior Village Way 288 4 1" 9 3 3 30 8 16 11 4 6 67% 100% 78% 4 5 2 1 3

53 Church Road Village Way Felthamhill Road 752 8 14 8 2 2 34 11 20 12 4 5 3 6 4 2 3

54 Station Road  Woodthorpe Roa Station Road 171 5 8 8 5 1 27 7 17 1 5 5 2 9 3 0 4

55 Claredon Roac Woodthorpe Roa Fordbridge Road 577 8 " 11 5 1 3% 8 12 14 5 5 0 1 3 0 4 8
56 Woodthorpe R Stanwell Road  Church Road 428 7 15 10 3 2 37 8 19 12 4 5 1 4 2 1 3] 1"
57 Fordbridge Ros Church Road  Casterfield Road 266 10 14 14 4 4 46 10 17 14 5 5 0 3] 0 1 1 5
58 Dudley Road Church Road  Casterfield Road 256 8 12 12 6 2 40 9 12 14 6 5 1 0 2 0 3 6
59 Church Road ¢ Church Road  Church Road 190 8 13 9 4 2 36 10 17 12 6 5 2 4 3 2 3 14
5.10 College Way ChurchRoad  Pike Cres 166 5 8 10 5 1 29 6 16 13 6 5 1 8 3 1 4l a7
511 Village Way ~ ChurchRoad  Clarendon Rrima 40 8 15 13 5 0 41 9 17 13 5 6 1 2 0 0 6 9
512 Church Road ¢ Church Road  Church Road 204 9 13 10 4 2 38 10 17 12 6 5 1 4 2 2 3] 12
6.1 Feltham Hill Rc Church Road  Park Road 926 7 1 12 3 2 35 8 15 13 4 5 1 4 1 1 3 10
6.2 Town Tree Roz Feltham Hill Roac Convent Road 216 5 12 8 3 2 30 9 17 12 3 5 4 5 4 0 3 -
6.3 Convent Road Feltham Road  Glenfield Road 821 5 10 7 1 2 25 9 18 10 2 5 4 8 3 1 3

64 Feltham Road Church Road  Convent Road 186 10 10 9 2 2 33 10 12 1" 2 5 0 2 2 0 3 7
65 Feltham Road ConventRoad  Park Road 530 7 12 10 2 1 32 8 18 10 2 5 1 6 0 0 4 11
66 Clockhouse La Feltham Road ~ Bedfont Lanes. 733 4 7 7 2 0 20 8 16 10 2 4 4 9 3 0 40000020
71 Vicarage Road Burgoyne Road  Sunbury Cros 564 10 11 9 3 2 35 10 15 12 4 5 0 4 3 1 3 11
72 The Parade  Staines Road W Vicarage Road 279 8 1" 11 4 2 3% 9 17 14 4 5 1 6 3 0 3 13
73 Sunbury Cros - roundabout roundabout 393 0 1 8 5 3 27 7 18 10 1 6 7 7 2 -4 3 -
74 Staines Road \ Windmill Road  Sunbury Cros 686 5 10 7 1 3 2 8 16 1 1 5 3 6 4 0 2

75 Windmill Road Staines Road W Nursery Road 814 1 7 8 1 2 19 1 10 12 1 5 0 3) 4 0 3) 10
76 Nursery Road Windmill Road ~ Green Street 842 8 11 13 5 2 39 9 18 14 6 5 1 7 1 1 3 13
7.7 Green Street  Manor Lane Sunbury Cros 852 9 14 10 3 4 40 9 17 12 4 5 0 3 2 1 1 7
78 Station Road ~ Railway Station ~ Sunbury Cros 82 8 10 12 6 2 38 10 18 14 6 4 2 8 2 0 2 14
79 Station Approa Green Street  Railway Station 204 10 10 9 5 1 35 10 13 10 5 5 0 3 1 0 4 8

Table 21. WRAT results for walking links - existing & proposals

166 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



Figure 131. WRAT Results - Proposals, CWZ 5

Existing, CWZ 5

Figure 130. WRAT Results

il

vEREBR

[111110

vREREBR

(111110

y
csesesd

vERERE

(111110

Figure 135. WRAT Results - Proposals,

cwz7

Figure 134. WRAT Results

cwz7

Existing,

Proposals,

Figure 133. WRAT Results

CWZ 6

Figure 132. WRAT Results - Existing,

CWZ 6

167

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



2/ ¢ abed

Appendix 4: First phase assessments

Other Qualty o improvements Delverabilty Demand for improvements Access
Overall
assessmen of Ease of Dependecy to Residents' High Street/
the walking implementatio.other comments - PCT flows Rail/Bus  Commercial SchoolsiOther Other key
link Atiractiveness Comfort  Directnoss  Safety Coherence  n improvements Commonplace (trips on foot) ~Colisions  Station Area education  destination
3No
significant
constraints
2
Implementatio
n will require
further studies Total % Ranking
and 310 3:>160daly  3:>15 Gliksto  Flinksto  &iLinksto
engagement comments fkm trips collsions /km 3: bus stops & commercial education  other key
1: Constraints 2:<10 2:80-160 dally 2: railway station area facilty destination
3380%  %>20%  3330%  3>20% 20%  3>60%  todelaythe 3:No comments km trips col 2Zbusstops  1:Nolinkto  1:Nolinkto 1: Nolinkto
270-80%  2:0-20%  220-30% 2:15-20% 20-20%  2:40-60% implementatio depedency  1:No 1:<80daily  1: <5 collsions 1: no commercial  education other key
CWZik  roadname St End 0% 1% T2 1Sk 10% a0 n 1: Depedent _comments _trips m connection _area facilty destination
Weighting 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1
Max Score 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 7 100%
St James Senior Boys
5 51 StnwellRoad  Ashiord Hospital School 3 1 2 3 2 1 3 3 2 3 2 2 1 1 3 aed N
St James Senior Boys
5 52ChuchRosd  School Village Way 2 3 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 3 3 1 1 [l (20 1
5 53ChuchRoad Vilage Way Felthamhil Road 3 3 2 3 3 2 2 1 0 3 2 2 3 3 3 &7 79% 1
5 54SonRoad  WoodthorpeRoad  Station Road 2 2 3 3 1 3 2 3 0 3 3 3 3 3 1 86 8% 2
5 55ChredonRoad Woodthorpe Road  Fordbridge Road 2 1 1 3 1 3 3 3 2 1 1 1 1 1 1w 61% 20
Woodthorpe
5 56 Road Stanwell Road Church Road 3 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 0 2 2 2 3 3 i % 5% 4
5 5.7 Fordbridge Road Church Road Casterfield Road 3 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 i % £ o
5 58DudeyRoad  Church Road Gasterfield Road 2 2 1 1 1 2 3 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 3 50% 2
Church Road
5 59 Service Road  Church Road Church Road 2 2 2 3 3 2 2 3 1 2 2 2 3 3 i % 5% 4
55.10  CollgeWay  ChurchRoad Pike Cres. 2 2 3 3 2 3 2 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 3 st 7% 8
Clarendon Rrimary
55.11  VilageWay  Church Road School 3 2 1 1 1 3 3 3 3 2 3 1 1 1 e L "
Church Road ” o 5
5512  ServiceRoad  Church Road Ghurch Road 3 2 2 2 3 2 2 3 1 2 2 2 3 3 1
6 6.1 Feltham Hil Road Church Road Park Road 2 2 2 1 2 2 2 3 2 2 1 2 3 3 | 67% 2
6 62TownTrecRoad Feltham Hil Road Convent Road 2 3 2 3 1 2 2 3 1 2 1 2 1 1 1 ar 65% 15
6 63ConventRoad  Felthem Road Glenfield Road 2 3 3 3 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 2 3 3 1 69% 10
6 64 FethamRoad  Church Road Convent Road 1 1 1 2 1 2 3 3 1 2 1 2 1 1 1 3 53% 2
6 65FethamRoad  Convent Road Park Road 2 2 2 1 1 3 2 3 1 1 1 2 3 3 1| 48 4% 17
6 66 Clockhouse Lane Felthem Road Bedfont Lanes 1 3 3 3 1 3 1 1 3 1 1 1 3 3 3 o7% 2
7 7. Vicarage Road  Burgoyne Road Sunbury Cros 2 1 2 3 2 2 1 3 1 2 2 3 3 1| a7 5% 15
7 72TheParade  StainesRoad W Vicarage Road 3 2 3 1 2 2 3 1 1 3 2 3 3 1 83 4% s
Sunbury Cros -
7 7.3 subways roundabout roundabout 2 3 3 1 0 2 1 1 3 1 2 1 1 1 = L5 2
7 74 Staines Road W  Windmil Road Sunbury Cros 2 3 2 3 1 1 2 1 2 3 3 2 3 3 3 s 7% s
7 75WindmilRoad  Staines Road W Nursery Road 1 1 1 3 1 2 3 3 2 3 1 2 1 1 E 61% 20
7 76NuseryRoad  Windmil Road Green Street 3 2 3 1 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 2 3 3 1 4 7% 12
7 77 GreenStreet  ManorLane Sunbury Cros 3 1 1 2 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 2 3 3 1| 43 0% 2
7 78SttonRoad Raiway Station Sunbury Cros 3 2 3 1 1 1 2 3 3 1 1 3 1 1 1 48 4% 17
7 7.9 Station Approach Green Street Railway Station 2 1 1 1 1 3 3 3 3 1 1 3 1 1 i % 0% 2
Other Score Qualiy of Demand for improvements score Access score Priority for Priority for
R
Total | Rank otal | (ascendi
(ascending)
whole (25681400 | ol |~ ng)
borough "% | borough | whole
CWZik  roadname St End Total 3 Rank Total 3 Rank Total 3 Rank Total % Rank Total % Rank Borough
9 02 30 025 12 025 9 015 12 015
St James Senior Boys 53 14
5 51 StnwellRoad  Ashiord Hospital School ° 100% 1 18 0% 15 12 100% 1 7 78% 3 7 s8% 15 6 M 7
St James Senior Boys " 05
5 52ChuchRosd  School Vilage Way 6 7% 11 2 73% 7 4 as% 2 7 78% 3 5 s0% 17 1o 20
5 53ChuchRoad Vilage Way Felthamhil Road 9 100% 1 2 87% 1 6 50% 10 5 s6% 8 1 2% 1| a7 1| 122 1
5  54SonRoad  WoodthorpeRoad  Station Road 6 % 1 2 0% 5 10 3% 8 6 7% 5 10 3% 3 s 2| 121 2
5 55ChredonRoad Woodthorpe Road  Fordbridge Road 6 67% 11 18 60% 15 12 100% 1 4 44% 19 4 3% 2 44 20 89 19)
Woodthorpe " s
5 56Road Stanwel Road Church Road ° 100% 1 20 7% 10 12 100% 1 4 4% 19 9 75% E o M E
5 5.7 Fordbridge Road Church Road Casterfield Road 9 100% 1 12 40% 27 6 50% 19 5 56% s 4 33% 2 26| 7% 27,
5 58DudeyRoad  Church Road Gasterfield Road 6 7% 11 14 a% 2 8 7% 17 4 % 19 4 as% 2 3 26| 79 2
Church Road " s
5 59SeniceRosd  ChurchRoad Church Road 6 6% 11 2 80% s 10 8% 8 5 s6% 8 9 75% E 4 1 4
55.10  CollegeWay  ChurchRoad Pike Cres. 6 67% i 2 7% 1 10 83% 8 3 3s% 2 6 50% 1| st 8 1155 E
Clarendon Rrimary w© 106
551  VilageWay  ChurchRoad School 0 100% 1 1 s3% 20 12 100% 1 8 8% 1 4 3% 2 11 19
Church Road - e
5512 ServiceRoad  Church Road Ghurch Road ° 100% 1 2 3% 7 10 8% 8 5 s6% 8 ° 75% E s M E
6 6.1 Feltham Hill Road Church Road Park Road 6 7% 11 18 0% 15 10 83% 8 5 s6% 8 ° 75% s 1 103 14
6 62TownTrecRoad Feltham Hil Road Convent Road 6 7% 1 2 73% 7 10 83% 8 4 4% 19 5 a2% 2| 4 15| 1055 1
6 63 ConventRoad  Felthem Road Glenfield Road 6 7% 11 2% 8% 1 4 as% 2 5 56% 8 ° 75% s 50 10 108 o
6 64 FethamRoad  Church Road Convent Road 3 3% 2 14 4% 2 12 100% 1 4 44% 19 5 2% 21| 38 24| 845 24
6 65FethamRoad  Convent Road Park Road 6 % 1 18 0% 15 10 8% 8 3 3% 2 ° 75% s a6 [ 10 17
6 66 Clockhouse Lane Felthem Road Bedfont Lanes 3 a3 2 2 7% 1 4 a3 2 5 s6% 8 10 8% o 1| 1038 13
7 7. Vicarage Road  Burgoyne Road Sunbury Cros 6 67% 1 20 7% 10 8 7% 17 4 44% 19 9 5% s a7 15 1015 16
7 72TheParade  StainesRoad W Vicarage Road ° 100% 1 2 % 10 10 8% 8 5 s6% 8 ° 75% E 6 114 7
Sunbury Cros - P X X L .
7 73subwa roundabout roundabout 6 7% 11 18 0% 15 4 as% 2 6 7% 5 4 as% 23 2 25
7 74 Stanes Road W Windmil Rosd Sunbury Cros 6 67% 11 20 7% 10 6 S0% 19 8 89% 1 1 92% 1| st 5 11 Table 22. Phase 1 Wa[klng links pr|0r|t|sat|0n
7 75WindmilRoad  Staines Road W Nursery Road 3 a3% 2 16 53% 20 12 100% 1 6 7% 5 7 s8% 15| a4 20 2 tabl
7 76 NurseryRoad  Windmill Road Green Street 9 100% 1 20 7% 10 6 50% 19 4 44% 19 9 75% s 48 12 5| taple
7 77GreenSweet  Manor Lane Sunbury Cros 9 100% 1 14 4% 23 6 50% 19 5 s6% 8 0 75% Es 2 2
7 78SlionRosd  Raiway Station Sunbury Cros ° 100% 1 16 53% 20 10 83% 8 5 5% 8 6 50% 1745 17 18
7 7.9 Station Approach Green Street Railway Station 6 7% 1" 14 4% 2 12 100% 1 5 56% s 6 50% w ® 2 2|

168 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



¢/ ¢ abed

Other Quality of improvements Deliverability
Potential to improve
existing conditions (to
a high and accessible

Ease of implementation standard)

Contributes to
improved cycling
network

Quality of design-  Quality of design -
safety comfort

1= could require major

junction treatment (e.g.

new signals);

significant works.

outside highway 1= very limited

boundary; or third party potential (e.g. narrow

works (e.g. changes to  carriageway/footways,

alevel crossing) no verges)

2= could be provided 2 = moderate potential

with moderate junction (e.g. space for a

treatments; limited  minimum width cycle

works outside highway track from existing

boundary; expected  wide lanes, centre

interface with complex ~ hatching, verge etc.)

environments (e.g. 3 = strong potential

town centres) (space for a

3= could be provided  recommended-width

3=RST score >3.99  within the existing kerb cycle track from
important 2=RST score 4-5.99 RST score 2.5-3.99 lines, and with minimal - existing wide lanes,
extension/connection 1= RST score <4 RSTscore<25  junction treatment  centre hatching, verge

Per Cycle link to other routes etc)

Weighting 2 3 3 2 2

Max Score 3 3 3 3 3

Route 3:

A308/Kingston

Road

isolated link
2 = limited links to
other cycle routes or  Safety as scored by the Comfort as scored by
cycle-friendly roads  RST

3= strong links, forms 3 = RST score = 5

Length

6.186 2 2 2 1 3
Route 6:

Staines/Laleham

Road 3.021 3 2 1 3 2
Route 7: Stanwell
Road/Church
Road and
Convent
Road/School
Road

Route 9:
Ashford/Fordbrid
ge Roads

Route 18: Green
Street

3.227 3 3 2 2 1

2.609 1 3 2 3 3

2717 3 1 1 3 1

Other Score Quality of improvements score

PerCyclelink  Length  Total % Rank Total %
Route 3:
A308/Kingston
Road 6.186 4 67% 4 12 67%
Route 6:
Staines/Laleham
Road 3.021 6 100% 1 9 50%
Route 7: Stanwell

Road/Church

Road and

Road/School
Road 3227 6 100% 1 15 83%
Route 9:
Ashford/Fordbrid
ge Roads

Route 18: Green
Street

2609 2 33% 5 15 83%

2717 6 100% 1 6 33%

Table 23. Phase 1 walking corridors prioritisation table

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Demand for improvements Access

Indicative demand from Enhances nework
Commonplace connectivity (RST)

Pedal cycle collision

rate PCT Tool Access to education

Itis envisaged that the
proposed route will
create an accident
saving. Therefore those.
which currently have a
high number of
accidents involving
cyclists will generate

Access to education
e.g. school, college,

The potential to

1=upto 8 times 3=>8 comments per  improve the cycling

Access to transport

facilities Other key destination

Serves transport
interchange e.g. train
station, bus station

Access to sports,
recreation or outdoor

the biggest accident  increase km environment based on _ library etc 3= yes, more than one  space
savings. 2=810 10 times 2=4-8 comments per the RST scores. 3 =yes, direct access  within 400m 3 =yes, direct access
1= <3lkm increase km 3=RST score =5 yes, within 400m 2 = yes, within 400m
2=3-6/km 3=over 10 times 1 =<4 comments per 2=RST score4-599 1 =no/ further than 1= no / further than
3=>6/km increase km 1 =RST score <4 400m 400m 400m
2 3 2 1 1 1 1
3 3 3 3 3 3 3

2 2 2 2 3 3

1 1 1 3 3 2

3 3 1 3 3 3

1 3 3 2 3 1

1 2 2 3 3 3

Deliverability score Demand for improvements score
Rank Total % Rank Total % Rank
12 025 2 0.15

3 8 67% 3 16 67%

4 10 83% 2 10 42%

1 6 50% 5 20 83%

1 12 100% 1 19 79%

5 8 67% 3 15 63%

High Street /

Commercial Area

Access to sports,

recreation or outdoor

space

3 =yes, direct access

2= yes, within 400m
1= no / further than

400m
1
3

Access score

Total

100%

58%

Rank

100%

1%

61%

82%

64%

Ranking
3
5
1
2
4
Priority for Priority for
improvements improvements
rank
Total whole |(ascendin| T°%2! |(ascendin
e | oo | D e
gh | g borough | 9
51 9.85
3 3
4 88
5 4
59 125
1 1
55 11.05
2 2
% J 88 s

169



/¢ obed

Appendix 5: Indicative Cost Estimates

Table 24. Cost estimates for proposed interventions

rmion e

Zebra crossing £34,000 per item

Parallel crossing £34,000 per item

New crossing including road markings, dropped kerbs, belisha beacons and high friction surfacing
on approaches

Signalised Pedestrian and Cyclist Crossing £70,000 per item

New crossing including traffic signals, road markings, dropped kerbs, and high friction surfacing
on approaches

Upgrade Signal Crossing £43,800 per item Added traffic signals for pedestrians/cyclists and road markings on existing crossings

Side Road Treatment £14,600 per item Raised carriageway with tactile information and associated works such as street lighting, signing
and lining

Raised Junction £35,000 per item Raised junction with crossing point and associated works such as coloured surfacing, street
lighting, signing and lining costs

New speed limit £15,000 per km New signs, road markings and traffic calming measures

Widened footway £700,000 per km Widened footway, new kerbs and resurfacing of the full extent of the footway (3.0m)

Resurfaced footway £300,000 per km Resurfacing of the full extent of the footway

Public realm improvements £2,400,000 per km Includes widened and resurfaced footways, raised carriageway to the footway level and new

surfacing (does not include drainage)

Costs are indicative only and can vary significantly depending on local site conditions. Based on indicative base unit costs available from DfT (Typical costs of cycling interventions, Interim
analysis of Cycle City Ambition schemes, January 2017), Greater Manchester Cycling Design Guidance and Standards, and Wiltshire Council (https.//www.wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-works-
cost). Where a cost range was given, the higher value is shown to provide a more conservative estimate and reflect a potential higher degree of engineering interventions required. For more
bespoke elements, engineering judgement was used to estimate material quantities (what would be covered by multiple items in a standard bill of quantities developed in detailed design) and

make allowances for unknowns at this early concept stage.

170

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



G/ ¢ abed

Intervention

Two-way cycle track

£1,332,000 per km

2.5m (minimum width) on the carriageway level with kerb segregation

One-way cycle track

£721,500 per km

1.5m (minimum width) on the carriageway level with kerb segregation

Stepped cycle track

£1,055,000 per km

One way cycle track on a level between the footway and the carriageway without other
segregation

Contra flow cycle lane

£555,000 per km

One-way cycle lane with light segregation and additional features for segregation at junctions

Advisory cycle lane (Dutch style)

£294,000 per km

1.5m (minimum width) painted lanes including resurfacing of the carriageway

Mixed traffic

£755,000 per km

Speed limit reduction, road markings and traffic calming measures

Off-carriageway path

£1,000,000 per km
for cycling

New cycle path of 3.5m width including vegetation clearance, surfacing and new street lights

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

171



9/¢ abed

Appendix b: Stakeholder meeting

Phase 1 Internal stakeholder meeting 26 July 21

ATKINS

Pt o e S Lol oy

Meeting Notes

VY

Project: Spalthome LOWI
Subject:  SPethcrme Workshop 1A
Meeing  Onine (MS Teams) Mesting 07
Flace: ne
Dateand 26 Juy 2021 1400 Mirgtss  Gacvanni Sanna
fime: by:
sndees;  Neil Mesiurs ING) Fsprasan  SCC{Transport 1
ARINGE o0 Tromlen (OT) ey SCC {Transport Pokicy)
Harnah Bridges {HE) SEC (Transpert Policy)
Mick Healay (NH) SCC {Transport Policy)
Amelia Hatheld (AHK SCC{ Transport Pokicy)
Fumh Adalekur (FA} SCC (Majed Propeets)
Katie Ludsigaen (KL]
Sandy Mumead (SM) SEC (Transformative Projecs)
Les Bessent {LB) Antive Sumey
ae-u:nzd:emnna {BC} Addng
Cmmmuwccm Ading
Arlana Ragusa (&%) Addng
Siman Jay (5 Adking
nei Sanra {35 Addns
Apolog Arn Biggs Rapragen  SEC
s Derna Selby ing sCC
Alisen Houghton SCC
Roger Williams SCC
Carchne Smith SCC
Duncan Knox {0K) SCC
Nt mesting:
Frar R Atondoes and Apciagins
Dace Issuad: 5 August 21 File St SRDE2R4
MOTE 1O RECIMIENTS. ;
Y it 1 i e I .3 1025 o V8 OGO Wl D ESTIBS 41455 AR COPTIOnts W 1icaved
Mg Wi v ders of rece ot

i s kT o
Spuhome Worshop 1h

ATKINS

Pare e o 2 S Ll Do

ITEM

DESCRIPTION AND ACTION

Entroduciions.

Baalriz prodded iniroductions abow: fhe purpase of the workshop and

axpinined (i procn<s ok In thi dovilopenent of the Tengls! and
shotist Al attendeas infroduced them selves and what They wanied ta
gain from the session,

AH noted the wmmrrvcm-ummlm\upn‘m raw Local
Transport Plan for local jourmeys for walking and cydling,

HB worts o soo how the LCWIP fils with the LTP.

D said that the goal for Surrey s by 2025 to doukle the rumbers of
cycists and by 2030 hat* of the jouneys in the county 1o be by floot or
cycling, and e LEWIR is one ¢ the tooks or Hhis goal

FA s werking en the A328 improverrents and sald there s an
eppertanty fer collaberation with he LCWI= praposals.

KL d he imends 1o gain “rem e LCWIP
wmﬂsmbwmhmmwm-emmmm
which can feed inko the LOWIP,

W mhdM H!&LC'\“P d-‘mﬂwﬂhho ATS scheme will provide
o ik o the

Oﬁlﬁﬂhﬂm

NH is imerested 1o see Te highway improvemanis or the LOWI=.

M rermindsd the aendess umwmm—wxumw‘m LGWI® ard
in*ormed of she rollour of the program in Sum

Siudy Background! Objectives of the LEWIP

BC sxplained 1he purpose of fe mesting (gaining ‘eadback on the

‘umgin :wp.mﬂﬂlmLmamm it5 reied methadology.
lnined thart this wuﬁetwandlnx

ore wil be o furher o

winctod membars), She nofierated the wrman uf‘lnw'b'w n:dn‘;

[Soa prosentadion sides pi-£9 sharnd on fhe 39 July 2521}

Proposed Cycle Comiders & Discussion

AR axpiained the evidence base Lisd to develop the Tanglist. She
eplained there ts & michure of SCC data and data collected by Asdns fc
Inform the eocent and location cf the cycie comiders. AR bagan by
ehspdaying the ‘Duich Scenadic” PCT and exisling PCT. She then
Showd & 5enes of imaps inclutng. ‘Housenckls wih ne car of van
avalabiky”, Cyehst Collisions 2015-2019 and publc com manls
eaptured theough the Sarrey COVID Transpan Mag' or the Spelthama
ared. Svemwwmnmame‘mmwu
CCITAE ) ows In . Tris. showed that there was a
et ourward Sow o tnps of around 8.000 per day. AR explained that
hars was a case i cverlaying this data which helped 1 star 1o
daToNsTale an cuire of cycle COmMACTs whens mprovements need 1o
e made. She described that sveniually a heatmap was created from
mmawmnm was Then develcped by removing the
“rokse’ g Croto & ghollon etwork. Sha highlghted e inponance of

Y

RESFONSIBLE
BC

AR

G et inke i
Sparhone Worhop 1A

minutes

NTKINS

Parter oSG Lialin Do

ITEM

DESCRIFTION AND ACTION
Heatheow an:

d he tirelne eventually
creates a prabrinary cyting _'-mt.

AR axplained that a bafors and atier can be davelopied rom the cytiing
pocr

a brisf descripton of a few corridors.
{See presentaton elides p! 0-p7 B shared on the Z2nd July 2021)

NH cnmaried cn e methedelogy Hhat iderifies e A snd B reads
and mentioned Fat the network thal s presened makes sense

NH refarmed o the proposals on comidor 83 (AS08! Kingaton Soad) ard
roted thar the existing provision is very poor AR explaned fal &= o
vy direct route and asked whethes attendeas could provide feedback
0 look: at an atermative for the ASDE. MH explained that & scherra from
Forthiwidge Ricad to Surbury (no! inchiding the roundabots ef
Sunkary) & ESarilion CLL and £5milkan mateh ‘g 1o sevelop & eydle
roune. Hi addad that schoal Road i aready under constuction and he
junnction wil foliow. AR acinowiscged and then operied up for
dincussion on the routes.

NH asked P rowie #1 {Renfree YWay) incuded Cherisey keidge. He
explained thad the pacaoets ane very |cw, and the sppreach pradent i
alse low and Uniess you are b confiden: cycist, vehicles will baccme
imipatient o3 they would need 1o wat bakind te cyclists. He alsc
highlighted thae waldng crcss: the bekipe ks quite challanging toc.

LE siated thak he had cyciad along the A308 using backsirests and
wabed & was vary hestis and ‘cund that cumanty i is very unplsasant.
He explained that schocl chikiren woubd probably cyde i scme of the
main secendary schocls in Sunbury.

H stated that he speed i has been rmln-wuﬁl
‘rom S0mph to 40mEn. thiare were B vary

o casualties in s anea. Muummnmmumm
abang thee reaed but axpiained iy are not very pheasant, and this means.
1 Is essentialy nct usable. NH added hat there & poor lane aliccanion
along the cormidor which weans there are Ta''c lsues and speeds
which limii the quality of what can be provided.

OT askesd if there s @ design process “or the sectcn ¢f the AS08, NH
wabed hat there would be cverkio betwsen the Two 1o heip complem s
ofs anethar,

NH stated that there e several designs ‘or the puncticrs along the
308

OT sxphaned thar tha comdons are a5 expacind but sought 1o axplom
mnmcm%aﬁw-ﬂuﬁﬁlamﬁmmmmmﬁwa
rouughly the some lewel of demand for cyclists, MS stased that 1t is alsc
unpisason {o ok and hard to cycle. N agreed

Corridor # {Staines ! Laleham Road) NH staded that this is on the rdar
*or the road safnty team, and they o seeking improvements for L
NH stated there are seme constraints such a3 the railway bridge

V.

RESFONSEBLE

ContE g entn ik ma
SpeThene Warshep 1A

172

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



1/ ¢ abed

ATKINS

Pt o e S Lol oy

ITEM

DESCRIPTION AND ACTION
NH also cutlined ha' thers could be soms improvements va the River
Thamres Scheme (RTS) proposal for comider #15 {Thames Path]

OT stabed iat i may be a besar routs which considens kwer Sunbury
batwoen comider #4 [Stanes Read Sast) which covers the dstance
batwen Hurst Park. SM agreed BO asked f £ i6 o uised roits. NH
weabed & 15 and s estabished in pans, He explaned that £ ends o Green
Street

N alen highlighted  peneh peint wsus rear e relay bridge ol
Sunbury. NH started thal thers is a conosn if Aather cycls! provision is
provided along cormides 812 (Thames Street | Halliford Read).

HB sirled et the local plan suggests there i cydle access 1o a local
school thers. HE stated thers has no! been mudh discussion with it

rners regarding this.
BC asked if the mune bitwien cormder 874 (Staines Road Eaat) and #2
Cadoury]

{Lipper Haliitord | ) has o smoll sirench which roans o
Drive through the mobils

homes see i he A24A.

Ve

Proposed Core Walking Zones & Discussion
GC began by explaining the CWE mathodelogy the puepcss of the
W28, GC stk for Sosfhome a umber of omererciaks s
the CWZs
womwmwlsm She euplained that a ink
betwsen cmwamammaiwm ba then develcp

(‘.st'lnp&QSlunPC'l' She went cn to expiain that the River Thames.
Seheme (FTS) proposalé, Pedaiian Colisicns and Sublic Sugessians.
in “Comronplace”. Shir hen hqmmamnhymuumb;-ﬂnp )
Fighlight the key
She 4 mwmwmimmﬂammmm
s aneas. She axplained that the River Thames Schare prepesals
e ko inchuded a5 woll &t Short Cor Trips <2.5km e alsc
cansidered

Trnmulmn’mcwzs:n not within the areas nflm mr.'nl.

s f the key
i vealking 2o are important o tha S e,
wilking caridrs.

Mmmmm!mﬂ# CWZs driwirg el @ brie! description
0 expiain each

She then finished her presentation showing the fonglist’ acoss the
‘wea borcughs highlichting the symergy that the CWZs have. She then
wend of ic open up the o atendees for the
propeials.

Erae s5ites 10, the 22 uly 2029)

H siated that shers is & pinch point cn Grean Sirest which may requins
Impeovemrant. MH mentioned hat there are schocl chiloren which o
ercsing ot grade along the Sunbury Read as there ars lsaue 3 with the
subway 1o help connect the iocal arsa.

CErtang gngr ik i
Spahome Woreshop: 1A

ATKINS

Pare e o 2 S Ll Do

ITEM

DESCRIPTION AND ACTION

OT stabed T Starwell CWZ may not be capluning nearby schocls which
are jus! cutside of the CWZ. GC adknowledged and noted.

HE mertioned that there could be some mprovamens o the pedestrian
area in Ashford a2 curmantly prévision is pocr. This vas achnawiadged
by GG

HB further highlighted that 8 A308 con act as & barmar within the
Baines CWE s wal s the River Thamas. GC acknowledged.

Next Steps
BC axplained that  survey lirk will be shared again afier e mesting tc
get input o the CWEs and any oiher potential routes. BC stated that

“shorkst’ prierised,
wndertaken 10 a35e3s the short Bs?, folowed by improverent cencepls,
“urther engagement and refimement of concepts before compling the
LCWWIP repors.

St asked If shere were any further zmrn:lm mmﬂeam
mmmmpmmawu

EC thanked swerycne o afending. OT and NH sharked Akins for

mnning lockny's wirkshen.

End of meeting
BC and DT hanked ol o attending and ‘eit he workshop was o useful
exchange in the ongcing LEWIP process.

V.

S5SONSIBLE

G et inke i
Sparhone Worhop 1A

NTKINS

Parter oSG Lialin Do

ITEM
B

DESCRIFTION AND ACTION

Post Meeting Noie — m;fﬁulﬂs

During and folicwing the workshop, an ondne sunsey form was shared
with ariendnes ‘o gu ther input on which cycle routes and walking areas
fom the Tonglsts’ they felt oo @ higher pricrty. The resits fiom his
workshep are shown below, 'hnrurwilhnemllrh&dmmﬂw'ﬂ
e 'shest st for frther shudy bn e LEWI®, slong with inged fram olher.
:mmmwmwauwmmnmmnmm

o oot s bl ity i Pt 1 cf e

V.

RESFONSEBLE

ContE g entn ik ma
SpeThene Warshep 1A

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

173



8/ ¢ abed

Phase 1 External stakeholder meeting 03 August 21

ATKINS

Pt o e S Lol oy

V.

Meeting Notes

Projec: Spalihcrra LOWIR
Subjec;  Seekhome Workshop 18

Meesing  Criine (MS Teams) Mesting 02
k L -3

Deteand  DZAUDWLZ021[ 1400 | panges  Geovanri Sawo
by

ATKINS

Pare e o 2 S Ll Do

ITEM

QESCRIP‘I'IDNANQMHON

Introduct]
Dtmdmmwwwmmwmnmvﬂmhmo‘
tha workshop and sxplaming the process invelved in the davelopment of
e “longhst’ and “shortlist’, She asked the aflendess when nbroducng
shoemsolves to acd what they want 1o gain from the session

HE said she wints 1o o8 how ha LEWIP aligns vl the local plan.

€ said he want %0 sa0 the influences of the LCWIP in the
daveicpments

©0urban werks on a similer project inWindsor and i attending it see
the interfaces.

CH is imterested in the project and the proposals a3 a resident in

Sunibuey an

CDeakins s iterested in he oross-boundary route,

VY

RESSONSIBLE

NTKINS

Parter oSG Lialin Do

ITEM

DESCRIFTION AND ACTION

maumﬁonun:r.rmmennm an oathine of

corTiders whas IMErcvamants need 1o be made. Sha describsed that
evaniusally 3 ealimap was created from i and a prebminary network
was then develaped by rumoving he nisise’ 10 creste @ skeleon
matwork. She bighlighted the mpanance of connecting with Heathrew
and theen shewed hivw e bmelng aventually crecrles o praliminasy

AR continued wih the the Tonglial' of oyde el i

axplaned hat if thews are any in‘rasiruciucsl nesds thal need (o be

demmmmwhsmuww She Snished
hor prosoncation by describing the Toanglis!” of oo comidors.

{Saa prasantation dedes 0 - 7 shaved ot D2/08/2021)

Atendees:  Chis Hyda (CH) Fsprasan  SCC (Chairy AR then apened up the discussion o allow the interacive mapping
Oiug Tremsalian (1T} fng: SO Transport Policy) o 1 gn.
b B0 oy ng =il 4 - OT a5 a representative of Surmey wanss o hear everyone's ideas. o begin
Plannng) Iﬁm:mhwhﬂu‘ﬂmﬂdmwwmamllm W& menticred travel smart plans which use speciic rosies which am
Sam Goddard (SG) sC0 wher the existing irrasTuciures are peor. usafil AR mentioned that esisting cycie facil ties are being used and
Hunnah Bridges {HB) E2C (Transpert Policy} are relatedd %0 this. KS also Bsked about the NCN routs 4 and how the:
Lisa Stenehcuse (LS) EBL | Lekare Services Manager) MR is interessed in the Bnks %o Chertesy and Windsor, preposnls wil be irked %o the commidor, AR stated than the LCWIR Is
Sandy Muhoad (M) SBC preclominanty ity trigs as well as |eisure inips. She sisted
hy Sandars | ] Cycling LK (Local Rep) BB is very inferested to hear about unding and how much can be done. NCN 4 i 80 irporiant and 3a% route and i mainly inchuded in the.
PMaryn Besvan (MB) Walking & Cycling ‘or Heath (Stanes) He noted tha: itis imporiart i improve the sxisting faclities, Langlise® but cautioned & may no: reach the Shorkist’. CH added 1o the.
Lymn Bavan {LB) Walking & Cycling for Heath (Stanes) diseussion and asked adout The connecticn wiih neighbeurng boroughs.
Stones (K5t Locol Rusident S it inferested in the schac! sirsets in the berough and paticularty AR Pighiigihted that Atking I8 warking on the neighbcuring LCWIPs.
Richardsan (M3} Souh Ascot Vilage Primany Schecl he Sunbury area. (Eimbricge and Rurmymede ) and he LOWIR for Heatheow has been
Ken Saunders (¥5) luﬂ?::dw:oﬂhuwm mnmw&muaﬂ&umhmpmmmu
L MV wanis 1o see the cpporiunities b9 irk Spetthome LOWI™ 1 the such & Kingsicn Heunslow. BC added tha' vwe are werking clcasly
Timcthy Wlls (TW) Heathrow Arpors SEWM LOWIZ it the Srver Thames Schame “rogesals feam to
Zahwa Al Z4) Hcuns|ow Berough Counsll = ° SN
ot Heunsiow Borcugh Councll B3 in iraratiad i the connecicns wik Elrbridge. ns.mnm-wmwummnaa,mmmm
Bsa Verts Preject Cente (SEWMLCWIS) LS s the LEWI® a5 an oppartunity 1o gat mone peopls active nummuwmmmwmmaawmw
Chis Durbian (COurban] Preject Cenine (REWM LCWIR) TV rafermed bo Hesatheow smployses hat ve in Speithomes and new wating hat as an approach, te most direct rouies are generally being
m&w {8c} ﬂ:: eormections wil baig them :::mummmmmu Implamentad ic: ansure that routes ars
Aria m:‘:‘cc, edn:
na ] 5 2 BC S stobed that an aternative rowte could b cordidared hana alang
Gicivanni Sanna (G5) Adans Church Aoad instead of alang Ranfres Way — KS stated thai & has a
high-gpeedd Wit ¢ S0mph. MR raised that there & a large amount of
pace on edher sios of ihe camageway o enabie 3 safer routng. KS
achond AR'S poine et wa nend (o malka Foulns os gale and Gme s
passatia
sricdone ry 4 followes on from K safo ard M satod
— . o & Cor B ] on from K& point abou: CICT o, b
Dbttation: -ARercees and dpciogies AR txpikvad o o ough <f o asentaion, sha showad scme it hewoudd b v 3 diect s and kck o ok s, AR
[reesyr—— 16 Auguet 21 Filo St 5206254 samples o° the svidence base used 1o develcp the Tongls?, She made o ssoond poirt sbout lesurs

NOTE TO RECIPRENTE:

s i i ecer ) Al rdianeng of s meatng and i S #8Ens wng B
el et e ety ER—

W winen fm das of rece ot

Contans mastie Mrmat o

explained thens is a midure o SOC data and data collected by Addng tc

avaabity’, Tycist Collsions 2015-201 and public comments

ips giving the wxarrple
dr.nmhd’?fﬂwusm n-mruu chrmumnhimuwd

orrider 0 aconss W x commuba i | Lenden
He highlighted hat ussmwmm w:rmwmswwmrdwr
lmnd-s :n‘hsmmnmﬁuardls-aﬂnnnmmmm
issues on cne oy

VY

RESFONSIBLE

ok s nfamat
T St Wernsnep 1 el 5 nesasll ]

216803 Epeithomen Workshop ' e 1 notasB Minuls FXI1 0002 Cantwns mnging niomst

FIENCD S et Wernane el 53 nesaslh !

174 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



6/¢ abed

ATKINS

Pt o e S Lol oy

V%

ATKINS

Pare e o 2 S Ll Do

VY

NTKINS

Parter oSG Lialin Do

VY

ITEM | DESCRIPTION AND ACTION RESFONSIBLE ITEM | DESCRIPTION AND ACTION RESPONSIBLE ITEM 3=SCRIP‘I'IDNAN3M|‘IO'I RESFOMSIBLE
hat comidor #12 (Thames STeet | Hallford Road) may have 3 highes explaned $at main cormdors with a critical mass can ensure a higher ar movements, and in some cases (s an exarple Stanes and
potential than is being indscaned on the map. quality ¢f cydling infrasiruciure. iﬁ-g;‘lu—-ahadhlrl:mllhpm\dd& dferan zones will ofer

AR aciched that & this s:age we thould be as ambitious as possibie when
K5 comeciad the alignment alang Hali‘ord Hoad $at CH stated. providng cycing mirasTuciure
KSanders quastionsd the possieity of a recuction in speed lmit aleng CH aded in the chat * uncarsand the scurce for The 5 mirs wali.
Hall*erd Sizad whizh changes fraguantly, CH acdad in tha chat Chat Pars Commaents during interval canchenant (s DT, but that ssems a vary short dstancs and
“réalilend s coukd be in allerrativi S'e ouls Som Lower Sunbury imiis the poterial for walking”. BG rosponced “we will Feview our oore
0 Fordbeioge Hd, Mough its kess diee! 1o Wision * MY waot: “kioon 1 Kok a furthes ineesdigaions into foue § wilh waliing zenee; however, s GO said, e won BTt 40 5 minutes. The 5
regands i REWM bordes™ & akrost o starting point and ¥  pariculir route axtends furthes, that
S st (it aloryg Fordbnidips Soad in Asherd Som Fardbridgs will by corvrend
Reundaboy; o Aghicrd centre tire & a naTow cytle lane which is in HSanders sroie | ihirk route 3 betwesn Surbury and Staines
poor surfoce condition. KS stated that Kingston Road is also in poor {A308MIngrsbon Rud) is key. | undersiand some work s sirsady undanvay LS stated that e pattway hat leads o Bedforrs lakes fom Ashford
candticn fom a cydit's pord of view o seversl pnctions, but | wondered if fcllowing Stanes Aqueduc] could High sireet would be useful KS danfied hat o bid had gone in for
e booked o for af least parl of the route™ ‘unding 1o mpeove this route. She added in the chal- °1 think the linked
MB exprassed that he sensed publis sentiment fom parents wha are documrsent “reen the Jein: Commitiss 1 March 2021 talks about the
wiwilling ‘o cycla with their chidren because hey fesl unsa'e. A3 C0 wimie *For the lnks weth Windser and Masderthoasd | agres that these Lmlenmmmumav bridge
SN MR are met 80ep 15 prisnlty. Datehe? B within eyeing disiancs 50d i is werth
wuwmmmmnwmmmoummnwmm s 1o 20packH2 0T mannaum
T askad hat ﬂmﬁnwumanm 9MMonrh1nnnﬂnm e west and the preferrad routes for fhesa” 202196201 4.00% 20Spaliheare % 20.0int % 20Camminme pa*TT=10"
that for racrovell
ﬁ.m:mnnsmdrimlrwm ‘wha s in this aren. TW BC tharkad all for i oomements in the chal pans. K‘srmﬂw ummammwmy of pathwa 3 GC
sated he would lock to sharm he daa on colleaguns wha e 4. | Propesed Core Walking Zones & Discussion [ 7 askad if thera ks an averkay

rearing te Heatheow. TW eoplained they are loching to improve the
sty of workars 1 8ocess the akpon ‘or walking and cycling.

S snbed tha & signiicant numbser of coeridors #10 (Starmvell Moor
Tead) alreacy have mxdsting cycling “sclitiss. TW schosd this and
euiplained there should be a srenger cornection with the reundabeut
Reetf. AR ackncwiedged.

S radsed thar along #9 (ashford! Fordbridge Rload) the quality of the
read and feotpath are in pocr condition, AR noted this.

S5 asked abeut the dagradaticn of cycleways. OT sxpiained how
surtacng is applied and Tz high friction layening s appled cver the
caTiagevay surace which can dagrade quickly. He axplained thre ka
research ‘aciiy in sumey which expicres new sur'acng materals, K3

reassLred by facity in Sumey.
WIS highlighied fhe recart changes o the higiway code Froposed by T
CHT racently and refarenced cyclng design practices in Holland as a
sandard.

CH ahle] b ME'S poind abant inying b consedir & holiati: sppdanch 1o
providng cycing 8nEuIrg 5a'e

and locanons bo keep cyches that are akso safe. Hi concluded e
e'tactiveness of lowering speed limils to reduca the danger to cydsts
om igh veiile speeds. CH explained <har thar could be addéional

not siop here, in fet this i1 mslmmwn‘pwwwrv:

GG began by explaining hat the CWZ methodology by explaining the

develop the network within them., ﬁummvc‘m
background inormnaticn including: Public Transpor, Public Rights cf
Way (PR an sher Cat Trgs <2.8am (°GT) mmmwwan
Thames Schers [RTS) “:n:pmﬂ
cdislauﬁulm&wam . snmnnqanln
verlay e dita step.by.step bo show & healmap % demonsrate an
capertunity and issues map which highligh's potential ansas whers
rpeoverants shoukd be mads, She axplairsd hat the data allowed an
mital 51 which sxcluded Starwsd Mocr and Fatham Hill © then
elrwuting tha Tongles!’ nf CWZs and commidors cennetied o thesa CWZe
which consder gops raised by tha Gato oveslay anaysis.

She ihen provided a demonsirabive example o how the retwork withn

T CWZ would be identified. 3C aoncuded by prasanting snd

mm mm1mnwm|wmmmmm
g L the

m&mmlhm’z

{See prosentation shdes 18 = 27 shared ol D2M0872021)

CH stad that e i the S-rinute walking Zene calchment area is
eemirained. Hio rased o sesond point about e congideration of
Torapon Mehmnhmdmhpmmo‘un CWEZs and corridars,
el v L Finally, ha

anked about Mmuamummn

waeeorm o axplors mutual benafis. acwmmm
would be 8 cocrcingted approach 8t tha nexe stage at @ micro level 1o
en5Une these ane imprcved hanmsniously.

KS menticned te topie of colisiona in Ashford and asked ¥ thers are &
high ramber of cclslors in e Ashicrd area. GC confirmed the cxilision
rate is high akorg the high screst nerh owards the hosphal.

S asked what type o Imervenions weoukd be corsbderad at conceps
design, GC axplained these would incluce fostuay, cressing and
pavermient widening amongs: cther inerventions.

Mamllﬁudmnmmnwu“wlmm.
mum"nLCmemenmumﬂ the
vt OT added that share are acticns that can inTeduced.

LS asked 1 made parents i walk
i chiddren 1o schoad. She gave the mplw'wdw trairs. BC
axplanad he purpcss of this LOWIP ane fior hard measunes ic be
mpamanted bui soft measures woukd be complmentary to the schome
Bt sugplained an this would coma undar a separate study. OT

pukiiic to reach o to local sehcals 10 sk whal they are doing o
encourage o walking o school

KSandars accled in he chat “Cn activs Tovel ‘or schools, thers has
tonn sucensa frem idomfying “aohe myel charpions’ @ schoaoks. ™

morm comments, emaill is the best way patential. He proviced an example of teo shopping centres and asked Charl Pana Comments during
wharher the dala presents batwaen the atiractors Kanders "have you corsickrsd e podesaian and cyoing wefmm
0 sk about the bk Tiors meay net Bchually be soourring. GO responded thal the CWZs s Sunbuey sorcss o Walion or is that covered by the Your Furd Sur
Inclicahve ard may sxtend furher o1 the shoriist’ dewelcpmant stage i

allowing cyclis®s fo use sacondary rouios 1o Umhhu]unedwrwh Ha

ihum&u! Sho

mada. She sdded that prepesed comiders will folicw the demrand for

projoct?
KSanders “Sunbury Cross mwnmm hmw
padestzian’ CH agreed and odoed “Agree on Sunbury

oy s namt i
FICHEY Sp et Wernste el 2 nesssl ]

ok s nfamat
T St Wernsnep 1 el 5 nesasll 3

ks mee o
FIENCD S et Wernane el 53 nesaslh [

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 175



ATKINS

Pt o e SN Ll oy

ITEM

08¢ abed

OESCRIPTION AND ACTION
cumen'ly at%s a5 3 barrier bebwesn Lewsr Surbury and Sunbury
Cemmen for pedestrians and cycls's.”

Hext Steps

BC oo aine] theri o stnary Enk will bo shared again after the mosting to
et input cn tha CWEs and cycle cormidors,

Sha wenil on to explain the nex! steps which incluted: netwark
refineement & pricritising the shert s, route msaesaments, mprovemen:
conoopts, furiher engagement and refinement o cencepts bo'ora
compiing the LCWIP repar,

End of mesting

BC thanked everycne for ato and their ‘sedback. She retsrated
access 1C the survey link and encouraged attendess 1o provide further
coments o emad.

Ve

RESPONSIBLE

BC

BC

Conns s nfomat o
RICHEY S el Wernatp (Dl 23 nessslh

ATKINS

Plars e o 5 SC Ll B

ITEM
I

DESCRIPTION AND ACTION

Post meeting notes

During and foBawing tha workshop, an oniine suraey “orm was shared
with artendaes 1o gat ther ingu: on which cyce roules and wiking wreas
from thes “longlists” they feh were: @ higher priority. The resuls from ths
s aine shown bedow. The ingat wil be considened in dentdying
e “mheoet it far further sty in the LGWIS, along with input from: othor

-afion fom e @

e,

1, Sote e e cych s et el o W ittty B bt Sty Pt .60 P
PR

2. S o ) oo Corw Wi o Bty et o ot g iy Fon e ey Eemig
e |4 S |

Ve

RESPONSIBLE

Contans mnstre ot
R0 Spettwrrn Wernshen 1) el 53 nebasll

176

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



T8¢ abed

ATKINS //

Meeting Notes

Prejec Spatihcrra LOWIR
Subjec;  Seerherme Warkshop 1C

Maeting Ordine (M3 Teams) Mesting 03

Doteand AU 1400 | pipes  GONMB ORI
dre: by

sndees:  CW Kathieen Grant Gspresen  SBC
& " Cir Buddhi Wasrssinghe | g HOC
Cir Rohert Evars 500
G Danse Tomer-Sewar S0
Oug Tramslian (DT} sce
Denna Seltyy (08)
Sandy Musrhaad (SM) SBC
Beairiz Campes {BC) Mding
Bia Aking
doulopouiou (GC) Adkdns
Ariana Ragusa (AS) Ading
Gigrannl Sanna {38) Hddng
ITEM | DESCRIPTION AND ACTION RESSONSIBLE
“. | introductions.
BC operwed the mesting by preserting bo the attendees e purpose of
‘e workshop and explaning e process invohved in the cavelopment of
e Tonghs? and ‘shortlist’. Then she continued with the introductions.
2 | Study Background' Objectives of the LEWIP Be

Tongis? ) and explmned ;
She ined that this is the 3° stakeholder:

eemal mnﬂm:mmn vtk ba‘ors, She reflerated e

purpcse of the workshop tod:
Hewt meeting: ) )
Distribeticn; Aterdees and Apclogies
Doto lssued: 10 Aguet 27 FioRet 5206264
NOTE 10 RECPIENTS:
Eiptd metrig 1ok ragted Al - ttnedg o s matng and e 38 #SY Kng Bt
For 1778 i ncies PO @ Fug sl O 18 SRCIREOn Wil 3y Sed 218 18 Ve COmmat e el

g winn v days of reca

Contans mnstie nformat m
Spathcme Worshop: 15

Phase 1 Elected Members stakeholder meeting 06 August 21

ATKINS //

ITEM | DESCRIFTION AND ACTION

Tl Evans ncted that the stakshelder sngagsmen it irpertant but
dhiscussions with ordinary pecple that will usalor nct Lse te proposed
‘adriush required 25 thers ar a rurber ¢ complams whaen monay ic

that |5 res recuired. He added that pecple co rot
ﬂnmwmﬂ Mumum

BC responded Tt SCC promoted ths Commonplace and Your Funds
Burrey platforms and that residents can add ther own ideas for
nfrastruchce improvesnents

T ket Thet &t Hhis sloge o s e roieed s sk weith people thaal
will 1 e Ticiltiies {pcling nned walking groeps’ representives) 1o
disouns the oplimal shgnmaents of the propessd retwork. In the nexd
=ages of desipn, on mone spackic roubes, thers wil be an cpen
descussion

Ol Gran: agrasd with Ol Evins 8~ reted ihal SCC Wied 0 Ailtbouss
oyl schaim in the nummer of 2020 which did nol po ahead. Sha
addad that she s in favour of cyce faciities bt most people in Lowsr
Sunbury, (whars she is more famiiar with) walk and cyclists cbatruct
pedesirians,

BC responded hiat the aim of the LEWES is 1o encounage & mode shi®t
rom the private wehicle, for users” haalth, and the eriranment which
“ollrw the govemnments” policy. Following that the siudy will iry 1o
previde he most appropriste proposaly for sach uer, than will iy 1o
address any issues betveen them.

Cir Wesrasinghe agreed that cyciing shauld be promcted but there are
Essies with cyclsts loday coming frem Kingsizn and the Sichmend
Boroughs (prranly alcng Thames Rcad.

BC asked him 1 make a note whan AR will present the imaractive mag.

3. | Proposed Cycle Corridors & Discussion
AR ehewad some examples of the evidence base used Y develop the
Tonglil’. She explaned than it a mixiuee of SOC data ord dita
collacted by Mk 1o inform e exent and location o the cyde
eorridors. AR bagan by disphiying the Dutch Sconaro’ 30T and
FCT. Sha them showed 2 eecies of rape including: Hocschokis with no
e or vion vadbility; Cydist Collsiors 2015-20 19° and public
eomrments coptured i Commanplaos for the Spebthcrme area. Sha werm
Mbdmanmwumnmﬂmwm
thiat there was 3 ease ‘o
cutline of

mmmme i ter start to
CyCH COMSON where mprovemens need 1o ba made. She described
That evarrually O haatmap was created Tom this and o prefiminaey
matwork wi then developed by remroving the noise’ 1o croenc o
skelaton network. She heghlightad the importance of connecting whh
Heamrow and acjusting bercughs.

AR continusd with e presentation of the Tonglist’ of cytle corridocs and
explaned that ' thers are any in‘astructural nesds that need @ be
changed ten any new rcutes will be cons|dened’ changed. She dnishad
Iher presensinion by desanbing the Tonglis:” of cycie corridars.

[See presaniation sides 0~ 17 shaved sl 02082021

RESFONSIBLE

Coninns o o o
St Wernihep 10

ATKINS //

ITEM | DESCRIFTION AND ACTION

A8 then opened up the discussicn o allow the iteracive mapping
session {o begin

Cir Evans said e supperts the idea of the proposed netwerk bui Fe ls
asc very sceptical as money wil be spant on facilnies that ane nct
icuired. Hi addsd thit he wars 16 &2 Scheol 1D RUbers '
understand the need for some of the proposals. He ofened he examgle
dImLmns-mmmamm‘awﬂmm nplenraned
bl pedastrians ane chitructing cyclsts wih supemarket ol
AR responded it in e cbder guidelines. for cycing shere was 2 ok of
support for shared niasiuchunes o they would serve both typas of
usaws. Now with the Lecol Tranaport Nete (LTN) 1720 the shared
“acililies ate avoided, unbess il is abschulely rscmed wwagﬂhn
will e VBT sibile

Cir Gran: said, reeering o Route 74, that it is o horritle busy main read
e Pt roecanmianded hor yckito, even hough £ i cvensed by
eychists. She suggesid a paralbel roue alorg o¥-sreet paths, betwoan
Franch Swee: and Grean Sweed, mum are aveady walking and
cycing, and i has bean a succass'ul route. She also added that the
fmain reuie f Mampion Road willlink o SW Londen, na: Sumey.

AR agreed and added the . She
asked Cir Grame tc clary the use o the roue, 8s 1 ks not direct: Short
Tios or schacl rigs? Cir Grant respended thar & wil be used for short
7ips and Tat residents of Lewer Sunbury prefer to e their shopping ot
Kingsion inatend of Staines.

D5 added that Cakingion v is well used by cyciist, sven though there
s ne cyche ‘aciity, and therzane has besn identifed by residercs as ihe
most drect ' Hampron.

o T ane dase to the

Instead of Kingston ﬂ.el!.'nlcwru&awﬂwhn! nﬁ!ﬂﬂﬂmﬂ
She mendcnac ha: i could work a8 a shericut and © ls pleasanit as & s
away Fom ra'ie. She added that the A308 is crikal but rural and of-
read oanes wil ot'er safer alermatives 1o schools. She concluced that
overall, e agress wih e proposed ratwork.

AR adaed tha suggested route and responded fha v vl vist the
muwmuwmmlwwh\ahmurmanamn hat
or cruciod andd other smaler routes
wll ‘udmﬂlr:mumﬂu ‘or tha last mils destinalion. She acded
hat the design s ' 3 varety of Cychsts 1c USe 118 propoEed meeGT,

Cir Evans commented on Sous 7, stating that € & @ lovely route but £
5 gD 0 pRoAEians e using (hi cyclsts’ sidn 0 thn Taclly
Addisonally, Shere are e many cycisis in e anea, 5o reskdancs are
msenting he meney spent on the Slity

Gir Turner-5tewort commented on Thames Path side that uns fiom
Ennnzw stwpp-run bt il b5 nok shown cn |hmnap-r lm'd mclnnit

he whala
akruspcrdul‘ha Il\nrw‘n: very impariant for tha amab\l‘hnmm
imsues with e surfacing

RESFONSIBLE

Coninns i nfma o
St Werninep 16

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

177



ATKINS Yy /4 ATKINS /4

ITEM | DESCRIPTION AND ACTION RESTONSIBLE ITEM | DESCRIPTION AND ACTION RESFONSIBLE
4| Proposed Core Walking Zones & Discussion a8 B | Bnd of meeting BC

35 began by cescribing the CWZ methodology, induding the BC thanked everycne for attending end their fsedback. She rederated

Iscchrones around the ey irip aTactars, He explained That o fink acoess 1o the survey link and encouraged attendees ta provide further

betweer the CVWZs and areas around them are used 5 then develop the —{comments vl emai.

nstwork within them. Ha presertec some of the backgreund inormation 7. | Post meeting notes

Inclucing: Public Transport, Public Rights of Way (PRoW) and Shart Car Mawtmm1mwm an oriine surday “orm was shared

Trips <L5km (PCT), the River Thames Schame {3T5) proposals, h atendess ic pat their inpus on which cydle routes and walking arsas

Pedesirian Colisions and Public Suggestions Commorplace”, He then twnm “longlists” they folt were a higher prionzy, The rosuls from thes.

5 oveilay the data step-by-s%ep 16 show a beatiap to workshop are shown belcw. The ingu: wil be considened in idenying
damaonstrabe an cpportuniy and issues map that highliphts pobential i ‘shon lisn o nnmmn;rl b LOWE=, umgmnmn'mr oiher
areas where improvermsnts choud be made. She explained that the ation fom barsa
data alicwed an initial 5% which excluded Starwell Mocr and Faltham i,

Hilll CWZs 1o thisns dhevislop thi Toaglie?” of CWEZS and camdeds

cormacied ' these CYWZE which consider gaps rused by the cala 1 Selcy e oy oo that you ol o e highes ety o sty Pl 1 e
avertay arlysis e i

Ha Then prowded 2 cemonsiratve exampbe of how the retwork wihin

v CWWZ would be

derseribing the walkdng ‘longist’ and how thin conmect with the nearby

baroughs be'ore apening Lo the dicussicn to the ineractive map
sassien onihe CWZ.
(Sew presentation slides 16 - 27 shaned ai 02062021}

rar a e Ispues area: The Averue,
MMI“MI‘\!IMMMMH‘I‘NOMMHIEM
e to Stanes Fead without buses ard is ne: connscted wen Gresn
‘Swee that has buses. She added hat o acoess Surbury Commen,
reskdarts musi cross Sunbury Cross Roundabow, residents have i use
8 subrways tha are notin a pood siate, pacple feel unsate, especlally
duning daek Fours, and rasuits 1o pecps Taking The bus for aven cre bus

28z abed

w0p 1D of new '

vzssﬂﬁ in the area : 3

in the imeractive m; I Ea T " et P ) g e b Bttt 1o e 0 T et ey [ Wi iy et
~ e 1 o S LR,

G askad tha aendons which routes are rasidents in the Starwell area

saking to oot 10 Heathrow Alrpest.
Cir Evens responded than Heathrow dossn's encourage pecple o walk,
and thene are no pathesflink fo the premises, 3o residents do nct walk,

umumwewummm:nmmﬁwmnum«
ard Nursery Foad jncticn. He nated he would lie o see a safe

swlm crossing introduced for both pedestrians and cyclists.

G5 confirmed the lecation and ncted s on the interacthe map.

5. | Next Steps BC

BC axplaned that o survey bnk will be shared again after ihe masting oo

gat inpat o tha CW s and cycls corridors.

%uwﬂmicmﬂmh mnﬂnwmdw!dud&d' Wk

compiing the LCWP repar,

Contwns sensre nformat o0 Contens senstie Nomak
Spathems Werihep 16 . Spmttera Wernihep 1 5

178 Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



£gg¢ abed

ATKINS //

Meeting Notes

Projec: Spalihcrra LOWIR

Subjec;  Seaiherme Workshop 24 - Intemal Stakehciders

Meesing Ording M5 Teams) Mestng 04
: e
Datsend  (50CIber 2071 | 1400 | pguses GO Christodouicpouiou
ame. by
Attendees:  Amalia Hatfisid [AmH) Reprasan  SCC
Hannah Brdges (H8) ting: S0
Sandy Musthaad (5 SHC
Ocona Salby (05) 00
Mick Haalay (MH 500
Aliscn Houghon (AH) sCC
Furke Adelokun (FA} sC0
Juenie Doky (40} sce
Ko (D) 500
Dug Tremalian (OT) SCC
Bgary Ysoman (G}
Martyn Bervan (MB) Cycling group/stakehcicer rep
Kan Saunders (KS) Cyrelng proupistakohckdor rop
Simaon Jay (SJ) Ak
Beairiz {BC} Ackdns
Gecrgia ks
Christodoupoulou (GC)
Aviana Ragusa (& Adirs
Apologie Medl Micciure Repras sCC
" Charle Crmuss ting: - o]
Arn Biggs S6C
Heather an 580
Foger Wiliams SCC
Carcling Smith sCC
Next meeting:
Distration: Abandess and Apclogies
Dave Issued: 5% Mowember 2021 File: Ret 5206264

NOTE 10 RECIPRENTE:
Ervrth et e ecerd Alus Sl e tanding of s metng and i 36 885 K

Syumant 1K i i em o g e o 178 S IIRO Wl B Hoe b e -
W winen fm das of rece ot

Contan mnsthe niwmatm
Spwitherme Wrahcp 24 - [ienel Stecehciders

Phase 2 Internal stakeholder meeting 15 October 21

ATKINS //

g
i
gaaggsagtaag

ITEM | DESCRIFTION AND ACTION
| introducticns

mmmmwmuummnm 1o gain stakehlders’
feecack on the waking and

T uwmwoﬂuﬂmummmp
BC gave an averview ¢* tha LGWI® nduding the acthiies undaraken 5o ‘ar.

(See prasevitation slides p2.p6 shaced on the 134 Celober 2021)

3| Propased Design & Zones & Di
GC describad the methodology o‘ulselllumef)eu Waking Zenes (CW2s) and
prasentad e long list or the rostwark. She then procesdad to describa the

xieriisation procass of the C\WEs and Walking Cerriders uaing the Muhierfieria
Assesirent ﬁmmmmmmwnmlnémmb\ﬂn
Demand, Exisng pecestrian qualy, Petertial improverr ens, and Stakeholder suppors)
mammmm.mm-mc«m

d th g and the berough and
mmmmmﬂsuwmmmmummmwnmwsmm

MﬂpﬂmmndlthlTBWuig At Assesseent Tool that helps (o kiemiy the
s on the walking network using 28 oriteria, umm the siles visits snd presented te
resuls fed (e Phasa 1 CWES and Walking Cor

Felling that sha presantsd the preposals raamcaswmwzm

* CWZ 5- Ashiond (sse gressniation siide o 12 ahaved on the 13¢ Oetober 2021)
rl(mm:edonMlmlﬂmmmlﬂuwmﬂmnammswlﬂ
%2 the changes of the spoed Im: ¥ exisling speeds are cver 24mph here nead to
% cakming in addiion bo changes n signage which raquires addticnal stucies | o

worder bo propose 2mph spessd mit. He added that in the area on Church Road there
5 opporiunity for “blank slme’ recesign, using the entie highoery boundery 1
Mwmrmnmmm.nepmm.meﬁ;mrmmpmn
snhanced publc TarEpontus S1C0s along with the active fravel

Ahrru-\‘imtd‘m'qulduubﬁ'bmcwhbdmasmlalumwhs
wcarmidars and added Tt there shouldn't be any disbenefis ‘or bus joumey dmes
shreugh the schemes.

* CWZ 6- Convent Road ises presentalion sioe p 13 shaed an the 13
Cetoter 2027

S eatimated that the propesals %or the bridge witl have an astreromical cost 1o scheme

ok s nfamat
g ihine Wersihep 54 - el Stacpriders

ATKINS //

ITEM | DESCRIPTION AND ACTION

NH irformed that the bricge has been looked at previously, but thers are land ssuss on
the Surrey side. The fafic signals proposal will have a major impact on the frafic
mmuammutm:mmmm Fowaver, preposals for a

e urdar
MMWMN anmmmmmwmuvumm
and sounhem ams 8¢ that paraliel
FCESHES Cn uu:m'nadmmmrrummmdanummnwmn
added. DK addad that 3 zebwa crossng cutside the school whers te buldout s
proposed is necassary
¥ EWZ T - Sunbury Common [see preseriaton sie g 14 shared onihe 13
Cetobar 2021)

DK coenmanmed cn the proposed speed Wmes that sxstirg speeds are cicssr ¢ 30mgph,
and thers will need substantial ra*fic calming maasurss tobe 20mph. However, on

evachin;
this is an for e beidge or pedestion
and cyclw facilities, a3 thene are signficant consorainds. NH than commantad that
aven theugh &l o the proposed ITerentons ane grea’ and make serea, ey woukd
by vty eparmive, ond we shoold manage axpectabions for e coundl members
Desis idors & Di

AR previded an cvanvisw of the preposed long list o cycie comiders and tha pricritisation
process using the muticiteria assessment Tamework. Sha then preserriad ditfarem cycls
facilities and hew thisse can be implemented in sach type of read network using LTH “/20
1abies s a guideline and the conabrairns the read network has in temrs of gecmatry,
ot speeds and Taf velumes.

fen for the Phase 1

» ABOB/Kingsten Road - Route 3 (8ea presenistion sfde g 19 shared on the 13
Oetober 2021

GY asked on the proposals sast of Fordbeidgs roundabout on Staines Road W, whars
the pedecrions are proposed 1o be in rakition to cyclsts. GC respondad that all
poposed padesirian ard cyce fcilties will be sagregaied. The axising footway will
e widerwed usng space o te wide ia'fic lanes and can'rol reseaon

GY corrmented thar fhe row's alorg Thames” aquaduct is on interesting idea, but what is
the provision plan for the cyde adk; Lighting i requined, how would e surface be

Inthe Hhere & 0 , fublbeh, e1e.7 BC respondad that
lighring (8 prepoasd along The routs ored thes e
is @ ounedl's resperesibllity, the same o3 Tor ol cyte facilties. Ehe then addad that
thare shoukd be Aurther decussions with Thames Warer %or the prepcsals. NH

their

D(mmmﬂﬂmmaoﬂwm'«ah#wuﬂ'aﬂmmh%hm
itis ot possible 1o reduce the speed Bmil.

KS commented thal the aqueduct is an interssting idea. He than asked ¥ ihere is ary
provisicn for B sa‘e cyche faciizy cver the ralway bridge on Kingsion Road, excap:
e mieed iraMz, OO eplaingd the conarains on the bridge, and hat & segregated
facillty can ba provided cnly though bricge widening.

DT asked why teucan cressings are proposed instead of pacallel cressings. GC
respended tha the foutan crossings are proposed at locations whars signalised
cressings should be propessd, and in the mﬂmunummwm
Segregaian benween cycthsts aned the g8 808 1T
signalised.

ks mwgee o
Sgmitine Wersihep 52 - | sl Siskphvidies

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

179



8¢ abed

ATKINS

Pt o e S Lol oy

V.

ITEM | DESCRISTION AND ACTION
- Road Croat - Route 3 (see

presentation side p 20 shared on the 137 Dctober 2021)

N said he is reductant to keep the subways along roundabout arms. The cantral subway
s relatively plaasam, but subways under Gyratery ate nancw snd have sharp bends.

> Staines/Laleham Road - Route 6 {ses presantation sioe p.21 shared on e
A% Oclobar 2021)
’Ghﬂ:udmmwmm*vwhnd&‘adhuﬁcm exarple and
eoglained e the faclity is prepced without & butar between the traffic and e
weme aummrsmmm beveen the users (pedestrians, cyclists,

GYMW:I\M’L‘H!M‘R::\HM i car bt cars
i on fead and cn the foctways, Thene ars advisory cycle lanes but ers are not
el there ane 120 namow, they da not aveid drain covers and have poor surface.
Hathen asked abcas the parking in the ansa. AR respended that during the sde vist
ws ficted that rrost of the proparise hae avaiably cMsireet pariing, howsver in the
mmfmnmnumnmﬁmmnnmwvmmn
the ansa. DK in respanse 10 @Y shared a Google Stree: View image o a cycle facily
between the bays and {he ‘octway and suggesisd that this can be an cpticn
for Lalsham responded hiac cycksts should not be placed in the “car coor
area but leawe 5o 5pace to make cycisis cafer from opening car doare, He ther
added that dfferent ypes o*f cychsts have drferent pre‘erences, spars cycliste ars
unlicaly 1o use 3 shappad brack, &0 axpadt scme Usert 1o g6 on tha dedcated Sality
bt cthers aveiding .

MB sugpestad bo make the road 20mph and add sheeping palicemen to enable mxsd
frafic oycing, O resporided thart 20mph i 2 good dea but fra'fic calming measures
el e required arwd Stll e road wil ot ba sultable for everyora, GC sgrsed and
apciten] il chae b tre traSs Thaws: 1he road requatest Segregation

ME ackdad tHat on Labatam Chusch ]

S T junction at Laksham School

» mmmnuﬂwme?\;mw:ﬂspzzmdmmrr
Oelober 2021)
DK mrarsioned hat in the Ash®ord Cres area there i 3 tranche 3 bid for Low tratic
Neghbouhesd, 56 LOWID prepesats wo.ld complament this scheme

GY rased his conoems regarding locaticn #3, an the rahway Bidge, on The ansiticn
Erertveee The sogregated cyche iracks snd e mined Ta%s sacton, 'er the westbours]
dimcticn. GC replisd hat thers ars decign focks o be used jo resols the conficts
ard o provide o ea'e traeedtion, that will be reviswed in tha rexd slage of design

N r=fervad 1o Stanweel Road section ¥2 i s very busy, sepicialy n e northbound
directicn, os on the ap 0 the ASD the ¥ queLEs, 80 & is not
suitable for Dutch troatment He supgested that the ‘Cotvay @ relatrvely wida o
pwenvicde sorsthing nearly LTN 1720 cempliar:.

NH carrmented ha the ralbway biidge is hostis even ¥ ¢ is 20mph, and that the ana-way
Sysiem proposal s a0 interesting cne.

ko p. 23 shared on the.

» ge Road
13% Cetedar 2021}
KS mrantiorsd That the existing cych routs on Fordbridgs Road is pocrly maintaned, and
the secion theough the Broadwary i narrow.
DK rertsane st thisy have recaived complas's fegarding Tha speeds on Askerd
o, The 30mph i 8 vislle option. The reod hos wids ira%c lenes of 3.6m and can
b reduced o 3m bo reduos the spesds too

Conlwns st niormab
et Woracp 34— el Sisk s

ATKINS

Parw e o 0 S Ll Do

ITEM nemal’rm AND ACTION
Green

Street - Route 10 (ses pressrtation sfoe o 24 shared on the 134
Cedoter 2021)
(%] :urnrcmpdhrnu Duich siyle treatm ent in Dafches was net successh as & caused

anagative effect o braffic,
mmmmmﬂmwmaﬂ-wmmmuMlsmmﬁ'fwanﬂc
8 with pi both sides of the road that create chicanes.
memmwuuummﬁanmwnm on Green Smeet.
‘Which tood will you use for modelling? SJ respendied thar £ s foc detalled to cecide
ﬂcwQﬁwﬁmﬂMﬁvm‘h\'mﬁﬁﬂ“hvsmﬂnﬁiﬂm
HH 1o balance. There is
e 1 reen e N-ﬂ-\-l-'h i e v
srying ‘or behaour change? What is the balance besweer bene’t to cycists and
imgact on other road usars? He then added that a toucan crsssing ks requined to bnk
the pathe inthe green areas, and tha rewse on Nursery Raad sholdd continue to AZ44
salirk 16 3 furure route.
IMB added that maintenance is & key for the use of the faciiies. 5J agreed
K3 suggested iha Lse of bridewsys & cycing.

5 | Next Steps

BC wenr on o explain what the naxt steps will ertall, This inchidd:

Rsfinament of the design proposals, high level costs for the proposals and LOWIS repert
comglasicn

A0B

BC ashad the 10 3ond any
by Friday 25 October.

8 of thea pr ¥ tine

7. | End of meeting
mmufa attending and feft the workshop was a use’ul sxchange in the ongeing

Conlans gt nforma o
fpmitioe Wereihep A - mermal Sis i

Phase 2 External stakeholder meeting 19
October 21

NATKINS

Parter oSG Ll Do

Meeting Notes

V.

Project: Spathcrra LOWIR
Subject;  Seefihcrne Workshop 25 - Seernal Siakeholders_R1
Msesing Criine (MS Taams) Mesting 05
place: na:
Dysand  190Cober 071 1400 | pguses  Ge0rp Christodouiopouiol
are: by
Atiendses:  Dug Tremelien (OT) Repressn  SCC
Nick Haalay (NH) ing: HLOC
Harnah Bracges {HB) SHC
Chri Hyde (C8) Local rasident
Kath Sandars (KS) Lacal rasident
Richardson (M3} Saaith Asco! Village Primary School
Yorsmin Brcome (Y B) a.lmyﬂlxlrlnnl.‘ Disiablod Pocpin
Sam Malonery (SM)
Dlarsied Aldricign (D4) 1’!!0 Elsll:u Wand Church O England
Scheol
4 Stoed (.5} 5 Poufs Cathalic Collogn
Anne Domercll (AD) S‘;-!wanEnm
Paul Lusen (3L ) Cycling Ui
i Bddier (AA) Tha aaw A Schoc
Siman Jay [Sh Adirs
Beaririz Campes (BC} Ak
Addrs
Christodoulcpculou (GC)
riana Tagusa (A%} Ak
Agotogae:  Nall Meziurs Represen SCE
" amela Hatfisid angy: " Sec
Duncan Knox SCC
Charlie Cruise SCC
e Biggs S6C
Iarheasd, Sandy SEC
Heamher Morgan S8C
Soephanie Zarkis Sustrans.
Ht mesting:
Distribution: Aizancees and Apcloges
Doolsswed: & Noverrbar 21 Fie Ret S206254
NOTE TO RECIFIENTE

Tr4 mastng ot
42 The rien

Aeing of s

D o
FVRER AR COmTmACH A et

mytad
TG W v s of et

Sonbins mnsie ol o

Spwthiine Worniher Y - Edira Slanaicidind

180

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



Gg8¢ abed

ATKINS //

Rebecca Hutton Buchiand Primary Sencal

Adam Cyycing group

Allan Cetle Sunbury Mancr Schocl

oo Davies Harwhecale “rimary Schioc!

Jomes Mz Muty 5 Pauds CMCA:H?'

Amy Chiten Stanvel| Fleids C of £ Pimary Scho|

ITEM | DESCRIPTION AND ACTION
| introductions

BC intreduced the obisciives of the werkshop which intends 1o gain stakehciders’
feadbnck of the waking snd

Z | Study Background! Objectives of the LOWIP
BC gave an cveniew c*the LOWIP mduding the activiies underiakien 5o far,

(5ee prazaniation slides pJ.p6 shared on the T5% Ocledar 2021)

3 wmmmmmnmumma Discussion
mmmwe«mmmum Walking Zones (CV4Zs) and
ﬂmmﬂlﬂlk‘“m&m . Bha then proteedad 1o descrba the
iorRisalion process o'mcwzamwnlmcmwn uzing tha Muliicil eria
Assessment Framework which sssessad the walking netwoek in 5 categedias [Accass,
support]

Demand, uality, arts, and
mdmmnac\vmmmlmumus

GC then presantad mip for tha barough and
Mmmhnw&mk-gmqﬁwmmmmnmwm
s,

Then she prosenied tha DITs Walking Rnute Assessment Tool that holps (0 koniy the
st on the walking network Uting 20 ditena, following the gile weis snd presented e
results or e Phams 1 CWES and Walking Corradors

Fellzwing that she Eresented the Froposals for sach Cors Walking Zane

= CWZ o Slide . Ihe 130 Cetooer 2021}

ﬁmﬁmmewmumnmams‘mlﬁmlmmlm
e are cycle propesals akong <he mad, so the parallel crowsings are the mes!
appropriate cotion. K5 then suggesied fo change the preposal for a zebea crossing
on S:amwell RoodAGordon Read 1o a paralled crossing too for consistency.

Y8 nxprossad her conoamns regarding parking rom ovad, as thare needs to be blue badge
parking available, and when thore are time restrictions on parking, people with
anﬂ#hww uﬂymdl;el;‘ﬂo She then added ha

o sensery - paired
pecple, such as those who are heering impaired, and cannct cycle
wm‘h%mﬂnﬂhmw & confimed tha all cycle faciies vl
b using tactile ion toa, YB concluded saying
v Muumuu

nad:ullhwmhmm‘numowxwww
AD said she is sadsfied will be since it is
.mlmmmmmmwwmnusodumnnmm
realm mprovements on the sendce reads, which are very uncemifcrtable o walk on.
S soplained that the propcsals mean sets. mmm&whmiw
remave fhe wlmmwmwm GC mplained hat fi is a matber of
Impgcve th Bghting on the focttwicge, and 10 provide
mnponmmum

& acded in the chat awmmﬂmmmmer

Contmns snsdre nformet o
Sttt Wornthep i~ Extero, Simasncinars

ATKINS //

ITEM | DESCRIPTION AND ACTION
K5 commerriac that many padestriars and students are waling along Stamwell Soad
and additional improwernents should be preposed there

* CWZ 6 - Convent Road (see presentalion side o 13 ahared on the 150
Cetober 2027

PLFothart Hi 8034 is 8 very usatu routh for cyclng. o0 any pinch poirts ek b
cycle bypass ins

mmmmmuwm;;m hwaver imetul, mmmm fer
nwwmmmlurwm ecawm NWMWWW$ D“»M

n

proposals for
mmwmmmmm

WS ncted that Echelford Schacl, and Asfitord Schocl would ba key trip atiraciors, and
should be inchudes in the exzend of the proposals. BC confirmed that proposals to
=chocls can be added 1o hie cors waking 2one.

AD eeenmantad that Convent Road doas net praser big issuss, but Schocl Read has
sigrificant preblems with cars parkng on the cycla lanes and needs o parking
enorcement.

S ek in e el 1 agree wilh Ann - School Rpad (Ashicrd CofEr

» CWZ r.mq:ommmpupommm;u shaved on ibe 1518
Cedober 202

FL:adim:nry,_ it prade crostings 2t

SN bixggested catinucis foctways inetead of raised tables. GC rsponded that
continusus ‘ootways are more di'ficult to implemant from engineering perspective
aﬁmmm-

DW infarmed that 3000 students e Nursery rood every day, and e ncad along with the
foutways egquee resurtacing. Hie than added thal b is happy sbout the ol grads
erossings o Sunbury Cross, 6 pupils like fisks crossng in'emally o) grads today

S ek 1 spesd B it feduction can be propossd during speslic houns n e day
bl hows o padestrion peak hours). CH respondad that the Local Transpert
#lan is ot for consullation and looks & proposats & wider 20mph, and Lower
‘Sunbury lsnds tse 10 8 blanket 20 ph speed ki, He sdded thet here is a neexd to

oo lower spead limits to encourage
more waking and cyding end then alsc need 10 consider the issue of enforeement
Thin is rather impesant when considan ng the effectivensns of spead lmits.

CH alsc commentad on Sunbury Cress that SBC e kcoking 82 measures 1o mErcwe the

, and Acking shoukd lock to integrate with their pro

Dﬂamu'ummwwluluﬂumm It ks rocuived to sllow piek up
fproinis, can this be reviewnd? BC responced that if we allow a ket of parking, we.
eoeriradic the scope of the study. DA suggested off siree: drop off points &t Tesco
car park, b i will reguine furher sngagemen: with Tesze.

Wmu mnsmmm regucing e speed Smi to 20mah. | agree wilh Kath,
Qutsige schoc! hours en Green Stieel there are very few chichen ca the peth 3o the
ka The cars do nol move mare than Smah during the schoal opening

g ciosing fimes as 1 i gricfoched

4. | Progosad Dasign for the Cycle Carridors & Discusion
Aﬂpwmmwmwummlawlmc‘cmwmmuimmmm
ocass using the “Faeneark.
Solitins and how thess can be mnpiememed in sach type of rmad neowork IIH'IJLTN"N
tbles s 2 pusdeling and the corsbrnts the road network has in erms of gecmenry,
i spands and raffic volumes.
AR ther for the Phase: 1 cyce comidorns
1 mmmmn Route 3 (see pressntation sfde £ 19 shared on the 15t

Conlens g nformat o
St Worihep 7 - Exseron, Simsacidars

ATKINS //

ITEM | DESCRIFTION AND ACTION

AD asked about the altemative alignmen: on the Thames agueduct | he cmpany haes
been advised. AR responded that it is 150 sarky, and @ = an dea hat we came Lp
durny diteusions with the cheel. AD then conbrued 1o explain that the squsduct is
%26 deep, and aven hough thare & abamier it is gong o be dengercus, She added
it thars 1 N access 10 e path

mmmmmmmwu.mm-muu and questicned
wheher the irafic wil stop for pedes! :mdqdl's ﬂrwmmm

thea goad i bo
¥t har concarns sbeut e D ,hrmmmmmrlﬂlmb‘
pecpke (o nangats. A3 Hhak 4 wil balp
pecple vith csabiliies ta navg: . such a5 e cokour

5., e then added $har thes kccation i no: used heaviy by pedes-nans.
PL conrmented thal the CYCLORS crossing could wark in ths cocasicn. AR respondad
! il i vy sifrilar 16 the Duteh ety roundsbol

¥ A30BKingston Road Sunbury Cross Roundabout — Route 3 (see
prosentation s p 20 shared o the 15th Cetober 2021}
BC asked YE what i paopha wih it 'l
pecple ae avoiding £, are frightensd o use the subwy, 0d & & o drty, mm they
will have to s thes hands io move the whslchor
PL saicd i Opticn 3 sserrs vary sensible.
D& ] thea thane are crime issuwes in the subweys, They ane dark and gratiy, and the
studerts ore avording them. But he added that he & avad that thess proposals will nat
werk as the impact on Ta'hc will be grea.
CH soid that he opticns will nesd o be laoked at in moee detll. Opsion 2 supgests
R e SUBWAYS S (P BRvnG Tiarm ot ki 1 thasa aenIhing 12 be don o

ITprOve e suWayE,
K5 mmummsrﬂmmmm By | i D 00 00 ¥5 NG S8 wants
e e the subways. She addad that tat Option 1 would probablly be bes: for cyclists and

umﬂmmmaiwmmummaw she perscnally likes
Cp-mzﬂltwil slew down the rafic lass tham Opticn

D commantad cn this that thare aes fssues wilh the tra%c, and it wil fLether sicw down
with the added toucars.
mﬂdnmw‘!m wih Dan. Toucan crossings wouid be 8 meky issue with

Dden.heelm “Re: Suntury Cross, 83 Chris Hyce has mentioned, [ undersiand

mcw»:wumm fo I aisting
mmhmmmmm the existing subways will reman
mawmumuwmmw:thmmmmmm
LODIEESE - 50 W 408 irierested i w8 more feng-lem soiution

¥ Staines/Laleham Road - Route 6 {see preasniation sige g 21 shaned o the
15th Octebar 2621)
FL suggested foctways cyche facilities alcng e sice rcads.

CH comr “he saciion on the the raute that i namew and busy,
and & s linkaed with the Saires Maser Plan

bridge moving ronhbound, She added that thene Is a planning apeication for
davelepment aleng ﬂmnaunnummummmrwnw
sumwuwnnmmnmmmnmunmmuhm
roads.

SM commantad in e chat “the new highway code changes may also help resolve that”

~Route 7 (see side g 22 shared on the 1540

Cetober 2021)

Contans sengine nformst on
Sputhcine Wordihep 70 - Exteron, Simsicldare

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

181



Phase 2 Elected Members stakeholder meeting 21 October 21

98¢ abed

ATKINS g ATKINS ATKINS y

ITEM | DESCRISTION AND ACTION FI'EM | DESCRIPTION AND ACTION
W3 commrensd tha' the sxtand o the roue i on Church Rosd and Starwell Road i only " Propoasd Design for the Core Walking Zones & Discuasion
ﬁpamlsﬂmmdhsmﬂ“—mbmd\-jnp’-hﬂ'ﬂ:::mm Meeti Note o:mumwmmwﬂmmmscga Zoras (CWIs) ard
T T o eln oles prasantad e long kst for e walking newers. Sha then procesded i describs the
use, and it i dangercus. g mgmrmcmmwmmwmmmwoﬂia
Assessment Framewor which assessed The walking netwcrk in § categenes (Access,
= AshiordFordbridge Road- Roule 9 (see aresentalicn side o. 23 shamed an the Sermand, Swisting tenilal s, 5
t5th Oelober 3021 Project  SpethormeLOWIR and tha prioised CWZs and Waking Comirs.
L commented that today pecpie are parking cn the cycle lans, 5o he proposed stapped G then prasened the combined valking and cychng nateark map ‘or the borough and
Lumr.mﬁuv:unnm;dmm‘mn%mFcunnll Sark Subject:  Spalthorme Workshop 2C — Sected Members =17 mmummm:‘nmwunwmmnmm
53 L an agreat b roue Schocl Road. LN
G gammented in the chat Mwnmfam a0 enforcement izsne again, M Meeting Cinling {115 Teams) Mestingne: 08 Then she presenced the DT's Walking Reule Assessment Tool that heips 1o identdfy the
showd Ihink of & package, which the placs: mnmmmmmmmmm mmmmm:wmm
enforcament plus maidenance.” e resubis for the Phase | CWZs and Waking
Daeand 27 Octeber 2027 | 14.00 Mirutesby:  ‘Govanne Sanna [Feliowdng that she presented the prwrcramomwmm:m
* &uu&r:m-nwv"' oy .2 15 e * CWZ5- Ashlord CWZ (sem presenfation sides p. 12 shered on the 18
021 Oclober 2021}
ia mm el et ma;ﬂ?;'m e el e AL Pepresmitig 202 i Nt wheer ot A & o of kg i A
residants. WH rasponded fha therm wers sah'ctalw'l’ra‘h:\lw-ﬂwﬂ. ‘ﬂmrl“"P s00 on. He stated that thece will ba akeady soma parking reductions in Astford
ELf iy Vobrs ogacti byt ressaents el b Schocki, FL Suggetsc slarcative Hannah Bridges (HE} sBC "W"“"Wﬂl‘cm*':"““"i‘. S AR X UM 200 8 by
row8s o Graan Sien: \mrupmﬂudha'mwanhmnmhihl.'w and the ik Adiscn Grirhe s0C w"“"mm A JOFOAMIGE. B L1E NI KRBT N TV
sty bk fram he communty was cvenwhelr added in the canversaticn that Cir Buddhi Wearasinghs 5CC TP
wmsmamwwmm|mmwih traffic, and ther was the Bsue Clle Jparane Saxton SBC Alecated 10 residents and lecal busnesses
veith e parking, A3 that parsres ng their kids o schaal i Clr Mowsrean Actewell SCC o connom regarding reduciicn in parkin
o o e P et b = ?lm b rors ccllaorot i Dok otk 0ek Fuets ot &Zﬁmrmffm
. e . b = Eruna Barbosa ot SBC to sxpicre what an be ackioved through the review of perking
BC went on 1= eplain whan the e stess will ercall This included: Bealriz Carpes (BEC) Ackins
Ptk oftfieCoton ksl Mok Wiadoni i coteat s LMot S Rpma o iaaga’s Sha e e 5500 Wi O K8 i hrd. G5 el
n
' j{“'!"?'— Glevanni =5 Adins M the progesals Wil Include coening the bridge 1o the side o the carmageway and
sahd mﬁm»mdauymmmnmih propesed intervertions Wm‘“ the parsonal safsty and the potential preposals would be explared
Hbanday Cictcher, Awther ai the nex! siage.
e FI'EM JESCRIFTION AND ACTION Chr Grifths raised issues reganding tha high steets and rised concems about removal
5 g:,‘“i,"",“":!,“wrgn“" vorkshaop was @ useul mxchangs 1 the angeng Introductions: dwﬁnamﬁnnhﬁynm these propasats without preper sngagem en with the
LEWI® process EC infreduced the chijectives of the warkshop which infends 15 gain stakehalders® public. BC responded that porking cn commiarcial oreas and espe uﬂ;'nnhmrrmru

Conbmns mngtne nfometm

Spatherms Werinep 3 — Fxtaron, Stmasnciters

| #sedback an he waking and cyting propasals,
2 Sudy Background! Objectives of fhe LEWIP

BC goes an overvee of the LOWIR includng the acivities Loderiaken so far

Sow presontation shdes p3-pf shaved on the 187 Oclober 2024

smmm.whhmﬂwnwﬂmmwmm
then suggestad a shared space on the high strests/commerdial areas.

Cir Nobie atced in he cha: *Wickheariedy agres with Councier Grffiths on her
commaents.”

Cir Wserasinghe provided a previcus example whers ZVs were o delivensd cue %o
lnitad argagement with the public. He rererated the conoerm about delivenstelty.

OT agreed o fhe importance 0 engage with kool residents 1o delfver these proposals,
and acldnd tha we will do eodensive consuliation in the e sioges using dipial

Mead menting! Flathoams a6 weil

; o
Detrindlon ‘w"?‘ ‘ Car Grirfths a5 an example that ACiive Surmey added a cycis lane without consulizsion
Date fssaund: B Nenerrber 2 Fila %o’ 5anazes and twas et Lsad which resulted to e token up. She added In the chat “we s had
e 5 rover e Buoe laca for active Brave irs lawer Sursbury due o ol angageig”

- o
“Frue arwerrend e i den (5 8 508 S8 o 17 e icr) mi s A4 SurTas] P44 Adfoerh orSITare A FHORAD

PWIA WY e deys Of reckTt

Contmns smnsive mlumaton
St Workanoo I - Eeched Marmtr.

Conmns snetvs niomraton
Speiner Werknen 7 - Fecind Mambars

182

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



/8¢ abed

ATKINS //

ITEM | DESCRIPTION AND ACTION
Cr Seton atited she welcomes thess proposals however she @ digpointed abost
hhmmwﬂmmm early cn. Sha then added 16 the chal “Why have
you rol engaged wilth the Dusnesses nd resicants now Defors coming up with & piaT

Car Weble explained that he fests the proposals ane competing with She high vehiculas
1menmmu.ammhspenm and provided an example of the quiet ways, that
¢ back rtads In Lendon which have been mplemented mere effectively.

L comanented i the chal “Obs. fodowng Dug's comments, extensive consultation wi
lake place sy plans ae finatoed”

* CWLZE - Convent Road (ses presentslion shdes p 12 shared on the 18
Detober 2021}

C3r Mobie stated ‘hat thens will be new battlenecks of ira*Sc due to demand frem
schocks. He explained thal athough he supports the propesals he has conoems
regarding and the £ this will couse. GC

Fating that i’ surveys will be at the next siage o sse how
these proposals will atfect tra*c ficws. Cir Gritiths agreed with Clir Nobie's comments
o e cheat 1 suppodd his foo but comms ane ke gread poind baly®

O Sexton added that there was o patition for & pedesinan crossing in Fetham Road
She then added thal they want o connect {o the kkes and suggesied an sdditional
maating with the design leam fo decuss the options.

Sir Gri*fiths stabed that a crossing proposal had been suggesied cuiside 52 Michaels
schocl. She then added o this stating thene should be more collaboration between
residents and counciliors 1o deliver these proposals. She suggested it meet on sitewith
ietking b discuss the ve reutes, She added in the chat “Couwid we do wa'k

Bhrouphs wath you in dur sreas plsase? That corversstion would be véry haplel we
have ot fo add”
Car cuies which avid tratfic for walking would
o mcrw afecive
= CWZT - SBunbury Common [see presenfebon sides p 12 shared on e 158
‘October 2027

Cir Gritiths stated she was pleased to see there are proposals %or Sunbury Cross and
suppesied o exciend the proposals to include the Avenue.

i Grant axplained that the
paopls do. Cl Grmrmwumta-mwmabn'wuw
yeas will B b comlact Haghweays England

Cir Weerasinghe enplained that 3 cressing along Upper Maliford RoadMWindmil Road
o then access Nursery Road is required

Clr Meble stated ha agreed with the Nursary Sicad J0mph zene and Vicarage Road. He
Fatad that he was suppcriive of pecgls parking their vehicles ether side o Nursary
Sizad which is creating visual hazards 'or pedesinans. He ihen rased o concern abour
snsuring vehickes 1o nct park con the footway. GC explained that packing bays can be
Euik b bmift the areas whane vehicles can park and minimise e chancas of drivers.
m@uwm‘tuﬂw ch:mnimwsrmﬂuwwma

he scheols

o off- pick up area ot T

locked aé

Conkmns snetwe niommatsn
Speitrm Yerkan 77 - Fecid Mambars 3

ATKINS

g o the SN v ey

ITEM | SESCRIPTION AND ACTION

A3 prervied an ovarvens of e proposed long et of cycls cormidons and e griceifisalion
process usng tha mubicrileria sesessmer Samework. She then praserded ditferent
eycle faciites and how these can be irplemanted in aach Type of road netecrk using
LTN 1720 tabies 6 & guedaling and the SonsTaint e 1oad netwark Ras in bems of
ooy, raic speeds and a'fic volumes.
AR then presenied the proposed enentions for the #hoee 1 cycl cormdons

* Roule 3 - ADBY o shides o1 e

181l October 2021}

(Car Guitfiths stated that the traffic i tog high for thona to bo an cn-noad cydde ack dua o
polluticn frem the road. She stated hat tha level of ra*ic ks toa bigh o be able ic deliver

affernative iype it Wi
mwmwpmpcsuwilb-mmmdwmwmybaum anqmd
shart for e #5 (Thames' aquochuct) Sere B limied amount of survellance compared io
preniding & fouse akng the AJ08, BC added Hhat the seciin alcng the aqueduct may be
mare chalenging 1o deliver because o the private cwnership of the ansa near the
aqueduct. and the route along the AJDS could be easier o implement s a shor temn
ptich. Clir Sexion agresd with this peirt and added the challenges of delivaring here.

o <plained thar thers are multip fer
bt the purpcss of delivering cyck laras wmmmmmmmn
e deirvarad for. AR explainisd the ramir of this study and what this car achieve

policy side. OT st of this study i % eosn who coul

replace thesr evary iy i with mors waking and cycing. CF Noble sxabed thal ths &
it what wos expected in any typa o ferm
»  A308 Kingston R [ an shides
7 12 shared on tha 18ih Oclober 2021
Cir Gritths stated she would suppon “Opion 17 or “Opsion 2. GC added tha: Option 2
weuid net craats adduional delay to Tt flow at the Ta'ic siop Ines woukd remain in
mmhemnﬂnmﬂurmmwﬂ:mmlm

1CEr Giron: osk bl the subrwmys for lnisure activities,
ag., muhsumﬂm:a Srnamduhuhnpmﬂ)bmpmwdaammg -
Eridge Cver tha M3, From empaical analyss AR staed she 1hin ks s would net be
fmasble dua 1o the minmal clearancs

car Mwlmmumﬁcmﬂmrnymﬁmmmmmlmn
sciving the lssue similar 1o Sunbury Cross Roundabout. AR added pecple fesl sa's
whan hers is supsenvision and sxplained the configuracicn Is net cenducive to a sa's
arrcner e,

* Roule f - Staines/Laleham Road {56 prossntadion sides p 12 shared on the
&1k Oclober 2021)

N3 commants

* Reute 7 - Stanwell Road (190 presentation $ides 012 shared on the 180
October 2021}

Cir Natle commented o the proposals at e juncticn with the mwnomm
significant issues, such as ficading, and requires saricus nfrassructun

ICir Sewton roised hee cancerns: about Sohool Raad which has a high number of
weicles, HGV, thar go very ‘aat She adoed that there e 3 varey of improvwenments

Conlmns aeawe niomaton
Spettrm Werkin 70 - Focid Marmtsers 4

ATKINS //

ITEM | DESCRIPTION AND ACTION

which can be made bo enocurage showss movements such s SRETs. She explained
tha! {her service noads con provide spacs o realioceds space for oyding

* Rouled=A Road slidas p 12 shared on
e 1240 Octoter 2021)
Mo commants
* Roule 18 - Green Sireet (oo prassvistion siides o 12 shared an the T8t
Octobar 2021}

Clir Gran' stated that Greon Sont s wary busy, with 2 kot of buses.

Gir Nebie stated theee could be high speeds encoutaged by having Green Streer as
Geing 2 wida cad ad rakerad he pon s he shising a1 e el slow
down trafic of create bottlanecks. AR explained hat an aliemative alignanent aling
Green Stree: which be heipful to be abila o create a mane plsasant environment ‘or

such as : ic calming as well a5 add i this area Clir
wsmm-ummﬁuamwmmnm-ss:mﬂmmnspead'nm—
Surbury Cress roundabeut. Ha then askad # tha Averus wae considered as a cyda
roue, AR et e Avenies and was assessed ang wih
Gresn Stree: and Nursery Soad Upper Hallfeed Reaed, and e assessment showed
o bene': along Grean Swost

Next Steps
BC went on i explain what he next steps will eriall, This inchuded:

Rafinemeny; of the design propasals, high leval costs for he propasals and LEWIR repert
completion.

ADB
EC askad ths atandess o sand ary addiional ceaments en the preposed inlarverions
by Weenesday 27" October.

End of mesting
EC thanked all‘or atending and fe' the werkshep wae 3 isetl sxchangs in the ongeing
LCWIS process

Conlmns apnetwe nioTabon
Spathery Werkinn 1 - Focid Kambars s

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

183



Appendix 7 Sustrans Report

8g¢ abed

184

Spelthorne LCWIP

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



68¢ abed

= TpeRnom naernatonal % Manor Pramar
Spelthorne Core Walking Zone ey S A ot X
o an i Rl \ gl 5
+ Walking Corridors \ fe e B\ P
g Sunbury Cwz B | 1.g. 2 :
L Hesandrs fo2 oy Aot L
2. Green Street Walking G 2l § e - ek L
: 5 Fo ! s o
Corridor b= 15 #CWZ e
. i
. & .
3. Nursery Road Walking b 4 18 \ o
> LADA 4 5 \ ‘ (i1
Corridor 1/ : s g
" 28 | .
4 . Upper Halliford Road : ) T A ] 3
. 45 | 1, g i
and Staines Rd/A244/A308 LR =
. . e e e
Walking Corridor b e N\
Dolahin ey ] L. [asce]
ST i
4.7 chaol 3 3
The Dolphin wr &,
Extate o ‘—:& £ g maa
Primary smna!lqurm mei lnn-.(a:qc';r!nol{
Lppar
3.7 wanar 4
n Cheanestone
z Primary School - o
] % L
Bishop Wand € S H :‘5_ t‘
of £ Secondary 26 o 4
o 27 S
Hallifard Sark Hawkedale Iy
Irfants Kur:
Legend
g_':",,. ®  Recommendation Point
T T T T T T T T 1 Eual, Iierimap, NASA, NGA, LISGS, Ex Commusnity Maps Canfributons, Eu UK, Esrl HERE, Gamén,
0 05 1 2 Kilomelres \__e" i"-cj‘M1 P. METUNASA, USGS
Spethorma LCMP £

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 185



06¢ abed

1

Add dropped kerbs and tactile paving at
Beechwoed Ave. Investigate provision of
continuous footway on all side road junctions
of Vicarage Rd.

1.2

Regulate or remove pavement parking on
Burgoyne Rd

1.3

Regulate or remove pavement parking on
Vicarage Rd

1.4

Provide rest points/seating in the wide verge
areas on Vicarage Rd. Add seating and
shelter at bus stops.

1.5

Add crossing of Vicarage Rd near Juniper
Gardens junction

1.5

Investigate upgrading uncontrolled crossing
to zebra crossing on Vicarage Rd north of
Heath Grove.

Figure 1.2 Burgoyme Rd (Sustrans)

Figure 1.8 Vicarage Rd (Susfrans)

1.0

Wide crossing distance for pedestrians.

£ Tighten curb radi and add continuous

footway at Heathcroft Avenue

1.8

Add dropped kerb and tactile paving, consider
raised or continuous crossing across The
Parade

1.9

» Pavement parking reduces footway width

along the length of The Parade. Regulate or

remove pavement parking

______1.10

Investigate replacing the A308 pedestrian
underpass with an at-grade crossing for a
more direct crossing and improved safety.

1.11

Add dropped kerbs and Zebra Crossing
across Station Rd, consider raised table.

112

Consider redesigning Sunbury Station entry
plaza with pedestrnan prionty, mcluding
raised, coloured or textured pavement to
indicate pedestrian zone. Provide seating
and shelter outside of the station.

Figure 1.12 Sunbury station [Sustrans)
Spalthorne LCVAP 1

186

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



T6¢ obed

1.13

Widen footway to at least 2m along Green
St bridge. Relocate obstructions at pinch
points.

1.14

Expand refuge island, add pedestrian
countdown signals, tighten curb radii, add
tactile paving at Crossways and A308 junction

1.15

Widen footway to at least 2m on Crossways

1.16

Install accessible ramp on bridge between
Crossways and Tesco. Current slope is not
suitable for wheelchair users.

147

Widen footway to 2m if possible on Forest Dr.

1.18

Improve crossing, add tactile paving, tighten
radii, consider raised table and continuous
footway across Green Lane

2 Speithors LOWIF

Figure 1.18 Green Lane (Sustrans)

2.1

Add pedestrian priority/continuous footways
on the side roads from Homewaters Ave to
The Ridings

22

Add shelter and rest points within green verges,
such as in the verge near Sunbury Health Centre.
Alsc consider adding crossing point across Green
Rd at Sunbury Health Centre

2.3

Investigate implementing 20mph speed limit
and ftraffic calming near Sunbury Health
Centre and St Ignatius Roman Catholic
Primary School

2.4

Insufficient clearance for wheelchair users.
Expand footway on Green St at Rooksmead
Rd junction. Relocate crossing point onto
pedestrian desire line. Consider continuous
footway

25

Investigate upgrading uncontrolled crossing
to Zebra crossing on Green St near
Rooksmead Rd

2.6

Widenfootways on Sunmead Rdtoimprove clearance
for wheelchair users. Relocate crossing peoint onto
pedsstrian desire line. Consider continuous foctway.
Widen footway to a minimum of 2m on Green St
south of junction

Figure 1.24 Sunmead Rd (Sustrans)

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

187



26¢ abed

2.7

Reduce curb radii, tighten junction to shorten
pedestrian crossing distance at Vereker Dr

2.8

Add dropped kerbs and tactile paving at
Lyndhurst Ave. Gonsider continuous footway

25

Regulate or eliminate Pavement Parking on
Green 5t. Install pedestrian crossing point
across Green Street within the vicinity of the
shops and pub.

2.10

Consider widening footway or removing
bollards which reduce width below 2m for
wheelchairs and other users

3.1

Add tactile paving at Nursery Gardens.
Consider continuous footway

Implement 20mph speed limit on Nursery
Road.

3.2

Upgrade existing uncontrolled crossing
opposite Sunbury Manor School to Zebra
crossing

Figura 1.30 UncontrolledCrossing(Sustrans)

3.3

Add tactile paving and tighten radii at
Stratton Rd junction. Provide continuous
footways across all small side road junctions
on Nursery Rd.

3.4

Add tactile paving at Ewelyn Crescent,
consider continuous footway

3.5

Regulate or remove pavement parking, where
there are wide footways along Nursery Rd
add rest points and cycle parking, there is an
opportunity for public realm enhancements
nearthe frontage of Springfield Primary School

3.6

Relocate existing uncontrolled crossing to the
west to better align with shared use path to
railway station. Consider upgrading existing
crossing to zebra crossing. Add wayfinding
signage for railway station

3.7

Add pedestrian signals and crossings to all
arms of signalised junction of Nursery Rd
and Upper Halliford Rd

4.1

Add pedestrian signals on southern arm of
A308/A244 junction.

Figure 1.38 A308 junction (Sustrans]

Spalthorne LCVAP a

188

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan



£6¢ abed

4.2

Regulate or remove pavement parking on
Upper Halliford Rd north of Cedar Way

4.3

Tighten radii and add continuous footway at
Mill Farm Ave

4.4

Tighten radii and add continuous footway at
Cedar Way

4.5

Add tactile paving and dropped kerbs at
Lincoln Way. Align crossing peint onto
pedestrian desire line

4.6

Add pedestrian signals at Windmill Rd W

4.7

Add tactile paving at Windmill Close and
consider continuous footways

4 Speithors LOWIF

-
Figura 1.37 Upper Haliford Ad (Google)

Figure 1.38 M#l Farm Ave [Googla)

Figure 1.39 Cedar Way [Sustrans]

Figure 1.40 Lincoln Way (Geegla)

Figure 1.41 Windmill Rd W (Sustrans)

Figura 1.42 Windmill €1 (Google)

Spelthorne Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

189



v6¢ obed

D), ATKINS

SNC +LAVALIN Member of the SNC-Lavalin Group

OFFICE
Nova North

11 Bressenden Place
London - SWI1E 5BY

O®@

www.snclavalin.com | www.atkinsglobal.com



G6¢ obed

SPELTHORNE

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Spelthorne Borough Council
Environment and Sustainability Forward Plan

This Forward Plan sets out the decisions which the Committee expects to take over the forthcoming months.

A Key Decision is a decision to be taken by the Service Committee, which is either likely to result in significant expenditure or savings or to have significant effects on those
living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the Borough.

Please direct any enquiries about this Plan to CommitteeServices@spelthorne.gov.uk.

2T way| epushy

Published on 25 August 2022



96¢ abed

Spelthorne Borough Council

Service Committees Forward Plan and Key Decisions for 06 September 2022 to 31 January 2023

Anticipated earliest (or
next) date of decision
and decision maker

Matter for consideration

Key or non-Key Decision

Decision to be
taken in Public or
Private

Lead Officer

Environment and Climate change Strategy and | Key Decision Public Sandy Muirhead, Group Head -
Sustainability Committee | Action Plan It is significant in terms of its effect on Commissioning and Transformation
06 09 2022 A report on a proposed communities living or working in an

climate change strategy and area comprising two or more wards

action plan fro Spelthorne

Borough Council
Environment and Local Walking & Cycling Non-Key Decision Public Sandy Muirhead, Group Head -
Sustainability Committee | Infrastructure Plan (LWCIP) Commissioning and Transformation
06 09 2022 Phase 1 & 2
Environment and Housing Delivery Test Action | Non-Key Decision Public Hannah Bridges, Planning Officer, Esme
Sustainability Committee | Plan Spinks, Planning Development Manager
06 09 2022
Environment and Carbon calculation for new Non-Key Decision Public Sandy Muirhead, Group Head -

Sustainability Committee
11 10 2022

developments

To consider (i) mandatory
submission of carbon
calculation statement for any
future developments owned
by the Council or KGE and (ii)
requesting carbon calculation
statements for developments
submitted by other parties
with a view to making a
recommendation to Council if
required

Commissioning and Transformation

Published on 25 August 2022




/6¢ abed

Environment and Update of Rivers and Non-Key Decision Public Sandy Muirhead, Group Head -
Sustainability Committee | Waterways Commissioning and Transformation

11 10 2022

Environment and Service Plan (as part of the Non-Key Decision Public Sandy Muirhead, Group Head -
Sustainability Committee | 23/24 Budget Process) Commissioning and Transformation, Paul
11 10 2022 Taylor, Chief Accountant

Environment and 240m Boardwalk down the Non-Key Decision Public Andi Roy, Bio-Diversity Officer
Sustainability Committee | Eastern Bank of the River

08 11 2022 Ash Improvement Site

Environment and Purchase of electric Taxis - Non-Key Decision Public Claire Lucas, Principal Pollution Control
Sustainability Committee | Project Update Officer

10 01 2023

Environment and Heathrow and Airspace Non-Key Decision Public Heather Morgan, Group Head - Regeneration

Sustainability Committee

Modernisation

To receive a
presentation/update on
Heathrow's expansion plans

and Growth




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Housing Delivery Test Action Plan
	HDTAP_2022 Draft.docx ES_HB Committee version

	7 Updates from Task and Finish and/or Working Groups
	8 Climate change Strategy and Action Plan
	Climate Change Strategy 06.09.22

	9 Local Walking & Cycling Infrastructure Plan (LWCIP) Phase 1 & 2
	220311_Spelthorne LCWIP_Report - Final draft

	12 Forward Plan

